
 

 

 

 

COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO STATE CAPTURE 

HELD AT 

CITY OF JOHANNESBURG OLD COUNCIL CHAMBER 

158 CIVIC BOULEVARD,  BRAAMFONTEIN  

 

 

 

 

24  FEBRUARY 2021  
 

 

DAY 349  

 

 
22 Woodlands Drive 

Irene Woods, Centurion  
TEL: 012 941 0587 FAX: 086 742 7088 

MOBILE: 066 513 1757  
info@gautengtranscribers.co.za 

 

 

mailto:info@gautengtranscribers.co.za


 

Page 2 of 269 
 

CERTIFICATE OF VERACITY 
 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that, in as far as it is audible, the aforegoing is a 
VERBATIM transcription from the soundtrack of proceedings, as was ordered to be 
transcribed by Gauteng Transcribers and which had been recorded by the client 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO STATE CAPTURE 
 

HELD AT 
 

CITY OF JOHANNESBURG OLD COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

158 CIVIC BOULEVARD, BRAAMFONTEIN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DATE OF HEARING: 22 FEBRUARY 2021 
 
TRANSCRIBERS: B KLINE; Y KLIEM; V FAASEN; D STANIFORTH 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 3 of 269 
 

PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 24 FEBRUARY 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Son i .   Good morn ing  

everybody.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Good morn ing  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   A re  we ready?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   Cha i rperson,  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  

among the  w i tnesses who were  go ing  to  be  ca l led  today 

was Mr  Auswel l  Mashaba and I  made tha t  po in t  aga in  

yesterday re la t ing  to  the  fac t  tha t  a  summons had been  

served on h im to  appear  today.  10 

 I  must  record  tha t  Mr  Mashaba is  no t  here  and  

subsequent  to  the  exchanges  we had,  you  and I  

Cha i rperson yesterday,  h is  a t to rney has sent  a  le t ter  to  the  

Commiss ion  say ing  tha t  Mr  Mashaba w i l l  no t  be  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because o f  tha t ,  a re  you go ing  to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  I  w i l l  g ive  you a  bund le  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .a re  you go ing  to  read i t  in to  the  

record?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you go ing  to  read i t  in to  the  record?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  I  w i l l  g ive  you. . .   I  want  to  dea l  

w i th  someth ing  Mr  Cha i rperson,  tha t  i t  i s  no t  s imp le  tha t  he  
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i s  no t  coming but  the  c i r cumstances though,  we p repared a  

smal l  bund le  to  ind ica te  to  you a l l  the  re levant  exchanges  

re la t ing  to  h is  non-appearance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  perhaps I  shou ld  answer  your  

quest ion .   I  w i l l  g ive  you a  copy o f  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  i t  w i l l  be . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . . together  w i th  o ther  10 

cor respondence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    May I  have leave to  hand i t  up  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   Thank you.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rpe rson,  you w i l l  see  in  the  

bund le ,  there  are  a  number  o f  documents  there .   I t  i s  the  

document  r igh t  a t  the  –  i t  i s  the  las t  document  in  tha t  

bund le  and i t  i s  a  le t te r  f rom Mr  Cameron dated today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  shou ld  read  i t  in to  the  reco rd .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  p lease.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Jus t  so  tha t  we. . .  we. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The reco rd  tha t  he  i s  no t  go ing  to  be  

here .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  says :  

“We address th is  communica t ion  to  you on the  

ins t ruc t ions o f  our  c l ien t  [and the  c l ien t  be ing  

Mr  Mashaba as  appears  above]  w i th  spec i f i c  

re fe rence to  the  document  and more  

spec i f i ca l l y  to  the  contents  o f  you r  

communica t ion  da ted  the 

16 t h  o f  February  2021. . . ”  

 And then in  the  las t  paragraph:  10 

“ In  c los ing ,  we conf i rm and record  tha t  our  

c l ien t  w i l l  no t  be  appear ing  a t  the  Commiss ion  

today and more  par t i cu la r ly  fo r  ou r  reason tha t  

our  c l ien t  does not  accept  tha t  the  document  

const i tu tes  a  l awfu l  and lega l l y  b ind ing  

summons. . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry.   I  am so r ry.   I  am not  sure  

tha t . . .   I  am look ing  a t  the  las t  le t te r  in  the  bund le .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   A re  you s t i l l  i n  the  f i rs t  

parag raph or  you have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  I  have moved to  the  las t  

parag raph to  ge t . . .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  I  am sor ry.    

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laughs]   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  wanted  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then I  want  to  go  th rough the  

cor respondence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no .   That  i s  f ine .   Jus t . . .  I  th ink ,  

comple te  your  read ing .   I  w i l l  j us t  have to . . .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  in  the  f i rs t  parag raph he says:  

“We address th is  communica t ion  to  you on the  

ins t ruc t ions o f  our  c l ien t  w i th  spec i f i c  

re fe rence to  the  document  and more  

spec i f i ca l l y  to  the  contents  o f  you r  

communica t ion  da ted  the 

16 t h  o f  February  2021. . . ”  

 Now Cha i rpe rson ,  I  may jus t  say  as  the  p re lude  

to  the  le t te r,  the  wr i te r  desc r ibes the  document  as  the  20 

document  pu rpor t ing  to  be  the  summons tha t  was  served  

on Mr  Mashaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  they. . .  he  is  s ign ing . . .   I  do  no t  

recogn ise  tha t .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then he says:  

“As regards to  the  contents  o f  paragraph 3  o f  

your  communica t ion :  

1 .  The recorda l  con ta ined the re in  on ly  came to 

the  wr i te r ’s  a t ten t ion  on  the  rece ip t  o f  tha t  

communica t ion ,  tha t  he  i s  say ing  no t  w i th in  the  

wr i te r ’s  knowledge,  then our  communica t ion  

da te ,  i t  i s  15  February  2021 was t ransmi t ted  to  

you.  10 

2 .  And we request  tha t  you fu rn i sh  ourse l ves 

w i th  a  t ranscr ibed record  o f  what  took p lace a t  

tha t  hear ing ,  as  we ho ld  ins t ruc t ions f rom our  

c l ien t  to  seek  an op in ion  f rom sen ior  

counse l . . . ”  

 And then the  th i rd  paragraph then  is  

Cha i rperson:  

“ In  c los ing ,  we conf i rm and record  tha t  our  

c l ien t  w i l l  no t  be  appear ing  a t  the  Commiss ion  

today,  and more  par t i cu la r ly,  fo r  our  reason 20 

tha t  our  c l ien t  does not  accept  tha t  the  

document  const i tu tes  a  lawfu l  and lega l l y  

b ind ing  summons . . . ”  

 Ja ,  requested to  acknowledge the reof .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And i t  i s  s igned by  Mr  Cameron,  the  

a t to rney.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  the  Commiss ion  dea l t  

w i th  th is  s im i la r  s i tua t ion  las t  week Cha i rperson,  on  

Monday las t  week .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Where  a  w i tness was summonsed to 

appear  and d id  no t  appear.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t ,  the  

Commiss ion  has  taken ce r ta in  ac t ion  to  ensure  tha t  the  

d is respect  d isp layed and the  un lawfu l  conduct  i s  no t  gone  

unpun ished.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now Mr  Cha i rperson,  what  I  want  to  

say is .   Th is  le t te r  tha t  I  jus t  read does not  appear  in  a 

vacuum.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    There  i s  –  there  are  seas o f  20 

exchanges.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now I  on l y  want  to  dea l  w i th  the  

re levant  ones and they are  con ta ined in  the  bund le  o f  

documents  I  sent  to  you.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You w i l l  see  Cha i rperson tha t  what  i s  

c ruc ia l  in  tha t  se t  o f  documents  i s  the  summons wh ich  the  

–  Mr  Cameron ca l l s  a  document  tha t  purpor ts  to  be  a  

summons.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  tha t  i s  –  and when he rece ived –  

soon a f te r  he  rece ived tha t ,  we got  a  le t te r  f rom 

Mr  Cameron say ing  tha t  they do  not  recogn ise  tha t  

document  as  a  summons.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    They w i l l  no t  appear.   We,  t he  very  

next  day –  and tha t  Cha i rperson happened on Monday las t  

week.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    When Mr  Cameron wro te  to  us .   On 

Tuesday we wro te  back to  say tha t  you w i l l  be  aware  tha t  a  

s im i la r  i ssue arose a t  the  Commiss ions hear ing  yeste rday  

and we are  say ing  to  you i t  i s  no t  open to  your  c l ien t  to  

s imp ly  ignore  the  summons.   I f  he  wants  to  cha l lenge the  20 

va l id i t y  o f  the  summons he must  do  so  in  cour t  bu t  un t i l  i t  

i s  se t  as ide  i t  re ta ins  i t s  va l id i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And i t  i s  then Cha i rpe rson tha t  you 

and I  had tha t  exchange yeste rday re la t ing  to  what  was  
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g ing  to  happen today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  las t  le t te r  I  have jus t  read is  

a  response to  ou r  p rev ious le t te r  o f  the  17 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  exchange yeste rday.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now Cha i rperson,  the  approach o f  

the  Lega l  Team to  th is  i s  tha t  Mr  Mashaba ’s  conduct  cannot  

go  unanswered.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He cannot  de fy  a  summons .   He is  

obv ious ly  en t i t led  to  cha l lenge i t . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And what  we wou ld  l i ke  to  do  

Cha i rperson is  to  go  th rough the  documents  th rough w i th  

you because o f  course  i f  there  i s  su f f i c ien t  ca l l s ,  then in  

te rms o f  the  –  o f  Sect ion  6  o f  the  Commiss ions Act ,  he 

wou ld  be  ent i t led  no t  to  come.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  the  ques t ion  is  whether  i t  i s  tha t  

and shou ld  you be sa t is f ied  based  on the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  

you have tha t  there  is  no t  a  su f f i c ien t  cause before  you to  

then in t roduce lega l  s teps aga ins t  Mr  Mashaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rpe rson,  I  say  tha t  a lso  hav ing  

regard  to  the  po in t  you made las t  week Monday when th is  

s i tua t ion  f i rs t  a rose before  the  Commiss ion  where  there  

was a  de f iance o f  an  appearance o f  a  summons to  appear.  

 And the  po in t  you made Cha i rperson is  tha t  tha t  

i s  go ing  to  lead  to  more  such def iance ’s ,  and tha t  i s  

exact ly  what  th is  i s .   And i t  i s  fo r  tha t  reason  tha t  we 

submi t  tha t  the  mat te r  must  be  dea l t  w i th  fo rmal ly  now and 

s teps taken as  you as  the  Cha i rperson wou ld . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So th is  may we l l  be  the  s ta r t  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  m ight  be .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .o f  more  peop le  who w i l l  de fy  

summonses issued by  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And re fuse  to  appear  be fore  the  

Commiss ion  wh ich  obv ious ly  undermines in  a  very  

s ign i f i can t  way the  work  o f  the  Commiss ion  when peop le  

who have knowledge o f  cer ta in  t ransact ions and  events  

tha t  a re  re levant  to  the  invest iga t ion  o f  the  Commiss ion  20 

re fuse to  appear  when they have been served w i th  

summonses and  th is  may defea t  the  ob jec t i ves  o f  the  

Commiss ion .    

 And I  no te  tha t  in  the  le t te r  Mr  Mashaba ’s  

a t to rney does no t  pu t  up  any fac tua l  o r  l ega l  g rounds fo r  
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h is  c l ien t ’s  v iew tha t  the  summons tha t  was served on h is  

c l ien t  i s  no t  a  summons o r  i s  no t  va l id .    

 That  i s  what  a lso  Mr  Zuma’s  a t to rneys d id  in  

the i r  le t te r  to  say he  was not  go ing  to  appear  las t  week.   

They sa id  the  summons was i r regu lar  w i thout  say ing  even 

grounds on wh ich  they were  say ing  the  summons was 

i r regu la r.    

 So  these –  th is  w i tness is  bas ica l l y  do ing  the  

same th ing .   And  we may we l l  see  more .   I  hope no t .   Yes,  

okay a l r i gh t .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  then may I  go  th rough 

the  documents  as  they appear  be fore  you?  You w i l l  see  

the  f i rs t  document  Cha i rpe rson is  the  proof  o f  serv i ce  o f  

the  document  on  Mr  Mashaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  the  summons? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    O f  the  summons.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    On Mr  Mashaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because i t  was a  summons?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was not  jus t  a  document?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  i t  was no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  was an impor tan t  p rocess,  lega l  

p rocess.   I t  was a  summons and i t  was labe l led  as  such?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And o f  cou rse ,  the  serv ice  i s  no t  an  

issue because the  very  fac t  tha t  they are  cha l leng ing  i t  

means they rece ived i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    But  I  jus t  say  tha t  we took a l l  s teps  

to  ensure  tha t  there  were  no  p rocedura l  g rounds on wh ich  

tha t  cou ld  be  cha l lenged.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then  Cha i rperson,  the  next  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And o f  course ,  the  Commiss ion  has  

issued,  f rom wha t  I  remember,  many summonses over  the  

past  th ree  years ,  bo th  summonses  fo r  w i tnesses or  peop le  

to  appear  as  we l l  as  summonses fo r  the  product ion  o f  

documents .  

 I  do  no t  know i f  I  saw the  a f f idav i t s  a re  c lose  to  

o r  about  one thousand.   I  am not  sure .   Or  whethe r  i t  was  

c lose  to  above hundred.   I  am not  sure .   But  whethe r  i t  was  

hundred or  a round hundred o r  one thousand,  i t  is  s t i l l  a  20 

h igh  number.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And most ly  peop le  have accep ted the  

summonses and compl ied  w i th  them.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Most  o f  the  t ime.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  the  summons Cha i rperson reads:  

“Summons to  appear  as  a  w i tness. . . ”  

 And i t  records  –  and th is  i s  the  –  I  jus t  po in t  ou t  

Cha i rperson tha t  in  te rms o f  the  Commiss ions Act ,  the  

fo rmat  o f  the  summons must  be  in  te rms as  de termined by  

yourse l f  Mr  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And th is  i s  the  –  th is  i s  the  manner  in  

wh ich  the  summonses have been issued.   We kept  w i th  the  

secre tar ia t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And i t  a le r ts  Mr  Mashaba to  the  fac t  

tha t  the  summons is  i ssued in  te rms o f  Sect ion  3 .2  o f  the 

Commiss ions Act  to  be  read w i th  the  Proc lamat ion  3  o f  the  

–  pub l i shed on the  25 t h  o f  January  2018,  Government  

Not ice  105 pub l i shed on the  9 t h  o f  February  2018  as  the  

Ru les  o f  the  Commiss ion .  20 

 And Cha i rperson,  the  te rms o f  the  summons read  

as  fo l lows:  

“The sher i f f  o r  h is  deputy  in fo rm  

Mr  Mashaba. . . ”  

 And the  address i s  there  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  le t  us  inc lude h is  name.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  –  because i t  i s  as  i f  the 

summons jus t  pu t  the  surname wi thout  the  name.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  I  am sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

“ In fo rm Mr  Auswel l  Mashaba. . .  [and h is  

address be ing  AM House 20,  Bavar ia  Avenue 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  o r  maybe  you might  no t  need to  

repeat  the  address.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  the  address,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .   But  i t  is  there .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then:  

“He is  to  be  i n fo rmed tha t  he  is  he reby  

summoned to :  

a )  Appear  be fo re  the  Commiss ion  pe rsona l l y  a t  20 

the  C iv ic  Cent re ,  158 C iv i c  Bou levard ,  

B raamfonte in ,  Johannesburg  a t  10 :00  a .m.  on  

the  24 t h  o f  February  2021. . .  [That  i s  today. ]  

. . . fo r  the  purposes o f  g iv ing  ev idence before  

the  Commiss ion  and then be ques t ioned about  
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mat te rs  a r i s ing  f rom the  re levant  par t s  o f  the 

a f f idav i t s  and/or  the  repor t s  in  the  annexure  

here to . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And Cha i rperson,  I  jus t  po in t  ou t  tha t  

tha t  annexure  re fers  to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mole fe  da ted the  

25 t h  o f  August  2016.   The second document  l i s ted  in  

Annexure  A is  Mr  Mashaba ’s  a f f idav i t  da ted  the  

30 t h  o f  November  2020 in  response to  Mr  Mole fe ’s  a f f idav i t  

in  wh ich . . .   Sor ry.   In  wh ich  he  or  h is  lega l  rep resenta t i ve  10 

fu rn ished to  the  Commiss ion .  

 Now Cha i rperson ,  I  shou ld  jus t  add tha t  tha t  i s  

the  a f f idav i t  tha t  was submi t ted  pursuant  to  the  10 .6  

D i rec t i ve  tha t  was i ssued fo r  h im to  respond to  cer ta in  

mat te rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  he has prev ious l y  compl ied  w i th  a 

10 .6  D i rec t i ve  i ssued to  h im? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  h im to  f i le  a  cer ta in  a f f idav i t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    He f i led  –  he  compl ied?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  now he is  no t  comply ing  w i th  the  

summons?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  th i rd  document  i s  the  repor t  

o f  the  admin is t ra t ion  o f  the  es ta te  o f  Swi fambo Ra i l  

Leas ing  and L iqu ida t ion  and Ra i l  P ro  Ho ld ings (P ty)  L td  in  

L iqu ida t ion  da ted  the  18 t h  o f  February,  wh ich  was prov ided  

to  you on the  4 t h  o f  December  2020.  

 I  shou ld  jus t  add Cha i rperson tha t  the  a f f idav i t  in  

wh ich  he  responded,  he  responded to  bo th  these  mat te rs  

Cha i rperson.  

 Then Cha i rpe rson ,  the  –  i f  I  cou ld  go  back to  the  10 

te rms o f  the  summons.   I t  i s  sa id  there  in  bo ld :  

“Your  fa i lu re  to  comply  w i th  the  requ i rements  

se t  ou t  in  paragraph A w i thout  su f f i c ien t  cause 

const i tu te  an  o f fence under  6 .1  o f  the  

Commiss ions Act  o f  1947 as  amended. . . ”  

 And i t  i s  da ted  the  9 t h  o f  February  and i t  i s  

s igned by  the  Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  Pro fessor  

Mosa la .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes-no,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Wi l l  you  jus t  

a r range fo r  eve rybody to  say:   “w i l l  const i tu tes”  and 20 

o f fence and “no t  const i tu tes ”?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   And then the  secre tary  shou ld  make  
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sure .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  cont inue.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  tha t  i s  the  te rms o f  the  summons  

tha t  was se rved on h im Cha i r.   Now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  they te l l  h im –  they te l l  h im he is  

requ i red  to  appear  be fore  the  Commiss ion?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    They te l l  h im the  venue,  the  address  

where  he  must  appear.   They te l l  h im what  he  must  g ive  10 

ev idence about  and what  he  w i l l  be  quest ioned about .   I t  

says  are  mat te rs  a r is ing  f rom the  a f f idav i t  l i s ted  in  

Annexure  A or  documents  l i s ted  in  Annexure  A .   I t  te l l s  h im 

the  da te  when to  appear  and i t  te l ls  h im the  t ime.   And i t  i s  

i ssued by  the  Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  r igh t ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i t  i s  s igned  by  the  Secre ta ry  o f  the 

Commiss ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i t  i s  c lea r  f rom h is  head ing  tha t  the  20 

summons is  f rom the  Commiss ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  has  go t  the  logo o f  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Logo o f  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  face  o f  the  –  on  the  f i rs t  page.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  Cha i rperson,  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  

no th ing  appears  to  be  un toward  or  i r regu lar  about  th is  

summons tha t  was se rved.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now Cha i rpe rson,  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  

the  summons was  served on h im on the  9 t h  –  on  the  10 t h  as 

recorded in  the  fu r thest  document  p roduced by  the  hear ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And so ,  obv ious ly. . .   Where  is  the  

sher i f f ’s  re tu rn?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  the  f i rs t  page Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  one.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   In  any event ,  i t  i s  c lear  f rom h i s  

a t to rney ’s  le t te r  tha t  they rece ived  the  summons.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  jus t  tha t  they say they do  no t  regard  20 

i t  as  a  summons.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   And they are  no t  cha l leng ing  

the  issue o f  serv ice .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  ja ,  ja .   And we do not  know what  

i t  i s  tha t  i t  makes  them th ink  i t  i s  no t  a  summons.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Uhm. . .   Yes? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  one day a f te r  the  serv ice  o f  the  

summons on h im ,  I  shou ld  a l so  add Cha i rperson jus t  fo r  

comple teness sake.   The summons  was a l so  emai led  to  the 

a t to rney who has  been rep resent ing  Mr  Mashaba.   I t  was  

emai led  to  the  a t to rney and fo r  sa fe ty  sake there  was  

serv i ces  as  we l l .    

 Then Cha i rperson,  on  the  15 t h  o f  February,  f i ve  

days a f te r  the  summons was served on Mr  Mashaba,  10 

Mr  Cameron on h is  le t te rhead –  th is  i s  Mr  Mashaba ’s  

a t to rney –  wr i tes  to  Ms Vangate(? ) ,  who i s  the  –  a  member  

o f  the  Lega l  Team dea l ing  w i th  th is  mat te r  and who has  

dea l t  w i th  Mr  Cameron before .  

 He says. . .   Oh,  sor ry.   He g ives her  as  a  

re ference but  he  addresses the  l e t te r  to  the  Secre tary  o f  

the  Commiss ion  bu t  I  do  no t  know why he says :   Dear  

Ms Vangate .    

 He then says:  

“Our  c l ien t ,  Mr  Auswel l  Mashaba,  the 20 

document  purpo r t ing  to  be  a  summons fo r  the  

purposes o f  p rocur ing  our  c l ien t ’s  a t tendance 

before  the  Commiss ion  o f  inqu i ry  in to  

a l legat ions o f  s ta te  capture ,  cor rup t ion  and 

f raud in  the  Pub l ic  Sector  inc lud ing  o rgans o f  
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s ta te  (The  Inqu i ry )  on  the  

24 t h  o f  February  2021 (The Document ) ,  we  

address th is  communica t ion  to  you on the  

ins t ruc t ions o f  our  c l ien t  w i th  spec i f i c  

re fe rence to  the  document . . . ”  

 Which  c lear ly  i s  a  re fe rence to  the  summons.   I t  

says :  

“Our  c l ien t  has ins t ruc ted  ou rse lves to  reco rd  

tha t :  

1 .  He does not  recogn ise  and accept  the  10 

lawfu lness and/o r  the  lega l  va l id i t y  o f  the  

document .  

2 .  A r is ing  f rom tha t  reco rda l  re fe r red  to  here in  

above,  our  c l ien t  w i l l  no t  be  a t tend ing  the  

inqu i ry. ”  

 And then there  is :  

“You a re  reques ted to  acknowledge rece ip t  

hereof .   Yours  fa i th fu l l y,  A t to rney Cameron. ”  

 That  le t te r  i s  da ted  the  15 t h  o f  February  

Cha i rperson.   On  the  16 t h  o f  February,  the  Secre tary  o f  the  20 

Commiss ion  wro te  to  Mr  Cameron in  the  fo l low ing te rms on  

the  Commiss ion ’s  le t te rhead to  Mr  Cameron,  h is  address 

and i t  was sent  by  emai l .    

 I t  says :  

“Dear  Mr  Cameron.   The Jud ic ia l  Commiss ion  
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o f  the  Inqu i ry  re  the  Jud ic ia l  Commiss ion  o f  

Inqu i ry  in to  A l legat ions o f  S ta te  Capture ,  

Cor rup t ion  and Fraud in  the  Pub l ic  Sector  

inc lud ing  Organs o f  S ta te  (The Commiss ion )  re  

your  le t te r  o f  15  February  2021 in  respect  o f  

the  summons served on your  c l ien t ,  Mr  Auswel l  

Mashaba:  

1 .  We note  the  contents  o f  your  le t te r  under  

rep l y  wh ich  was  sent  to  the  Commiss ion  a t  

04 :40  yesterday. . . ”  10 

 Now the  re levance o f  the  t ime Cha i rperson is  

re f lec ted  in  parag raph 2 ,  wh ich  reads:  

“Th is  i s  jus t  about  the  t ime the  Commiss ion ’s  

hear ing  o f  yes terday was be ing  f ina l i sed. . . ”  

 And the  –  jus t  fo r  contex t  Cha i rpe rson.   The 

hear ing  is  the  hear ing  concern ing  Mr  Zuma’s  non-

appearance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Last  Monday,  las t  week . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Las t  week,  Monday,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ha.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

“The Commiss ion ’s  Lega l  Team dea l ing  w i th  

s ta te  captu re  a t  PRASA has requested me to  

br ing  to  your  a t ten t ion  and tha t  o f  

Mr  Mashaba,  wh ich  I  hereby do,  tha t  among  
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the  mat te rs  tha t  emerges unequ ivoca l  a t  tha t  

hear ing  are  the  fo l low ing:  

3 .1 .  A w i tness on  whom a summons  to  

appear,  the  Commiss ion  has been served,  i s  

requ i red  to  comply  w i th  the  te rms o f  the  

summons un less  he  o r  she had i t  se t  as ide  by  

a  competent  cour t  p r io r  to  the  t ime he o r  she  

had been summoned to  appear.  

3 .2 .  Un less  the  summons has been  se t  

as ide ,  i t  i s  no t  open fo r  a  w i tness who is  o f  the  10 

v iew tha t  a  summons is  no t  lawfu l  o r  lega l l y  

va l id  to  no t  to  comply  w i th  what  the  summons 

requ i res  h im or  her  to  do .  

3 .3 .  a  w i tness who does not  comply  w i th  

the  te rms o f  the  summons w i thout  su f f i c ien t  

cause is ,  in  te rms o f  Sect ion  5  o f  the 

Commiss ions Act  o f  1947 in  te rms o f  wh ich  ac t  

a  summons was  issued,  gu i l t y  o f  an  o f fence  

and on conv ic t ion  may be  l iab le  to  

impr isonment  o f  up  to  s ix -months .  20 

4 .   In  the  l igh t  o f  the  a forego ing ,  the  

s tance o f  the  Commiss ion ’s  Lega l  Team on  

PRASA is  tha t  Mr  Mashaba is  requ i red  to  

appear  be fo re  the  Commiss ion  on  the  

24 t h  o f  February  2021 and comp ly  w i th  the  
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o ther  te rms o f  the  summons.   Ne i ther  you r  

le t te r  nor  i t s  contents  wh ich  seeming ly  

de l ibe ra te l y  b road ly  reco rds  on ly  

Mr  Mashaba ’s  a l legat ion  tha t  the  summons i s  

no t  lawfu l l y  and  lega l l y  va l id  w i thout  se t t ing  

as ide  the  bas is  o f  tha t  a l legat ion ,  const i tu tes 

su f f i c ien t  cause fo r  h im not  to  appear.  

5 .   I  a lso  record  tha t  a  copy o f  your  

le t te r,  th is  response  and fu r ther  

cor respondence,  i f  any,  w i l l  be  made ava i lab le  10 

to  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Commiss ion . . . ”  

 Now i t  i s  in  te rms o f  tha t  Cha i rperson tha t  we  

wanted i t  to  be  known tha t  these are  the  mat te rs  tha t  w i l l  

be  p laced before  you today fo r  a  de terminat ion  fo r  what  i s  

to  be  done.    

 And Cha i rperson,  tha t  le t te r  was sent  to  

Mr  Cameron on the  16 t h  o f  February  2021 and i t  emphas ise  

two po in ts  Cha i rperson.   I t  says to  Mr  Cameron:   We are  

te l l ing  you and your  c l ien t .    

 Now we heard  no th ing  f rom Mr  Cameron unt i l  20 

yesterday even ing  when Ms Vangate  go t  a  ca l l  f rom h im  

and then th is  morn ing  we got  th is  le t te r.   Th i s  i s  the  le t te r  I  

have read but  jus t  fo r  comple teness sake Cha i r  because i t  

i s  a  response to  our  le t te r  o f  the  17 t h  –  sor ry,  the  16 t h .  

“We address th i s  communica t ion  to  you on the  
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ins t ruc t ions o f  our  c l ien t  w i th  spec i f i c  re fe rence to  

the  document  and more  spec i f i ca l l y  to  the  contents  

o f  your  communica t ion  da ted the  16  February  

2021. ”  

I t  says :  

“As regards to  the  contents  o f  pa ragraph 3  o f  you r  

communica t ion ,  the  reco rda ls  conta ined there in  on l y  

came to  the  wr i te r ’s  a t ten t ion  on  rece ip t  o f  tha t  

communica t ion ,  tha t  the  same was not  w i th in  the  

wr i te r ’s  knowledge when ou r  communica t ion  da ted  10 

the  15  February  was t ransmi t ted  to  you. ”  

Now I  do  no t  know what  the  re levance o f  tha t  i s  because –  

and I  am say ing  tha t ,  Cha i rpe rson ,  because whatever  was 

d iscussed a t  the  Commiss ion ,  the  law remains  the  same,  

the  law is  he  mus t  comply  w i th  the  summons.   Mr  Cameron 

d id  no t  have to  be  to ld  by  the  Commiss ion ,  i t  was jus t  tha t  

the  Commiss ion  was put t ing  h im  and  h is  c l ien t  on  te rms  

tha t  we are  te l l ing  you tha t  th is  i s  what  Mr  Mashaba is  

requ i red  to  do  and so  tha t  p ro fessed ignorance does not  

take  the  mat te r  any fu r ther.   2 :  20 

“We request  tha t  you fu rn ish  ourse l ves w i th  a  

t ranscr ibed reco rd  o f  what  took p lace a t  tha t  

hear ing  as  we ho ld  ins t ruc t ions fo r  our  c l ien t  to  

seek an op in ion  f rom sen ior  counse l . ”  

And then says in  c los ing :  
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“We conf i rm and reco rd  our  c l ien t  w i l l  no t  be  

appear ing  a t  the  Commiss ion  today and more  

par t i cu la r l y  fo r  the  reason tha t  our  c l ien t  does no t  

accept  tha t  the  document  const i tu tes  a  lawfu l  and 

lega l l y  b ind ing  summons. ”  

Now in  response  to  tha t  las t  pa rag raph,  Cha i rpe rson,  I  

make the  po in t  tha t  in  our  le t te r  we say bu t  you jus t  ba ld ly  

s ta te  and i t  appears  to  be  de l ibera te l y  so  tha t  the  

summons i s  no t  lega l l y  b ind ing  and i t  i s  no t  lawfu l .   I t  i s  an  

ind ica t ion  –  te l l  us  what  i s  wrong  so  tha t  when th is  mat te r  10 

is  debated th is  morn ing  we can de termine whether  t here  is  

any cogency in  what  your  c l ien t  i s  say ing?  Of  course  tha t  

i s  as  ba ld  as  the  in i t ia l  a l legat ion  and as  ba ld  as  what  Mr  

Zuma’s  a t to rney sa id  to  you,  Cha i rperson.  

 Now they then say we request  acknowledgement  o f  

rece ip t  hereof .   And,  Cha i rpe rson,  the  quest ion  tha t  a r ises ,  

i s  what  shou ld  the  Commiss ion  do?   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  th is  conduct  by  anybody,  the  

conduct  o f  de fy ing  summons to  appear  be fo re  the  

Commiss ion ,  w i thout  hav ing  gone to  cour t  to  have i t  se t  20 

as ide  i f  somebody th inks  the  summons i r regu lar  o r  no t  

va l id  bu t  s imp ly  to  de fy  i t  and not  appear  be fore  the  

Commiss ion  is  to ta l l y  unacceptab le  and every th ing  shou ld  

be  done by  the  Commiss ion  and the  law enforcement  

agenc ies  and everybody concerned to  pu t  a  s top  to  i t  
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because i f  i t  spreads i t  w i l l  be  the  beg inn ing  o f  chaos in  

our  lega l  sys tem.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Abso lu te l y .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  what  i t  wou ld  mean.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  i t  spreads,  soon i t  w i l l  be  happen ing  in  

the  mag is t ra te ’s  cour ts  in  va r ious  par ts  o f  our  count ry ,  i t  

w i l l  be  happen ing  in  the  var ious h igh  cour ts  th roughout  the  

count ry  because i t  wou ld  seem tha t  sec t ions in  our  soc ie t y  

w i l l  be  be l iev ing  tha t  i t  i s  accep tab le  conduct  to  s imp ly  10 

de fy  summons.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Le t  us  no t  fo rge t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  the  

Labour  Cour t s  where  these r igh ts  o f  vu lnerab le… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Among the  most  vu lnerab le  in  ou r  

soc ie ty  where  an  employer  jus t  de f ies  summons to  appear .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Ja ,  employers  in  the  Labour  Cour t  

w i l l  de fy  when they a re  requ i red  to  appear  there ,  i t  w i l l  j us t  

–  i t  i s  jus t  go ing  to  mean chaos.   The secre tary  o f  the  

Commiss ion  is  ins t ruc ted  to  lay  a  c r im ina l  compla in t  20 

aga ins t  Mr  Auswel l  Mashaba fo r  h is  fa i lu re  to  appear  

be fore  the  Commiss ion  today i n  accordance w i th  the  te rms 

o f  the  summons tha t  had been served on  h im to  appear  

be fore  the  Commiss ion  a t  ten  o ’c lock  th is  morn ing  and the  

lega l  team is  requested to  ass i s t  the  secre tary  in  p repar ing  



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 28 of 269 
 

the  necessary  a f f idav i t  o r  s ta tement  to  be  lodged  a t  the 

re levant  po l i ce  s ta t ion  and tha t  needs to  be  done u rgent ly  

because th is  t ype o f  conduct  cannot  be  a l lowed to  go  on  

w i thout  the  lega l  p rocess be ing  put  in  mot ion  to  dea l  w i th  i t  

fo r  too  long.   So tha t  i s  what  shou ld  happen.   Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you  p lease,  Cha i rperson.   

Cha i rperson,  i t  is  a  p i t y  and I  say  tha t  because  on the  

ob jec t i ve  fac ts ,  and tha t  i s  t he  ex ten t  to  wh ich  the  

Commiss ion ’s  invest iga t ions are  be ing  hampered by  Mr 

Mashaba ’s  non-appearance.   Cha i rpe rson,  on  the  ev idence  10 

on h is  own vers ion  as  se t  ou t  in  the  a f f idav i t  he  has 

submi t ted ,  Mr  Mashaba does not  d ispute  tha t  he  was in  

charge o f  Swi fambo when i t  was awarded the  cont rac t .    

 Cha i rperson,  you  w i l l  a lso  reca l l  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  

gave ev idence about  a  meet ing  be tween Mr  Mashaba and  

h imse l f  where  Mr  Mashaba sa id  he  knew tha t  the  Hawks  

were  invest iga t ing  h im and tha t  he  wanted,  in  a  sense,  to  

come c lean.   He then sa id  tha t  he  had been approached by  

Mr  Mabunda,  the  f ron t  fo r  the  company tha t  wou ld  be  

awarded the  cont rac t .  20 

 In  h is  response –  and tha t  was Mr  Mole fe ’ s  rep ly ing  

a f f idav i t  in  the  Swi fambo High Cour t  app l i ca t ion ,  we have 

dea l t  –  we have re fer red  to  many t imes wh ich  judgment  o f  

the  H igh  Cour t  se t t ing  as ide  the  award  as  be ing  cor rup t  

was endorsed by  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  and the 
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Const i tu t iona l  Cour t ,  hav ing  look ing  a t  the  app l i ca t ion  fo r  

leave to  appea l ,  re fused r igh t  leave to  appea l .  

 So what  we have ,  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  concerns by  the  

h ighest  cour ts  in  the  land about  a  R3,5  b i l l i on  cont rac t .   

Now among the  a l legat ions made about  Mr  Mashaba,  

Cha i rperson,  i s  tha t  he  was aware  tha t  –  we l l ,  he  d id  no t  

have the  requ is i te  sk i l l s  and so  on ,  he  became a  f ron t  fo r  a  

Span ish  company  wh ich  was then awarded the  cont rac t .  

 The amount  tha t  has been pa id  in  respect  o f  tha t  

cont rac t ,  Cha i rperson,  fo r  70  locomot ives ,  i s  more  than  10 

R2,6  b i l l i on .   In  re tu rn ,  our  count ry  has rece ived 13 

locomot ives .   I  say  a l l  o f  th is ,  Cha i rperson,  as  a  precurso r  

to  our  next  w i tness who invest iga ted  th is  mat te r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  a lso ,  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  say i t  so  tha t  

the  pub l i c  unders tands tha t  the  w i tness who has def ied  the  

summons had been ca l led  about  th is  very  impor tan t  

t ransact ion  re la t ing  to  Swi fambo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes and tha t  i s  the  po in t ,  tha t  a t  the  

end o f  the  day there  is  no  d i spute  even f rom h im  tha t  he  

was invo lved.   He d id  no t  even f i le ,  as  Mr  Mole fe  sa id ,  he  20 

d id  no t  even f i le  the  answer ing  a f f idav i t  in  the  H igh  Cour t .   

He on ly  f i led  an  a f f idav i t  in  response to  the  rep ly ing  

a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mole fe .   Now a l l  o f  tha t ,  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  

commented upon  both  by  the  H igh  Cour t  and the  Supreme 

Cour t  o f  Appea l .   
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 In  o ther  words,  he  wou ld  have th rown a  great  dea l  

o f  l igh t  on  what  happened.   Wi th an  a l legat ion  be ing  made 

tha t  …[ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    One second,  Mr  Son i ,  I  jus t  rea l i sed tha t  

my phone was not  o f f  and in  th is  way I  am remind ing  

everybody to  pu t  the i r  phones o f f .   Yes?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  what  we have,  Cha i rperson,  i s  

somebody who cou ld  th row l igh t  to  the  pub l i c  as  to  how I t  

came about  tha t  a  cont rac t  wor th  eventua l l y  R3,5  b i l l i on ,  

a l though 2 ,78  b i l l i on  has been pa id ,  how is  i t  tha t  tha t  10 

cou ld  happen?  He wou ld  have been ab le  to  th row l igh t  

and,  Cha i rperson ,  the  long su f fe r i ng  pub l i c  has a  r igh t  to  

know how i t s  hard-earned rands a re  be ing  wasted away in  

cont rac ts  o f  th is  na ture .   Where  d id  tha t  money go?   There  

are  a l legat ions tha t  a re  made tha t  -  he  in  fac t  says so  in  

h is  10 [6 ] ,  Cha i rperson,  I  w i l l  re fe r  you to ,  he  in  a  document  

a t tached to  h is  10 [6 ]  says tha t  I  was asked –  I  was fo rced  

to  pay money to  peop le  who sa id  they were  co l lec t ing  

money fo r  the  ANC and I  agreed  to  pay R18 mi l l ion .   He 

says so .   But  he  says I  do  no t  know i f  the  ANC rece ived i t .   20 

The person to  whom I  gave the  money says he  d id  no t  g ive  

i t  to  the  ANC.   But  tha t  i s  no t  the  po in t ,  the  po in t  i s  he  

says tha t  I  pa id  tha t .  

 Now i f  tha t  i s  no t  cor rup t ion  is  on  h is  par t ,  whoever  

e lse  may be invo lved,  one wants  to  know what  i s .   And 
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espec ia l l y  w i th  a  cont rac t ,  as  the  next  w i tness w i l l  show,  i s  

so  f raught  w i th  d i f f i cu l t y  and when one looks a t  how the  

money was d is t r ibu ted  th rough Mr  Mashaba ’s  company,  

one shudders  to  th ink  how a l l  o f  th is  cou ld  have gone on 

f rom 2017 when  th is  repor t  was  sent  to  the  Hawks and  

today there  is  no t  a  s ing le  pe rson  tha t  has been a r res ted .   

And so  Mr  Mashaba ’s  p resence,  Cha i rperson,  wou ld  have  

a l layed some o f  those [ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]    

Now I  know he says in  p rev ious  cor respondence  

and he says in  h is  [ ind is t inc t ]  14 .49  a f f idav i t  tha t  the  10 

l iqu ida to r  has la id  charges aga ins t  me and the  l iqu ida to r  

indeed has and I  do  no t  want  to  imp l ica te  h im.    

But  the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  in  the  Zuma mat te r  

made i t  ve ry  c lear  tha t  the  r igh t  aga ins t  se l f - incr im inat ion  

is  a  r igh t  tha t  must  be  exe rc i sed in  re la t ion  to  spec i f i c  

quest ions,  i t  i s  no t  a  b lanket  r igh t  wh ich  en t i t les  a  person  

to  say –  no t  on ly  no t  to  come but  to  say I  am not  go ing  to  

answer  any ques t ions.   I t  responded to  what  Mr  Zuma’s  

lega l  representa t i ve  had sa id  to  you,  Cha i rperson,  so  tha t  

we w i l l  pu t  Mr  Zuma in  cour t  –  I  mean,  in  the  w i tness box 20 

and he w i l l  no t  say  anyth ing  and the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  

sa id  you cannot .    

That  i s  why Mr  Mashaba ’s  p resence today wou ld  

have ass i s ted  so  much in  one ’s  unders tand ing  o f  what  went  

on  in  the  Swi fambo cont rac t .   But  I  want  to  say someth ing  
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more ,  Cha i rperson,  one o f  the  reasons we have the  person  

who conducted the  fo rens ic  i nvest iga t ion  fo r  PRASA and  

who submi t ted  a  112 page repor t  to  the  Hawks who in i t ia l l y  

to ld  h im tha t  they are  go ing  to  look  a t  th is  and they w i l l  

p robab ly  ask  h im  to  do  a  repor t  on  S iyangena as  we l l  bu t  

a f te r  he  submi t ted  h is  repor t  he  never  came back,  

Cha i rperson.  

Now why tha t  i s  re levant ,  Cha i rpe rson knows,  th is  

i s  a  fo rens i c  repor t  tha t  does two th ings.   I t  looks  a t  a l l  the 

issues tha t  were  ra ised in  the  cour t  papers ,  tha t  i s  the  10 

advantage one has,  and i t  looks  a t  when you look a t  the 

invest iga to r  d id ,  was what  he  ca l l s  a  f i rs t  leve l  rev iew 

wh ich  is  look ing  a t  the  f low o f  money f rom PRASA to  

Swi fambo and f rom Swi fambo to  d i f fe ren t  peop le  and what  

he  shows you a re  a l l  the  l inks  –  and when you put  the  

who le  p i c tu re  togethe r,  i t  a l l  makes sense because you ask  

yourse l f  when the  ev idence is  be ing  led  bu t  why was th is  

company pa id  th is  amount  and  hav ing  regard  to  the  

a l legat ions,  i t  a l l  makes sense and the  p ic tu re  emerges 

f rom the  repor t ,  bu t  a t  leas t  Mr  Mashaba wou ld  have been 20 

ab le  –  wou ld  have been g iven an oppor tun i ty  to  exp la in  

whethe r  the  p ic tu re  we th ink  tha t  emerges i s  a  cor rec t  

p ic tu re  and tha t  i s  what  the  Commiss ion  is  about .   

Cha i rperson,  aga in  I  am s t i l l  dea l ing  w i th  Mr  

Mashaba.   You might  remember  tha t  the  Const i tu t iona l  
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Cour t  when i t  requ i red  Mr  Zuma to  appear,  and he d id  no t  

appear  las t  Monday,  made th is  po in t  tha t  commiss ions 

serve  d i f fe ren t  purposes but  one  o f  the  purposes  o f  th is  

Commiss ion  is  to  a l lay  pub l i c  concerns about  a  mat te r  tha t  

has wor r i ed  the  pub l i c  fo r  the  las t  ten  years ,  the  ex ten t  to  

wh ich  our  s ta te  en t i t ies  and government  depar tmen ts  have 

been cor rup ted  and e f fec t i ve ly,  in  cer ta in  ins tances,  

cab ine t .  

Now the  pub l i c  –  what  Mr  Mashaba i s  do ing ,  i s  

deny ing  the  pub l i c  i t s  r igh t  to  know what  happened  in  th is  10 

mat te r  wh ich  on  a l l  vers ions he  i s  invo lved in .   Whether  

good or  bad is  i r re levant  bu t  he  has to  come and exp la in  to  

the  pub l i c  and exp la in  to  you,  Cha i rperson,  who has to  

make a  repor t  to  the  Commiss ion ,  tha t  i s  the  br ie f  you have 

been g iven by  the  Pres ident .  

So the  nonappearance o f  Mr  Mashaba is  a  very  

ser ious in road in to  the  Commiss ion ’s  a t tempt  to  fu l f i l  i t s  

mandate  to  le t  the  pub l i c  know and tha t  i s  an  added reason 

and an aggravat ing  fac tor  tha t  when we are  ass i s t ing  the  

Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion ,  we w i l l  be  pu t t ing  in  the  20 

request  tha t  the  Secre tary  makes  to  the  law enforcement  

depar tment .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  thank  you.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Cha i rperson,  then I  am in  a  

pos i t ion  to  ca l l  my f i rs t  w i tness fo r  the  day,  Cha i rpe rson.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Who was go ing  to  be  your  second.   Your 

f i rs t  w i tness now tha t  Mr  Mashaba is  no t  here  or  was he  

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Mashaba was go ing  to  be  the  f i rs t  

w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then  we were  go ing  to  ca l l .   

Sor ry,  yes  –  no ,  sor ry  –  yes,  who was go ing  to  be  the 

second w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay,  you  do not  need any se tup ,  10 

you are  ready,  so  I  do  no t  need to  ad journ .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Perhaps i f  you  j us t  gave  us  f i ve  

m inutes  because Mr  Susk in… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Or  shou ld  we jus t  take  

th is  t ime fo r  the  tea  ad jou rnment?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I t  may be mos t  conven ien t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes so  tha t  when we come back then 

…[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And go w i th… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  we w i l l  take  the  tea  ad journment  20 

now ins tead o f  quar te r  past  e leven and we w i l l  come back  

a t  quar te r  past .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease .  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  Mr  Son i .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:  As  you p lease.   Cha i rperson ,  be fore  

we ca l l  Mr  Sacks ,  may I  jus t  p lace  on record  I  have been  

to ld  tha t  2861  processes have been issued  by  the  

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Summonses?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Summonses,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  tha t  i s  a  very  h igh  number.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And i t  i s  fo r  appearance and fo r  

documents .   

CHAIRPERSON:   And fo r  documents?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  thank you.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   May we ca l l  our  next  w i tness?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  p lease  admin i s te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion?  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record?  20 

MR SACKS:   [ ind is t inc t ]  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  take  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR SACKS:   [ ind is t inc t ]  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  
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consc ience?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry,  p lease speak up so  tha t  i t  can  be  

recorded.   S tar t  a f resh p lease?  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .   

MR SACKS:   Ryan Marc  Sacks.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR SACKS:   No,  I  do  no t .   

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  10 

MR SACKS:   Yes,  I  do .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say  

so  he lp  me God.  

MR SACKS:   So  he lp  me God.   

RYAN MARC SACKS:  (du ly  sworn ,  s ta tes )  

CHAIRPERSON:   You may be seated.    

MR SACKS:   Thank you Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.    20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Sacks,  keep your  mask o f f  

because i t  muff les  the  reco rd ing .   

MR SACKS:   Thank you,  Counse l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sure .   Mr  Sacks,  what  i s  your  

p ro fess ion?  
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MR SACKS:   I  am a  char te red accountant ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And in  te rms o f  the  na ture  o f  the  work  

you do?   

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  spec ia l i se  in  fo rens ic  aud i t ing  

invest iga t ions,  in  suppor t ing  c iv i l  and law enfo rcement  

invest iga t ions.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   You have before  you your  cur r i cu lum 

v i tae ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rpe rson,  we unfor tunate ly  d id  no t  10 

inc lude th is  in  the  bund le  we gave  you.   Jus t  fo r  re fe rence  

purposes can I  hand i t  up  and we can put  i t  as  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A t  the  end o f  m is te r,  I  jus t  want  h im to 

conf i rm.   I  do  no t  th ink  I  need to  go  in to  i t  in  de ta i l ,  i t  i s  

jus t  fo r  record ing  purposes Cha i r,  and we cou ld  inc lude i t  

Cha i rperson a t  the  end o f  the  repor t  i t se l f ,  ra ther  than the  

annexures and  or  perhaps the  end o f  the  a f f idav i t  

Cha i rperson,  tha t  may be a  be t te r  p lace  to  inc lude i t ,  wh ich  20 

wou ld  then make i t  726.1  and 2 .   Bund le  L ,  page 726.1  and 

2 .   Mr  Sacks,  do  you conf i rm . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   You w i l l  a r range fo r  i t  to  be  numbered 

proper ly?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  w i l l ,  yes .    
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CHAIRPERSON:   D id  you say i t  i s  o r  i t  i s  no t  an  annexure  

to  the  a f f idav i t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  thought  we wou ld  jus t  inc lude i t ,  i t  i s  

no t  a t  the  moment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  a  s tanda lone document .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  so  i t  w i l l  need to  be  an  exh ib i t ,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  the  repor t  an  annexure  to  the 10 

a f f idav i t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I t  i s .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Because i f  the  repor t  i s  an  annexure  to  

the  a f f idav i t ,  then  and th is  le t te r  i s  a  s tanda lone document ,  

then i t  shou ld  no t  be  be tween the  a f f idav i t  and the  repor ts .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  shou ld  ra ther  be  a f te r  the  repor t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease  Cha i rpe rson.   Then can  

we make i t  954.1  and po in t  2 .   The repor t  i t se l f  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  goes up to  954? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   And the  document  a t  955 is  no t  par t  o f  

the  repor t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  no .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   So we w i l l  change what  we 

wro te  ear l ie r  on  and i t  w i l l  be  954.1  and 954.2 .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  i t  p leases.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t  a t  the  r igh t  t ime then we  

w i l l  need to  admi t  th is  as  an  exh ib i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   Mr  Sacks,  do  you con f i rm the 

cor rec tness o f  what  i s  conta ined there in?  

MR SACKS:   Yes,  I  do  Cha i rperson .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And how many years  o f  exper ience do 

you have in  fo rens ic  invest iga t ion?  10 

MR SACKS:   I  have 15 years ’ exper ience Mr  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now,  one o f  the  mat te rs  tha t  you are  

invest iga t ing  is  the  VBS invest iga t ions.   

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And in  regard  to  PRASA,  what  

invest iga t ions were  you invo lved w i th?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  Mr  Son i  and Mr  Sacks,  d id  you  

fo rge t  tha t  we admi t  h is  a f f idav i t  Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  no  I  was jus t  sor ry,  bu t  perhaps I  20 

shou ld  do  tha t .   I  was go ing  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  you can go to  the  repor t ,  yes .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Sacks,  in  regard  to  the 

invest iga t ion  you d id  fo r  PRASA,  what  was i t  in  re la t ion  to?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  in i t ia l l y  I  was appo in ted  by  
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Werksmans A t to rneys to  ass is t  in  the  invest iga t ion  

occur r ing  a t  PRASA.   Thereaf te r  I  was appo in ted  by  the  

DPCI ,  the  Hawks  as  the  fo rens ic  accountant  to  invest iga te  

th is  Swi fambo invest iga t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And you then p repared an a f f idav i t  

and repor t  based on those invest iga t ions?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now the re  is  an  a f f idav i t  wh ich 

appears  in  Bund le  L f rom page 720 to  726.   I s  tha t  your  

a f f idav i t?  10 

MR SACKS:   P lease bear  w i th  me Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You look a t  the  b lack  numbers  a t  the  le f t  

hand corner  fo r  page numbers .   

MR SACKS:   Yes ,  I  have got  i t  Cha i rperson.   Yes,  I  conf i rm 

th is  i s  my a f f idav i t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   R igh t .   Now in  re la t ion  to  th is  

a f f idav i t ,  there  i s  a  s ignatu re  on  page 725.   Whose 

s ignature  i s  tha t?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  my s ignature  Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Do you conf i rm tha t  i s  what  i s ,  so r ry 

i s  th is  your  a f f idav i t?  

MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson,  th is  i s  my a f f idav i t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   You conf i rm  what  i s  conta ined in  th is  

a f f idav i t  i s  t rue  and cor rec t?  
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MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  t rue  and cor rec t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now a t tached to  th is  a f f idav i t  as  one  

o f  the  annexures ,  and you w i l l  see  tha t  tha t  appears  a t  

parag raph 11 o f  you r  a f f idav i t ,  you say you prepared a  

repor t  and tha t  repor t  i s  Annexures  RS3.   

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now is  i t  cor rec t  tha t  RS3 appears  

f rom page 843 and tha t  i s  jus t  the  repor t  i t se l f ,  to  954.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What  a re  the  page numbers?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh,  sor ry  Cha i rperson.   I t  i s  843.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Up to  954.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  take  i t  i s  the  same as what  s ta r ts  a t  

page 727?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  was go ing  to ,  I  in  fac t  asked tha t  

tha t  be  removed f rom your  f i l e .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Because  i t  i s  exact ly  t he  same 

document .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then we removed,  I  was asked fo r  the 

f i rs t  one to  be  removed,  because i t  i s  no t  marked Annexure  

RS3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  i t  i s  exact ly  the  same document .   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  do  no t  know why i t  was produced.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  the  repor t  the  las t  document  on  the ,  in  

the  bund le  o r  the re  are  o ther  documents?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   There  a re ,  so  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Annexures to  the  repor t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Annexures to  the  repor t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  i f  we,  i f  you  removed the  las t  one i f  

there  a re  two and then marked th is  one,  the  f i rs t  one i s  i t  

S3  or  whatever?  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   RS3.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  w i l l  tha t  no t  he lp  w i th  the  pag ina t ion  

in  the  sense tha t  i f  you  remove the  one tha t  s ta r ts ,  the  f i rs t  

one you might  have a  gap in  te rms  o f  the  pag ina t ion? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rperson,  th is  i s  the  d i f f i cu l t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   In  your,  in  eve rybody ’s  f i le  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   RS3 s ta r ts  a t  843 so  I  was,  I  in i t ia l l y  20 

marked the  f i rs t  one.   I t  i s  jus t  when I  saw tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   The annexure  is  marked RS3 and i t  i s  

re fe r red  to  in  the  a f f idav i t ,  i t  does not  mat te r,  bu t  fo r  my  
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purposes now Cha i rperson i t  i s  go ing  to  be  more  

conven ien t  to  take  out  the  f i rs t  one.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay,  we l l  we can do tha t .   Then  

what  shou ld  be  done is  a  page shou ld  be  inser ted  there ,  

wh ich  you w i l l  make a  no te  to  say there  was a  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A dup l i ca t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   A repor t  tha t  was a  dup l i ca t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And i t  has  been  removed.   I t  was f rom 10 

page whatever  t o  whatever,  so  tha t  whoever  reads then  

unders tands the  pag ina t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  I  had g i ven tha t  ins t ruc t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  am sor ry  about  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay.   A l r igh t .   

Have we reached  a  s tage where  you asked me to  admi t  the  

a f f idav i t?    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   Wel l ,  le t  me jus t  ask  h im i f  he 

conf i rms the  cor rec tness o f  the  repor t  Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  RS3 is  your  repor t ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:   Yes,  i t  i s  Cha i rpe rson .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Do you con f i rm what  i s  conta ined in  

the  repor t  i s  t rue  and cor rec t?    
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MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson,  I  conf i rm tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cha i rpe rson,  then I  ask  leave to  admi t  

Mr  Ryan ’s  a f f idav i t  as  Exh ib i t  SS24 togethe r  w i th  the  

annexures to  the  a f f idav i t ,  bu t  in  par t i cu la r  RS3 wh ich  is  

the  repor t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   The a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Ryan Mark  Sacks 

s ta r t ing  a t  page 720,  i s  adm i t ted  together  w i th  i t s  

annexures and w i l l  be  marked as  Exh ib i t  SS24.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease Cha i rpe rson.   Now Mr  10 

Sacks,  you sa id  you had been in i t ia l l y  commiss ioned o r  

engaged by  Werksmans to  do  the  invest iga t ion  in to  th is  

Swi fambo mat te r.   I  know the  Werksmans mat te r  was 

[ ind is t inc t ] ,  bu t  in  regard  to  tha t ,  the  invest iga t ion  in to 

Swi fambo,  you then sa id  tha t  the  Hawks had asked  you to  

do  the  invest iga t ion .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.   I  was o f f i c ia l l y  

mandated by  the  Hawks in  la te  December  2015 to  per fo rm  

th is  Swi fambo invest iga t ion .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  jus t  remember  to  ad jus t  o r  b r ing  the  

m ike  c loser  Mr  Son i  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Speak up a  b i t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now I  am ra is ing  tha t  because you  
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have asked me to  p lace  on reco rd  tha t  you d id  no t  want  to  

g ive  ev idence before  the  Hawks  had been in fo rmed tha t  

you wou ld  be  g iv ing  ev idence on  th is  mat te r,  i s  t ha t  no t  

so?   

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And I  jus t  want  to  p lace  on record  tha t  

the  Hawks have been to ld  tha t  Mr  Sacks wou ld  be  g iv ing  

ev idence on th is  mat te r  and they are  aware  o f  the  repor t  as  

we l l  as  the  na ture  o f  h is  ev idence,  Cha i rperson and i t  i s  

jus t  tha t  we d id  no t  want  to  c rea te  a  prob lem on th is  i ssue,  10 

because you w i l l  rea l i se  the  sens i t i v i t y  o f ,  you  might  

remember  Mr  Mole fe  had to  go  to  cour t  to  ge t  the  Hawks to  

invest iga te ,  bu t  there  are  deve lopments  tha t  pe rhaps Mr  

Sacks w i l l  dea l  w i th  in  the  course  o f  h is  ev idence  

Cha i rperson.   Now le t  us  jus t  dea l  w i th  your  a f f idav i t  f i rs t  

o f  a l l .   You say  in  pa ragraph 4  tha t  you were  fo rced to  

appear  he re  by  v i r tue  o f  a  summons tha t  was served on 

you,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And why was,  why d id  you want  tha t  20 

procedure  to  be  fo l lowed?   

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  the  repor t  tha t  I  p roduced is  

very  conf ident ia l  in  na ture .   I  was prepared fo r  the  Hawks,  

acco rd ing ly  I  requ i red  the  summons or  to  a l low myse l f  to  

a t tend these proceed ings to  d ivu lge  the  contents  o f  my 



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 46 of 269 
 

f ind ings.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then a t  pa ragraph 6  you se t  ou t  how 

you became invo lved in  the  invest iga t ions and you say tha t  

you had in i t ia l l y  been engaged by  Werksmans to  do  the  

w ider  PRASA invest iga t ion .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?    

MR SACKS:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.   We were  

engaged to  pe r fo rm the  fo rens ic  aud i t ing  aspect  o f  the 

invest iga t ion  tha t  Werksmans A t to rneys were  appo in ted  fo r  

by  PRASA.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now jus t  so  tha t  there  is  no  confus ion  10 

about  names,  a t  tha t  t ime you were  ca l led  a  d i f fe ren t  

en t i t y.   What  were  you ca l led  a t  tha t  t ime? 

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  a t  tha t  t ime my company was 

ca l led  Hawk Forens ics  SA P ty  L td  and as  a  resu l t  o f  g loba l  

b rand ing  changes  by  Crow In ternat iona l ,  we a re  now ca l led  

Crow Forens ics  SA P ty  L td .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  i t  i s  the  same . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  the  same company.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then in  pa rag raph 7  you make the  

po in t  tha t  you were  then appo in ted  by  the  Hawks to  do  the  20 

invest iga t ion .   Jus t  ask  you,  to  do  tha t  you had  to  s ign  

cer ta in  conf ident ia l i t y  ag reements  and they appear  as  RS1 

and RS2.   

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And tha t  i s  the  reason why you 
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wanted a  summons and why you asked the  Commiss ion  to  

in fo rm the  Hawks  about  you r  appearance?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Now le t  us  dea l  w i th  the ,  your  

in i t ia l  dea l ings w i th  the  Hawks.   Jus t  te l l  the  Cha i rperson 

what  was ind i ca ted  wou ld  happen  a f te r  th is  repor t .   You 

dea l  w i th  i t  in  paragraph 8 .  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  was appo in ted  to  per fo rm th is  

Swi fambo fo rens ic  account ing  invest iga t ion .   I t  was a l so  

an t ic ipa ted  a t  the  t ime tha t  I  wou ld  be  appo in ted  by  the  10 

Hawks to  pe r fo rm a  fo rens ic  account ing  invest iga t ion  in to  

S iyangena Techno log ies ,  and tha t  appo in tment  never  

t ransp i red .   Then  or  subsequent  to  the  t ime I  was dea l ing  

w i th  th is  Swi fambo mat te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now a t  tha t  t ime,  who in  the  Hawks  

was head ing  the  team look ing  a t  these mat te rs?  

MR SACKS:   When I  was appo in ted ,  Genera l  Mos ip i  was  

the ,  my unders tand ing  was the  head who conf i rmed my 

appo in tment  w i th  Swi fambo.   La ter  a  Genera l  Khana 

rep laced Genera l  Mos ip i  and dur ing  h i s  tenure  as  fa r  as  I  20 

am aware  du r ing  tha t  t ime I  was not  appo in ted  to  do  the  

S iyangena Techno log ies  fo rens ic  invest iga t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Can I  jus t  have some t ime f rames,  

when were  you appo in ted  by  the  Hawks?  I f  you  look a t  

parag raph 7  you g ive  the  da te .   
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MR SACKS:   28  December  2015  I  was appo in ted  by  the  

Hawks Cha i rperson,  to  do  the  Swi fambo invest iga t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sounds [ ind is t inc t ]  and I  jus t  say  tha t  

in  pass ing ,  i t  looked l i ke  they wanted to  ge t  on  w i th  i t ,  

be tween Chr is tmas and New Year.  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  my unders tand ing  too  Cha i rperson.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t ,  and  then when d id ,  you say 

Genera l  Khana took ove r.   About  when was tha t?  

MR SACKS:   I  am not  sure  Cha i rperson o f  the  ac tua l  da tes  

he  took ove r,  bu t  I  was present  a t  a  meet ing  on  or  a round 10 

Apr i l  2016 Cha i rperson,  where  I  a t tended the  premises,  the  

headquar te rs  o f  the  Hawks where  amongst  many o ther  

invest iga t ion  team members ,  Genera l  Khana headed the  

meet ing  and one o f  the  i tems,  top i cs  o f  d iscuss ion  was the  

appo in tment  o f  Crow o r  Howard  Forens ics  a t  the  t ime,  

Crow Forens ics  now,  to  do  the  S iyangena Techno log ies  

fo rens ic  invest iga t ion  as  ove r  and above Swi fambo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now tha t  i s  16  months  a f te r  your  

in i t ia l  appo in tmen t .  

MR SACKS:   I t  was,  ja  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Apr i l  2017.  

MR SACKS:   Ap r i l  2016.   I t  was,  tha t  i s  . . .  Cha i rperson,  

tha t  da te  i s  no t  inc luded in  my  a f f idav i t  regard ing  tha t  

meet ing  bu t  aga in  I  was appo in ted  December  2015 fo r  

Swi fambo.   The  meet ing  I  re fe r red  to  occu rred  in  Apr i l  
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2016,  g ive  or  take  four  months ,  four  months  la te r.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Now you then say tha t  you  

were  asked to  make a  presenta t ion  a t  a  meet ing  w i th  the  

Hawks.   

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.   To  jump in  t ime,  

so  December  2015 I  was appo in ted  to  do  Swi fambo .   Apr i l  

2016 is  the  sa id  meet ing  I  re fe r red  to  w i th  Genera l  Khana.   

In  March 2017 to  the  best  o f  my reco l lec t ion  I  had a 

meet ing  w i th  the  Hawks a t  the i r,  one o f  the i r  o f f i ces  in  

Pre tor ia  to  d iscuss the  Swi fambo  invest iga t ion .   A t  tha t  10 

po in t ,  i t  was communica ted  to  me tha t  a  repor t  wou ld  be  

requ i red .   I f  I  may d ivu lge  Counse l ,  in  Apr i l  2017 I  rece ived  

an emai l  f rom the  Hawks to  ask  fo r  a  meet ing  to  d iscuss  

my f ind ings to  da te  as  the  Hawks,  I  was adv i sed  tha t  the  

Hawks were  mee t ing  w i th  the  NPA.   The p rosecut ion ,  the  

team respons ib le  fo r  Swi fambo,  and they wanted to  ob ta in  

my f ind ings fo r  tha t  meet ing  w i th  the  NPA.   That  was 11  

Apr i l  2017 i f  I  s tand to  be  co r rec ted .   On the  19 t h  o f  Apr i l  

2017,  so  now i t  is  a  few days la te r,  I  indeed met  w i th  the  

Hawks,  w i th  the  Br igad ier  Makanyane and Co lone l  20 

Magabosha.   I f  I  reca l l  those were  the  members  o f  the  

Hawks team,  in  wh ich  I  handed over  my repor t  wh ich  fo rms  

par t  o f  my a f f idav i t  and tha t  repor t  i s  da ted ,  o r  i s  da ted  20  

Apr i l  2017.   I  reca l l  I  had to  make one change wh ich  I  

emai led  th rough to  the  Hawks and Cha i rperson,  tha t  was 
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the  las t  communica t ion  I  had w i th  the  Hawks  on th is  

mat te r.   

CHAIRPERSON:  2017?  

MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And they have not  been in  touch w i th  you 

in  any way?  

MR SACKS:   Subsequent  to  the  issue o f  my repor t ,  I  have  

not  rece ived any  note  o f  communica t ion  f rom the  Hawks  

regard ing  th is  spec i f i c  repor t  I  gave to  them.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now jus t  so  tha t  there  is  no  d ispute  

about  i t ,  the  repor t  tha t  you gave to  the  Hawks on the  20 t h  

o f  Apr i l ,  i s  the  same repor t  tha t  appears  a t  RS,  as  

Annexure  RS3 to  your  a f f idav i t?  

MR SACKS:   Yes  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   Th is  i s  the  

la tes t  and most  recent  vers ion  o f  my repor t ,  da ted  20 Apr i l  

2017.   I t  has  no t  been updated or  amended subsequent  to  

th is  da te .   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  see  tha t  in  paragraph 10  o f  your  

a f f idav i t ,  you re fe r  to  a  dra f t  p re l im inary  repor t .    20 

MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  no t  th is  one or  i s  i t  th is  one?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  the  reason why I  re fe r  to  th is  

d ra f t  p re l im inary  i s  because we were  in  the  m ids t  o f  a  very  

comprehens ive  invest iga t ion  wh ich  I  am sure  Counse l  w i l l  



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 51 of 269 
 

lead me in to  the  contents  o f  tha t  invest iga t ion ,  and the  

repor t ,  I  adv i sed  the  Hawks a t  tha t  t ime tha t  the  f ind ings 

are  pre l im ina ry,  as  i s  the  na ture  o f  the  invest iga t ion .   I  was 

s t i l l  awa i t ing  fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  to  comple te  my 

invest iga t ion  and  the  f ind ings conta ined in  th is  repor t ,  

were  very  c ruc ia l  because i t  conf i rmed the  f low o f  funds  

f rom PRASA to  Swi fambo and how Swi fambo u t i l i sed  tha t  

money.   The,  the  next  an t ic ipa ted  round o f  inves t iga t ion  

was to  assess and invest iga te  the  rec ip ien t  o f  tha t  money  

and what  they  d id ,  how they u t i l i sed  tha t  money,  10 

essent ia l l y  PRASA’s  money.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Jus t  aga in  to  conf i rm,  the  repor t  tha t  

appears  a t  RS3 is  tha t  same repor t .   I t  i s  jus t  tha t  you s t i l l  

ca l l  i t  a  d ra f t  p re l im inary  repor t ,  because you have not  

taken i t  to  the  second leve l  wh ich  we w i l l  ge t  to  in  a 

moment .  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  desp i te  the  repor t  

be ing  labe l led  as  a  dra f t  p re l im ina ry  repor t  in  te rms  o f  th is  

parag raph 10,  I  have not  looked a t  i t  aga in  to  see whethe r  20 

those words appear  on  i t .   I s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  as  fa r  as  you 

are  concerned,  the  repor t  rep resents  your  f ina l  f ind ings or  

no t  rea l l y?  

MR SACKS:   No,  i t  doesn ’ t  p resent  my f ina l  f ind ings.   

There  were ,  there  was add i t iona l  mat te rs  to  invest iga te  and 
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conf i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MR SACKS:   As  my repor t  a l ludes to  cer ta in  t ransact ions  

tha t  I  requ i red  fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  fo r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MR SACKS:   Cer ta in  a l legat ions and susp ic ions tha t  we  

had tha t  I  requ i red  the  ass i s tance o f  the  Hawks to  p rov ide  

me wi th  fu r the r  in fo rmat ion  to  conf i rm the  f low o f  funds.   

So to  summar ise ,  th is  i s  s t i l l  very  much a  pre l im inary  

repor t .   Why i t  was d ra f t  repor t ,  i s  because I  had not  10 

rece ived any comments  and I  was,  f rom the  Hawks,  and I  

am s t i l l  awa i t ing  fu r the r  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  I  c la r i f ied  c lear ly  

in  my repor t  what  was requ i red  to  comple te  a  f i na l  f i rs t  

leve l  repor t ,  wh ich  I  no ted  in  th is  repor t  was the  f i rs t  leve l .   

Wi thout  ge t t ing  in to  techn ica l i t ies ,  f i rs t  leve l  in  my mind  

was f low o f  funds f rom PRASA to  Swi fambo,  Swi fambo to  

who Swi fambo pa id .   Second,  the  second leve l  requ i red  

was those par t ies  who rece ived money f rom Swi fambo,  how 

they d i s t r ibu ted  the  money or  what  they d id  w i th  the  money 

because the  susp ic ions or  a l legat ions a t  the  t ime was tha t  20 

the  money was not  fo r  commerc ia l  o r  the re  i s  no  bus iness  

ra t iona l  fo r  the  d isbu rsements  o f  funds f rom Swi fambo to  

these ent i t ies  or  ind iv idua ls  and then f rom what ,  how those  

ent i t ies  and ind i v idua ls  u t i l i sed  tha t  money,  and Counse l  

and I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  as  i t  i s  dea l t  w i th  in  my repor t  
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Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  the  reason why  

the  repor t  i s  no t  f ina l ,  i s  the  reason tha t  because there  was 

some fu r ther  work  to  be  done in  regard  to  cer ta in  aspects  

tha t  you were  susp ic ious o f  your  invest iga t ion ,  bu t  there  

are  some f ind ings tha t  do  no t  need any fu r ther  work  to  be  

done,  bu t  o thers  s t i l l  need fu r the r  work  or  i s  the  pos i t ion  

tha t  the  en t i re  repor t  i s  s t i l l  work  in  p rogress?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  you are  cor rec t  in  your  f i rs t  

po in t .   Cer ta in  f ind ings are  f ina l  and cer ta in  f ind ings are  10 

s t i l l  sub jec t  to  fu r ther  invest iga t ion .   Hence i t  i s  s t i l l ,  i t  was 

s t i l l  a  d ra f t  repor t .   I  have jus t  requ i red  spec i f i ca l l y  jus t  a  

b i t  more  in fo rmat ion  fo r  my f i rs t  round o f  invest iga t ion  in  

o rder  to  ca l l  i t  f ina l ,  bu t  you are  cor rec t .   Some f i nd ings 

were  f ina l ,  some f ind ings were  sub jec t  to  fu r ther  

invest iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease .   I  w i l l  j us t  e labora te  on  

th is  Cha i rperson,  because I  unders tand . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   The d i f f i cu l t y.   I  perhaps shou ld  have  

canvassed i t  a  l i t t le  more .   Mr  Sacks,  the  when you were  

appo in ted  by  the  Hawks in  December  2015,  PRASA had  

a l ready f i led  i t s  app l i ca t ion  i n  the  H igh  Cour t ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 54 of 269 
 

MR SACKS:   Tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  th ink  they f i led  i t  in  November  2015.   

MR SACKS:   I ,  Cha i rperson i f  you jus t  indu lge  w i th  me 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Ja .   

MR SACKS:   I  w i l l  ge t  those dates  in  my repor t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  f ine .   

MR SACKS:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson,  Counse l  i s  

cor rec t  regard ing  the  c iv i l  app l i ca t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now but  be tween tha t  t ime,  December  10 

2015 and the  t ime you sent  th is  repor t  to  the  Hawks,  were  

the  Hawks ass is t ing  you w i th  the  invest iga t ions you were  

do ing?  When I  say  ass i s t ing ,  p rov id ing  ass is tance tha t  you 

wanted l i ke  205 ’s  to  banks.   Sect ion  205 app l i ca t ions to  

banks and so  on .    

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  the  Hawks were  ass i s t ing  in  

te rms o f  p rov id ing  bank s ta tements  we requ i red  in  te rms o f  

Sect ion  205 subpoenas.   Which  was the  foundat ion  o f  my 

repor t  in  Apr i l  2017,  and I  requ i red  fu r ther  in fo rmat ion .   By  

i t s  very  na tu re ,  the  f low o f  funds ana lys is  across  i n  a r ray  20 

o f  bank accounts  i s  qu i te  de ta i led  work  acqu i r ing  

in fo rmat ion ,  so  th is  repor t  was I  guess a t  a  junc ture  where  

we had enough in fo rmat ion  to  conc lude on cer ta in  f ind ings 

as  Cha i rperson you so  re fe r red  to ,  however  I  requ i red  more  

in fo rmat ion  to  conf i rm ce r ta in  o the r  f ind ings,  so  the  answer  
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to  counse l ’s  ques t ions be tween 2015 and Apr i l  2017 I  had 

rece ived ass is tance f rom the  Po l ice ,  the  Co lone l  who was  

ass is t ing  me in  p rov id ing  th is  in fo rmat ion .   

Subsequent  to  the  issue o f  my  repor t  I  d id  no t  

rece ive  any fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  I  requested,  and  

wh ich  I  requ i red .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you gave the  Hawks your  d ra f t  

p re l im inary  repor t ,  they  knew tha t  i t  was not  a  f ina l  repor t  

in  te rms o f  i t  as  a  who le ,  they knew tha t  you s t i l l  needed to  

do  some fu r ther  work  in  regard  to  some fea tu res  o f  the 10 

invest iga t ion ,  and you gave them th is  d ra f t  repor t  on  the  

19 t h  o f  Apr i l  2017,  acco rd ing  to  them up to  now they have 

never  come back to  you to  ask  you  to  comple te  the  par t s  o f  

the  invest iga t ion  tha t  you wanted to  comple te .   I s  tha t  

r igh t?   

MR SACKS:    That  i s  abso lu te l y  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:    And in  a  few weeks ’ t ime i t  w i l l  be  four  

years  s ince  you  gave them,  because next  week,  i t  i s  March  

then a f te r  tha t  i t  i s  Apr i l .    So  in  a  few weeks ’ t ime,  i t  w i l l  

be  four  years  s ince  you gave the  Hawks your  repor t ,  and 20 

they have never  come back to  enab le  you to  comp le te  the  

invest iga t ion .   

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.   

CHAIRPERSON:    And they have never  sa id  to  you  i f  there  

i s  any prob lem.   
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MR SACKS:    I  have not  heard  one word  regard ing  any  

prob lems,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and you wou ld  no t  be  aware  i f ,  fo r  

whatever  reason,  they dec ided tha t  somebody e l se  must  

comple te  the  invest iga t ion .   I  do  no t  know i f  i t  wou ld  make  

sense but  you have never  heard  o f  anyth ing  l i ke  tha t?  

MR SACKS:    No Cha i rperson,  I  have not .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay a l r igh t ,  and was there  a t  any  

s tage where  they  m ight  have been unhappy w i th  how you  

were  go ing  about  the  invest iga t ion  or  anyth ing?  10 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  am not  aware  o f  any th ing  to  

tha t  e f fec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    They never  ra ised any issues?  

MR SACKS:    Noth ing  was commun ica ted  to  me a t  a l l .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    When you  met  them in  Apr i l  2017.   

What  impress ion  d id  you get  -  what  sor ry,  d id  you present  

your  repor t  on  the  19 t h  o f  Apr i l?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And what  impress ion  d id  you get  20 

when a f te r  you p resented your  repor t?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  in  my v iew,  my key take  away 

f rom tha t  meet ing  was i t  was a  genera l  lack  o f  in te res t  in to  

what  I  was exp la in ing  in  the  meet ing  spec i f i ca l l y,  I  

spec i f i ca l l y  reca l l  in  my repor t  con ta ins  one exh ib i t s ,  wh ich  
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summar ise  in  to ta l i t y,  the  f low o f  funds.    

I  t r ied  to  summar ise  i t  as  best  as  poss ib le  in to  one 

page tha t  cou ld  ca tch  the  a t ten t ion  o f  a  reader  o f  th is  

repor t ,  and on presenta t ion  o f  th is  one pager,  where  i t  was  

very  c lear  as  to  who was rece iv ing  money f rom Swi fambo.   

My take  away f rom the  meet ing  was tha t  there  was  no rea l  

in te res t  in  what  I  was te l l ing  the  rec ip ien ts ,  pa r t i c ipants  

and rec ip ien ts  o f  my repor t  in  tha t  meet ing  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who was the  leader  o f  the  Hawks team 

and whom you p resented the  repor t?  10 

MR SACKS:    I f  you  indu lge ,  indu lge  me,  I  jus t  want  to  

ge t…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Was i t  Genera l  Khana?  

MR SACKS:    No,  Genera l  Khana was not  p resen t  in  tha t  

meet ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    I  reca l l ;  i t  was  a  Br igad ier  Mackanyana.   

There  were  a  few members  o f  the  Hawks team,  the 

Br igad ier  Mackanyana,  there  was a  Co lone l  Magaboshe,  I  

reca l l  maybe one or  two lower  leve l  po l i cemen.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a t  tha t  t ime,  the  person to  whom you 

were  supposed to  repor t  was i t  Genera l  Khana or  was i t  

somebody e l se?  

MR SACKS:    I t  was Br igad ier  Mackanyana who  –  I  was 

never,  as  I  reca l l  I  was never  o f f i c ia l l y  in t roduced  
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persona l l y  to  say  th is  i s  the  person,  your  po in t  person,  bu t  

th rough the  co r respondence I  ascer ta ined i t  was a  

Br igad ier  Mackanyana who i s  respons ib le  fo r  the  Swi fambo 

invest iga t ion  and fo r  oversee ing  the  Swi fambo 

invest iga t ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay a l r igh t  Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  in  paragraph 8 ,  you ta lk  about  a  

Genera l  Moseep i  where  you say tha t  you got  the  

impress ion  in  your  meet ings w i th  h im or  meet ing  w i th  h im  

tha t  you r  next  b r i e f  wou ld  be  the  S iyangena mat te r.   10 

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    When was  the  las t  t ime you meet  

Genera l  Moseep i?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  –  to  be  cor rec t  counse l  I  have 

never  met  Genera l  Moseep i ,  I  do  unders tand tha t  i t  was  

under  h i s  ins t ruc t ion  the  invest iga t ion  wou ld  occur.  

In  2015,  I  was appo in ted  th rough cor respondence 

by  the  DPC under  the  head o f  Genera l  Moseep i  to  do  

Swi fambo between tha t  da tes  and Apr i l  2016,  Genera l  

Khana had rep laced Genera l  Moseep i .   So I  persona l ly  was 20 

not  invo l ved in  those h igher  leve l  de legat ions  o f  the 

invest iga t ions,  I  dea l t  w i th  the  Hawks Po l iceman 

respons ib le  fo r  t he  invest iga t ions ,  and bes ides tha t  one 

meet ing ,  wh ich  are  re fer red  to  in  Apr i l  2016,  where  Genera l  

Khana pres ided  ove r  tha t  mee t ing ,  tha t  was my on ly  
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in te rac t ion  w i th  the  -  what  I  wou ld  ca l l  the  au tho r i t ies  o f  

the  Hawks.   

However,  in  o rde r  to  main ta in  impar t ia l ,  I  d id  no t  

ge t  invo l ved in  those d iscuss ions  about  who is  go ing  to  

appo in t  o r  how the  invest iga t ion  is  go ing  to  be  run ,  I  am an 

independent  exper t .   I  ge t  appo in ted  by  the  Hawks to  do  

my work ,  and I  p repare  an  independent  exper t  repor t  wh ich  

I  had done in  th is  case and p resented to  the  Hawks on 

Apr i l  2017.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  when you were  asked to  10 

present  to  the  Hawks in  Apr i l  2017,  what  d id  you 

unders tand the  purpose o f  tha t  p resenta t ion?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  was communica ted  by  Co lone l  

Magaboshe to  say they requ i re  my  pre l im ina ry  f ind ings,  as  

the  Hawks were  meet ing  w i th  the  NPA on around tha t  t ime.  

Accord ing ly,  they requ i red  more  pre l im ina ry  f ind ings as  

par t  o f  the i r  d iscuss ions w i th  the  NPA. 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you have then ind ica ted  to  the  

Cha i rperson tha t  you d id  no t  f ind  much enthus iasm in  

regard  to  your  p resenta t ion .   20 

MR SACKS:    That  was my take  away Cha i rpe rson f rom 

engagements  a t  tha t  t ime.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  in  your  repor t  –  so r ry  be fore  we  

dea l  w i th  the  repor t  i t se l f ,  we ta lked about  bank  

s ta tements .  In  o rder  fo r  you as  a  pr iva te  invest iga tor,  to  
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secu re  bank s ta tements  o f  S ta te en t i t ies  or  ind iv idua ls ,  

what  p rocess wou ld  have to  be  fo l lowed?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  I  am not  par t y  to  the  process o f  

ob ta in ing  those  bank s ta tements .   I t  i s  a  subpoena  

process,  wh ich  the  Po l ice  themse lves have to  serve ,  

Sect ion  205 subpoenas on  f inanc ia l  ins t i tu t ions ob ta in ing  

those requ i red  bank s ta tements .  

In  the  ord ina ry  course  o f  the  fo rens i c  invest iga t ion ,  

I  wou ld  iden t i f y  spec i f i c  t ransact ions requ i r ing  

invest iga t ion .  I  wou ld  adv ise  the  Po l ice  to  say th is  i s  a  10 

t ransact ion  o r  bank accounts  I  requ i re  and the  Po l ice  

themse lves wou ld  prepare  such subpoenas and obta in  them 

and prov ide  the  subpoenaed bank s ta tements  to  my  o f f i ces  

d i rec t l y.  

And I  keep a  record  o f  those bank s ta tements  

because fo r  cha in  o f  ev idence those bank s ta tements  w i l l  

fo rm par t  o f  my  u l t imate  de l i verab le  and ev idence in  a  

c r im ina l  p roceed ings.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l l  the  bank s ta tements  tha t  you re fer  

to  and you annexed to  your  a f f idav i t  were  ob ta ined  fo r  you 20 

by  the  Po l i ce?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    In  your  repor t ,  and we w i l l  go  th rough  

i t  in  a  l i t t le  wh i le .   You ment ioned  the  fo l low ing tha t  there  

are  ce r ta in  bank s ta tements ,  oh  we l l  cer ta in  bank accounts  
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you  had looked a t  i s ,  were  the  main  bank accounts  o f  

Swi fambo Leas ing  and Swi fambo Ho ld ings.   But  there  were  

cer ta in  bank accounts ,  fo r  example ,  I  th ink  you ment ioned 

a  B idvest  account  tha t  were  apparent ly  in  the  name o f  

these ent i t ies ,  wh ich  you s t i l l  requ i red .   

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson,  as  a  resu l t  o f  

s t i l l  requ i r ing  a  bank s ta tements ,  hence my repor t  was  

pre l im inary  un t i l  I  rece ived these bank accounts .    I  cou ld  

no t  conc lude a l l  t ransact ions,  as  we w i l l  see  my  repor t  

conta ins  hundreds o f  t ransact ions,  some wh ich  I  cou ld  10 

conc lude on,  and  some wh ich  requ i red  fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  

to  conc lude on.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  jus t  to  be  c lear  as  to  what  you 

have and what  you d id  no t  have,  you had  a l l  the  

s ta tements  tha t  you requ i red  f rom the  main  bank accounts  

o f  Swi fambo Ho ld ings and Swi fambo Leas ing ,  wou ld  tha t  be  

tha t  be  co r rec t ,  the  main  bank accounts?   

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson tha t  i s  cor rec t .   The main  bank 

accounts  fo r  Swi fambo Ho ld ings,  Swi fambo Leas ings fo rm 

the  bas i s  fo r  the  major i t y  o f  the  invest iga t ion ,  and the  bank 20 

accounts  in  th is  case,  th is  B idvest  bank account  was  

conf i rmatory  o f  a  payments  where  I  knew where  i t  had gone  

to  I  jus t  fo r  cha in  o f  ev idence,  I  jus t  needed tha t  bank 

account  to  conf i rm,  bu t  I  was  ab le  to  conc lude,  in  

conc lus ion  s ign i f i can t  in f lows and out f lows o f  the  Swi fambo 
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Ho ld ings and Sw i fambo Leas ing  bank accounts ,  as  I  had  

tha t  in fo rmat ion .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  those these the  bank  

s ta tements  in  respect  o f  those accounts  tha t  you  d id  no t  

have,  d id  you ask  the  Po l ice  to  i ssue Sect ion  205 ’s  in  

respect  o f  them? 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  i t  was as  best  as  we l l ,  i t  was a  

f lu id  p rocess due  to  the  vast  amount  o f  bank s ta tements  o r  

bank accounts  we requ i re .    We had rece ived qu i te  a  few 

however,  there  was some tha t  was s t i l l  ou ts tand ing  10 

subpoenas tha t  had been i ssued tha t  had not  been  

co l lec ted  f rom the  f inanc ia l  ins t i tu t ions  by  the  Po l ice ,  as  

we l l  as  fu r ther  subpoenas requ i red .    

In  the  t ime tha t  a l lowed,  tha t  I  was a l lowed to  

per fo rm my invest iga t ion .   I  guess i t  wou ld  be  best  

cons idered as  one ha l f  o r  one th i rd  o f  the  invest iga t ion  that  

we per fo rmed due to  the  h igh  va lue  o f  rands,  b i l l i ons  o f  

b i l l i ons  or  R1.82.6b i l l i on ,  there  as  one cou ld  imag ine  there  

is  a  lo t  o f  bank accounts  underp inn ing  the  f low o f  funds.    

Hence there  was  cer ta in l y  go ing  to  be  fu r ther  bank  20 

accounts  to  be  requested,  wh ich  tha t  p rocess was not  

comple ted .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you make tha t  c lear  in  your  

repor t  tha t  in  o rde r  to  f ina l i se ,  ce r ta in ly  the  leve l  one  

invest iga t ion  you wou ld  requ i re  those s ta tements  in  
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respect  o f  those bank accounts .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  never  came a f te r  -  you were  

never  asked whether  you s t i l l  requ i red  a f te r  you had 

submi t ted  your  repor t?   

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  you  say the  Hawks were  to  

meet  the  NPA,  in  regard  to  the  cr im ina l  invest iga t ion  you  

were  engaged by  the  Hawks.   You are  do ing  the  VBS 

invest iga t ion .   Do you have any communica t ions d i rec t l y  10 

w i th  the  NPA,  wou ld  they come to  you and ask your  op in ion  

on  th ings?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson the  best  way to  pu t  i t  is  

whenever  I  p repare  a  repor t ,  in  th is  case fo r  VBS a  sworn  

s ta tement  I  most  cer ta in ly  engaged  w i th  the  NPA to  f ina l i se  

and se t t le  these  s ta tements  and  there  is  a  con t inuous 

engagement  on  a  regu lar  bas i s  w i th  the  NPA.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    D id  the  NPA ever  contac t  you w i th 

regard  to  your  p re l im inary  repor t  on Swi fambo?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  was  -  I  do  no t  reca l l  ever  20 

be ing  contac ted  d i rec t l y  by  the  NPA ce r ta in ly  no t  to  the 

ex ten t  tha t  I  wou ld  expect  to  have consu l ted  w i th  the 

prosecut ing  au thor i t ies  in  such an arena in  such  as  the  

Swi fambo repor t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  were  there  any communica t ions 
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be tween yourse l f  and the  NPA? 

MR SACKS:    Not  tha t  I  reca l l  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you say in  paragraphs the  -  

parag raph 13 tha t  the  repor t  was  s t i l l  be ing  f ina l ised but  

you had comple ted  your  ana lys i s  in  regard  to  the  payment  

rece ived and made in  respect  o f  about  R2.6b i l l i on .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now jus t  -  we do not  need to  go  in to  

exact  f igures .   How much d id  PRASA pay in  respect  o f  the  

Swi fambo cont rac t?   You can jus t  g ive  us  a  ba l lpark  f igure .   10 

MR SACKS:    R2.6b i l l i on ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And to  whom d id  i t  make  those  

payments?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson PRASA made those payments  to  

Swi fambo Ho ld ings and Swi fambo Leas ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We go ing  to  dea l  –  your  repor t  dea ls  

w i th  those,  a re  they a  re la ted  company?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  Sw i fambo Ho ld ings  is  the 

ho ld ing  company fo r  Swi fambo Leas ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And who are  the  main  persons  20 

invo l ved w i th  Swi fambo Ho ld ings and Swi fambo Leas ing?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  to  my unders tand ing ,  Mr  

Auswel l  Mashaba  was the  main  person runn ing  Swi fambo 

Ho ld ings,  Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing .   There  were  add i t iona l  

d i rec tors  pe r  C IPC o f  those ent i t ies ,  bu t  f rom the  
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in fo rmat ion  tha t  was ava i lab le  to  me,  i t  appeared tha t  Mr  

Mashaba was the  person runn ing  the  compan ies .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I f  the  Hawks came back to  you now 

to  say look p lease f ina l i se  the  repor t ,  i s  there  s t i l l  a  lo t  o f  

work  to  be  done,  I  am jus t  ta lk ing  about  the  f i rs t  leve l?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson fo r  the  f i rs t  leve l  par ts ,  no  no t  

much work  wou ld  be  done.   Aga in ,  the  f i rs t  leve l  pa r t  wou ld  

be  conf i rm ing the  f low o f  funds,  the  payments  o r  u t i l i sa t ion  

o f  money out  o f  the  Swi fambo bank accounts  to  those 

rec ip ien ts ,  tha t  does not  requ i re  a  lo t  o f  work ,  tha t  was 10 

c lea r  in  my repor t .  

What  wou ld  requ i re  a  b i t  more  substant ive  work ,  

Cha i rperson was  those rec ip ien ts  o f  the  money f rom 

Swi fambo what  they d id  w i th  i t  and  where  tha t  money went ,  

i t  i s  a  p rocess o f  ob ta in ing  fu r ther  bank s ta tements  to  

conf i rm those f low o f  funds.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  we know tha t  annexure  RS3 is  

your  repor t ,  wh ich  is  the  th i rd  annexure  to  your  a f f idav i t .   

Then there  are  fu r ther  annexures RS4.1  to  RS4.4 ,  what  a re  

those jus t  in  b r ie f?   20 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson those  are  the  Swi fambo Ra i l  

leas ing  and Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ing  bank s ta tements .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Those are  the  ones tha t  you used fo r  

your  leve l  one ana lys is?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Son i ,  I  know tha t  when we took the  

tea  break I  sa id  the  purpose was so  tha t  when we s tar ted  

w i th  Mr  Sacks we wou ld  go  r i gh t  th rough but  the re  i s  a  

need fo r  us  to  take  a  shor t  ad journment .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  jus t  take  a  ten  minutes ’ 

ad journment .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .   

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 10 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  proceed.   Jus t  remember  

Mr  Son i  tha t  you are  compet ing  w i th  the  a i rcon no ise .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  t ry  and speak up.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  need to ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   I  have been  to ld  tha t  the  a i rcon,  you 

e i ther  swi tch  i t  o f f  o r  i t  i s  jus t  l i ke  th is .   And I  am to ld  tha t  

somet imes on your  s ide  i t  i s  much  hot te r  i t  seems than th is  

s ide .   I  do  no t  know why.   So somet imes I  do  no t  fee l  tha t  i t  20 

is  so  ho t  bu t  I  hear  tha t  i t  i s  ho t  on  tha t  s ide  o f  the  room.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON:    So  le t  us  see what  we can do.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.    
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Sacks,  we were  ta lk ing  about  RS-

41 to  RS -  o f  RS-4 .1  to  RS-4 .4 .   Those a re  the  suppor t ing  

documents  tha t  you rece ived f rom the  bank.  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  Cha i rperson.   Amongst  a  few o ther  bank 

accounts ,  these were  the  main  Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  and 

Ra i l  Ho ld ings bank s ta tements .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   And then in  Annexure  RS-5  

you se t  ou t  the  l i s t  o f  documents  tha t  you had.  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you say in  parag raphs 18 and 19 10 

tha t  tha t  document  i s  conta ined in  about  20  arch  leve l  f i l es  

and you have. . .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  hav ing  regards to  the  

contents  o f  the  repor t ,  they  are  no t  go ing  to  serve  any  

purpose before  th is  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   Le t  us  then go to  your  repor t  

Mr  Sacks.   And I  jus t  want  to  say because i t  may be he lp fu l  

tha t  you in  your  index se t  ou t  the  head ings under  wh ich  the  20 

repor t  has been d ra f ted .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   Now we do not  need to  dea l  

w i th  1  because you have ind ica ted  tha t  th is  i s  espec ia l l y  

fo r  the  Hawks and i t  has  a  measure  o f  conf ident ia l i t y  about  
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i t .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   And then you se t  ou t  the  

background to  the  invest iga t ion  and there  are  matches tha t  

const i tu te  or  the re  are  severa l  ma tches tha t  const i tu te  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l . . .   I  am sor ry.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Son i .   I  do  no te  Mr  Sacks  

the  –  your  repor t ,  RS-3  is  no t  marked d ra f t  o r  p re l im inary  10 

or  have I  m issed  tha t?   Oh,  there  i t  i s ,  d ra f t  p re l im inary  

repor t .   I  saw in  –  you know,  much –  the  f i rs t  l i ne  i t  says  

Repor t  4  w i thout  say ing  pre l im inary  or  d ra f t .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  see la te r  on  down the  page you 

have got  d ra f t  p re l im inary  repor t .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you make the  po in t  on  tha t  same 

page Mr  Sacks tha t  th is  repor t  i s  fo r  d iscuss ion  purposes 20 

on ly  and tha t ,  I  take  i t ,  i t  a r i ses  f rom the  fac t  tha t  you have 

been asked to  appear  w i th  the  Hawks on the  19 t h  fo r  the 

purposes o f  d iscuss ing  the  repor t .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  there  was no d i scuss ion  thereon.  
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MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   At  tha t  meet ing ,  I  take  i t  tha t  you  

wou ld  take those  who were  present ing ,  who a t tended the  

meet ing ,  th rough  the  repor t ,  a t  leas t  in  te rms o f  the  main  

fea tures .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you ind ica ted  what  i s  se t  ou t  in  

the  repor t ,  namely  tha t  you have looked a t  the  fund or  the  

f low o f  funds f rom PRASA to  the  two Swi fambo ent i t ies  and  10 

then f rom the  Sw i fambo ent i t ies  who a re  the  ind i v idua ls  o r  

en t i t ies .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you made i t  c lear  tha t  i t  was 

based on the  bank s ta tements  tha t  they had procured fo r  

you.    

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you a re  say ing  tha t  th is  was -  

the  repor t  came about  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  appo in tment  o f  

Swi fambo to  –  o r  the  award  o f  a  tender  to  Swi fambo by  20 

PRASA.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   And then you re fer  to  a 

H i l lb row case number  and you ind ica te  tha t  the 

compla inant  was Mr  Mamabolo .  
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MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now jus t  fo r  contex t  sake.   I s  the  

Mr  Mamabolo  who accompanied Mr  Mole fe  to  th is  meet ing  

w i th  Mr  Mashaba in  Ju ly  2015?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  my unders tand ing  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And d id  you have the  a f f idav i t s  he  

had –  or  the  s ta tements  he  had made in  suppor t  o f  th is  

c r im ina l  compla in t?  

MR SACKS:    I  had access to  those a f f idav i t s  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you re l ied  on  them as we l l ?  10 

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson where  re levant .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   And then you had the  Aud i to r -

Genera l ’s  repor t  o f  the  31s t  o f  March ,  dea l ing  w i th  f ru i t less  

and waste fu l  expend i tu re .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    In  re la t ion  to  th is  Swi fambo mat te r?  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  Cha i rperson .   I  must  add tha t  the 

Aud i to r -Genera l ’s  repor t  and Mr  Mamabolo ’s  a f f idav i t  i t  i s  

a l l  cu rsory  background in fo rmat ion .   The focus  o f  my  

invest iga t ion  was  pure l y  on  the  bank records o f  Swi fambo 20 

and where  re levant  i f  those o ther  p ieces o f  in fo rmat ion  

cou ld  augment  my f ind ings,  I  wou ld  use i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    What  though you do in  your  repor t  
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and jus t  cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  why a l l  o f  th is  i s  

impor tan t .   You t ry  and cor re la te  the  var ious compla in t s  

tha t  were  made  w i th  the  f low  o f  funds to  and f rom 

Swi fambo.  

MR SACKS:    Yes.   So Cha i rperson,  the  best  way to  

exp la in  i t  i s .   The Swi fambo cont rac t  i s  obv ious ly  i t  i s  o f  

h igh  va lue .   I t  is  qu i te  a  s to ry  f rom the  moment  i t  was  

accepted to  u l t imate  a  s ignature  and then f low o f  funds.  

 I  was –  I  took  i t  upon myse l f  in  p repar ing  th is  

repor t  wh ich  wou ld  no t  fo rm an a f f idav i t  in  c r im ina l  10 

proceed ings.   Th i s  i s  a  repor t  o f  f ind ings fo r  the  Hawks.    

 I  thought  i t  wou ld  be  benef ic ia l  to  the  Hawks to  

ac tua l l y  summar i se  a l l  the  c i v i l  p lead ings because  i t  pu ts  

ou t  and i t  exp la ins  c lear ly  how the  who le  tender  came 

about ,  who the  par t ies  were  to  the  tender,  what  the  

i r regu lar i t ies  were  to  the  tender.  

 So tha t  when the  po l i ce  cou ld  read the  f low o f  

funds they cou ld  ge t  contex t  and i t  wou ld  make sense.   I f  I  

jus t  p repared a  repor t  o f  f low o f  funds w i thout  the  s to ry  

tha t  led  up  to  the  money go ing  f rom PRASA to  Swi fambo,  i t  20 

wou ld  no t  have been as  benef ic ia l  o r  as  usefu l  to  the  

po l i ce .    

 And I  thought  –  obv ious ly  due to  the  vo lume o f  

c iv i l  papers  underp inn ing  the  app l i ca t ion  to  se t  the  

cont rac t  as ide ,  I  inc luded a l l  the  app l i cab le  f ind ings in  
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those a f f idav i t s ,  Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  Massaro ’s  a f f idav i t  in  

th is  repor t .    

 And my f ind ings  were  the  f low o f  funds,  the  

money.   That  was  my deta i led  f ind ings.   That  i s  wha t  I  was 

prov id ing  an  exper t  op in ion  on .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  what  i t  does is ,  anybody read ing  

the  repor t  i s  go ing  to  say:   Wel l ,  th is  money went  to  

company X .   And i f  you look a t  the  a l legat ions are  made,  

you say i t  p robab ly  went  because o f  tha t  a l legat ion .  

MR SACKS:    I t  connects  the  do t  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t .   Then we have a l ready dea l t  

w i th  how you came to  be  appo in ted  and so  on .   So we can  

leave tha t .   And  then –  tha t  i s  parag raph 3 ,  the  res t  o f  

parag raphs 2  and  3 .  

 Now in  paragraph 4 ,  you in t roduce or  you say  

tha t  tha t  i s  an  in t roduct ion  to  the  i nvest iga t ion .   Cou ld  you 

br ie f l y  summar ise  what  the  purpose o f  th is  invest iga t ion  

was and what  were  you t ry ing  to  ach ieve w i th  th is?  

 I  know you have sa id  pa r t  o f  th is  bu t  jus t  in  

re la t ion  to  tha t  quest ion .  20 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  my mandate  was to  pe r fo rm a  

f low o f  funds ana lys i s  o f  the  Swi fambo bank accounts .   

Swi fambo as co l l ec t i ve ly  d ispense  f rom the  Ra i l  Ho ld ings 

and Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing .    

 My ob jec t i ve  was  to  ana lyse  how the  money f rom 
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PRASA f low to  Swi fambo and what  tha t  money was used 

fo r.   How i t  was u t i l i sed .   So tha t  my mandate  –  jus t  to  do  –  

my ob jec t i ve  was  to  g ive  an  op in ion  on  those f ind ings,  on 

the  R 2 .6  b i l l i on  spec i f i ca l l y.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And to  look  whethe r  the re  were  

unusua l  payments  or  the  t im ing  was unusua l .   Would  tha t  

be  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then in  pa rag raph 5 ,  you dea l  w i th  

the  scope and methodo logy.   So we were  ta lk ing  about  the  10 

bank accounts  tha t  you looked a t  pu t  to  you the  de ta i l s  o f  

wh ich  you got  th rough the  Hawks v ia  to  Sect ion  205 

subpoenas issued to  the  f inanc ia l  ins t i tu t ion .   Now you  

looked a t  ma in l y  two bank accounts .   Can you te l l  the  

Cha i rperson wh ich  those were?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  two main  bank accounts  

was a  Swi fambo  Ra i l  Leas ing ,  S tandard  Bank account  

number  022682570 and the  Swi fambo Ho ld ings,  S tandard  

Bank account  number  202538117.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And why d id  you choose those two  20 

accounts?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  I  cho ice  those two accounts  

because those were  the  two bank accounts  in to  wh ich  

PRASA made payments  fo r  the  Swi fambo cont rac t .   

Spec i f i ca l l y,  the  cont rac t  s ta tes  tha t  the  payment  shou ld  be  
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made to  Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing .    

 However,  payments  were  a lso  made to  Swi fambo  

Ra i l  Ho ld ings spec i f i ca l l y  the  f i rs t  payments  wh ich  was an  

i r regu lar i t y  in  te rms o f  what  the  cont rac t  s ta ted  be tween  

PRASA and Swi fambo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  i s  why you ana lysed both  

because to  see where  the  payments  were  made in  te rms o f  

the  cont rac t .  

MR SACKS:    . . . the  u t i l i sa t ion ,  I  was a l so  per fo rming  

ana lys is  in  te rms o f  how the  cont rac t ,  f rom a  cash loan  10 

po in t  o f  v iew was  be ing  per fo rmed.   I  d id  no t  no te  tha t  f rom 

the  outse t  the  funds between the  two compan ies  were  

be ing  coming led .   So fo r  the  purposes o f  th is  repor t ,  I  

c lea r ly  s ta ted ,  I  see tha t  i s  the  one and the  same ent i t y  

because there  was –  you canno t  de f ine  the  cash f low 

ac t iv i t y  one come d i rec t  separa te ly.    

 Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ings,  Swi fambo Leas ing ,  the  

money is  seen as  one and PRASA pa id  in to  bo th  those 

accounts  even though aga in  they were  on ly  supposed to  

pay in to  the  Ra i l  Leas ing ’s  S tandard  Bank account .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  is  because o f  the  te rm o f  

the  cont rac t?  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   Now a t  parag raph –  and we 

w i l l  come to  tha t .   I  mean,  I  th ink  you do dea l  w i th  i t  in  
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more  de ta i l .   In  paragraph 5 .2  you  make the  po in t  tha t  th is  

i s  a  f i rs t  leve l  ana lys is .  

 And I  know you dea l t  w i th  i t  a  l i t t le  ea r l ie r.   Can 

you exp la in  to  the  Cha i rperson  what  you were  t ry  to  

ach ieve w i th  a  f i r s t  leve l  ana lys is  and then what  you were  

t ry ing  to  ach ieve w i th  a  second leve l  ana lys i s .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  aga in .   The f i rs t  leve l ,  as  I  

exp la in  in  my repor t ,  i s  s imp ly  conf i rm ing f low o f  funds 

f rom PRASA to  Swi fambo and who Swi fambo pa id .   How 

they u t i l i sed  tha t  money.   Then I  d rew a  l ine .  10 

 And then I  sa id  the  second leve l  ana lys is  i s  

those rec ip ien ts  o f  money f rom Swi fambo,  how d id  they 

u t i l i se  the i r  money.   As  –  aga in ,  the  f low o f  funds ana lys i s  

was the  very  na ture  when you are  dea l i ng  w i th  lo t  o f  bank 

accounts  i t  requ i res  a  lo t  o f  suppor t ing  in fo rmat ion .  

 A t  th is  t ime when I  p repared the  repor ts ,  we  

were  s t i l l  aga in  in  the  m ids t  o f  comple t ing  f i rs t  leve l  

ana lys is . . .  the  money wh ich  was most ly  comple ted  sub jec t  

to  one or  two prov isos wh ich  I  pu t  in  the  repor t .  

 But  then i t  was ant ic ipa ted  and exp la ined c lear l y  20 

tha t  I  needed to  the  second leve l  ana lys i s  in  o rder  to  

conc lude my invest iga t ion  and prov ide  an  u l t imate  op in ion  

as  I  was mandated to  do  wh ich  aga in  I  was not  –  I  was not  

–  I  never  comple ted .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now wi th  the  f i rs t  leve l  ana lys is ,  you 
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can  jus t  conduct  tha t  by  look ing  a t  the  bank accounts ,  

where  the  money  came f rom.   So you compare  the  source  

o f  the  money to  the  account  in  wh ich  i t  was rece ived.   

Would  tha t  be  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now what  wou ld  the  second leve l  –  in  

o rder  to  conduct  a  p roper  second leve l  ana lys i s ,  what  more  

wou ld  you need?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  PRASA pays Swi fambo 

R 2 .6  b i l l i on .   I  see  the  money coming in to  Swi fambo’s  10 

bank accounts .   I  see  ent i t y  A had  been – as  a  rec ip ien t  o f  

R 30 mi l l ion  f rom Swi fambo.    

 I  –  the  f i rs t ,  th rough subpoena,  I  ge t  en t i t y  A’s  

bank s ta tements .   I  can  conf i rm then tha t  Swi fambo pays 

money to  tha t  account .   What  en t i t y  A d id  w i th  the  money?   

 Cons ider ing  how a l l  the  a l l egat ions and 

susp ic ions what  the  money was used fo r  who,  fo r  example ,  

meet ings be tween Mr  Mole fe  and  Mr  Mashaba and o the r  

invest iga t ions.  

 Remember,  th is  i s  a  –  Cha i rpe rson ,  th is  i s  a  –  an  20 

a l l  encompass ing  invest iga t ion .   I  am jus t  p rov id ing  the  

f low o f  funds but  there  are  a lso  a l legat ions and susp ic ions 

as  to  what  the  money is  used fo r.    

 And I  take  tha t  in fo rmat ion  and I  marry  i t  up  to  

the  f low o f  funds  to  see,  yes ,  the re  is  an  a l legat ion  tha t  
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th is  pe rson rece ived money,  g ra tu i tous payments .   The  

bank s ta tements  have now shown tha t  tha t  person rece ived  

th is  g ra tu i tous payments  where  there  is  no  commerc ia l  

bas is  and so  fo r th .  

 So the  f i rs t  leve l  i s  to  say:   We l l ,  here  i s  the 

payment  f rom Swi fambo in to  en t i t y  A’s  bank accounts .   I  

had ent i t y ’s  A bank account .   I  con f i rmed the  rece ip t .   Now 

what  d id  en t i t y  A do  w i th  tha t  money?  Where  d id  tha t  

money go?  That  i s  the  second leve l  ana lys is  and tha t  i s  

where  I  requ i red  more  in fo rmat ion  to  per fo rm tha t . . .  10 

 So we can say,  u l t imate ly,  a t  leas t  a t  the  end o f  

the  day,  a t  leas t  th is  i s  where  PRASA’s  money gone based 

on a l l  the  a l legat ions and the  susp ic ions.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now I  take  i t  one o f  the  quest ions in  

h is  case tha t  you were  look ing  a t  i s .   Where  the  person 

who rece ived the  money f rom the  Swi fambo ent i t ies  d i rec t l y  

o r  ind i rec t l y.   Where  the  person who rece ived the  money or  

d id  the  persons per fo rm some se rv ice  wh ich  added va lue  

fo r  the  money they rece ived?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  to  summar i se .   As  i t  i s  se t  ou t  20 

in  the  c i v i l  papers ,  i t  was es tab l i shed and judged  by  the  

Supreme Cour t ,  to  my unders tand ing ,  I  was not  par t  o f  tha t  

p rocess,  tha t  Swi fambo –  the  cont rac t  was i r regu la r  and i t  

was se t  as ide  and Swi fambo was a  f ron t ing  company.  

 In  a  nu tshe l l  the  major i t y,  the  bu lk  major i t y  o f  
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the  funds wou ld  be  go ing  to  a  th i rd  par ty,  fo re ign  company  

who was manufac tur ing  the  locomot ives .  

 And my ana lys i s  shows tha t  Swi fambo. . .   Wel l ,  i t  

has  been es tab l i shed tha t  Swi fambo had no bus iness 

opera t ions.   I t  had no cause or  va l ida t ion  fo r  the  amounts  

tha t  i t  had expended over  and above the  money tha t  f lowed  

to  Voss loh  or  –  Voss loh  be ing  the  fo re ign  manufac turer  o f  

the  locomot ives  and somet imes to  South  A f r i can Revenue 

Serv i ces .  

 I  s ta te  –  i t  s ta tes  in  those papers  t ha t  there  is  no  10 

commerc ia l  ra t iona le  fo r  a l l  these payments .   A t  the  t ime 

tha t  I  –  we l l ,  in fo rmat ion  I  was based on,  you are  look ing  

a t  a  th ree ,  four  hundred mi l l ion  rands over  and above the 

payments  tha t  went  to  Voss loh  and  to  SARS.  

 And the re  is  –  as  I  say,  there  i s  no  commerc ia l  

bas is  f rom what  I  cou ld  see,  my independent  op in ion  and 

suppor ted  th rough th is  who le  process,  why Swi fambo wou ld  

be  mak ing  those payments .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then a t  pa rag raph 5 .7 .1 ,  you make 

the  po in t  about  the  account ing  reco rds  o f  Swi fambo.  20 

MR SACKS:    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson.   So my invest iga t i on  was -  

focussed so le ly  on  the  bank s ta tements .   When you are 

per fo rming a  fo rens ic  invest iga t ion  you wou ld  hope to  

rece ive  add i t iona l  suppor t ing  in fo rmat ion  tha t  cou ld  he lp  

you unrave l  the  cause or  bus iness reason fo r  a  payment .  
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 And each and every  company wou ld  have a  book 

o f  reco rds  and suppor t ing  in fo rmat ion .   So fo r  example ,  

there  wou ld  be  a  genera l  ledger  o r  a  ba lance sheet  and  

income s ta tement  o r  invo i ces  tha t  cou ld  he lp  me 

unders tand or  he lp  an  invest iga tor  unders tand o r  cou ld  

po in t  the  invest iga tor  to  say:   Wel l ,  what  cou ld  th is  

payment  be  fo r?  

 Not  say ing  tha t  the  account ing  records  wou ld  be  

accura te .   Genera l l y  in  an  invest iga t ion  where  there  is  

susp ic ion  o f  f raud or  cor rup t ion  o r  the f t ,  those documents  10 

cou ld  be  man ipu la ted .  

 However,  a l l  I  had was the  bank s ta tements  bu t  

as  I  s ta te  in  my repor t ,  the  bank s ta tements  were  revea l ing  

enough.   The bank s ta tements  say –  says a l l .  

 I  do  no t  be l ieve  tha t  there  wou ld  be  suppor t ing  

in fo rmat ion .   I  jus t  made tha t  po in t  jus t  to  qua l i f y  tha t  a l l  I  

had was bank s ta tements .   I t  i s . . .  

 And I  do  unders tand tha t  subsequent  in  the  

l iqu ida t ion  o f  Swi fambo,  the  l iqu ida tor  suppor ted  my 

conc lus ions or  t he  f ind ings tha t  I  had and the  l iqu ida tor  20 

wou ld  have access to  f inanc ia l  reco rds.   And the  

l iqu ida tor ’s  repor t  substant ive l y  suppor ted  my f ind ings a t  

th is  t ime.   However,  the  l iqu ida tor ’s  repor t  was not  par t  o f  

th is  c r im ina l  invest iga t ion  p rocess.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   I  mean,  in  fac t ,  i t  has  on ly  been  
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d rawn up in  February  2020.  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  i f  I  was a l lowed to  comple te  the 

invest iga t ion ,  I  wou ld  have obta ined th is  in fo rmat ion  and 

drawn these conc lus ions.   I  had,  aga in ,  in  my independent  

exper t  v iew,  the  f low o f  funds suppor t s  a l l  the  a l legat ions  

made.  

 And as  counse l  and I  go  th rough,  we w i l l  see  the  

quantum’s  o f  money f low ing out  and who the  rec ip ien ts  o f  

tha t  money is ,  PRASA’s  money.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  do  you need in  o rde r  to  comple te  10 

your  invest iga t ion? 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  amongst  o the r  th ings,  I  need 

more  bank accounts .   There  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  a l l  tha t  the  Hawks  

needed to  do  is  to  come back to  you and say cont inue.   We 

g ive  you the  au thor i t y  to  cont inue.   And to  the  ex ten t  tha t  

you may need them to  p lay  a  suppor t i ve  ro le  i n  your  

invest iga t ion  by  do ing  the  paperwork  tha t  may need to  be  

done in  o rde r  to  ob ta in  bank -  in fo rmat ion  on  bank  

accounts  o f  rec ip ien ts .   I s  t ha t  a l l  tha t  you wou ld  need 20 

f rom them? 

MR SACKS:    That  i s  p robab ly  the  main  p ieces o f  

in fo rmat ion  I  wou ld  need.   Obv ious ly,  there  wou ld  be  – in  

a l l  invest iga t ions  be  some o the r  in fo rmat ion  tha t  wou ld  

ar ise  ou t  o f  –  the  invest iga t ion  is  no t  exp lored.  
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 You are  co r rec t  Cha i rpe rson tha t  the  bank  

accounts  i s  what  I  rea l l y  needed.   I f  I  can  cont inue on the  

same t ra jec tory  tha t  I  was busy  w i th  and the  to ing  and 

f ro ing  w i th  the . . .   The co lone l . . .  

 I  was busy work ing  w i th  a  very  competent  

co lone l  a t  the  t ime who obv ious l y  was not  invo lved a t  h igh 

dec is ion  mak ing  i n  the  Hawks but  he  cer ta in ly  was a  very 

he lp fu l  resource .  

 And we were  work ing  c lose ly  together  and I  sa id :   

Co lone l ,  I  need th is  bank account .   He w i l l  go  and get  tha t  10 

bank account  fo r  me.   That  s topped.   So,  yes ,  you are  

cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  bas i ca l l y,  you wou ld  need the  

au thor isa t ion  –  you wou ld  have needed the i r  au thor isa t ion  

tha t  you must  cont inue and then to  the  ex ten t  tha t  lega l l y  

you might  need them to  do  cer ta in  th ings fo r  you because 

you cou ld  no t  do  them.   Then they wou ld  jus t  do  tha t .  

 But  i f  you  cou ld  comple te  the  invest iga t ion  

w i thout  them,  bu t  lega l l y,  you wou ld  s t i l l  comple te  i t ,  i s  i t  

no t?  20 

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    There  is  a  way  o f  comple t ing  i t  w i thout  

them? 

MR SACKS:    I  cannot  comple te  the  invest iga t ions  w i thout  

them.   So I  need the  au thor i t y  to  go  and get  subpoenas fo r  
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me.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  i f  you  do  i t  fo r  them.  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  i f  I  do  i t  fo r  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I f  you  do not  do  i t  fo r  them,  you do not  

need the i r  permiss ion .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because you have got  the  repor t .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    You have done  the  invest iga t ion .   You 

have got  the  repor t .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    They a re  no t  g iv ing  you the  go-ahead.  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  in  the  pub l i c  in te res t  tha t  you  

shou ld  comple te  the  invest iga t ion .    

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And i f  there  i s  another  body tha t  can 

lega l l y  say  we are  in te res ted  in  you comple t ing  th is .   I  am 20 

not  su re  i t  shou ld  be  a  prob lem.  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.   Obv ious ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  do  no t  know i f  they. . .   I  have jus t  

s i t t ing  w i th  the  repor t  fo r  four  years .   They can have any  

grounds to  come and say:   No,  no .   P lease,  do  no t  do  i t  fo r  
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somebody e l se .   We are  in te res ted  in  i t .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   But  I  am jus t  ask ing  f rom the  po in t  

o f  v iew o f  your  w i l l i ngness.  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  p rov ided every th ing  was done  

lega l l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . you  wou ld  have no prob lem.  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  Cha i rperson tha t  i s  cor rec t .   I  d id  no t  10 

s top  the  invest iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   [ laughs]  

MR SACKS:    [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  yes te rday  we –  the re  was  a  –  or  

was i t  the  day be fore ,  there  was a  debate  about  whether  a  

cer ta in  sentence in  a  le t te r  meant  tha t  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . .he  wanted to  s top  the  invest iga t ions.   

[ laughs]   Okay a l r igh t .   Cont inue Mr  Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease Cha i r.   Now in  your  –  20 

in  parag raph 7 ,  you ind i ca te  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  s t i l l  

ou ts tand ing .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you conf i rm tha t  tha t  i s  a l l  tha t  i s  

ou ts tand ing ,  as  the  Cha i rpe rson sa id ,  i f  you  were  to  
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comple te  your  repor t .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  your  es t imate  o f  how much t ime  

you wou ld  need  i f  you were  to  be  asked lega l l y  to  do  

whatever  was outs tand ing?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  I  w i l l  no t  l ie .   I t  i s  no t  a  –  i t  i s  

qu i te  a  d i f f i cu l t  quest ion  because I  do  no t  cont ro l  the  

process.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    Yes.   I ,  you  know,  i t  i s  a  p rocess o f  10 

in fo rmat ion  f low.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SACKS:    Request ing  fu r ther  in fo rmat ion  ana lys ing  tha t  

in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SACKS:    There  is  a l so  e i ther  –  as  I  say,  in  th is  

invest iga t ion  I  was ass i s ted  by  o ther  invest iga tors  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    . . .who he lped me . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi th  cer ta in  aspects .  

MR SACKS:    . . .w i th  ce r ta in  aspects  o f  the  invest i ga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR SACKS:    The key par t  o f  such a  w ide  or  vas t  f low o f  

funds ana lys is  i s  fo rens ic  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SACKS:    . . .hear t y  ass is tance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR SACKS:    In  te rms o f  pu t t ing  a l l  the  bank reco rds in to 

some k ind  o f  e lec t ron ic  fo rmat . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SACKS:    . . . to  make tha t  invest iga t ion  qu ick  and  

e f f i c ien t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SACKS:    I t  is  cos t ly  a l so .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SACKS:    When you are  look ing  a t  –  we l l ,  w i th  20  leve r  

a rch  f i les  a l ready  o f  bank accounts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SACKS:    To  t ry  and f low – to  marry  the  f low o f  funds  

amongst  the  bank  accounts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SACKS:    And some bank accounts  Cha i rperson cou ld  

have thousands o f  t ransact ions.   Some wou ld  on ly  have 

two t ransact ions and you have to  make a  ca l l .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SACKS:    There  are  a  hundred t ransact ions.   I  need 

the  bank to  te l l  me wh ich  bank account  i t  went  to .   And jus t  

say,  fo r  example  Cha i rperson,  i t  went  to  an  ind iv idua l  

company.   We have to  es tab l i sh  th rough po l i ce  work  or  
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in te l l igence work  who tha t  ind i v idua l  i s ,  what  company is  

tha t ,  what  i s  the  ra t iona le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR SACKS:    By  very  na ture ,  th is  t ype o f  invest iga t ion  is  

concea lment  o f  funds.   The in fo rmat ion  is  no t  read i l y  

ava i lab le .   And as  soon as  you go and ask an  ind iv idua l  

en t i t y :   What  do  you use th is  money fo r?    

 And not  pu t t ing  up  the i r  hand up  and say:   Oh,  

sor ry.   I  do  no t  have any bas i s  fo r  th is .   You know,  so  there  

is  a  la rge  –  i t  i s  a  team,  i t  i s  a  work ing  team o f  wh ich  I  am 10 

one aspect .   However,  I  am the  person who is  do ing  the  

f low o f  funds ana lys i s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MR SACKS:    I  was the  appo in ted  person fo r  the  money.    

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  say?  

MR SACKS:    No,  so  I  wou ld  say hypothet ica l l y,  i t  took  one  

year  to  ge t  to  th is  po in t  amongst  a l l  the  reasons o f  

meet ings and cor respondence and get t ing  in fo rmat ion ,  

maybe one more  year  to  comple te  the  second f low 

ana lys is .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SACKS:    I t  is  ha rd  –  i t  i s  d i f f icu l t  to  say.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rpe rson,  may I  jus t  po in t  ou t  and  

i t  re la tes  to  the  quest ion  you have asked.   We have 
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consu l ted  w i th  the  l iqu ida tor  who is  go ing  to  be  our  next  

w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And fo r  va r ious reasons,  they have 

had to  do  a  fo rens ic  ana lys i s .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  i t  may be  tha t  the  quest ion  –  and 

what  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . .whatever  i s  on  your  m ind  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Migh t  be  answered.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Wel l ,  and one can take  the  mat te r  

fu r ther  on  tha t  bas is .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  some o f  the  work  has s ince 

been –  we l l ,  some work  has s ince  been done.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    O f  a  fo rens ic  na ture .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  d id  no t  pursue tha t  too  much w i th  

h im but  I  know tha t  there  is . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Ja .  

MR SACKS:    Counse l ,  i f  I  may?  I  jus t  one po in t  I  shou ld  
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add a t  th is  po in t  i s  tha t  c ruc ia l  to  any invest iga t ion  is  a  

case p lan  o f  wh ich  a  fo rens i c  aud i t  fo rms one aspect  o f  

tha t  p lan .   I  was not  aware  o f  tha t  case p lan .    

 I ,  in  a  meet ing  lead ing  up to  my repor t ,  there  was a  

meet ing  jus t  be fore  I  sent  my repor t .   There  were  s t i l l  

d iscuss ions o f  what  i s  the  case p lan .   A l l  th is  in fo rmat ion  

in  my repor t ,  no t  a l l  o f  i t  i s  go ing  to  f ind  i t s  way in to  the  

s ta tement ,  in to  c r im ina l  ev idence.   The NPA might  say  no ,  

we do not  want  you to  pursue tha t  payment ,  we do not  want  

you to  pursue th is  payment .   So tha t  aspect  s t i l l  has  to  be  10 

done,  tha t  case p lan .   I  cannot  say  we l l ,  I  have f in ished my  

repor t  i t  i s  now t ime to  go  ar res t  peop le .   There  is  a  lo t  o f  

teamwork  invo lved even jus t  to  ge t  to  tha t  po in t  wh ich  in  

another  invest iga t ion  I  am do ing  very  s im i la r,  I  see  how 

tha t  works .   Yes,  we need to  f in ish  the  work  fo r  th is  

invest iga t ion  to  comple te  and,  as  counse l  says,  there  i s  

more  in fo rmat ion ,  wh ich  I  never  had the  t ime because o f  

the  l iqu ida t ion  wh ich  wou ld  esca la te  comple t ing  the  f low o f  

funds,  then we move on to  the  charges,  who is  go ing  to  ge t  

charged,  how are  they go ing  to  ge t  charged,  what  i s  the  20 

ev idence,  a f f idav i t s ,  suppor t ing  and so  fo r th ,  so  fo r th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   You have had a  look  a t  the  

l iqu ida tor ’s  repor t .   I  am not  ta lk ing  about  the  fo rens i c  

repor t .   We are  go ing  to  come to  tha t  because what  I  
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unders tand you to  say is  tha t  wha t  you have found  is  to  a  

la rge  ex ten t  re in fo rced by  wha t  i s  conta ined in  the 

l iqu ida tor ’s  repor t .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  to  see  

where  there  is  a  synergy be tween your  so-ca l led  

pre l im inary  repor t  and the i r  f ina l  repor t  to  shareho lders  o f  

February  las t .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t ,  now you make the  po in t  in  10 

parag raph 8  tha t  your  ana lys i s  does not  const i tu te  an  aud i t  

fo r  the  pu rposes o f  in te rna t iona l  s tandards on  aud i t ing .   I  

take  i t  tha t  i s  a  d isc la imer  o f  sor ts .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson,  i t  is  jus t  a  pu re  d i sc la imer.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Then le t  us  look a t  paragraph 9  where  

you dea l  w i th  t he  background to  the  appo in tment  o f  

Swi fambo.   Many o f  these de ta i l s  o r  much o f  th is  

in fo rmat ion  has been presented to  the  Commiss ion  main ly  

by  Mr  Mole fe  when he gave ev idence and he gave qu i te  

ex tens i ve  ev idence.   I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  you to  i nd ica te  what  20 

in  regard  to  the  background the  Cha i rperson shou ld  keep 

in  m ind?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  I  guess what  i s  most  impor tan t  

to  th is  tender  and  as  I  have se t  ou t  in  –  how i t  i s  exp la ined  

in  the  c i v i l  app l i ca t ion  i s  how a t  a l l  t imes the  –  the  
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Swi fambo cont rac t  was a lways i n tended to  go  –  or  the  

locomot ive  tender  was a lways in tended to  go  to  Swi fambo 

and how i t  was  se t  up  i n te r  a l ia  a long the  request  fo r  

p roposa ls ,  the  b idd ing ,  the  compan ies  who par t i c ipa ted ,  

the  va lua t ion ,  the  ad jud i ca t ion ,  i t  a l l  po in ts  to  Swi fambo 

rece iv ing  th is  cont rac t  and what  i s  a lso  impor tan t  i s  tha t  

Swi fambo was not   -  they  never  –  there  were  g la r ing  

i r regu lar i t ies  in  te rms o f  Swi fambo be ing  tha t  company in  

te rms o f  no t  hav ing  proper ly  reg i s te red fo r  tax  pu rposes,  

no t  hav ing  the  re la t i ve  exper ience  in  ra i l  and the  fac t  tha t  10 

they were  go ing  to  ou tsource  the  manufac ture  comple te l y  

to  another  fo re ign  company wh ich  a t  the  – un t i l  –  what  i s  

impor tan t  i s  tha t  un t i l  Swi fambo actua l l y  s igned the  

cont rac t  w i th  PRASA there  was no cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  the i r  par tner  o r  subcont rac tor  and tha t  who le  

re la t ionsh ip  was not  p roper ly  de ta i led  o r  t ransparen t  in  th is  

who le  process.   So bear ing  in  m ind how Swi fambo got  i t  

and the  pr i c ing  o f  the  cont rac t  u l t imate ly  i t  i s  a  – PRASA 

was pay –  when i t  s igned a  rand denominator  cont rac t ,  in  

ac tua l  fac t  i t  was a  Euro  cont rac t ,  a l l  o f  tha t  i s  jus t  –  i t  was 20 

i r regu lar  f rom the  beg inn ing  par t  r igh t  un t i l  end o f  s ign ing  

the  cont rac t  and  u l t imate ly  to  the  f low o f  funds and you 

rece ive  money.   So I  guess,  to  counse l ’s  po in t ,  I  hope I  

have c la r i f ied  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  jus t  wanted to  ra ise  one po in t  tha t  in  
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parag raph 11.6  o f  your  repor t  –  you see,  in  parag raph 9  

you dea l  w i th  t he  background to  the  appo in tment  o f  

Swi fambo,  I  jus t  want  –  and tha t  i s  why I  though,  you know,  

po in t  ou t  tha t  the  da te  o f  the  cont rac t  i s  impor tan t  o r  the 

da te  o f  the  issue o f  the  tender,  wh ich  be ing  December  

2011,  because maybe we shou ld  f i rs t  look  a t  paragraph  

11.6  to  11 .11  because those are  mat te rs  –  what ,  11 .6 ,  7  

and 8  because those a re  mat te rs  tha t  come before  the  

issue o f  the  tender.  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Wi l l  you  dea l  w i th  those –  and I  know 

i t  i s  be fore  the  tender.  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Can you se t  ou t  the  impor tan t  events  

tha t  p receded the  issue o f  the  tender?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  as  I  read f rom my repor t ,  

PRASA pub l i shed the  request  fo r  express ions o f  in te res t  

wh ich  is  RFEI  on  24  and 26 Ju l y  2009 tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And tha t  you are  read ing  f rom 

paragraph 11 …[ in tervenes]  20 

MR SACKS:    11.6 ,  sor ry.   Paragraph 11.7 ,  May 2011,  the 

f i rs t  invo l vement  o f  Voss loh who u l t imate ly  was the  par tner  

o r  subcont rac to r  to  Swi fambo inspected PRASA’s  f lee t .   

June 2011,  in  pa ragraph 11.8 ,  a  Mr  Dan ie l  Mth imkhu lu ,  who 

was the  fo rmer  PRASA ch ie f  eng ineer  au tho r ised the  
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supp ly  o f  a i r  cond i t ion ing  sys tems f rom Voss loh and then 

tha t  led  up  –  those are  the  events  lead ing  up to  the  RFP 

be ing  pub l i shed on 27 and 28 November  2011.    

What  was impor tan t  in  paragraph  11.10,  tha t  the 

RFP was co l lec ted  by  someone f rom a  company ca l led  the  

S  Group as  i t  was denoted on the  reg is te r  and not  f rom a 

rep resenta t ive  o f  Swi fambo and th is ,  in  parag raph  11.11,  

Swi fambo responded to  the  tender  as  Mafor i  F inance 

Vryhe id ,  t rad ing  as  Swi fambo Leas ing  on 27 February  

2012.   The subparagraph to  tha t  i s  Swi fambo Ho ld ings 10 

acqu i red  Mafo r i  F inance Vryhe id  on  7  February  2012,  so  

the  company tha t  responded to  the  tender  was essent ia l l y  

a  b rand new company,  i t  had on ly  been around  fo r  the  

purposes o f ,  I  guess,  respond ing  to  th is  tender  was 20 

days o ld .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now the  S  Group.   We have heard  

ev idence on a  d i f fe ren t  mat te r  re la t ing  to  a  payment  be ing  

made to  the  S iyaya Group.   I s  th is  the  same group you are  

ta lk ing  about?  

MR SACKS:    My  unders tand ing ,  Cha i rperson,  i s  there  is  a  20 

co l lec t ion  o f  compan ies  under  the  nomenc la ture  S  Group 

inc lud ing  S iyaya and as  my repor t  w i l l  go  in to ,  I  ident i f y  

spec i f i c  S iyaya ent i t ies  tha t  were  benef ic ia ry  o f  funds f rom 

Swi fambo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And who was the  person beh ind  the  S  
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Group and the  S iyaya Group?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  my invest iga t ion ,  as  my  repor t  

se ts  ou t ,  i s  the  ac tua l  s ignato r ies  o f  bank accounts  and  

d i rec tors  o f  compan ies tha t  rece ived money f rom Swi fambo 

was an ind iv idua l  by  the  name o f  Makhensa Mabunda.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   On beha l f  o f  the  S  Group?  

MR SACKS:    On beha l f  o f  S  Group  or  l inked compan ies.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   R igh t ,  then you make the  po in t  tha t  

the  tender  was issued on the  2  December  2011 –  so r ry,  the  

RFP was pub l i shed on tha t  day and there  were  s i x  peop le  10 

who responded one o f  them be ing  Swi fambo.   Now in  

parag raph 9 .4  you l i s t  the  shareho lders  o f  Swi fambo.   Who  

were  they?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  shareho lders  a t  the  t ime of  

Swi fambo was Mr  Auswel l  Mashaba,  Ident i t y  Cap i ta l  

Par tne rs  (P ty )  L td ,  Th in tamakhos i  Empowerment  Trus t  and 

Hadassah Min ing  House (P ty)  L td .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Okay,  we can then …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe tha t  m ight  be  the  conven ien t  

t ime,  Mr  Son i?  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  take  the  lunch ad journment ,  we 

w i l l  re tu rn  a t  two o ’c lock .   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.   Now Mr  Sacks,  we 

are  dea l ing  w i th  the  shareho lders  o f  Swi fambo on page 855 

and you had ident i f ied  them and  then thereaf te r  on  page 

857,  paragraph 9 .11  you se t  ou t  the  d i rec to rs  o f  Swi fambo 

Leas ing .   Who were  they?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  the  d i rec tors  per  CICP were  

Auswel l  Mashaba,  Cynth ia  Miche l le  Par ish ,  Jacque l ine  

Nowand le  Mboweni  and Makshon i  Dan ie l  Mashe le .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now in  regard  to  Ms Par i sh ,  what  was  

the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  you had?  10 

MR SACKS:   The  in fo rmat ion  per  the  invest iga t ion  was tha t  

Ms Par i sh  was a  Un i ted  S ta tes  c i t i zen .   She was recorded 

as  the  ch ie f  lega l  counse l  o f  an  en t i t y  named Musa Cap i ta l  

and tha t  Musa Cap i ta l  was a  benef ic ia ry  o f  funds f rom 

Swi fambo,  s ign i f i can t  funds.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And tha t ,  you ident i f y  the  amounts  in  

your  repor t .  

MR SACKS:   Yes,  I  do  Cha i rperson .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   Now a t  paragraph 10 you dea l  

w i th  the  payments  tha t  Swi fambo rece ived f rom PRASA and 20 

you dea l  w i th  th is  la te r  aga in ,  bu t  there  are  two,  i f  you  look  

a t  tab le  1 ,  two  o f  the  e igh t  payments  were  made to 

Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ings and the  o thers  were  made to  

Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing .   What  i s  the  s ign i f i cance  jus t  in  

te rms o f  the  cont rac tua l  i ssues?  
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MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  the  cont rac t  be tween Swi fambo 

and PRASA c lea r ly  s ta ted  tha t  t he  payments  were  to  be  

made in to  a  S tandard  Bank account  he ld  in  the  name o f  

Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing ,  and my repor t  de ta i l s  tha t  two o f  

the  payments  made by  PRASA to  Swi fambo be ing  the  f i rs t  

payment  and a  payment  la te r  on ,  were  pa id  in to  Swi fambo 

Ra i l  Ho ld ings bank account ,  wh ich  was not  in  accordance  

w i th  the  cont rac t .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now in  pa ragraph 10.3  you say tha t  

the  f i rs t  payment  o f  four  hundred and s ix t y  thousand,  10 

R460 526 306-00  was made to  Swi fambo Leas ing ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  payment  was . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry,  to  Swi fambo Ho ld ings.  

MR SACKS:   Yes,  tha t  was pa id  to  Swi fambo Ho ld ings.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And the  s ign i f i cance is  the  f i rs t  

payment  i s  made to  a  non-cont rac tua l  en t i t y.  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  you a l so  make another  po in t  

about  the  t im ing  between the  conc lus ion  o f  the  cont rac t  20 

and the  f i rs t  payment .   How many days e lapsed between  

the  s ign ing  o f  the  cont rac t  and the  f i rs t  payment?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  the  cont rac ts  be tween PRASA 

and Swi fambo was s igned on 25  Marc  2013.   The f i rs t  

payment  f rom PRASA to  Swi fambo in  the  amount  o f  
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R460 526 216-00  was pa id  f rom PRASA to  Swi fambo on 5  

Apr i l  2013,  11  days a f te r  the  cont rac t  was s igned.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And the  amount  was 460 mi l l ion?  

MR SACKS:   Yes ,  and Cha i rperson i t  was pa id  pr i o r  to  the 

per fo rmance o f  the  cond i t ion  pres ident  wh ich  requ i red  a  

per fo rmance bond to  be  p rov ided by  Swi fambo Ra i l  

Leas ing ,  wh ich  was not  in  p lace  a t  the  t ime the  payment  

was made.  

CHAIRPERSON:   460 mi l l ion  o f  course  Mr  Son i  be ing  a  

nearest  f igure  round ing .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Oh,  I  beg your  pardon.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The ac tua l  amoun t  i s  more  than tha t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  so .   Now la te r  in  you r  repor t  

you dea l  w i th  who were  the  benef i c ia r ies  o f  tha t  f i rs t  ba tch  

o f  payment ,  I  mean tha t  f i rs t  payment .   

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now can I  ask  you was Voss loh  -  who  

was the  person p rov id ing  the  locomot ives ,  a  benef i c ia ry  o f  20 

any o f  tha t  payment  f rom . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson,  they were .   As  my repor t  

exp la ins  Voss loh  was pa id  116 days a f te r  Swi fambo  

rece ived the  money,  in  an  amount  o f  290 mi l l ion  rand.   Of  

the  460 mi l l ion ,  290 was pa id  to  Voss loh.   P r io r  to  Voss loh  
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rece iv ing  290 mi l l ion  rand,  approx imate ly  150 mi l l i on  rand 

was expanded to  o ther  ind iv idua ls  o r  en t i t ies .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And the  payment  to  Voss loh was made  

119 days a f te r  the  cont rac t .   A f te r  rece ip t  o f  the  money? 

MR SACKS:   116 days Cha i rperson.   Three  days 

d i f fe rence.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Now one o f  the  fac tors ,  sor ry  

and then you po in t  ou t  tha t  in  parag raph 10.4  bu t  we are  

go ing  to  dea l  w i t h  each o f  those payments  in  a  l i t t le  wh i le ,  

bu t  you po in t  ou t  tha t  s ix  o f  the  payments  were  made to  10 

Leas ing  and two to  Ho ld ing .  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   What  was the  to ta l  amount  to  

Ho ld ing?  

MR SACKS:   The  to ta l  amount  pa id  to  Ho ld ings,  I  have not  

ca l cu la ted  i t  on  the  repor t ,  approx imate ly  900 mi l l ion  rand.   

904 mi l l ion  rand.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And th is  i s  a  non-cont rac t ing  par ty.  

MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry.   You are  now where  about ,  20 

s t i l l  a t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  10 .4  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   10 .4  on  page 859.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  thought  we shou ld  move  in to  the  

meat  because a  l o t  o f  i t  i s  background and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  i s  f ine ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now in  paragraph 11.1  to  11 .5 ,  you  

dea l  w i th  mat te rs  tha t  const i tu te  what  you say are  unusua l  

fea tures  about  the  cont rac t  o r  the  award  and the  cont rac t .   

Would  tha t  be  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Cou ld  you br ie f l y  summar ise  fo r  the  

Cha i rperson what  those fea tu res  were?  10 

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  assume counse l  i s  re fe r r ing  to  

the  non-compl iance?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

MR SACKS:   By  Swi fambo wi th  regards to  the  tender  and I  

dea l  w i th  th is  spec i f i ca l l y  in  paragraph 11.12.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  be fore  we  get  there .   

MR SACKS:   Sor ry.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Jus t  in  re la t ion  to  the  compla in ts  tha t  

Mr  Mole fe  had made.  

MR SACKS:   Excuse me counse l .   Cha i rperson ,  as  I  20 

exp la ined ear l ie r  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  po l i ce ,  I  inc luded  

the  summary o f  the  c i v i l  app l i ca t ions,  and commentar ies  

tha t  were  inc luded in  those app l i ca t ions tha t  were  re levant  

to  por t ray ing  the  p ic tu re  o f  Swi fambo fo r  the  po l i ce  and I  

u t i l i sed  the  found ing  and rep l y ing  a f f idav i t s  by  Mr  Popo  
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Mo le fe  and the  respond ing  a f f idav i t  p roposed by  Fa l i ce  

Mosaro  who was,  he  c la imed he was a  g roup ch ie f  

execut ive  o f f i cer  o f  Swi fambo.   In  summary Popo Mole fe  in  

h is  a f f idav i t s ,  he  contends tha t  Swi fambo had no prev ious 

invo l vement  in  the  ra i l  indust ry,  p r io r  to  the  award  o f  the 

cont rac t  and was  not  in  a  pos i t ion  to  per fo rm the  cont rac t .   

Swi fambo was se t  up  fo r  the  so le  purpose o f  ob ta in ing  the  

tender  and had  a  f ron t ing  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Voss loh .   

Swi fambo had no  bus iness or  commerc ia l  opera t ions,  o ther  

than to  be  the  m idd le  man to  earn  the  commiss ion  in  a  10 

locomot ive  tender.   In  fac t  there  was no ev idence tha t  

Swi fambo actua l l y  per fo rmed any work ,  o ther  than to  be  a 

cont rac t ing  par ty.   Swi fambo d id  no t  incur  any cost  o f  

manufac ture  o r  any re la ted  cost  re la t ing  to  the  comple t ion  

o f  locomot ives  and essent ia l l y  they added no va lue  to  the 

per fo rmance o f  the  cont rac t ,  wh ich  Mosaro  d id  no t  

exp l i c i t l y  deny in  h is  respond ing  a f f idav i t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now you have po in ted  out  to  me,  tha t  

when th is  mat te r  went  to  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l ,  the  

Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  very  succ inc t l y  descr ibed what  20 

Swi fambo’s  pos i t ion  was.   How d id  you desc r ibe  i t?   The 

passage tha t  you have . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR SACKS:   Can  you be more  spec i f i c?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   You had,  remember  you showed me a  

passage.  
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MR SACKS:   Yes,  yes  excuse me.   I  s ta ted  in  my repor t  

tha t  Swi fambo obta ined a  th ree  and a  ha l f  b i l l i on  rand  

tender  fo r  the  supp ly  o f  locomot ives  when i t  had no o f f i ces  

or  in f ras t ruc tu re ,  no  exper ience in  the  ra i l  indust ry  and no 

cont rac ts  to  ob ta in  and supp ly  the  locomot ives  a t  the  t ime 

i t  go t  awarded the  tender.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And tha t  cu l t  was adopted  by  the  

Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l?  

MR SACKS:   I  cannot  conf i rm tha t ,  sor ry  Cha i rpe rson.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now in  regard  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr  Son i ,  you may . . .  i t  wou ld  be  

in te res t ing  to  see what  the  d i f fe rence is  be tween the  ro le  

p layed by  Swi fambo in  th i s  t ransac t ion  and the  ro le  p layed  

in  the  asbestos  pro jec t  by  the  jo in t  ventu re  be tween Mr  

Sod i  and Mr  Mbambane.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You w i l l  reca l l  because you know the  

mat te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   That  there  Mr  Sod ie  Mr  Mbambane ’s  jo in t  20 

venture ,  I  fo rge t  what  the  name o f  the  jo in t  venture  was,  

ob ta ined a  cont rac t  f rom the  hous ing  depar tment  o f  the  

prov ince about  250 mi l l ion  rand in  o rde r  to  remove the  

asbestos  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   In  the  houses in  the  Free S ta te ,  bu t  they 

themse lves d id  no t  do  any work .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   They got  o the r  peop le  to  do  the  work ,  

pa id  them some money and kep t  the  bu lk  o f  the  money  

themse lves.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  they themse lves d id  no t  do  any work .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  i t  wou ld  be  in te res t ing .   10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   Yes,  the  no t ion  o f  f ron t ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And benef i t t ing  f rom f ron t ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  Mr  Sod ie  and Mr  

Mbambane ’s  en t i t y  was not  fund ing  as  such,  bu t  what  may 

be common between tha t  ventu re  and Swi fambo,  i s  you get  

a  cont rac t .   You do not  ac tua l l y  do  the  work .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Bu t  you get  the  money.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Money,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   You get  pa id .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  and then  you pay where  there  is  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  you pay whoever,  ja .   Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease,  and the  ana logy is  

most  appropr ia te .   Now we have  dea l t ,  oh  sor ry.   I  was  

go ing  to  say tha t  in  parag raph 11 .5 .7  you make the  po in t  

tha t  the  person who f i led  the  answer ing  a f f idav i t  in  the  

Swi fambo High Cour t  mat te r  was a  Mr  Mosaro .   He  is  f rom 

I ta ly  as  I  unders tand i t?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  cannot  conf i rm where  Mr  

Mosaro  ac tua l l y  comes f rom.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  unders tand though he is  no t  f rom 

South  A f r i ca .   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,  what  parag raph d id  you say?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  11 .5 .7  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh,  okay ja .   Mosaro .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  now Cha i rperson,  may I  jus t  

make th is  po in t  bu t  I  do  no t  want  to  take  too  much o f  t ime.   

What  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l ,  what  the  h igh  cour t  

[ ind is t inc t ] ,  i t  sa id  these a re  the  a l legat ions Mr  Mole fe  

made in  h is  found ing  a f f idav i t  and  tha t  i s  what  the  w i tness 20 

has more  or  less  summar ised.   Then i t  looked  a t  the  

answer ing  a f f idav i t  and the  answer ing  a f f idav i t  was to  th is  

e f fec t .   A l l  the  compla in ts  tha t  PRASA makes are  PRASA 

re la ted  i r regu lar i t ies .   We do  not  know about  them.   

Th ink ing  tha t  because they are  PRASA re la ted  ac t iv i t ies ,  i t  
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cou ld  re ta in  the  benef i t s  f rom i r regu lar i t ies ,  no t  knowing  

tha t  our  l aw  has caught  up  w i th  such persons.   So the  po in t  

I  am t ry ing  to  make Cha i rperson is  bo th  the  H igh  Cour t  and  

the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  say  tha t  these a l legat ions 

have not  been den ied  and they adopt  these a l legat ions as  

par t  o f  the  i r regu lar  p rocess and procedures tha t  were  

adopted in  award ing  the  tender  to  Swi fambo.   So I  am not  

go ing  to  spend much t ime on th is .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Except  to  say tha t  a t  var ious par ts  10 

when Mr  Sacks has tes t i f ied ,  I  w i l l  i nd ica te  tha t  tha t  i s  

conta ined in  th is  parag raph o f  the  SCA judgment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  no  because those are  a l ready 

f ind ings o f  the  Supreme Cour t  o f ,  H igh  Cour t  o r  and  we can 

go and read them f rom the re ,  bu t  fo r  pu rposes  o f  the  

record  and the  fabr ic  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You can say these are  the  f ind ings tha t  

were  made tha t  a re  re levant .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   And then we move on.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Abso lu te ly.   As  you  p lease 

Cha i rperson.   Now in  parag raph 10 po in t ,  11 .6  to  11 .11  we 

have been th rough a l ready jus t  be fore  lunch hour.   Those  

were  the  mat te rs  tha t  a rose even pr io r  to  the  issue  o f  the  
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RFP.  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And I  jus t  want  you to  keep tha t  in  

m ind,  because you make a  po in t  la te r  on  tha t  i t  looks  l i ke  

the  who le  b id  was,  I  mean the  who le  process was ta i lo red  

to  su i t  Swi fambo.  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t .   Then you go a t  pa rag raph 

11.12 onwards,  to  look  a t  the i r  non-compl iance w i th  the  

requ i rements  o f  the  RFP.   What  a re  the  main  areas o f  non-10 

compl iance?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  pa r t i cu la r  s ta tu tory  non-

compl iance was  there  is  no  tax  c learance cer t i f i ca te  

submi t ted  fo r  Voss loh as  requ i red  fo r  jo in t  venture  

par tners .   There  was no tax  c lea rance ce r t i f i ca te  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  each t ime w i l l  you  jus t  g ive  me 

a  m inute .   That  Cha i rperson,  i s  adopted by  the  SCA in  

parag raph 10,  tha t  exact  f ind ing  o r  tha t  f ind ing  is  made by  

the ,  i t  accepts  i t  and says tha t  i s  what  happens.   Sor ry,  20 

jus t  go  ahead.   

MR SACKS:   “The tax  c learance  cer t i f i ca te  submi t ted  by  

Swi fambo d id  no t  conta in  a  VAT number. ”  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  too  a t  parag raph 10 Cha i r.   

MR SACKS:   “The b id  d id  no t  comply  w i th  the  loca l  content  
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requ i rements  as  the  locomot ives  were  to  be  

des igned and manufac tured in  Spa in . ”  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  a t  parag raph 11 o f  the  SCA 

judgment  Cha i r.   

MR SACKS:   “The b id  d id  no t  con ta in  ev idence to  suppor t  

Swi fambo’s  c la ims tha t  i t  and i t s  shareho lders  

had p rev ious exper ience in  the  ra i l  indust ry,  

and in  te rms o f  wh ich  the  f ina l  fu r ther  

[ ind is t inc t ]  pursuant  to  the  RFP was requ i red  

to . ”  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  a t  11  and 12 o f  the  SCA 

judgment  Cha i rpe rson.  

MR SACKS:   “A t  the  t ime tha t  the  b id  was submi t ted ,  

Voss loh  was not  a  co-b idder  as  the  founder  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry,  i s  tha t  comple te?   I t  looks  l i ke  the  

sentence is  no t  comple te .   

MR SACKS:   Sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   There  is :  

“1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4  there  tha t  was requ i red  to  be 20 

techn ica l l y  and f inanc ia l l y  qua l i f ied  to  p rov ide  the  

so lu t ion  sought  by  PRASA, ”  

and then:  

“11 .12 .4 .2  have su f f i c ien t  exper ience in  s im i la r  

p ro jec ts .    
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11 .12 .4 .3  have the  commi tment  and resources  

to  p rov ide  the  se rv ices  requ i red  in  the  pro jec t ,  

and  

11 .12 .4 .4  be  ab le  to  car ry  ou t  a l l  the 

ob l iga t ions o f  the  cont rac t . ”  

MR SACKS:   Yes  Cha i rperson,  so r ry  I  jumped to  t he  next  

parag raph.   My m is take.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  so  whoever  reads the  t ranscr ip t  

wonders ,  there  is  a  gap.   You know,  the  sentence  tha t  i s  

incomple te  and then there  is  a  next  sentence.   10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  I  jus t  wanted jus t  to  comple te  tha t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And those are  essent ia l  requ i rements .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Because tha t  i s  the  purpose to  say 

can you,  we a re  go ing  to  pay you,  can you do the  job?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja .   Okay.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  yes  Mr  Sacks,  I  may have pushed 

you a long a  b i t ,  bu t  car ry  on .  

MR SACKS:   The Cha i rperson cor rec ted  me.   The next  20 

parag raph:  

“A t  the  t ime the  b id  was submi t ted  Voss loh  

Espanya SA was not  a  co-b idder  as  de f ined in  

the  RFP and Sw i fambo had not  conc luded a  

subcont rac t  w i th  Voss loh .   The b id  ind ica ted  
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tha t  Swi fambo wou ld  re ly  so le ly  on  the  

exper ience and  techn ica l  capab i l i t ies  o f  

Voss loh  Espanya  SA to  fu l f i l  i t s  ob l iga t ions.   

There  was no  lega l  re la t ionsh ip  be tween 

Swi fambo and Voss loh Espanya and there fore  

no  ind i ca t ion  tha t  Swi fambo cou ld  per fo rm. ”  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  re f lec ted  in  paragraph 12 o f  

the  SCA judgment .   

MR SACKS:   “Fu r thermore  the  b id  ind ica ted  tha t  Swi fambo 

in tended to  en ter  in to  a  jo in t  venture  w i th  10 

Voss loh  Southe rn  A f r i ca .   There  is  a  re ference 

to  Voss loh  Southern  A f r i ca  Ho ld ings P ty  L td  

wh ich  was inco rpora ted  as  a  she l f  company,  

Main  S t ree t  951 P ty  L td  by  29  November  2011.   

On 17 May 2012 the  company ’s  name changed 

to  Voss loh  Southern  A f r i can Ho ld ings P ty  L td . ”  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Can I  jus t  go  back to  the  da te  o f  

inco rpora t ion  o f  Voss loh Southe rn  A f r i ca .   You see i t  i s  the 

290 t h  o f  November  2011?  You see tha t?    

MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  i s  paragraph 11.12.  

MR SACKS:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  want  you to  go  back to  pa rag raph 

9 .1  on  page 855 and compare  the  da te  when peop le  were  

inv i ted  to  b id  fo r  p roposa ls .    
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MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  as  s ta ted  in  pa ragraph 9 .1  

PRASA issued a  request  fo r  p roposa ls  on  2  December 

2011.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   No,  on  the  29 t h  i t  p rov ided b id  

proposa ls .  

MR SACKS:   On the  29 t h ,  excuse me.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  27  November.  

MR SACKS:   The 27 t h  November  2011 and PRASA inv i ted  

b id  proposa ls  and on the  2n d  o f  December  2011 PRASA 

issued a  request  fo r  p roposa l  and go ing  back to  paragraph 10 

11.12.6 ,  Voss loh  Southern  A f r i can Ho ld ings  was  

inco rpora ted  on 29 November  2011 .   So smack bang  in  the 

m idd le .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Two days a f te r  the  b id  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:   Ja .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   The inv i ta t ion  fo r  b ids .   

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.   Counse l ,  sha l l  I  

car ry  on?   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  yes  s i r.    

MR SACKS:   Paragraph 11.12.7  Cha i rperson:  20 

“The RP requ i red  the  jo in t  venture  to  be  in  

p lace  by  the  t ime the  b id  was submi t ted .   

Be ing  27 February  2012 by  Swi fambo.   

Accord ing l y  the re  was non-compl iance o f  the  

RFP.   In  any event ,  Swi fambo never  en tered  
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in to  a  jo in t  venture  w i th  Voss loh  Southe rn  

A f r i ca .   I t  en tered in to  a  subcont rac t ing  

ar rangement  w i th  the  Span ish  en t i t y,  Voss loh 

Espanya.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now jus t  pause there  fo r  a  moment .   

From a  lega l  po in t  o f  v iew,  what  was the  r i sk  to  PRASA as  

a  resu l t  o f  th is  [ ind is t inc t ]?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  am an accountant ,  I  am not  a  

lawyer.   However  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  was about  to  ask  you tha t .   10 

MR SACKS:   I  w i l l  however,  I  w i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe he shou ld  jus t  ask  you what  was 

the  r i sk ,  and leave out  lega l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe based on your  exper ience as  an  

accountant  you might  be  ab le  to  answer  tha t  genera l  

quest ion  ra the r  than the  lega l  aspects .   

MR SACKS:   There  is  no  r igh t  o f  recourse  fo r  PRASA 

s imply  pu t .   They were  pu t t ing  themse lves a t  t remendous  

bus iness r i sk .   You have a  con t rac t ing  w i th  a  d i f fe ren t  20 

par ty,  o r  fo r  Swi fambo cont rac t ing  w i th  a  d i f fe ren t  par ty  

and I  ac tua l l y  to  my knowledge tha t  i s  how i t  p layed out  

due to  PRASA cont rac t ing  w i th  Swi fambo and Swi fambo 

cont rac t ing  w i th  a  fo re ign  en t i t y.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Has i t  been  a  jo in t  venture ,  bo th  o f  
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them wou ld  have owed a  du ty  to  PRASA? 

MR SACKS:   Yes,  yes  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   A l r igh t ,  and then you dea l  w i th  

Swi fambo’s  f inanc ia l  s tand ing  next .  

MR SACKS:   Yes Cha i rperson:  

 “Swi fambo’s  f inanc ia l  s tand ing  was  

unsat is fac tory  in  tha t  Swi fambo’s  aud i to rs ,  Van 

Wyk Aud i to rs ,  conf i rmed tha t  Mafor i  F inance 

t rad ing  as  Swi fambo Ra i l  was a  new company 

and had not  t raded before .   Swi fambo’s  10 

bankers ,  S tandard  Bank con f i rmed tha t  

Mafor i ’s  bank account  had recent ly  been 

opened and ind i ca ted  tha t  Swi fambo had no 

f inanc ia l  h is to ry  wh ich  the  bank wou ld  use to  

eva lua te  h i s  f inanc ia l  v iab i l i t y. ”  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Can I  jus t  s top  you there  fo r  a  

moment .   How d i f f i cu l t  wou ld  i t  be  to  check what  the  

f inanc ia l  s tand ing  is  as  you have re f lec ted  in  11 .12 .   In  

o ther  words,  how wou ld  PRASA p ro tec t  i t se l f  aga ins t  th is  

sor t  o f  r i sk?  20 

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  guess the  answer  i s  PRASA 

cou ld  no t  p ro tec t  i t se l f  f rom tha t  k ind  o f  r i sk .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  wou ld  i t  no t  ask  fo r  f inanc ia l  

s ta tements  as  pa r t  o f  the i r  p ro tec t i on?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  am not  p rev iew to  what  the  
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in fo rmat ion  the  PRASA b id  commi t tees wou ld  have asked  

fo r.   However,  i t  i s  ev ident  tha t  th is  was a  company tha t  

had no opera t ing  h is to ry.   Obv ious ly  i t  goes w i thou t  say ing  

tha t  PRASA was expos ing  i t se l f  to  substant ia l  r i sk .   What  

in fo rmat ion  they shou ld  have ca l led  fo r  o r  ought  to  have  

ca l led  fo r,  I  can  on ly  say in  the  genera l  bus iness te rm tha t  

th is  i s  k ind  o f  in fo rmat ion  they shou ld  have assessed a t  

the  t ime.   I  cannot  conf i rm what  they d id  or  d id  no t  do 

w i th in  PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  bu t  I  th ink  Mr  Son i  was ask ing  more  10 

a t  a  genera l  leve l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   To  say you cannot  en ter  in to  a  cont rac t  

w i th  an  en t i t y  tha t  you have not  checked,  jus t  bas i c  

checks.   Has i t  done th i s  t ype o f  job  be fore .   

MR SACKS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  sus ta inab le .   I s  i t  go ing  to  be  there  

in  two weeks ’ t ime.   I s  i t  go ing  to  be  there ,  who  are  the 

peop le  who are  beh ind  i t .   What  i s  i t s  f inanc ia l  s tand ing  

and you enter  i n to  a  cont rac t  to  g ive  i t  b i l l i ons  o f  rands.   20 

How can you do tha t?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  mean go ing  back to  the  Free S ta te  Mr  

Son i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   In  Est ina  you have the  s im i la r  s i tua t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Where  the  Depar tment  o f  Agr icu l tu re  pa id  

in to  Est ina  about  I  th ink  a t  a  cer ta in  t ime 30 mi l l ion  rand  

and the  ev idence  revea led  tha t  I  th ink  the  day be fore ,  o r  

jus t  be fore  the  30  mi l l ion  rand went  in to  Est ina ’s  account ,  

Es t ina ’s  ba lance in  the  account  was i f  I  am not  mis taken  

about  R16-00.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   No check ing .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Noth ing .  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  d id  per fo rm tha t  ana lys i s  as  to  

what  was in ,  to  your  po in t  what  how wi l l  the  bank accounts  

look  l i ke  a t  the  t ime obv ious ly  PRASA wou ld  no t  be  prev iew 

to  tha t  leve l  o f  in fo rmat ion ,  bu t  most  cer ta in l y  as  you 

s ta ted  co r rec t l y,  a  due d i l igence shou ld  have  been  

per fo rmed comprehens ive  fo r  the  po in t  in  my cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Exact ly,  because I  cannot  jus t  meet  you 

today and I  s ign  an  agreement  w i th  you tomorrow and then 20 

I  take  mi l l ions  o f  my money and g ive  them to  you  on the  

bas is  tha t  you w i l l  do  X ,  Y,  Z bu t  I  do  no t  even know 

whethe r  you have done  tha t  be fo re ,  what  i s  your  f inanc ia l  

s tand ing .   I f  you  are  ta lk ing  abou t  b ig  amounts .   A re  you 

ab le  to  do  the  job?  You know,  what  w i l l  I  do  i f  you  
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d isappear  in to  th in  a i r?   I  cannot  do  tha t  w i th  my money,  so  

why wou ld  I  do  tha t  w i th  tax  payer ’s  money?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And espec ia l l y  Cha i rperson,  i f  I  may 

make th is  po in t?   When you know tha t  the  company  wh ich  

is  go ing  to  be  the  supp l ie r  i s  an  overseas company over  

wh ich  you have abso lu te ly  no  cont ro l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Exact ly.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Or  no  power.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  sor ry.  

MR SACKS:   The  next  po in t  be ing  Swi fambo,  Cha i rperson:  

“Swi fambo and Voss loh  conc luded  the  cont rac t  

on  4 t h  o f  Ju ly  2013 wh ich  was 16 months  a f te r  

the  b id  was submi t ted  and a f te r  the  cont rac t  

was s igned between PRASA and Swi fambo on 

25 March 2013.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  had PRASA done what  you ca l led  

due  d i l igence,  even a  bas ic  due  d i l igence,  i t  wou ld  have 

rea l i sed a t  the  t ime i t  awarded the  b id  and a t  the  t ime i t  20 

s igned the  cont rac t ,  there  was  no cont rac t  be tween  

Voss loh  and Swi fambo.  

MR SACKS:   Accord ing l y  Cha i rperson,  there  was no 

guarantee tha t  Swi fambo cou ld  even per fo rm.   They had 

not  s igned the  cont rac ts ,  even the  RFP ca l led  fo r  a  jo in t  
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ven ture ,  a  subcont rac t ing  agreement  comple te ly  d i f fe ren t  

had not  even been s igned ye t .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes no ,  no  you are  qu i te  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  do  no t  know i f  the  two judgments ,  the  

H igh  Cour t  and the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l ,  do  re f lec t  the  

ident i t ies  o f  the  peop le  who made  th is  dec i s ion  in  PRASA,  

whethe r  they were  the  b id  ad jud ica t ion  commi t tee  or  

whoever  they were?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   But  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   He might  no t  know,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   He does in  h i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   When you look  a t  someth ing  l i ke  th is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You w i l l  immedia te ly  want  to  know who  

made th is  dec is ion  w i thout  do ing  th is  bas i c  check ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  I  am jus t  say ing  I  cannot  remember  

whethe r  the  judgments  do  re f lec t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   I  do  no t  th ink  they iden t i f y  the 20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because the  peop le  who made tha t  

dec is ion  shou ld  be  ident i f ied .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   We shou ld  know who they are .   
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Who they are ,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Because you know,  you ta lk  about  PRASA 

hav ing  made th i s  dec i s ion  to  en ter  in to  a  cont rac t  w i th  

Swi fambo,  a  company tha t  had no h is to ry,  tha t  bas ica l l y  

had noth ing  o the r  than tha t  i t  was go ing  to  be  the  m idd le  

man as  i t  were ,  and lo ts  o f  money were ,  was invo lved.   I  

want  to  know wh ich  o f f i c ia l s  in  the  en t i t y  made th is  

dec is ion?  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    These dec is ions indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And the  pub l i c  need to  know who they  

are .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes  abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i f  we keep  on jus t  say ing  PRASA,  

PRASA,  PRASA you know i t  i s  . . .  ( in te rvenes) .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  po in t  he  makes w i th  th is  -  i t  

i s  a  mat te r  tha t  perhaps shou ld  be  cons idered  in  the  20 

submiss ions,  we make to  you o r  the  recommendat ions you 

rep resent .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Because un less  there  is  

accountab i l i t y  in  the  fo rm o f  some consequence 
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management  wh ich  is  a  word  –  a  phrase tha t  i s  

cons i s ten t ly  used.   Min i s te r  Peters  kept  re fe r r ing  to  

consequence manag ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  know you see someth ing  l i ke  th is .   The 

f i rs t  th ing  is  who made th is  dec i s ion?  Who d id  no t  do  h is  

o r  her  job?  Was  i t  incompetence?  Was i t  neg l igence or  

was he o r  she pa r t  o f  a  cer ta in  agenda?  I t  i s  very  c r i t i ca l  

because the  person o r  persons who made th is  dec is ion  –  

these dec is ions may be –  maybe  they are  s t i l l  a t  PRASA.   

Maybe they a re  in  another  SOB.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Indeed yes do ing  the  same th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And whenever  these pro jec ts  –  these 

t ransact ions are  d iscussed the i r  names are  never  

ment ioned.   I t  i s  jus t  PRASA,  PRASA.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    PRASA yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  impor tan t ly  . . .  ( ind is t inc t ) .   Yes 

Mr  Sacks.  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson the  las t  po in t  in  th is  –  se t  ou t  in  

the  repor t  was the  po in t  wh ich  I  reca l l  i t  aga in .   Po in t  I  20 

made was Swi fambo obta ined the  R3,5 -b i l l i on  tender  fo r  

the  supp ly  o f  locomot ives .   Who had no o f f ices  or  

in f ras t ruc tu re ,  no  exper ience and no cont rac t s  ob ta ined  

and supp ly  the  l ocomot ives .   As  es tab l i shed the  cont rac t  

fo r  supp ly  was on ly  s igned w i th  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  a f te r  the  
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fac t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  p re t t i l y  s ta t ing  what  

happened.   I  mean i t  i s  bas ica l l y  as  tha t .  

MR SACKS:    Yes  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  I  mean you cou ld  –  you cou ld  

rea l l y  be  in  the  ha l lway . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  and then  get  a  

cont rac t  l i ke  th is .  

MR SACKS:    Yes  cha i rpe rson I  suppose so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Now i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  desp i te  you ’ re  

look ing  a t  some o f  the  documenta t ion  and a f f idav i t s  10 

re la t ing  to  th is  you cou ld  no t  come across who the  o f f i c ia ls  

were  who made th is  dec i s ion  as  we l l  o r  . . .  ( in te rvenes) .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson the  a f f idav i t s  ac tua l l y  dea l t  w i th  

spec i f i c  PRASA ind iv idua ls  –  key  ind iv idua ls  invo lved a t  

var ious junctu res  in  the  tender  be ing  awarded.   I  cannot  

conf i rm i f  tha t  was eve ry  s ing le  person invo lved.   But  in  

the  course  o f  the  broader  invest i ga t ion  in  wh ich  we were  

per fo rming fo rens ic  aud i ts  –  the  Werksmans invest iga t ion  i t  

was invest iga ted  a t  length  who the  ind iv idua ls  were .  

 The names men t ioned in  th is  cont rac t  a re  key  20 

sen ior  ind iv idua ls  per ta in ing  to  Swi fambo.   But  these  

ind iv idua ls  were  management  fo r  PRASA.   So I  guess a l l  

p rocu rement  –  th is  fa l l s  under  p rocurement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes I  th ink  Mr  Son i  we need to  ge t  to  

who made the  dec i s ions.   And i f  there  a re  –  i f  there  are  
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con t rac ts  tha t  were  s igned,  who s igned those cont rac ts  on  

beha l f  o f  PRASA.   So and to  the  ex ten t  tha t  we dea l  w i th  

S iyangena(?)  in  regard  to  o ther  mat te rs .   I t  i s  impor tan t  

tha t  i f  there  are  cont rac ts  tha t  have been conc luded 

i r regu lar l y  o r  co r rup t ly  i t  be  made qu i te  c lear  who the  

peop le  a re  who made the  necessary  dec is ions.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    In  fa i rness Mr  Cha i rperson,  Mr  Sacks  

does ident i f y  the  person who s igned th is  cont rac t  and he 

ident i f ies  some o f  the  ind iv idua ls  who ought  to  have 

ensured tha t  p roper  mechan isms were  pu t  in  p lace  a t  the  10 

s ta r t .   He does dea l  w i th  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  in  . . .  ( ind is t inc t ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  m ight  be  d i f fe ren t  peop le  who had  

d i f fe ren t  ro les  to  p lay.   But  u l t imate ly  somebody makes the  

dec is ions.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Whether  i t  i s  one pe rson or  a  commi t tee  

bu t  there  is  a  dec is ion  maker  and  tha t  i s  the  f ina l  person  

who needs to  check whether  he  o r  she has been p rov ided 20 

w i th  a l l  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  needs to  be  in  p lace  before  

mak ing  the  dec is ions?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  we w i l l  do  tha t  ana lys is  look ing  
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a t  the  cont rac ts  themse lves because they were  . . .  

( ind is t inc t ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And o f  course  the  sudden w i tnesses who  

have tes t i f ied  be fore  the  commiss ion  f rom PRASA may 

know who had the  power  to  make  those dec i s ions  a t  tha t  

t ime.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Such as  Ms Ngoye.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And Mr  D ing iswayo.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    D ing i swayo.  

CHAIRPERSON:    They might  know tha t  these are  the  

peop le  who wou ld  have made these  dec i s ions.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then the  quest ion  o f  obv ious  

somebody must  have s igned the  cont rac t .   So who  s igned 

tha t  k ind  o f  th ing?  Because before  you s ign  a  cont rac t  you  

want  to  sa t is f y  yourse l f  tha t  p roper  dec i s ions have been  

made and you are  s ign ing  w i th  the  a  par ty  tha t  i s  c red ib le .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Indeed.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now in  parag raph 11.13 you dea l  w i th  

the  meet ing  be tween Mr  Mole fe ,  Mr  Mamobolo  and Mr  

Mashabe togethe r  w i th  a  four th  person.   That  i s  accord ing  

to  Mr  Mole fe ’s  a f f idav i t .   Ev idence on tha t  has been led  Mr  
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Sacks,  I  am jus t  po in t ing  i t  ou t .  

But  jus t  because a l l  o f  these persons,  espec ia l l y  Mr  

Mashaba aga in  re fers  to  Mr  Mabunda.   Would  you br ie f l y  

summar ise  what  Mr  Mole fe  sa id  in  h is  a f f idav i t  in  the  

rep l y ing  –  o r  in  the  rep ly ing  a f f idav i t  in  the  Swi fambo 

app l i ca t ion  to  the  H igh  Cour t .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson Mr  Mole fe  in  h is  rep ly ing  

a f f idav i t  exp la ined h is  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Mashaba,  

Mamobola  and the  o the r  person was Mash i la  Mk la la ,  he  is  

a  member  o f  board  and ac tua l l y  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  commi t tee  10 

cha i rperson.   Th i s  meet ing  was on  31s t  August  2015 wh ich  

Mashaba exp la ined how he is  approached by  Makhensa 

Mabunda to  par t i c ipa te  in  th is  tender  to  supp ly  PRASA wi th  

locomot ives .   And Mashaba a lso  dea l t  w i th  h i s  in te rac t ions  

w i th  Mar ia  Gomez and how Gomez wanted money fo r  the  

movement .   Counse l  do  you want  me to  read  or  . . .  

( in te rvenes) .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  no ,  no  you can jus t  summar ise .  

MR SACKS:    Oh  so ,  so  essent ia l l y  th is  meet ing  was about  

Mashaba exp la in ing  to  Mr  Mole fe  and the  o ther  par t i c ipants  20 

how he was –  go t  invo lved in  the  tender  and how money 

had to  be  pa id  by  PRASA to  Sw i fambo and thereaf te r  to  

suppor t  the  movement .   And the  meet ing  ta lks  about  

spec i f i c  cash f lows espec ia l l y  to  a  company.  

 How Swi fambo wou ld  pay money to  a  company  
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ca l led  AM Consu l t ing  Eng ineers  wh ich  is  Mashaba ’s  

company and how AMC Consu l t ing  Eng ineers  wou ld  pay an  

ent i t y  ca l led  S imulex  wh ich  was Gomez’s  company.   And 

the  meet ing  was to  d iscuss some o f  the  va lues o f  amounts  

to  be  pa id .  

 But  u l t imate ly  the  in fo rmat ion  p rov ided by  Mashaba 

about  the  payments  i s  cor robora ted  by  the  f low o f  funds  

ana lys is  tha t  we per fo rmed f rom Swi fambo to  AMCE – AM 

Consu l t ing  Eng ineers  and the  second leve l  f low o f  funds  

ana lys is  wh ich  was go ing  to  be  per fo rmed wh ich  conf i rm 10 

f low o f  funds to  a  company ca l led  S imulex .  

 Which  I  unders tand  tha t  the  l i qu ida tor  ac tua l l y  

conf i rmed the  f low o f  funds.   That  in fo rmat ion  was not  

ava i lab le  to  me a t  the  t ime I  p repared my repor t .   That  . . .  

( ind is t inc t )  tha t  meet ing  was about .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson may I  in te r rup t  a t  th is  

po in t?   I  thought  we need not  dea l  to  long w i th  th is  po in t  

and the  reason is .   These are  the  a l legat ions tha t  Mr  

Mole fe  made.   You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  we a lso  f i led  in  the  

a f f idav i t  to  –  as  an  annexure  to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mole fe ,  20 

Mr  Mashaba ’s  rep ly  in  Swi fambo.  

 Now very  in te res t ing ly  Mr  Mashaba then in  h i s  

CM13 tha t  he  f i led  las t  yea r  –  CM100,  I  beg your  pardon –  

expands on th is  i ssue.   Now aga in  jus t  so  tha t  there  can be 

some ce r ta in ty  when you are  do ing  your  repor t  
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cha i rperson.   You need not  go  in to  th is  i s  what  Mr  Mole fe  

sa id .  

 You can go s t ra igh t  to  what  Mr  Mashaba sa id  -  in  

h is  two a f f idav i t s .   Wel l  the  CM100 is  pa r t  o f  an  a f f idav i t  –  

we l l  no tes  to  i t .   And what  he  sa id  in  h is  rep l y ing  a f f idav i t .   

I  am go ing  to  tha t  a  l i t t le  la te r  i f  tha t  su i t s  you cha i rperson.   

Because tha t  ac tua l l y  t ies  in  w i th  the  f low o f  funds and i t  

f i t s  in  w i th  exact l y  how the  money was d ispe rsed.  

 But  I  thought  I  jus t  . . .  ( in te rvenes) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  am not  down p lay ing  th i s  bu t  aga in  

you w i l l  be  saved  the  task  o f  dec id ing  . . .  ( in te rvenes) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no ,  no .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Le t  Mr  Mole fe  -  Mashabe speak fo r  

h imse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  in  o rde r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  document  cha i rpe rson is  

qu i te  revea l ing .   Exact ly  what  he  says.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    You are  aware  o f  those documents 20 

now.   You d id  no t  have i t  when you d id  your  repor t  bu t  i t  

has  now been made ava i lab le .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  am aware  o f  these documents  

tha t  counse l  p roposed to  me now.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay so  I  am go ing  to  –  I  want  to  
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re fe r  to  i t  a t  a  par t i cu la r  t ime.   Are  you okay w i th  tha t  . . .  

( in te rvenes) .  

MR SACKS:    I  am okay w i th  tha t  cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t  now you have dea l t  w i th  –  up  

to  now the  compla in ts  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  made in  h i s  a f f idav i t  

o r  the  observa t i ons he  made about  the  po in ts  tha t  had 

been done i r regu lar ly.   The next  i ssue you ra ise  is  the  . . .  

( ind is t inc t )  in  the  tender  p rocess i t se l f .   And you dea l  w i th  

tha t  a t  paragraph  11.14 to  11 .50 .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  cha i rperson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay now le t ’s  s ta r t  o f f  w i th  the  

i r regu lar i t ies  in  the  tender  p rocess.   What  were  the  

i r regu lar i t ies  accord ing  to  Mr  Mole fe  in  h is  a f f idav i t ?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson Mr  Mole fe  s ta ted  tha t  eva lua t ion  

process improper.   H is  suppor t ing  documenta t ion  cou ld  no t  

be  found.   Need  assessments  was not  per fo rmed fo r  the  

locomot ives .   Approva l  f rom the  Min is te r  o f  Transpor t  was 

not  ob ta ined as  i t  ought  to  have been.   There  was no  

ind ica t ions tha t  Nat iona l  Treasury  rece ived a  wr i t ten  

submiss ion  as  i t  ought  to  have.  20 

 There  was no proper  budget ing  fo r  the  prov is ion  fo r  

the  pu rchase o f  the  locomot ives .   Dan ie l  Mt imku lu  was  

ins t rumenta l  to  p rocur ing  f rom and cont rac t ing  w i th  

Swi fambo in  h is  ro le  as  the  execut ive  manager  eng ineer ing  

serv i ces  PRASA Rai l ,  fo rged h i s  qua l i f i ca t ions.   In  a 
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d isc ip l ina ry  hear ing  Mt imku lu  was  found gu i l t y  o f  g rouse 

d ishonesty,  f raud  and br ing ing  the  name o f  PRASA in to 

d is repute .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry  i f  you  can jus t  s top  there .   

Because aga in  when we go in to  these a l legat ions tha t  were  

made,  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  sa id  tha t  Swi fambo’s  answer  i s ,  we do 

not  know about  tha t .   That  i s  PRASA’s  –  you canno t  ho ld  i t  

aga ins t  us .   Of  course  because i t  was a  se l f  rev iew tha t  

content ion  was found to  be  w i thout  mer i t .  

 And as  you w i l l  see  tha t  they  then say tha t  10 

Swi fambo was no t  an  innocent  par ty  in  a l l .   ( Ind is t inc t )  a t  

11 .22 .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson the  techn ica l  spec i f i ca t ions o f  

the  locomot ives  were  des igned to  match  the  exact  

spec i f i ca t ions o f  the  Voss loh  locomot ives  to  ensure  

Swi fambo was awarded more  po in ts  du r ing  the  techn ica l  

eva lua t ion .   Swi fambo was the  on ly  b idder  who met  the  

70% thresho ld  fo r  techn ica l  eva lua t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So sor ry  cou ld  you s top  there  fo r  a  

moment .   Who determined what  these spec i f i ca t ions were  20 

fo r  these locomot ives?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  am not  p r ivy  to  tha t  leve l  o f  

in fo rmat ion .   I  wou ld  imag ine  the  peop le  invo l ved  are  the  

sen ior  peop le  in  p rocurement  and eng ineer ing  wou ld  

de termine those techn ica l  spec i f i ca t ions.  



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 125 of 269 
 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Wel l  the  Supreme Cour t  o f  Appea l  

found i t  was Mt imku lu  who –  as  the  head . . .  ( in te rvenes) .  

MR SACKS:    The head o f  eng ineer ing  as  I  say  yes.   But  

the  PRASA SCM – SCM stand ing  fo r  supp ly  cha in  

management ,  compl iance check.   The PRASA SCM 

compl iance check ove r looked tha t  a  tax  c learance  

cer t i f i ca te  was no t  submi t ted  fo r  . . .  ( ind is t inc t ) .  

 Swi fambo’s  b id  d id  no t  conta in  ev idence to  suppor t  

i t  c la ims tha t  i t s  shareho lders  had prev ious exper ience in  

the  ra i l  indust ry.   No documents  were  prov ided in  10 

Swi fambo’s  b id  to  conf i rm tha t  they have entered i n to  jo in t  

venture  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  Southern  A f r i ca .  

 Th is  was essent ia l  cons ider ing  the  b id  ind ica ted  

tha t  Swi fambo wou ld  no t  re ly  on  exper ience and techn ica l  

capab i l i t y  o f  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  to  fu l f i l  i t s  ob l iga t ions .   The 

PRASA BEC . . .  ( in te rvenes) .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry  be fore  . . .  ( ind is t inc t ) .   How 

d i f f i cu l t  i s  i t  to  de termine whether  these cr i te r ia  as  

requ i red  by  the  RFP have been . . .  ( ind is t inc t ) .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson i t  i s  no t  d i f f i cu l t  to  es tab l i sh  i f  a  20 

company has a  tax  c learance ce r t i f i ca te .   I t  i s  no t  –  as  . . .  

( ind is t inc t )  due  d i l igence about  the  capab i l i t y  o f  a  

company.   I t  i s  no t  d i f f i cu l t  to  do  un less  no  one wants  to  

ac tua l l y  look .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  want  to  pu t  th is  to  you.   I f  say  there  
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was jus t  no  tax  c learance ce r t i f i ca te  i t  wou ld  be  –  we can 

say somebody over looked someth ing ,  then there  is  no  

ev idence to  suppor t  the  c la im o f  p rev ious exper ience.   

There  is  no  documents  to  show tha t  there  was  a  jo in t  

venture .  

 Co l lec t i ve l y  what  does tha t  suggest  to  you about  

the  persons who  a l lowed Swi fambo to  pass to  the  next  

phase o f  the  b idd ing  process?  

MR SACKS:    In  my op in ion  i t  po in ts  to  re ten t ion .   

Essent ia l l y  cha i rperson to  ignore  the  g la r ing  e f f i c ienc ies  10 

tha t  the  company  was tender ing  fo r  u l te r io r  mot ives  as  you 

suggested ea r l ie r.   But  tha t  i s  my op in ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t  then –  sor ry  you were  a t  

11 .24 .  

MR SACKS:    11 .24 ,  the  PRASA BEC which  is  the  b id  

eva lua t ion  commi t tee  d id  indeed  ra ise  se r ious concerns 

about  the  compl iance o f  Swi fambo’s  b id .   These concerns 

were  d i smissed by  the  ers twh i le  ch ie f  p rocu rement  o f f i cer,  

Chr is  Mbata ,  adv ised the  BEC to  focus on  the  techn ica l  

eva lua t ion  on ly  as  SEM had checked the  compl iance  20 

aspect .  

 Dur ing  the  course  o f  the  b id  p rocess pr io r  to  

eva lua t ion  the  tender  documents  were  in  the  possess ion  o f  

B renda Malonge te ,  an  independent  consu l tan t  a t  her  

p r iva te  home.   Th is  fac tor  i s  cons ide red to  be  ex t remely  
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i r regu la r.   In  te rms o f  the  procu rement  po l i cy  the  

prepara t ion  o f  a  techn ica l  scor ing  sheet  was the  task  o f  the 

CFSC,  no t  the  BEC as was per fo rmed in  th is  ins tance.  

 Some o f  the  members  o f  the  BEC suspected tha t  in  

the  app l i ca t ion  o f  the  sco r ing  sheet  to  Swi fambo tha t  the  

spec i f i ca t ion  had been ta i lo red  to  f i t  Voss loh ’s  

Locomot ives .   The susp ic ions in  th is  regard  coup led  w i th  a  

concern  over  the  compl iance o f  Swi fambo’s  b id  caused 

them to  suspect  tha t  the  tender  had been r igged.  

 The ta i lo r i ng  o f  the  spec i f i ca t ion  meant  tha t  the  10 

award  o f  the  tender  was we igh ted  in  favour  o f  Swi fambo’s  

b id  be fore  the  scor ing  p rocess commenced.   The  scor ing  

demonst ra tes  the  advantage Swi fambo had over  the  o ther  

b idders .   A l though Swi fambo der ived the  sys tems f rom the  

ta i lo r ing  o f  the  spec i f i ca t ion  and i t s  favour,  fo r  Swi fambo to  

ach ieve the  compl iance th resho ld  o f  70% fur ther  

man ipu la t ion  o f  the  sco r ing  was requ i red  wh ich  was  ev ident  

upon rev iew.  

 Inc lud ing  la rge  gaps in  the  manuscr ip t  sco r ing  

sheet ,  add i t iona l  l ines  and e lec t ron i c  combined scor ing  20 

sheet  bu t  no t  an  ind iv idua l  scor ing  sheet .   The e lec t ron ic  

combined scor ing  sheet  was las t  amended by  

Ntombez in ing i  Shez i ,  SCM PRASA . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  

cha i rperson o f  the  BEC.   In  summary there  were  ac tua l  

documenta t ion  requ i red  –  the  t i ck  boxes were  man ipu la ted .  
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 Members  o f  the  BEC were  p laced by  ind iv idua ls  who  

were  no t  pa r t  o f  the  BEC and round ing  o f  numbers  in  

favour  o f  Swi fambo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry  you sa id  you were  in  the  

process –  the  BEC i t se l f  was res t ruc tu red.  

MR SACKS:    That  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  a l leged by  my a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rpe rson may I  jus t  make one  

po in t?   You might  remember  Mr  Sacks sa id  tha t  the  tender  

documents  were  in  the  presence o f  B renda Ma longete .   

When Ms Ngoye gave her  ve rs ions –  cannot  remember  . . .  10 

( ind is t inc t ) .   But  on  the  f i rs t  occas ion  or  the  second 

occas ion  but  I  suspect  i t  was the  f i rs t  occas ion .  

 Wi l l  no t  remember  –  you ind i ca ted  tha t  there  was a  

. . .  ( ind is t inc t )  lega l  en t i t y  tha t  Mr  Montana c reated.   There  

was . . .  ( in te rvenes) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes I  k ind  o f  remember  bu t  I  cannot  . . .  

( in te rvenes) .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes I  am jus t  say ing  tha t  she is  t he  

person who was ment ioned a t  tha t  t ime as  hav ing  been an  

ex te rna l  lega l  adv isor  . . .  ( in te rvenes) .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes was i t  Ms Govender  . . .  

( in te rvenes) .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  she was the  in te rna l  pe rson.   Ms  

Govender  was the  in te rna l  pe rson .   Ms Malongete  was the  

ex te rna l  person.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Oh there  was an ex te rna l  and in te rna l  

one.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The one I  was th ink ing  about  i s  the  one 

who was in te rna l  and who went  to  Ms Ngoye,  went  to  take  

f i les .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  the  one.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  the  one who sa id  I  am an 

o f f i cer  o f  the  cour t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  Ma longete ’s  names 

comes up aga in  and in  c i rcumstances you w i l l  apprec ia te  –  

I  do  no t  want  you  . . .  ( in te rvenes) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes Mr  Sacks.   Sor ry  I  jus t  wanted to  

g ive  contex t  because the  persons invo l ved the i r  

f ingerpr in ts  appear  a t  d i f fe ren t  p laces.  

MR SACKS:    Yes cha i rperson.   So ja  apar t  f rom the  

spec i f i ca t ions be ing  ta i lo red  and ca lcu la t ions man ipu la ted  20 

to  su i t  the  Swi fambo b id  the  methodo logy adopted in  

scor ing  process i s  i r ra t iona l .  

 Another  g la r ing  i r regu lar i t y  tha t  undermines the  

techn ica l  eva lua t ion  is  tha t  Swi fambo o f fe red  the  Euro  

3000 mode l ,  d iese l  locomot ive  in  the  b id  and tha t  was the  



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 130 of 269 
 

locomot ive  eva lua ted.   PRASA acqu i red  the  Euro  4000  

d iese l  locomot ives  tha t  were  no t  eva lua ted.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Jus t  s top  there .   In  i ts  b id  a 

par t i cu la r  locomot ive  w i th  ce r ta in  spec i f i ca t ions is  se t  ou t .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Th i s  i s  fo r  Swi fambo’s  b id ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  when the  cont rac t  i s  –  o r  when 

the  tender  i s  awarded,  the  tender  i s  awarded on the  bas i s  10 

tha t  i t  w i l l  supp ly  a  d i f fe ren t  –  a  comple te ly  d i f fe ren t  

locomot ive  –  a  d i f fe ren t  spec i f i ca t ion .  

MR SACKS:    Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t  cha i rperson.   I t  was  

ac tua l l y  re fe r red  to  as  a  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  4000 and as  I  wou ld  

l i ke  to  say,  Swi fambo o f fe red  a  locomot ive  tha t  d r ives  on  

one s ide  o f  the  road.   But  s ince  PRASA . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  a  

locomot ive  tha t  d r ives  on  the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  road.  

 Th is  essent ia l l y  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  in  tha t  contex t .   And 

those locomot ives  t ransp i red  were  no t  su i tab le  fo r  the  

ra i lway as  I  unders tand i t .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The po in t  here  made tha t  i t  i s  –  i t  

undermines the  techn ica l  eva lua t ion .   Does i t  no t  go  

beyond tha t?   I  mean are  you not  supposed to  say you  

have been awarded the  po in t s  fo r  th is  locomot ive .   You 

must  supp ly  those locomot ives  because tha t  i s  the  bas is  on  
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wh ich  you beat  the  o ther  compet i to rs .  

 A l though the  process may have  been unfa i r  bu t  

never the less  tha t  i s  the  bas i s  o f  wh ich  you . . .  ( ind is t inc t ) .  

MR SACKS:    I  wou ld  ag ree  w i th  tha t  assessment  

cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  the  b id eva lua t ion  commi t tee  and 

nobody eva lua ted the  Euro  4000  wh ich  is  what  Swi fambo  

supp l ied .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  cha i rpe rson.   Car ry  on .   The 

BEC recommended tha t  Swi fambo be appo in ted  as  10 

approved b idder.   There  were  var ious i r regu la r i t ies  and 

areas o f  concern  ident i f ied  per ta in ing  to  the  funct ions o f  

the  CTPC,  the  BAC –  b id  ad jud i ca t ion  commi t tee  and FCIP 

w i th  regards to  approv ing  the  b id  o f  Swi fambo.   The BAC 

recommended the  appo in tment  o f  Swi fambo to  be  based on  

out r igh t  purchase  opt ion .  

The dec is ion  to  purchase when the  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  i s  

i r regu lar  and i r ra t iona l  and cannot  be  exp la ined,  an  en t i re  

p rocess un t i l  tha t  po in t  had been d i rec ted  . . .  ( ind is t inc t ) .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry  can we jus t  s top  there?  The 20 

RFP prov ided fo r  compan ies  to  o f fe r  leases to  PRASA or  to  

lease locomot ives  to  PRASA.  

MR SACKS:    I t  is  my unders tand ing  cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  when  the  award  is  made the  

award  is  made on the  bas is  tha t  those locomot ives  wou ld  
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be  purchased.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  my unders tand ing  cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    D id  anybody e lse  o f fe r  to  your  

knowledge locomot ives  fo r  sa le  as  i t  were  as  d id  

Swi fambo?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson to  my knowledge the  o ther  

b idders  a l l  b id  fo r  a  leas ing  op t ion ,  no t  fo r  an  ou t r igh t  

purchase opt ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Because tha t  i s  what  the  RFT asked 

fo r  ?  10 

MR SACKS:    Yes  cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t  then you say the  pe rson who  

appears  to  have  prompted the  swi tch  . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  a  

leas ing  to  sa le  was a  Mr  Br ian  A lexander.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Do you know how tha t  came about?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  do  no t  know how i t  came about  

as  i t  s ta ted  in  the  a f f idav i t  the  capac i ty  wh ich  A lexander  

per fo rmance ana lys i s  i s  unc lea r.   I t  fa l l s  ou ts ide  the  

s t ruc tures  contempla t ing  the  procurement  po l i cy.   I t  20 

appears  to  d i rec t l y  in f luence the  dec is ions to  change the  

scope o f  the  tender  f rom lease to  ou t r igh t  purchase.   Th is  

i s  h igh l y  i r regu la r  cons ider ing  tha t  i t  i s  incons is ten t  w i th  

the  RFP and the  procu rement  p rocess.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now jus t  to  come back to  the  fac t  o f  
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the  change f rom the  cont rac t  w i th  lease to  the  con t rac t  o f  

lease to  a  cont rac t  o f  sa le .   Swi fambo as I  unders tand i t  

and tha t  i s  the  conc lus ion  you draw or  Mr  Mole fe  draws,  

was fo rmed espec ia l l y  to  b id  fo r  th is  tender.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  adopts  the  name Swi fambo leas ing .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A company . . .  ( ind is t inc t )  to  lease 

then is  requ i red  to  se l l .  

MR SACKS:    Does not  cor re la te  cha i rperson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay then you were  ta lk ing  about  the  

board  i t se l f .  

MR SACKS:    Yes  cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  in  fa i rness to  the  board  tha t  

was es tab l i shed or  the  board  tha t  was const i tu t ing  in  –  at  

the  end o f  Ju ly  2014.   That  i s  the  Popo Mole fe  board .   I s  

no t  the  board  tha t  looked a t  th is  tender?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And who was the  cha i rperson  o f  tha t  

board?  20 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson the  cha i rman a t  tha t  t ime was  

S i f i so  Norber t  Buthe lez i .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  you say then next  on  the  24 t h  Ju ly  

. . .  ( in te rvenes) .  

MR SACKS:    2012 cha i rperson.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh sor ry  2012 yes.   Now you 

ment ioned Mr  Bu the lez i  and you ment ion  Mr  Montana as  

the  two peop le  tha t  were  present  togethe r  w i th  the  o the r  

board  members  . . .  ( ind is t inc t ) .  

MR SACKS:    Which  I  have s ta ted  in  the  a f f idav i t  yes  

cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And Mr  Montana was the  CEO – the  

group CEO and  Mr  Buthe lez i  was the  cha i rman  o f  the  

board .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  cha i rperson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then what  was the  board ’s  dec is ion?  

MR SACKS:    A f te r  cons ide r ing  incor rec t  in fo rmat ion  about  

the  Swi fambo  b id ,  the  board  approved Swi fambo as –  in  

te rms o f  the  tender.   The dec is ion  was i r ra t iona l ,  a rb i t ra ry  

and in  b reach o f  the  board ’s  ob l iga t ions as  exp la ined in  

Mole fe ’s  f ind ing  a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes now in  regard  to  yourse l f  –  what  

you d id  when the  f low o f  funds ana lys is ,  you a l so  looked a t  

peop le  who p layed a  ro le  in  the  b idd ing  process .   What  

ro le  d id  you f ind  perhaps unusua l?  20 

MR SACKS:   Chai rpe rson when we were  do ing  the  

ana lys is  o f  the  bank accounts  o f  Swi fambo we ident i f ied  

the  benef ic ia r ies  or  rec ip ien ts  o f  funds f rom Swi fambo and  

based on the  desc r ip t ions  con ta ined w i th in  the  bank  

s ta tements  or  how i t  f lowed to  o ther  bank accounts  i f  any  
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ind iv idua l  en t i t y  name came up in  tha t  ana lys i s  tha t  was 

prev ious l y  ident i f ied  w i th in  the  broader  invest iga t ion  we  

cou ld  l ink  –  we  cou ld  l ink  names to  money.    I  th ink  what  

Counse l  i s  a l lud ing  to  i s  Swi fambo as w i l l  be  shown in  the  

f low o f  funds ana lys i s  pa id  money to  an  en t i t y  ca l led  

S ibenza Forward ing  and Sh ipp ing  P ty  L im i ted  and s ta tu tory  

records  show tha t  S iph izo  Buthe lez i  was the  fo rmer  –  who  

was the  fo rmer  Cha i rperson o f  PRASA was a  p rev ious 

d i rec tor  o f  S ibenza,  in  o ther  words,  jus t  by  pure  

invest iga t ive  l inks  a  rec ip ien t  o f  funds,  be ing  S ibenza,  was  10 

l inked to  a  fo rmer  Cha i rpe rson o f  PRASA,  be ing  Buthe lez i .  

 My repor t  does go on to  say tha t  th is  aspect  needs  

to  be  fu r ther  invest iga ted ,  I  d id  no t  d raw any conc lus ions  

as  to  tha t ,  i t ’s  pure ly  jus t  s ta t ing ,  here ’s  an  en t i t y  who  

rece ived money,  here  is  an  ind i v idua l  who ’s  l inked  to  tha t  

en t i t y  and to  the  po l i ce  we need to  invest iga te ,  o r  th is  

needs to  be  invest iga ted  fu r ther  and tha t  wou ld  fo rm par t  

o f  the  next  leve l  o f  invest iga t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    How much d id  S ibenza rece ive?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  S ibenza rece ived R99mi l l ion  20 

f rom Swi fambo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  wan t  to  ask ,  and th i s  i s  the  

broader  p ic tu re ,  o r ig ina l l y  the  in ten t ion  was whethe r  to  buy 

or  lease,  i t  was go ing  to  be  80  locomot ives ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:    88  Locomot ives .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  88 .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Eventua l l y,  because o f  the  f luc tua t ion 

in  the  va lue  o f  the  rand tha t  f igu re  was reduced to  70 ,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  my unders tand ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  a f te r  the  H igh  Cour t  had se t  

as ide  the  award  on ly  a  smal l  number  o f  locomot ives ,  were ,  

in  fac t  supp l ied .  

MR SACKS:    I  th ink  i t  i s  common cause,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  10 

on ly  13  locomot ives  were  ever  supp l ied  p r io r  to  the  

suspens ion  o f  the  cont rac t  by  PRASA under  Popo Mole fe ’s  

Board  as  wh ich  prec ip i ta ted  the  invest iga t ion .   I  do  no t  

have any knowledge,  a f te r ;  o f  how many o the r  locomot ives  

were  due to  come but  13  is  the  number  o f  locomot ives  tha t  

a r r i ved in  South  A f r i ca .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  the  R99mi l l ion  tha t  was spent  

then must  have been a  fo rward ing  o f  13  locomot ives .  

MR SACKS:    There  cou ld  be  a  commerc ia l  bas is ,  sub jec t  

to  conf i rmat ion ,  I  agree w i th  counse l  tha t  th is  money pa id  20 

to  S ibenza cou ld  have been fo r  the  customs and fo rward ing  

re la ted  cost  to  b r ing  the  locomot ives  in .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t ,  i f  i t  was,  the  amount  in  respect  

o f  each locomot ive  was then about  R7.5mi l l ion .  

MR SACKS:    I  agree w i th  counse l ’s  ca l cu la t ions,  
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Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t ’s  qu i te  an  in te res t ing  f igure .  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    R99mi l l ion ,  tha t ’s  i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    [ Ind is t inc t  3 .53 ]  take  locomot ives  

f rom here  to  there  and… 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  as  you say,  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  

there  is  a  commerc ia l  reason but  we jus t  –  you jus t  d idn ’ t  

ge t  to  tha t  po in t  in  your  invest iga t ion  or  i s  tha t  someth ing  

tha t  you ’ re  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  la te r?  10 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  I  jus t  –  i f  you  i ndu lge  me I  jus t  

wro te  what  I  sa id  w i th  regard ing  to  these payments ,  I  sa id  

tha t  …[ in te rvenes ] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Where  do  you say tha t?  

MR SACKS:    Sor ry,  Cha i rperson ,  parag raph 14.10.8  i t ’s  

qu i te  a  few pages  fu r ther  on  when I ’m dea l ing  w i th  the  f low  

o f  funds to  S ibenza because I  dea l  w i th  those ac tua l  

payments ,  when you ’ re  ready I  can jus t…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe you cou ld  –  now tha t  we have  

ra ised i t ,  maybe you can jus t  qu i ck ly  dea l  w i th  i t .  20 

MR SACKS:    Yes,  so  as  I ’ l l  be  –  as  Counse l  w i l l  know,  my  

repor t  dea ls  w i th  the  spec i f i c  f low o f  funds and when i t  

came to  S ibenza I  quant i f ied…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You sa id  i t s  pa ragraph?  

MR SACKS:    14 .10 .8 .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  me jus t  ge t  there ,  14 .10 .8 .  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  i t ’s  Bund le  L942 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I ’ ve  go t  i t .  

MR SACKS:    So ,  Cha i rperson,  jus t  fo r  the  benef i t  o f  th is  

contex t  o f  conversa t ion  I ’ l l  j us t  read my conc lud ing  

paragraph in  my repor t ,  I  sa id ,  

“Accord ing ly,  cons ide r ing  the  above,  [above be ing  

the  payments ,  the  f low o f  funds and the  

re la t ionsh ips ]  and a lso  tak ing  in to  account  the 

cr i t i ca l  re la t ionsh ip  be tween the  fo rmer  Cha i rperson 10 

o f  PRASA,  namely  Buthe lez i ,  h is  und isc losed 

re la t ionsh ip  to  S ibenza mean ing  tha t  the 

invest iga t ion  showed tha t  he  d idn ’ t  d isc lose  h i s  

re la t ionsh ip  to  S ibenza to  PRASA,  and the  contex t  

o f  the  R3.5b i l l i on  tender  be tween PRASA and 

Swi fambo,  th is  aspect  shou ld  be  invest iga ted 

fu r ther ” ,   

 That ’s  pure ly  –  s imp ly  what  I  sa id  tha t  I  cou ldn ’ t  

d raw a  conc lus ion  as  counse l  in fe r red  bu t  h igh l igh t  in  bo ld ,  

has to  be  looked a t  fu r ther  and as  counse l  sa id  there  cou ld 20 

be a  commerc ia l  bas i s ,  too  ear l y  to  d raw a  conc lus ion  a t  

the  t ime I  d id  my repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I ’d  l i ke  you  to  ind ica te  who pa id  fo r  

the  fo rward ing  and what  d id  the  cont rac t  p rov ide ,  you dea l  
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w i th  tha t  in  parag raph 11.36.5 .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  cont rac t  be tween PRASA 

and Swi fambo s ta ted  tha t  the  cost  o f  fo rward ing  was fo r  

the  cost  o f  PRASA and not  Swi fambo,  th is  i s  expanded on 

in  the  de ta i led  f ind ings bu t  the re  was no in fo rmat ion  to  me  

a t  the  t ime tha t  ind ica ted  tha t  PRASA had pa id  fo r  i t .  There  

were  these payments  to  S ibenza wh ich  cou ld  ind i ca te  tha t  

Swi fambo pa id  fo r  i t  wh ich  I  wou ld  imag ine  tha t ,  Sw i fambo  

had r i gh t  o f  recourse  to  PRASA to  pay tha t  money.   I  guess 

us ing  counse l ’s  rough but  seeming ly  accura te  ca lcu la t ion ,  10 

R7mi l l ion  per  locomot ive  t imes 70 locomot ives  w i l l  be  a 

substant ia l  sum for  PRASA to  have brough t  these 

locomot ives  i n .   Aga in ,  I  can ’ t  comment  fu r ther  over  and 

above tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  I  jus t  make th is  po in t  

and e i ther  Mr  Sacks or  the  l iqu ida tor  w i l l  dea l  w i t h  i t .   In  

the  no te  to  the  CM100 Mr  Mashaba says tha t  Swi fambo 

wrong ly  pa id  th is  amount  on  beha l f  o f  PRASA and i t  wants  

PRASA to  pay Swi fambo back and asked the  l iqu ida tor  to  

c la im the  money back f rom PRASA,  bu t  o f  cou rse  the  i rony  20 

is  th is ,  jus t  g iven  what  we ’ve  heard  there  is  Mr  Buthe lez i ,  

Cha i rman o f  the  Board ,  aware  o f ,  accord ing  to  Mr  Mole fe ,  

aware  o f  cer ta in  i r regu lar…[ ind i s t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]   

the  cont rac t  i s  awarded to  Swi fambo,  Swi fambo  is  no t  

requ i red  to  pay the  R99mi l l ion  tha t  i t  d id  pay.   Mr  Mashaba  
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i s  –  and  tha t ’s  the  po in t  I  was mak ing  w i th  Mr  Sacks,  he  is  

Swi fambo.   How d id  tha t  money get  pa id  to  S ibenza?  

CHAIRPERSON:    He shou ld  know,  he  shou ld  –  he  was the  

Cha i rman or  Manag ing  D i rec to r,  I  th ink ,  somewhere  in  h is  

a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He says,  he ’s  the  Manag ing  D i rec to r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  does –  desc r ibed h imse l f  as  hav ing  

the  Manag ing  D i rec to r  and he wou ld  have been con f ron ted  

w i th  h is  quest ions,  among o thers  i f  he  had come here .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  indeed.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  more  impor tan t ly,  had the  b i l l  

gone to  PRASA,  PRASA may have  scru t in i sed them to  see 

i f  what  –  the  amount  tha t  was c la imed by  S ibenza and in  

fa i rness Mr  Mashaba does reduce the  invo i ces tha t  

S ibenza sent  bu t  the  quest ion  i s  no t  whether  there  were  

invo i ces,  the  quest ion  is ,  no t  be ing  cont rac tua l l y  ob l iged to  

pay,  why wou ld  Swi fambo pay R99mi l l ion?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t ,  cer ta in l y  ra ises  ser ious quest i ons.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  does,  Cha i rpe rson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  no te  as  i t  

appears  in  the  CM100 Cha i r  when we ’ re  dea l ing  w i th  

…[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo i ce ] .    

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now…[ in te rvenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  we jumped because we wanted to  

look  a t  th is  aspec t  i sn ’ t  i t ,  d idn ’ t  I  in te r rup t  your  sequence? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  sor ry,  so r ry  yes,  I ’m  sor ry  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  we jumped f rom a  much ear l i e r  page 

jus t  to  look  a t  th is  las t  page.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Because  we were  ta l k ing  about  

S ibenza,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  I  th ink  we can go back to  where 

we were .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr  Sacks?  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  Cha i rperson,  regard ing  to  S ibenza on  

paragraph 11.36.3 ,  Mamabolo  a l leges in  h is  a f f idav i t  tha t ,  

“Buthe lez i ,  wh i le  Cha i rman o f  the  PRASA Board ,  

fa i led  to  d isc lose  h is  in te res t  in  Makana Investment  

Corpora t ion  wh ich  has a  15% shareho ld ing ,  i t  i s  a  

company a l leged ly  p rov id ing  serv i ces  to  PRASA on  

the  ro l l ing  s tock .   I t ’s  now been conf i rmed i t  has  a  

55% shareho ld ing  in  S ibenza a  pre fer red  fo rward ing  

and c lear ing  serv i ce  prov ide r  to  PRASA.   In  20 

add i t ion ,  per  invest iga t ions a t  PRASA,  in to  

d isc losure  o f  in te res t s  Buthe lez i  d id  no t  d isc lose  h is  

in te res ts  in  S ibenza” ,  

 And the  next  po in t  I ’ ve  a l ready s ta ted  about  the  

cost  o f  fo rward ing .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  jus t  ge t t ing  back 

to…[ in tervenes] .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry  jus t  g i ve  me the  page in  te rms 

o f  pag ina t ion ,  you know these paragraphs tha t  you have in  

the  repor t  they are  confus ing  because i t ’s  11 .6  someth ing .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  I ’m  a t  page Bund le  L872 a t  the  

bo t tom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    872?  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  –  okay we can cont inue.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  bu t  can I  jus t  take  Mr  Sacks  

back,  Cha i rpe rson.   You say tha t  Mr  Buthe lez i  has  a  15% 

shareho ld ing  in  Cad is  a  company  wh ich  prov ides adv isory  

serv i ces  to  PRASA or  p rov ided.   D id  he  have tha t  

shareho ld ing  a t  the  t ime Cad is  was prov id ing  adv i sory  

serv i ces?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  have knowledge o f  

tha t ,  th is  i s  an  a l legat ion  made by  Mamabolo  in  h is  

a f f idav i t .   Th is  –  jus t  to  re -emphas ise ,  th is  in fo rmat ion  is  

inc luded in  the  repor t  to  a le r t  the  po l i ce  to  a reas tha t  they  20 

need to  cons ider,  I ’m  not  s ta t ing  tha t  th is  i s  fac t ,  th is  i s  an  

a l legat ion .   Cer ta in  i ssues have been dea l t  w i th  in  the  SCA 

as counse l  has agreed to  bu t  when you look a t  the  f low o f  

funds and you see R99mi l l ion  payment  to  a  company ca l led  

S ibenza w i thout  th is  contex t ,  on  f i rs t  read ing ,  the  po l i ce  
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m igh t  no t  asce r ta in  who S ibenza is .   Th is  a l lows the  po l i ce  

tha t  knowledge gap and areas –  or  in  my mind tha t  they 

cou ld  go  back and look to  say,  okay these a re  avenues fo r  

invest iga t ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you –  one o f  the  po in ts  you  

made when you went  much fu r the r  in  your  a f f idav i t  re la t ing  

to  S ibenza you sa id  tha t  needs to  be  invest iga ted  fu r the r,  I  

take  i t  the  same wou ld  app ly  to  these l inks  or  a l leged l inks  

w i th  Cad is?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And you say tha t  Mamabolo  a l leges  

tha t  Mr  Buthe lez i  d id  no t  d isc lose  h is  in te res t  in  Cad is  o r  

in  S ibenza?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now,  a t  11 .37  you a l lege or  you make  

the  po in t  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  a l leges tha t  these mat te rs  were  

brought  to  Mr  Montana ’s  a t ten t ion  be fo re  the  Board  

approved the  Swi fambo b id .   I  take  i t  tha t ’s  –  i f  you  look a t  

11 .3 .6 ,  tha t ’s  be fore  the  24 t h  o f  Ju ly  2012?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And he a l leges tha t ,  Mr  Montana  

d idn ’ t  ra ise  these  mat te rs  a t  the  Board  meet ing .  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And the  in fe rence tha t  he  draws f rom 

tha t ,  i s  tha t  Mr  Montana was determined to  p roceed w i th  
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the  process tha t  wou ld  resu l t  in  the  appo in tment  o f  

Swi fambo?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Now,  these are  a l l  the  red  f lags ,  and I  

mean some o f  them are  qu i te  h igh ,  f lags  tha t  were  p robab ly  

burn ing  themse lves bu t  fo rge t  tha t ,  you then say tha t  there  

were  o ther  ind ica t ions tha t  a l l  were  no t  r igh t  and they were  

ignored,  w i l l  you  te l l  the  Cha i rperson what  those were?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  ind iv idua l  names by  the  name 

o f  Br idget te  Gaza  ra ised se r ious concerns about  Swi fambo 10 

in  an  emai l  on  6  November  2012 to  bo th ,  Buthe lez i  and 

Montana and in  another  emai l  to  Mbatha on 20 November  

2012.   Desp i te  these concerns Montana a l lowed the  

negot ia t ions  to  p roceed in  a  cont rac t  be tween PRASA and 

Swi fambo was conc luded thereaf te r,  i t  was March 2013.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So ,  as  o f  the  da te  Ms Gaza ra ised    

these concerns the  award  had a l ready been made? 

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  the  po in t  you are  mak ing  is ,  tha t  

the  process cou ld  have been s topped because the re  is  an  20 

award  bu t  there  s t i l l  needs to  be  a  cont rac t .  

MR SACKS:    The cont rac t  had no t  been s igned ye t ,  i t  on ly  

was s igned a  few months la te r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then the  po in t  you make a t  11 .39  

about  the  to ta l  contex tua l  approach you ’ve  adopted,  cou ld  
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you  jus t  p lace  tha t  on  record  p lease,  Mr  Sacks?  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  so  the  po in t  I  make,  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  

tha t  the  i r regu lar  tender  p rocess and the  appo in tment  o f  

Swi fambo as the  pre fe r red  supp l ie r  o f  the  locomot ives  must  

be  read in  con junct ion  w i th ,  and contex t  o f  the  f low o f  

funds.   In  o the r  words,  the  tender  p rocess was the  manner  

in  wh ich  the  imp l ica ted  ind iv idua ls  were  ab le  to  en ter  

PRASA in to  a  bus iness re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Swi fambo and 

f rom which  they  i l l i c i t l y  benef i ted  f rom the  cont rac t .  So 

aga in ,  Cha i rperson,  th is  i s  the  reason why a l l  th is  10 

in fo rmat ion  was inc luded.   So,  when you look a t  the  f low o f  

funds i t  makes sense.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Bu t  I  jus t  want  to  ask  you th is ,  even  

w i thout  the  f low o f  funds i f  one looks a t  the  mat te rs  tha t  

a re  ra i sed in  your  repor t  a lbe i t  tha t ,  to  a la rge  ex ten t  i t ’s  

what  Mr  Mole fe  had a l leged but  as  I ’d  po in ted  ou t  i t  was  

subsequent ly  accepted by  the  SCA Masterp lan .   Based  

even on tha t ,  there  wou ld  be  cr im ina l  invest iga t ions tha t  

shou ld  be…[ ind i s t inc t  d ropp ing  vo i ce ]  fo r  example  the  

Cha i rperson o f  a  SOE not  dec la r i ng  an  in te res t?  20 

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  –  th is  

repor t  i s  no t ,  aga in  i t  wasn ’ t  an  a f f idav i t  th is  was  a  –  I  

guess a  fac tua l  f ind ings,  I  was mandated to  go  and per fo rm  

an ana lys i s  and g ive  my v iews as  to  whethe r  po l i ce  shou ld  

fu r ther  c r im ina l  invest iga t ions and,  I  mean,  to  ge t  to  the 
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g is t  o f  i t ,  the  ev idence produced  in  contex t  o f  what  the  

SCA had agreed w i th  Mr  Mole fe ,  there  was every  ind ica t ion  

tha t  fu r ther  inves t iga t ion  shou ld  have taken p lace.  I ’m  not  

–  I ’m  cer ta in ly  no t ,  in  th is  case,  a  person to  judge –  you  

know Judge o r  Juro r  over  he re ,  I ’m  jus t  say ing  these are  

the  fac ts ,  th is  i s  what ’s  be ing  sa id ,  here ’s  the  money f low.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And your  repor t  i s  fo r  the  po l i ce  a t  

the i r  request?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    P lease te l l  us  what  we shou ld  look  10 

fo r  in  ou r  fu r the r  invest iga t ions,  you ’ve  done these,  now 

we ’ re  no t  even look ing  a t  the  f low o f  funds we ’ re  jus t  

look ing  a t  the  en t i re  p rocess,  someth ing  seems amiss ,  tha t  

i s  what  you ’ re  a l ready say ing .  

MR SACKS:    That  was the  po in t  I  inc luded a t  th is  po in t ,  so  

yes,  I  agree w i th  counse l .   Someth ing  is  amiss  or  the  f low  

o f  funds cor re la tes  to  the  t ime l ine  o f  events .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  then you dea l ,  in  the  next  

sec t ion  w i th  the  –  up  to  now you ’ve  dea l t  w i th  the  

i r regu lar i t ies  pr io r  to  – or  the  unusua l  happen ings pr io r  to  20 

even the  RFP be ing  issued then the  process tha t  the  –  the 

SCM process,  then the  ad jud i ca t ion  process.  Now you dea l  

w i th  the  i r regu la r i t ies  in  the  cont rac t  i t se l f .  Cou ld  you  

out l ine  what  those read p lease s i r?  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  Cha i rperson ,  f i rs t  po in t  i s  tha t  the  
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con t rac t  be tween  Swi fambo and PRASA was conc luded on  

25 March 2013,  the  cont rac t  was s igned by  

Montana…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  tha t  was on beha l f  o f  PRASA? 

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  sor ry  on  beha l f  o f  PRASA.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Who s igned on beha l f  o f  Mashaba –  I  

mean Swi fambo?  

MR SACKS:    I  do  no t  –  Cha i rperson I  do  no t  have the  

cont rac t  in  f ron t  o f  me and I  don ’ t  want  to  make any 

assumpt ions bu t  I  wou ld  imag ine  i f  Mashaba c la ims to  be  10 

the  Manag ing  D i rec to r  he  wou ld  have s igned i t  bu t  tha t ’s  

jus t  sub jec t  to  s igh t  o f  the  cont rac t ,  we can c lear  tha t  up .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  somewhere  I  know tha t  i t  i s  sa id  

tha t  Mashaba had s igned the  con t rac t ,  I  don ’ t  know i f  i t ’s  

one o f  the  judgments  anyway we ’ re  in te res ted  in  PRASA 

now.  

MR SACKS:    So ,  yes  the  cont rac t  was s igned by  Montana 

on beha l f  o f  PRASA…[ in tervenes] .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  jus t  want  to  go  back now.   You had 

sa id  tha t  p r io r  to  the  meet ing  o f  the  24 t h  –  th is  i s  in  11 .37 ,  20 

Mr  Montana had been aware  o f  some o f  the  i r regu lar i t ies  

then on the  6 t h  o f  November  Ms Gaza brought  cer ta in  o ther  

mat te rs  to  h is  a t t en t ion  and then –  now you a re  say ing ,  on  

the  25 t h  o f  March 2013,  he  s igns th is  cont rac t .  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    What  was the  va lue  o f  the  cont rac t  

tha t  was s igned?  

MR SACKS:    The va lue  in  rand  te rms was R3.5  b i l l i on ,  

Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Th i s  i s  the  cont rac t  tha t  was ac tua l l y  

s igned?  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  now you are  g iven the  

i r regu lar i t ies  in  the  cont rac t ,  what  were  the  i r regu la r i t ies?  

MR SACKS:    Car ry ing  on  f rom 11.42 Cha i rpe rson,  10 

“The cont rac t  ma ter ia l l y  dev ia ted  f rom the  te rms o f  

the  RFP,  the  RFP requ i red  the  l ease o f  locomot ives ,  

the  main  cont rac t  p rov ided fo r  purchase o f  

locomot ives .  The  cont rac t  inexp l i c i t l y  s ta ted  the  

RFP inv i ted  proposa ls  fo r  th ree  opt ions and one o f  

them was the  ou t r igh t  sa le  o f  locomot ives  to  

PRASA,  th is  s ta tement  i s  incor rec t .   The compet ing 

b idders  were  no t  a f fo rded an oppor tun i ty  to  b id  on  

an  out r igh t  sa le  as  one o f  the  op t ions,  th is  change 

o f  p rocurement  s t ra tegy is  fundamenta l l y  f lawed 20 

and un lawfu l .  The award  o f  the  tender  to  Swi fambo 

and the  conc lus ion  o f  the  cont rac t ,  w i thout  the  

cont rac tua l  invo l vement  o f  Voss loh  const i tu tes  the 

mater ia l  i r regu la r i t y.   Swi fambo had no techn ica l  

capac i ty  and Voss loh  had no cont rac tua l  ob l iga t ion  
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to  des ign ,  manufac tu re  and de l i ve r  the  locomot ives  

in  te rms o f  a  cont rac t ,  the  r i sk  to  PRASA was 

pa lpab le .   The conc lus ion  o f  the  cont rac t  w i thout  

the  submiss ion  o f  the  uncond i t iona l  per fo rmance 

bonds as  requ i red  by  Swi fambo  wi th in  the  t ime 

per iod  prescr ibed  in  the  RFP was i r regu la r.  In  te rms 

o f  the  cont rac t ,  the  f i rs t  20  locomot ives  to  be  

de l i vered were  the  Euro  4000 locomot ives .   The 

Euro  4000 was  des igned fo r  the  European ra i l  

ne twork ,  no t  South  A f r i ca .   The Euro  4000 does not  10 

comply  w i th  the  spec i f i ca t ions as  se t  ou t  in  the  

RFP,  ch ie f  o f  wh ich  the  Euro  4000 has an overa l l  

veh ic le  gauge he igh t  o f  4140mm.   The RFP c lear l y  

shows tha t  the  max imum veh ic le  gauge he igh t  

requ i rement  i s  3965mm.   I t  w i l l  no t  be  poss ib le  fo r  

Voss loh  to  reduce th is  he igh t .   The consequence o f  

the  mater ia l  dev ia t ion  f rom the  locomot ive  gauge 

spec i f i ca t ion  is  tha t  PRASA is  sadd led  w i th  

locomot ives  tha t  a re  no t  f i t  fo r  pu rpose and unsafe  

to  opera te  on  the  South  A f r i can ra i l  ne twork” .   20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    Can I  car ry  on?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    Okay,  sor ry  Cha i rpe rson,  ca r ry  on ,  

“On 11 Apr i l  2014 Mth imkhu lu  sent  a  memorandum 
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to  Montana in  wh ich  he  requested a  var ia t ion  to  the 

cont rac t  to  inc lude ce r ta in  sys tems.   Accord ing  to  

Mth imkhu lu  the  var ia t ion  was requ i red  because the  

sys tems tha t  came wi th  the  locomot ives  pe r  the 

Swi fambo proposa l  to  PRASA were  rud imentary  and 

there fo re  needed  to  be  upgraded to  ensure  tha t  the 

locomot ives  were  f i t ted  and assembled w i th  the 

la tes t  techno logy.   The add i t iona l  cos t  to  PRASA 

was R335mi l l ion .   The request  was…[ in tervenes] ” .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  i t  i s  dea l t  w i th  in  a  page or  two  10 

but  jus t  to  pu t  you in  contex t ,  you ’ l l  reca l l  tha t  Mr  

D ing iswayo gave  ev idence.   One  o f  the  mat te rs  tha t  he  

sa id  l ed  to  h is  d ismissa l ,  and  you must  remember  he  

t rave l led  fo r  ha l f  an  hour  and the  meet ing  las ted  ten  

m inutes ,  he  sa id  tha t ,  he  was asked to  okay th is  cont rac t  –  

sor ry,  I  make a  m is take.   Th i s  was the  f i rs t  ed i t ion  to  the  

cont rac t ,  the  next  one i s  what  he  was asked to  okay  and i s  

what  led  to  h i s  d ismissa l  and Mr  Nguy i ’s  d i smissa l .  Sor ry  

bu t  I  am wrong in  say ing  tha t  i t  i s  th is  cont rac t ,  i t  i s  the  

next  cont rac t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SACKS:    So ,  Cha i rperson,  th is  R335mi l l ion  was over  

and above the  R3 .5b i l l i on  wh ich  wou ld ,   

“Ceded the  cont rac t  va lue  by  qu i te  a  s ign i f i can t  

amount  and the  suggest ion  tha t  the  proposa l  was  
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tha t  the  locomot ives  –  what  was requ i red  as  

rud imenta ry  i s  nonsens ica l  as  the  locomot ives  

o f fe red  to  PRASA by Swi fambo were  s ta te  o f  the  ar t  

and the  sys tems ment ioned in  the  memorandum was 

s tandard  fea tu re .  So,  the  a f f idav i t s  contend tha t  i t ’s  

–  a  beggar ’s  be l i e f  tha t  now we have to  change the  

locomot ives  when what  we are  buy ing  fo r  

R3.5b i l l i on  shou ld  be  s ta te  o f  the  ar t  and now we  

have to  change  them.   The cont rac t  va lue  is  

R3.5b i l l i on ,  there  was a  dra f t  th i rd  addendum which  10 

counse l  jus t  re fe r red  to  wh ich  was prepared by  

Molenget t i  [? ]  and had been negot ia ted  by  Montana .   

The p roposed th i rd  addendum to  the  cont rac t  wou ld  

have resu l ted  in  a  cont rac t  p r ice  increas ing  f rom 

R3.5b i l l i on  to  R5b i l l i on” .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry,  jus t  to  pu t  i t  in  contex t ,  you ’ve  

go t  the  R3.5b i l l i on  cont ract  tha t  i s  s igned in  Ju l y  

then…[ in tervenes ] .  

MR SACKS:    March.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh,  so r ry  March then Mth imkhu lu  20 

adds near l y  9% to  the  pr ice ,  a t  the  –  anothe r  th ree  

…[ ind is t inc t ]  th i r ty  f i ve  m i l l ion .   That  b r ings i t  to  near l y  

R4mi l l ion ,  R4b i l l i on?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then,  i f  th is  had gone th rough i t  
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wou ld  have been another  b i l l i on  rand.  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now what  happened  to  tha t  

recommendat ion  or  tha t  p roposa l?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson the  d ra f t  th i rd  addendum was 

presented to  PRASA’s  lega l  depar tment  where  i t  came to 

the  a t ten t ion  o f  Fan i  D ing iswayo,  the  Genera l  Manager  o f  

Group Lega l  Serv ices  fo r  PRASA.  Mth imkhu lu  asked the  

lega l  depar tment  to  cons ider  and approve the  te rms o f  the 

th i rd  addendum.   PRASA’s  lega l  depar tment  ra ised a  10 

number  o f  concerns w i th  the  th i rd  addendum and re fused to  

be  drawn in to  the  approva l  p rocess.   The concerns  

inc luded the  absence o f  Min i s te r i a l  and Board  approva l  fo r  

the  amendment  wh ich  increased  the  pr ice  o f  a  cont rac t  

p rev ious l y  approved by  the  Board .   As  a  resu l t ,  D ing iswayo  

and h i s  super io r,  Mar tha  Ngoye,  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  R isk  

Lega l  and Comp l iance fo r  PRASA were  un lawfu l l y  and 

summar i l y  d ismissed by  Montana.   Montana accused  

D ing iswayo o f  us ing  h is  pos i t ion  as  the  Genera l  Manager  o f  

PRASA’s  Group Lega l  Serv ices  to  the  de t r iment  o f  PRASA.   20 

Ngoye was d ism issed fo r  quest ion ing  and ob jec t ing  to  

Montana ’s  dec is ion  to  summar i l y  d ismiss  D ing iswayo and 

then in  summary,  the  th i rd  addendum was not  approved by 

the  Board  and i t  remains  uns igned.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Aga in ,  when we ta l k  about  the  Board  
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now,  we heard  ev idence tha t  Mr  D ing iswayo and Ms  Ngoye 

were  d ismissed wh i le  Mr  Mole fe ’s  Board  was in  p lace  

because he then  asked Mr  Montana  to  re - ins ta te  them,  

wh ich  Mr  Montana d id  bu t  he  then,  summar i l y  suspended.  

So I ’m jus t  say ing ,  th is  re fusa l  was by  Mr  Montana –  I  

mean Mr  Mole fe ’s  Board ,  no t  Mr  Bu the lez i ’s  Board .  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  then you dea l  w i th  the  

techn ica l  de f ic ienc ies  and th i s  i s  a  mat te r  tha t  was h igh ly  

pub l i c ised,  we l l  I  cer ta in ly  saw the  in te rv iews re la t ing  to  i t  10 

bu t  can you jus t  ind ica te  what  the  concerns were  about  the  

techn ica l  spec i f i ca t ions tha t  these locomot ives  had.  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson -  excuse me,  Counse l ,  wou ld  

you l i ke  me to  read or  sha l l  I  jus t  summar ise?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I f  you  cou ld  jus t  summar ise .  

MR SACKS:    Ja .   Cha i rperson,  I  guess tha t  u l t imate ly  

everyone –  the  nar ra t i ve  i s  l i ke  the  t ra in  tha t  were  be ing  

too  –  tha t  were  too  h igh  wh ich ,  as  was exp la ined,  w i th  

regards to  the  gauge he igh t  tha t  ta lks  about  -  my 

unders tand ing ,  I  am not  an  eng ineer,  bu t  my unders tand ing  20 

and par t  o f  be ing  the  invest iga t ion ,  unders tood tha t  tha t  

was the  key prob lem but  I  a lso  unders tood,  there  were  

mul t ip le  o the r  techn ica l  aspects  tha t  were  wrong.    

 I  d id  no t  dea l  spec i f i ca l l y  w i th  them,  su f f i ce  to  

say tha t  bes ides the  t ra ins  be ing  too  h igh  and a  few o ther  
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techn ica l  i ssues,  the  t ra ins  d id  no t  meet  the  requ i rements .  

 And jus t  one po in t ,  tha t  f rom the  documenta t ion ,  

i t  appears . . .   I  am sor ry.   I  am on paragraph 11.5 .1 .4  a t  the 

top  o f  page 878 .   Jus t  to  jump ahead,  as  counse l  has 

asked me to ,  to  summar ise .  

 From the  documenta t ion  i t  appears  tha t  the  

agreement  to  a  spec i f i ca t ion  o f  4  140 mi l l imet res ,  we l l -

knowing tha t  the  veh ic les  s t ruc ture  gage was  3  966  

mi l l imet res  was  cruc ia l l y  dependent  and c lue less  and  

d ishonest  conduc t .    10 

 So Cha i rpe rson,  aga in ,  i t  i s  l i ke  I  cannot  ta lk  to  

the  techn ica l  de f ic ienc ies .   My unders tand ing  was,  there  

were  many techn ica l  de f ic ienc ies  bu t  the  one tha t  I  th ink  

tha t  we a l l  know about  i s  tha t  the  t ra ins  were  too  h igh .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  Cha i rperson is  a lso  the  f ind ing  

o f  the  Supreme Cour t  and the  H igh  Cour t  and the  Supreme 

Cour t  o f  Appea l .   You might  reca l l  they  were  qu i te  c r i t i ca l  

about  Mr  Montana and. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay so  there  i s  an  argument  about  20 

hybr id  and d iese l  locomot ives .   I s  i t  an  issue tha t  takes the  

mat te r  fu r ther?   Th is  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:    I  have jus t  repeated what  –  about  what  

Mole fe ’s  rep ly ing  a f f idav i t  says  Cha i rperson.   I  do  no t  

rea l l y  have much knowledge on tha t .    
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   Now you then dea l  w i th  the  

cont rac t  be tween  Swi fambo and Voss loh .   I  take  i t ,  one o f  

the  reasons you  dea l  w i th  th is  is ,  i s  tha t  in  Swi fambo’s  

answer ing  a f f idav i t ,  i t  i s  –  i t  d id  no t  depose the  se t t ing  

as ide  o f  the  cont rac t .   I t  deposed the  jus t  and equ i tab le  

remedy tha t  PRASA tha t  was ask ing ,  namely  the  cont rac t  

be  se t  as ide  and tha t  i t  pay  back the  money.  

 And what  Mr  Massaro  does in  h is  a f f idav i t  i s  

th is .   I f  you  do tha t ,  we w i l l  be  runn ing  a t  a  to ta l  loss  and 

w i l l  in  fac t  become bankrupt .   I s  tha t  more  o r  less  as  you –  10 

how you unders tood . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . . the  reasons tha t  th is  issue was 

ra ised?  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  Cha i rperson tha t  i s  how I  unders tand 

Massaro ’s  conten t ions in  h is  a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.   But  w i l l  you  jus t  te l l  us .   

Look ing  a t  the  f igures  –  and you  can read the  necessary  

f igures  –  what  was Swi fambo or  what  was PRASA pay ing  

Swi fambo and  what  was Swi fambo pay ing  Voss loh  20 

accord ing  to  the  two cont rac t s?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  the  cont rac t  be tween Swi fambo 

and Voss loh  get  to  the  crux  o f  –  essent ia l l y  what  I  was  

look ing  fo r  in  the  f low o f  funds ana lys i s .  

 PRASA was not  –  remember  we are  busy w i th  
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invest iga t ing  PRASA.   We are  no t  p r ivy  to  what  the  

cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ip  was between Swi fambo and 

Voss loh .   We were  no t  aware  as  to  what  p r i ce  Sw i fambo  

was p rocur ing  the  t ra ins .   We jus t  knew what  PRASA had 

pa id  Swi fambo.  

 Obv ious ly,  as  the  invest iga t ion  o f  Swi fambo the  

po l i ce  unrave l led  what  Swi fambo d id  w i th  the  money.   A 

cruc ia l  pa r t  o f  th is  who le  invest iga t ion  was:   How much d id  

Swi fambo pay Voss loh?  How much was the i r  p r i ce?  The 

pr ice  o f  the  cont rac t  be tween PRASA and Swi fambo  s ta ted  10 

a  pr ice  pe r  locomot ive .    

 I t  sa id  the  cont rac t  i s  R 2 .5  b i l l i on  bu t  the  pr ice  

per  locomot ive  was s ta ted  and I  am. . .   P lease excuse i f  I  

lose  you and counse l  when I  s ta r t  ta lk ing  Euros and  Rands,  

bu t  the  pr ice  they were  go ing  to  pay was. . .   Le t  me jus t . . .   

Bear  w i th  me fo r  one second.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    F ive  po in t  th ree ,  I  th ink  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:    Three po in t  e igh t  two,  two. . .   3 .8 m i l l ion  

Euros.   That  i s  on  parag raph 11.5 .3 .1 .   The purchase pr ice  20 

per  locomot ive  agreed to  be tween PRASA and Swi fambo  

was th ree  po in t  t h ree  mi l l ion ,  e igh t  hundred and twenty- two 

thousand n ine  hundred Euros fo r  a  to ta l  cont rac t  va lue  o f  

two and hundred  and s ix ty-seven  mi l l ion  s ix  hundred and 

th ree  thousand Euros fo r  70  locomot ives .  
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 Cha i rperson,  one o f  the  mos t ,  I  guess,  

m is lead ing  aspec ts  o f  the  cont rac t  i s ,  the  cont rac t  says 

two-and-a -ha l f  b i l l i on  bu t  PRASA is  ac tua l l y  pay ing  in  

Euros.   I t  was a  Euro  cont rac t  even though we ta lk  about  a  

Rand cont rac t .  

 They essent ia l l y  –  tha t  i s  the  pr ice  tha t  PRASA 

was pay ing .   I t  was pay ing  two hundred and s i x ty-seven  

mi l l ion  Euros sub jec t  to  cur rency f luc tua t ions.    

 Massaro  in  h is  a f f idav i t  f ina l l y  revea led  the  

cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ip  be tween Swi fambo and Voss loh  10 

and tha t  cont rac t  shows tha t  Swi fambo was procur ing  the  

locomot ives  fo r  th ree  mi l l ion  s i x  hundred and f i f ty -seven 

thousand f i f t y - two Euros.    

 That  i s  as  I  have deta i led  on  pa ragraph 11.5 .3  

jus t  above,  fo r  a  to ta l  cont rac t  va lue  o f  two hundred and  

f i f t y - f i ve  m i l l ion  n ine  hundred and n ine ty - th ree  thousand  

s ix  hundred and fo r ty  Euros.  

 So fo r  approx imate ,  fo r  rough purposes,  

Swi fambo was mak ing  a  mark-up o f  two hundred thousand 

Euros,  g ive  or  take ,  per  locomot ive  and tha t  was i t .   20 

 So they wou ld  –  and as  I  say  in  paragraph  

11.5 .4 :  

“Accord ing ly,  based on the  cont rac t  PRASA,  

Swi fambo wou ld  earn  a  marg in  o f  hundred and  

s ix ty - f i ve  thousand e igh t  hundred and fo r ty-
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e igh t  Euros per  l ocomot ive  were  e leven mi l l ion  

s ix  hundred and  n ine  thousand two hundred 

and s ix ty  Euros in  to ta l ” .    

 Th is  i s  on  pa rag raph 11.5 .4 .   That  i s  how I  –  how 

the  cont rac t  se t  ou t  the  money  in  PRASA is  what  – 

Swi fambo is  pay ing  th is  fo r  the  locomot ives  and then they  

are  go ing  to  rece ive  tha t  f rom PRASA.    

 So in  to ta l ,  i f  you  conver t  to  Rand –  and i t  ge ts  

very  confus ing  w i th  the  exchange  ra te  because the  Rand  

was weaken ing  t remendous ly  on  and a round the  t ime o f  10 

th is  cont rac t ,  bu t  the  cont rac t  se ts  ou t  a  Rand/Euro  

cur rency fo re ign  exchange ra te  o f  R 10,18.  

 Us ing  tha t  as  an  ind ica tor  tha t  PRASA – 

Swi fambo was go ing  to  make R 118 mi l l ion  on  th i s  cont rac t  

as  I  exp la ined on  the  11 .5 .5 .   I  –  the  cont rac t  ta lks  about  

dev ia t ions and the  fo re ign  exchange.   I  th ink  the  key 

takeaway is  tha t  PRASA was exposed to  t remendous  

fo re ign  exchange  r i sk  because the  Rand was weaken ing .  

 But  pure ly,  the  cont rac t  PRASA between 

Swi fambo and Voss loh  exp la ins  tha t  Voss loh  was –  20 

Swi fambo is  pay ing  3 .6  m i l l ion  Euros charg ing  PRASA 

3 .8  m i l l ion  Euros.   They are  go ing  to  make about  

R 118 mi l l ion /R 120 mi l l ion  fo r  the i r  work .    Wel l ,  I  am not  

sure  what  the  work  was but  tha t  i s  what  they w i l l  make.    

 And tha t  i s  a  very,  very  impor tan t  po in t  tha t  
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needs to  be  read  in  contex t  w i th  the  f low o f  funds because 

o f  the  money tha t  f lows f rom PRASA to  Swi fambo,  

Swi fambo to  Voss loh  and how much Swi fambo actua l l y  

made.   What  was  the  marg in  o r  the  pro f i t  o r  however  you  

want  to  ca l l  i t ,  the  cash tha t  se t s  Swi fambo. . .   And we w i l l  

ge t  to  tha t .    

 Bu t  tha t  who le  sect ion  as  –  and counse l ,  I  hope I  

have exp la ined i t  c lea r ly  enough.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  rea l l y  the  g i s t  o f  i t .   F ina l l y  we saw 10 

what  Swi fambo was mak ing  out  o f  th is  cont rac t  and what  

they wou ld  pay fo r  the  locomot ives .    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Jus t  one fu r ther  po in t  I  want  to  make 

is .   The f luc tua t ion  in  the  Rand/Euro  ra te  i s  what  led  to  the 

reduct ion  f rom 88  to  70  locomot ives .   I s  tha t . . .  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  tha t  i s  my unders tand ing .   The  

3 .5  b i l l i on  was 70 t imes the  preva i l ing  exchange ra te .   

However,  the  –  funny enough,  the  cont rac t  i s  never  

updated.   I t  s t i l l  had the  o ld  exchange ra te .  

 So on read ing  o f  the  cont rac t  i t  ac tua l l y  made no  20 

sense.   I t  was  s t i l l  p inned a t  R 10,18 and w i thout  go ing  

in to  too  much de ta i l .   The exchange ra te  was a l ready a t  

R 13,00,  g ive  or  take ,  when the  cont rac t  was s igned even  

though the  cont rac t  sa id  the  exchange ra te  i s  R 10,18 

and. . .  
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 Bu t  fo r  a  very  smal l  por t ion  o f  i t ,  PRASA was 

exposed to  tha t  fo re ign  exchange ra te  and I  th ink  as  t ime  

went  on  and i f  the  cont rac t  was no t  suspended and i t  was –  

the  cont rac t  –  PRASA per fo rmed,  they wou ld  have pa id  

s ign i f i can t ly  more  than –  or  even R 5  b i l l i on  i f  tha t  was 

approved because o f  the  weaken ing  Rand because the  

cont rac t  was a  Euro  cont rac t ,  i t  was never  Rand.   They 

were  no t  pay ing  Rand.   They were  tak ing  on  the  exposure  

o f  the  fo re ign  –  t he  Euro .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And I  ga ther  tha t  f rom what  you sa id  10 

and jus t  cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong .   What  was impor tan t  i s  

R 3 .5  b i l l i on  to  ge t  how many locomot ives?  How many 

locomot ives  can be bought  f rom R 3 .5  b i l l i on ,  i s  what  we 

w i l l  take .   So i f  i t  eventua l l y  became 50 i t  d id  no t  mat te r.   

That  was the  issue.  

MR SACKS:    Ja ,  I . . .   Counse l . . .   Cha i rperson,  there  i s  

some mer i t  in  tha t  a rgument .   I  do  no t  know wha t  wou ld  

have t ransp i red  because o f  how th is  cont rac t  was be ing  

managed based on what  I  cou ld  see in  the  rep resen ta t ions 

and do ing  the  invest iga t ive  work .  20 

 A t  some po in t ,  i f  we had to  go  down the  l ine  and 

say i f  i t  was not  fo r  the  s top ,  what  wou ld  have happened to  

tha t  R 3 .5  b i l l i on  wou ld  have spent  bu t  maybe on ly  30  

locomot ives  were  be ing  de l i vered and Swi fambo. . .  

 Th is  i s  a l l  jus t  assumpt ions.   Poss ib le  to  say:   
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Where  is  ou r  money?  But  the  fund –  the  we l l  wou ld  have 

run  d ry.   And then PRASA wou ld  have gone back,  I  guess,  

to  Treasury  and say:   We need more  money fo r  tha t .  

 But  aga in ,  we must  no t  lose  s igh t  o f  the  fac t  o f  

the  f low o f  funds ,  what  the  money  tha t  Swi fambo rece ived  

was ac tua l l y  used fo r  a t  the  t ime the  cont rac t  –  and tha t  i s  

what  the  key focus o f  my repor t  wou ld  be .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   So the  po in t  we need to  

h igh l igh t  a t  th is  po in t  i s ,  tha t  in  te rms o f  the  cont rac t ,  the 

two cont rac t s  be tween PRASA and Swi fambo on the  one 10 

hand and then Swi fambo and Voss loh  on the  o the r  hand.   

That  Voss loh ,  i f  a l l  went  accord ing  to  those cont rac ts ,  the 

amount  tha t  Swi fambo wou ld  make is  jus t  a  l i t t le  more  than 

R 118 mi l l ion .    

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    And i t  i s  a  very  impor tan t  number  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now then in  u rg ing  the  cour t  no t  to  

se t  as ide  the  con t rac t  and to  requ i re  the  par t ies  to  go  back 

to  the i r  o r ig ina l  pos i t ions ,  Mr  Massaro  argues tha t  they 20 

wou ld  e f fec t i ve l y  be ing  mak ing  a  loss  and tha t  i s  a  mat te r  

you dea l  w i th  in  the  a f f idav i t  bu t  i t  does not  a f fec t  the  

va l id i t y  o f  the  cont rac t  o r  the  cr im ina l  conduct .   You are  

jus t  look ing  a t  the  argument .   Wou ld  tha t  be  co r rec t?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And tha t  i s  the  reason Cha i rpe rson.   I  

am not  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  tha t  i ssue a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then le t  us  look a t  the  document  tha t  

o r  the  tab le  tha t  appears  a t  page 881.   Oh,  sor ry  t ha t  i s  in  

re la t ion  to  what  Mr  Massaro  sa id .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So  we need not  even wor ry  about  

tha t  e i ther.   Cha i rperson,  up  to  page 890 dea ls  w i th  that  

i ssue.   I t  i s  no t  someth ing  we are  in te res ted  in  because in  10 

any case a  dec is ion  has been made on tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  shou ld  be  se t  as ide .   Now le t  us  

look a t ,  rea l l y,  what  the  nub o f  th ings a re  and I  know i t  i s  

la te  in  the  day,  bu t  the  f low o f  funds.   S tar t ing  a t  page 891 

Mr  Sacks.  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  so  th is  essent ia l l y  where  my  

f ind ings s ta r t .   Up unt i l  th is  po in t  i s ,  as  counse l  has  

exp la ined,  these are  tha t  the  a f f idav i t s  dea l  w i th  and now 

bu i ld  the  p ic tu re  fo r  the  po l i ce  now to  say:   Le t  us  look a t  20 

what  happened w i th  the  money.  

 So I  s ta r ted  ou t  by  f i rs t  ana lys ing  the  bank  

accounts  tha t  I  had tha t  i s  shown in  Tab le  3 .   I  have  

ment ioned the  two Swi fambo key accounts ,  Swi fambo Ra i l  

Ho ld ings and Swi fambo Ra i l  Re leas ing .    
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 Swi fambo had two o ther  bank accounts  wh ich  in  

te rms o f  f low o f  funds ana lys is  in  cour t  and to  pe r fo rm a  

comple te  ana lys is  bu t  those o the r  two accounts  were  no t  

s ign i f i can t  in to  the  u l t imate  f low o f  funds out  o f  Swi fambo.  

 But  when you do a  fo rens i c  aud i t  repor t ,  i t  i s  

impor tan t  tha t  we  have to  be  comp le te  so  tha t  no  quest ion  

can be ra i sed bu t  what  about  tha t  o ther  bank account .   I  

have inc luded i t .   I t  i s  dea l t  w i th .   And my f ind ings and my  

conc lus ions are  drawn f rom a  co l lec t i ve  poo l  o f  Swi fambo 

money,  aga in ,  inc lud ing  Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ings wh ich  was 10 

not  a  par t y  to  the  cont rac t  w i th  PRASA.    

 So the  –  I  guess fo r  –  we l l  I  w i l l  jus t  -  the  

re levant  po in ts  about  these bank accounts  wh ich  I  do  no t  

want  to  jump around but  jus t  fo r  your  benef i t  Cha i rperson.  

 I  dea l  rea l l y  w i th  in t roduc ing  each account  wh ich  

–  and I  am on page 892,  paragraph 12.3 .   I  ta lk  about  the  

Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ings accounts  and I  exp la ined tha t  th is  

account  was u t i l i sed  in te rchangeab le  w i th  Swi fambo Ra i l  

Leas ing  main  opera t ing  accounts .  

 PRASA made two  payments  to  th is  account ,  the  20 

per iod  o f  wh ich  I  had the  bank rece ip t s ,  the  bank  

s ta tements  f rom the  po l i ce  when  the  f i rs t  t ransact ion  in  

th is  account  was  on 1  January  2011.   I  dea l  w i th  the  f i rs t  

rece ip ts  f rom PRASA in  Apr i l  2013,  and jus t  some o f  the  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  I  rece ived.   I  rece i ved the  open ing  
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documents .   The open ing  documents  are  impor tan t  because  

i t  te l l s  you who the  s ignator ies  a re  on  the  bank accounts .  

 I  do  –  go ing  on to  the  next  page,  page 174,  I  do  

the  same wi th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Page 893.  

MR SACKS:    Sor ry,  so r ry,  sor ry.   Page 893.   There  is  a  

d i f fe ren t  re fe rence a t  the  top  r igh t  corne r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    I t  is  page 893,  paragraph 12.4 .   I  ta lk  about  

the  Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  accounts  and how the  f i rs t  10 

t ransact ion  was on 9  January  2014.   And the  next  Ra i l  

Leas ing  accounts  wh ich  is  the  Money Market  account  and  

tha t  i s  –  the  f i rs t  t ransact ion  was 9  January  2014 as  we l l .  

 So th is  i s  j us t  –  I  am set t ing  –  Cha i rperson to  

summar ise  w i thout  go ing  in to  too  much deta i l ,  I  am set t ing  

the  scene to  wha t  these bank accounts  are  and these are  

the  accounts  I  am go ing  to  ana lyse .  

 And tha t  the  po l i ce  can unders tand say,  okay,  

these are  the  accounts .   Now le t  us  go  see what  has  

happened w i th  them.   And tha t  takes to  the  sect ion  o f  p re-20 

ac t iv i t y  wh ich  is  a  ve ry  impor tan t  aspect  o f  the  repor t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   Before  you go there  can I  jus t  

ask  you someth ing  tha t  i s  in t r igu ing  me?  Perhaps I  shou ld  

have asked you outs ide  the  ev idence aspect .   A t  Tab le  3 ,  

wh ich  is  a t  page  891,  you say the  to ta l  in f lows in to  the  
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Swi fambo bank accounts  was R 4 .979 b i l l i on .   How is  tha t  

–  i t  i s  someth ing  I  have not  been ab le  to . . .  

MR SACKS:    Yes.   Sor ry,  th is  i s  what  we ca l l  a  nuance o f  

f low o f  funds ana lys i s .   The amount  tha t  counse l  cor rec t l y  

po in ts  ou t ,  inc ludes t ransfers  be tween Swi fambo accounts .   

So when I  take  a l l  the  bank accounts  and I  add up  a l l  the 

cred i ts  and a l l  the  deb i ts  o r  the  in f lows and out f lows,  i t  

inc ludes t ransfers  to  and f rom.  

 So the  R 4 .9  b i l l i on  inc ludes t ransfe rs  f rom to  

say Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  to  Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ings or  10 

f rom cu r ren t  account  to  ca l l  account .   That  has  to  be  

ignored because i t  i s  no t  a  th i rd  par ty  f low o f  in  and a  th i rd  

par t y  f low out .    

 And I  s t ipu la te  what  the  in te r  account  t ransfe rs  

a re  and I . . .   Sor ry,  jus t  bear  w i th  me,  p lease counse l .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Okay.  

MR SACKS:    Counse l ,  th is  wou ld  be  a  good oppor tun i ty  

jus t  to  in t roduce th is  d iagram for  the  benef i t  o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  20 

MR SACKS:    Because i t  much c learer  ove r  here .   So to  

th is  po in t ,  I  jus t  want  to  make sure  we unders tand the 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  may I  ask .   Mr  Sacks 

has drawn up a  poor ly  rep resenta t ion  o f  what  appears  a t  
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page 901 and 905.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  am jus t  go ing  to  hand tha t  up  

because i t  may be a  conven ien t  po in t  fo r  Mr  Sacks to  

ind ica te  to  you the  in f lows and the  ou t f lows.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And i t  does not  say  anyth ing  except  

rep resent  p ic to r ia l l y.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And in  d i f fe ren t  co lours .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Money coming and so  on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  he lp fu l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  m igh t  he lp .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  h ’m.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   I  do  no t  know where  you want  

to  inc lude i t  Cha i rpe rson?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  fo r  now,  I  am happy to  have i t  on  20 

the  s ide .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then la te r  on  i t  can  be p laced in  the  

r igh t  p lace  in  the  f i le .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Okay?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Sor ry.   Yes,  go  ahead.  

MR SACKS:    So  Cha i rperson,  I  have prepared these 

p ic to r i a l  f low o f  funds pure l y  fo r  th is  Commiss ion .   Due to  

the  vo lume and the  b ig  numbers i t  i s  jus t  eas ie r  to  see i t  in  

d iag ram fo rmat .   So the  f i rs t  page ta lks  about  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

po in ts  counse l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR SACKS:    . . . to ta l  f lows . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  one is  the  f i rs t  page?   

MR SACKS:    The one tha t  says . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    These two are  no t  numbered?  

MR SACKS:    . . . tha t  says . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    What?   A re  you look ing  a t  these ones 

or. . .?  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  tha t  i s . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SACKS:    I t  says  Swi fambo F low o f  Funds Summary,  a t  20 

the  top .   I t  says  Cash In f lows . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t  wou ld  be  the  f i rs t  page? 

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sha l l  we mark  i t  1 ,  l i ke  page 1?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  we can Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    O f  the  two pages?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So . . .   Wel l ,  Mr  Sacks I  am a l le rg ic  to  

any document  tha t  i s  no t  pag ina ted,  tha t  does no t  have  

page numbers .  

MR SACKS:    Fa i r  enough Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So .   Okay a l r igh t .   Yes.   So you  say le t  

us  s ta r t  w i th  tha t  page?  

MR SACKS:    Yes .   Yes,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

MR SACKS:    I  s imp ly  want  to  re fe r  to  th is  document  

because the  bo t tom o f  th is  page and the  bo t tom le f t  corner  

ta lks  about  the  to ta l  rece ip ts  in to  the  Swi fambo bank  

accounts  and i t  is  R 2 .7  b i l l i on ,  R  2 .710 659 196,00.   And 

you can see on the  bo t tom le f t  corner.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m?  Are  you a t  the  bo t tom corner?  

MR SACKS:    Bo t tom le f t  corner.   Jus t  to ta l  rece ip ts  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Look a t  th is  s ide  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:    Bo t tom. . .  I t  i s  the  o ther  page.   Sor ry.    20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  page 2?  

MR SACKS:    Ja ,  sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  tha t  i s  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  must  look  somewhere  here?  
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MR SACKS:    Ja ,  bo t tom le f t  corne r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR SACKS:    The to ta l  says ,  to ta l  rece ip ts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR SACKS:    Yes .   Sor ry  fo r  tha t  confus ion  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  the  –  a t  the  bo t tom le f t  o f  page 2  o f  

the  two documents ,  i t  reads to ta l  rece ip ts  in to  Swi fambo 

bank accounts ,  R  2 .7  b i l l i on .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  a  round f igure .  10 

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay?  

MR SACKS:    And then,  on  the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  same 

page,  i t  says  to ta l  payments  o f  R 2 .5  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  oppos i te  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    . . . corne r  o f  the  same page.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  i s  on  the  r igh t  hand s ide ,  yes .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  says  to ta l  payments  f rom Swi fambo  20 

bank accounts .   Obv ious ly,  tha t  must  mean go ing  out .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Payments  go ing  ou t .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    R  2 .5  b i l l i on .  



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 170 of 269 
 

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  a  round f igure .  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   So less  than a  m i l l ion  wou ld  have 

remained w i th  Sw i fambo? 

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    There  was a  ba lance.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  a  ba lance.  

MR SACKS:    There  was a  ba lance,  bank accounts .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    In  tha t  po in t  in  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   So def in i te ly  most  o f  the  amount  

went  ou t?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

MR SACKS:    And the  reason why  I  po in t  to  th is  document  

now is  because i t  ignores these  in te r -account  t ransfers .   

Th is  i s  pure ly  money coming in  f rom th i rd  par t y  sources.   

Obv ious ly,  in  the  main  f rom PRASA coming in ,  R 2 .6  b i l l i on  20 

and  then who rece ived the  money go ing  out .   And i t  igno res 

in te r -company t ransfers ,  in te r -account  t ransfers  because 

tha t  i s  m is lead ing  to  assess ing  u t i l i sa t ion  o f  money.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  wou ld  i t  be  an  accura te  s ta tement  to  

say fo r  a l l  in tense and purposes the  amount  rece ived f rom 
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–  in to  Swi fambo bank accounts  was f rom PRASA? 

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson.   And tha t  i s  a  

very  impor tan t  in fo rmat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  yes .   And then –  and Swi fambo 

pa id  ou t  to  o ther  en t i t ies  or  rec ip ien ts?  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Most  o f  tha t  money?  

MR SACKS:    Yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  wou ld  be  an accura te  s ta tement?  

MR SACKS:    Yes.   And tha t  i s  what  my repor t  dea ls  w i th ,  10 

who these rec ip ien ts  a re .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Le t  us . . .   Is  i t  a  conven ien t  t ime to 

dea l  w i th  the  de ta i l s  o f  th is?  

MR SACKS:    I  th ink  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Or  do  you want  to  do  someth ing  f i rs t?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  i t  m igh t  be  va luab le  a t  th is 

po in t  jus t  to  ta lk  about  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Paragraph 13?  

MR SACKS:    Paragraph 13.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:    The ac t iv i t y.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    That  i s  page 896 Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe we cou ld . . .   I  see  i t  i s  about  one  

minute  to  fou r,  four  o ’c lock .   Maybe we cou ld  take  the . . .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Some ad journment .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have an es t imate  o f  how long we  

might  s t i l l  be?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Cha i rperson,  un for tunate ly,  i s  go ing  

to  be  beyond f i ve  o ’c lock  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  know you have a  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no .   That  i s  f ine  bu t  jus t  to  g ive  me 10 

an idea.   How much beyond do you th ink?   Ha l f -past  f i ve?   

Maybe more  than  tha t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  w i l l  be  more  than tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    There  are  many aspects  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . . tha t  the  Commiss ion  ought  to  be  

in te res ted  in  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . . f rom th is .   When I  asked the  

l iqu ida to r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . .because  the  -  bo th  o f  them are  

g iv ing  ev idence on s im i la r  th ings.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    The l iqu ida tor  p re fe r red  tha t  

Mr  Sacks be ing  a  Forens ic  Invest iga tor  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . .dea ls  w i th  even mat te rs  tha t  were  

sent  to  h im by Mr  Mashaba.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    He is  no t  a  fo rens i c  invest iga tor.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    So i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  w i l l  be  longer.   But  the  l iqu ida tor  

w i l l  be  –  once Mr  Sacks has se t  the  p la t fo rm . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    . . . the  l iqu ida tor  wou ld  be . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I t  wou ld  f low very  qu ick ly  abou t  the . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You know,  wha t  I  am th ink ing  is .   We 

have the  even ing  sess ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  may we l l  be  –  I  th ink  the  even ing  

w i tness,  i t  i s  es t imated tha t  she  wou ld  take  about  two  

hours  i f  I  am not  m is taken.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And I  am th ink ing  tha t  i f  Mr  Sacks is  
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ava i lab le ,  maybe  we cou ld  go  up  to  a  cer ta in  po in t  and  

then tomorrow morn ing  we cou ld  cont inue before  the  

l iqu ida to r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  te rms o f  the  t ime tha t  you th ink  the  

l iqu ida to r  w i l l  take ,  what  i s  your  assessment?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  do  no t  th ink  more  than an hour  and 

a  ha l f  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   So Mr  Sacks m ight  be  need ing  

about  two to  th ree  hours?  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A t  leas t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  leas t?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  th ink  i f  tha t  i s  so ,  I  th ink  maybe we 

shou ld  go  up to  f i ve .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then I  am assuming he i s  ava i lab le  

fo r  us  tomorrow.   I f  he  is  ava i lab le  tomorrow then we can 

ad journ  h is  ev idence unt i l  tomor row morn ing .   Then we 

s tar t  w i th  h im tomorrow morn ing .   So I  can do the  even ing  20 

w i tness and f in ish  w i th  tha t .   And then we cont inue w i th  

h im tomorrow.   A f te r  he  has f in i shed,  the  l iqu ida tor  can  

come.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  the  l iqu ida to r. . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Sacks,  wou ld  tha t  work  fo r  you?  How 
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i s  your  ava i lab i l i t y?  

MR SACKS:    I  w i l l  make myse l f  ava i lab le  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You w i l l  make yourse l f  ava i lab le .   Thank  

you very  much.   Okay le t  us  take  a  ten  m inutes ’ 

ad journment  and then we cont inue  w i th  Mr  Sacks ’ ev idence 

unt i l  f i ve .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay we ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   As  you p lease,  Cha i rpe rson.   Mr  

Sacks,  we were  a t  page 896 and you were  dea l ing  w i th  th is  

top ic  o f  the  p re-ac t iv i t ies  in  the  Swi fambo bank account .   

Before  we dea l  w i th  the  de ta i l s ,  why do you regard  these 

pre -ac t iv i t ies  as  impor tan t?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson,  why I  be l ieve  these pre-

ac t iv i t ies  are  impor tan t  i s  because i t  conf i rms  f rom a  

bank ing  account  po in t  o f  v iew  tha t  Swi fambo had no 

bus iness ac t iv i t ies  pr io r  to  th is  lead ing  up to  the  rece ip t  o f  20 

money f rom PRASA.   So the  a l legat ions tha t  i t  was a  

f ron t ing  en t i t y  i s  conf i rmed by  i t s  bank accounts ,  there  was 

–  as  you  yourse l f ,  Cha i rperson,  you a l luded to  we l l ,  there  

i s  no th ing  in  the  bank account  bu t  R60,  there  was noth ing  

in  these account  o f  substance,  smal l  depos i ts  coming in  
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f rom l inked ind i v idua ls  who rece ived money,  pu t t ing  money 

in  to  pay fo r  ren t ,  to  pay fo r  fu rn ish ings and so  fo r th ,  bu t  

the  key takeaway is  tha t  there  was no ac t iv i t y  i n  these 

accounts  and the  f i rs t  s ign i f i can t  ac t i v i t y  was the  f i rs t  

rece ip t  f rom PRASA in to  Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ings bank 

account  and tha t  summar ises tha t  sec t ion  o f  th is  p re-

ac t iv i t y.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Bu t  i t  re in fo rces a  po in t  you made 

much ea r l ie r  tha t  they had no  exper ience in  the  ra i l  

indust ry.  10 

MR SACKS:    Yes,  i t  cor re la tes  w i th  tha t ,  sub jec t  to ,  o f  

course ,  Cha i rperson,  i f  they  had o ther  bank accounts  

somewhere  e l se  bu t  I  th ink  the  invest iga t ion  had  a l ready 

conc luded or  wou ld  have conc luded tha t  these were  the  

bank accounts  fo r  Swi fambo,  there  was no o ther  bank 

accounts ,  no  o ther  ac t i v i t y  bu t  these accounts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A t  the  t ime was  b idd ing ,  by  the  way,  d id  

they say they wou ld  re l y  on  was i t  Sponge(?)  company? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Voss loh .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Voss loh .   D id  they say they wou ld  re ly  20 

on  Voss loh  fo r  exper ience or  exper t i se?  

MR SACKS:    I  th ink  tha t  can be taken as  a  fac t  tha t  they  

were  re l y ing  on  Voss loh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

MR SACKS:    I t  was …[ in tervenes ]  
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CHAIRPERSON :    There  was no cont rac t  be tween them and 

Voss loh  a t  tha t  t ime,  the  cont rac t  came much la te r.  

MR SACKS:    Yes,  yes ,  the  cont rac t  –  the  ac tua l  cont rac t  

came Ju ly  2013  when the  cont rac t  be tween PRASA and 

Swi fambo was March 2013.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .   There fore ,  pu re l y  on  tha t  

g round they shou ld  no t  have been g iven the  job  because  

there  was no cont rac t  be tween them and Voss loh.  

MR SACKS:    My  unders tand ing ,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  was the  

SCA conf i rmed tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  aga in ,  Mr  Son i ,  one keeps on 

re fer r i ng  to  o the r  t ransact ions tha t  the  Commiss ion  has 

heard  because a lso  in  regard  to  –  w i th  regard  to  the  

asbestos  pro jec t ,  the  jo in t  venture  d id  no t  have –  a  jo in t  

venture  o f  Mr  Sod i  and Mr  Mpambani  d id  no t  have the 

exper t i se  or  qua l i f i ca t ions or  exper ience o f  remov ing  

asbestos  wh ich  was the  core  job  funct ion  tha t  they were  

g iven the  cont rac t  fo r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you have here  Swi fambo who gets  20 

g iven a  b ig  job  wor th  b i l l i ons  o f  rands but  they do  not  have 

the  exper t i se ,  they do  not  have any t rack  reco rd  and they  

ge t  g iven.   Swi fambo,  Mr  Sod i  –  I  mean Mr  Sod i  and Mr  

Mpambani ’s  venture  and Mr  Sod i  conceded tha t  in  te rms o f  

leg is la t ion  to  remove asbestos  f rom the  roo fs  o f  the  houses  
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you  need a  cer ta in  qua l i f i ca t ion  wh ich  they d id  no t  have.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you ask  yourse l f  the  quest ion  aga in  –  

I  mean,  in  regard  to  tha t  one I  asked the  quest ion  whoever  

in  the  depar tment  dec ided to  g ive  them th i s  must  have  

known tha t  th is  was a  requ i rement .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    How d id  they no t  check whether  tha t  

jo in t  ventu re  had  the  qua l i f i ca t ions and the  sk i l l s  to  do  the  

job .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Here  too  you ask  the  same quest ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Whoever  made  the  dec is ion  a t  PRASA,  

how d id  they g ive  th is  cont rac t  to  Swi fambo who  had no  

exper ience,  no  t rack  record  and  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  they 

re l ied  on  Voss loh and sa id  Voss loh  wou ld  br ing  the  

exper t i se ,  tha t  pe rson made the  dec is ion  to  g ive  Sw i fambo 

the  job  w i thout  say ing  where  i s  the  cont rac t  be tween you  

and Voss loh  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  tha t  cou ld  be  accepted.   20 

But ,  o f  cou rse ,  the  quest ion  ar i ses ,  i f  you  do not  have the  

exper t i se  and the  qua l i f i ca t ions,  why shou ld  you be g iven  

the  job?  Why shou ld  i t  no t  be  the  person who has the  

qua l i f i ca t ions and the  exper t i se  who b ids  fo r  the  job?  So 

these issues ar i se  in  regard  –  one  can see some para l le ls .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And o f  course ,  Cha i rpe rson,  i f  I  may 

jus t  po in t  ou t ,  tha t  our  const i tu t ion  presents  one  o f  the  

fa i res t  mechan isms wi th  the  d i s t r ibu t ion  o f  government  

work  or  s ta te  work  and ye t  we see  i t  t ime and aga in  be ing  

to ta l l y  ignored.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And i t  someth ing  fo r  the  peop le  o f  the  

count ry  tha t  needs to  s top  because we are  now in  the  10 

s i tua t ion  in  2013  we have pa id  th is  money and we  s t i l l  do 

no t  have the  locomot ives .   Our  peop le  s t i l l  have  to  use 

tax is ,  ou r  peop le  s t i l l  have to  use buses,  use  o ld  t ra ins .   

Th is  cannot  be  fa i r  to  them,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  mean th is  th ing  spreads a l l  over  

because under  the  Transnet  work  s t ream you had ent i t ies  

such as  the  en t i t y  ca l led  Homix  wh ich  was g iven  money  

when they d id  no  work  o f  any substance,  some words were  

used to  say what  they wou ld  do  but  in  substance the re  was  

noth ing ,  they jus t  were  pa id  money.   So i t  spreads a l l  ove r.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sure  under  Eskom s im i la r  th ings 

were  found a l so .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Mr  Sacks,  you were  say ing  tha t  these  

–  the  impor tance  o f  the  pre-ac t iv i t y,  the  pr io r  ac t i v i t ies  on  

the  bank accoun ts  are  impor tan t .   Cou ld  you jus t  b r ie f l y  

summar ise  what  those are?  We do  not  need them in  de ta i l ,  

they  a re  f rom 13.1  to  13 .2  and then you summar ise  them in  

13 .3 .  

MR SACKS:    Yes.   Cha i rperson ,  in  13 .1  I  dea l  w i th  the  

pre -ac t iv i t y  in  Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  S tandard  Bank  

account .   Th is  was the  bank account  tha t  was noted in  the  

cont rac t  tha t  PRASA was to  pay in  te rms o f  the  cont rac t  10 

w i th  Swi fambo and I  know i t  i s  tha t  –  even though the  

count  was opera t iona l  f rom 1  January  2012 there  is  

ev ident ly  no  t ransact iona l  o r  opera t iona l  ac t i v i t y  in  th is  

account  except  fo r  bank charges and ins ign i f i can t  rece ip ts  

w i th  desc r ip t ion  Musa,  wh ich  cou ld  re fer  to  Musa Cap i ta l ,  a  

company l inked to  Cynth ia  Par i sh ,  who was a  d i rec tor  o f  

Swi fambo.   

 The f i rs t  s ign i f i can t  t ransact ion  o r  ac t i v i t y  occu r red  

w i th  the  second rece ip t  f rom PRASA in  the  amount  o f  R64 

mi l l ion  on  8  December  2013.   So even though the  account  20 

was opened on 1  January  2012 wh ich  on  or  a round the  t ime 

tha t  Swi fambo as an  ent i t y  was  fo rmed,  g ive  o r  take  

months  he re  o r  there ,  there  was no ac t iv i t y  in  th is  account  

un t i l  two years  l a te r  when i t  rece ived a  second PRASA 

payment .   I t  never  rece ived the  f i rs t  one,  as  i t  shou ld  have,  
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so  fo r  two years  there  was no ac t iv i t y  in  th is  bank account  

aga in  wh ich  suppor t s  the  conten t ion  tha t  i t  was  not  a  

t rad ing  en t i t y.  

 The Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ings bank account ,  I  a lso  

looked a t  tha t  bank account  and  tha t  bank account  was 

opened on the  1  January  2011 and between the  pe r iods 1  

January  2011 and 5  Apr i l  2013 –  so  we are  look ing  a t  

rough ly  a  two year  pe r iod  where  5  Apr i l  2013 was  when i t  

rece ived PRASA’s  f i rs t  payment  o f  R460 mi l l ion .   There  

was rece ip ts  in  t ha t  account  to ta l l ing  jus t  ove r  R1 mi l l ion.   10 

So over  a  two year  per iod  i t  had rece ived R1 mi l l ion  and  

the  rece ip ts  had a  descr ip t ion  S iyaya Ra i l  So lu t ions and as  

we exp lo red ear l ie r,  S iyaya as  a  group o f  compan ies ,  S  

Group i s  l inked  to  Makhensa Mabunda and Voss loh  

themse lves,  there  were  rece ip ts  coming in to  the  bank 

account  w i th  the  desc r ip t ion  Voss loh SA and Voss loh  Track  

had pa id  money in to  th is  bank account .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Sor ry,  can I  jus t  s top  you there?  The  

cont rac t  be tween  Voss loh and Swi fambo was in  Ju ly  2013,  

i s  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   These  amounts  tha t  Voss loh  

depos i ted ,  remember  –  and I  am jus t  mak ing  th is  po in t ,  

tha t  i t  was Swi fambo who was to  pay Voss loh  because 

Voss loh  was manufac tur ing  the  locomot ives .   Were  these  
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amounts  rece ived in  Swi fambo’s  account  be fo re  the  

cont rac t?  

MR SACKS:    Yes ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   So  e f fec t i ve ly  Voss loh was  fund ing  

Swi fambo’s  ex is tence p r io r  to  Swi fambo’s  rece iv ing  money 

f rom PRASA.  

MR SACKS:    Ex is tence or  to  use another  word ,  

Cha i rperson,  to  se t  up  Swi fambo.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Yes.  

MR SACKS:    And Cha i rperson then on the  next  page,  the  10 

top  o f  your  page 898 in  parag raph 13.2 .5  I  assess how tha t  

money was u t i l i sed  and as  I  s ta ted  R1 mi l l ion  comes in .  

essent ia l l y,  R1 mi l l ion  goes ou t  w i th  the  descr ip t ion 

Growthpo in t  P roper t ies ,  your  17  payments  and Growthpo in t  

–  I  th ink  i t  i s  common cause Growthpo in t  i s  one  o f  the 

l i s ted  proper ty  compan ies ,  so  i t  was obv ious l y  the  land lord  

fo r  th is  o f f i ce ,  they rece ived R368 000 and payments  w i th  

the  desc r ip t ion  De lacov ias  In te r i o r,  os tens ib ly  fo r  o f f i ce 

fu rn ish ings,  R276 000 and then two payments  to  M S  R 

Mabunda wh ich  ind ica tes  payments  to  Makhensa Mabunda 20 

fo r  R250 000.    

So the  takeaway  f rom a l l  o f  th is  ana lys i s  i s  the re  

was no t rade in  these compan ies .   Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  

i t se l f  had no money f low ing th rough i t  un t i l  PRASA pa id  i t s  

second payment  in  and Swi fambo Ra i l  Ho ld ings had no  
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ac t i v i t y  in  i t  bu t  fo r  the  fund ing  o f  ren t  and fu rn ish ings to  

se t  up  a  company wh ich  was funded fo r  re la ted  pa r t ies  –  I  

use  the  word  in  conversa t iona l  sense,  Voss loh  and  S iyaya  

Ra i l  So lu t ions and tha t  leads up to  where  now PRASA pays  

money in to  the  bank account  o f  Swi fambo,  460 mi l l ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   And then a t  13 .3 .2  you say someth ing  

about  what  these ac t iv i t ies  conf i rm.  

MR SACKS :    Cha i rperson,  I  s ta te  tha t  in  13 .3 .2 :  

“There fo re  the  bank accounts  conf i rm tha t  Swi fambo  

was a  company se t  up  fo r  the  l ocomot ive  tender  10 

w i th  PRASA.   

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   I  see  you do not  say  fo r  the  prov id ing  

o f  locomot ives .  

MR SACKS:   I t  was d ra f t  repor t ,  Cha i rperson,  maybe… 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   No,  no ,  no ,  I  am jus t  say ing  we l l -sa id ,  

yes .  

MR SACKS:   Ja ,  ja .   Yes,  yes ,  I  take  your  po in t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   And then a t  13 .3 .3  the  po in t  you made  

ear l ie r  tha t  the  s ta r t -up  costs  were  be ing  pa id  by  Mabunda,  

Voss loh  and Musa Cap i ta l ,  tha t  i s  Ms Par i sh .  20 

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   A l r igh t .   Now le t  us  ge t  to  the  rea l  

hear t  o f  the  issue,  the  f low o f  funds ana lys is .   Aga in ,  leve l  

one is  in f lows ana lys is ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Okay.   Now is  th is  a  good t ime  to  ta lk  

to  the  p ic to r ia l  representa t ion  because,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  

what  you say in  paragraph 14 is  in  e f fec t  what  i s  se t  ou t  in  

tab le  4 .  

MR SACKS:   That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson,  the  repor t  jus t  

dea l  w i th  a  b i t  o f  p reamble ,  some fo rens ic  techn ica l i t ies ,  

jus t  to  qua l i f y,  you know,  how the  –  the  ana lys i s  tha t  I  d id  

bu t  i t  i s  no t  re levant  to  the  f ind ings and counse l  i s  cor rec t ,  

when we get  to  14 .2  we now get  to  what  I  inc luded,  a  tab le ,  

what  I  ca l l  tab le  4  on  paragraph 14.2  wh ich  summar ises the  10 

in  and out f lows wh ich  essent ia l l y  i s  shown per  p ic to r ia l  

d iag ram which  we d iscussed pr io r  to  the  ad journment  o r  

the  break.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   I t  may be eas ie r,  and I  am jus t  

suggest ing ,  to  dea l  w i th  the  p ic to r i a l  rep resenta t ion  

because in  a  way i t  conso l ida tes  the  ind iv idua l  en t r ies  on  

tab le  4  and i t  pu ts  i t  ou t  n ice ly  so  we do not  have to  do  the  

sums aga in .  

MR SACKS:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Wou ld  tha t  be  a  conven ien t  way to  20 

dea l  w i th  tha t?  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  i t  jus t  –  the  p ic to r ia l  one,  the  

p ic to r i a l  d iagram is  a  h igh l igh t  o f  key  t ransact ions .   What  

the  repor t  ac tua l l y  a lso  dea ls  w i th  i s  –  Cha i rperson,  in  a 

bank s ta tement  there  is  descr ip t ions  showing money is  
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coming in  and money is  go ing  ou t  and what  we are  a im ing  

to  ach ieve in  a  f low o f  funds  ana lys i s  i s  to  ident i f y  

desc r ip t ions  tha t  have the  same descr ip t ion  and to ta l  them 

up and say okay,  we l l  -  fo r  example ,  when you see PRASA 

money coming in ,  i t  m igh t  no t  say  PRASA,  PRASA,  PRASA,  

PRASA,  i t  w i l l  say  PRASA wi th  some code o r  Umjan j i (? )  o r  

PRASA Crest  o r  someth ing .   What  we do is ,  we take  a l l  o f  

those and say we l l ,  tha t  i s  PRASA,  we know tha t  i s  PRASA,  

or  ca tegor ise  tha t  PRASA,  tha t  i s  R2.6  b i l l i on .  We do  

someth ing  s im i la r  w i th  a l l  the  ou t f lows and we look  fo r  a l l  10 

the  connect ing  t ransact ions.   That  i s  the  f i rs t  par t .   

Obv ious l y ,  the  second pa r t  i s  to  conf i rm our  v iew on  

tha t  tha t  i s  the  rec ip ien t  o f  money.   In  my exper ience,  as  

an  exper t ,  more  o f ten  than not  the  descr ip t ion  ac tua l l y  i s  

the  benef ic ia ry .   So when,  fo r  example ,  i t  says  Voss loh ,  

Voss loh  rece ived  the  money.   Where  i t  says  Mashaba,  

Mashaba rece ived the  money.   In  cer ta in  ins tances  I  guess 

in  an  example  o f  a  fo rens ic  invest iga t ion  where  someone is  

t ry ing  to  concea l  a  payment .   No  one i s  t ry ing  to  concea l  

payments  over  here  because the  perpet ra to r  o r  the  20 

cont ro l le rs  o f  th is  bank account  a re  the  peop le  who are  

mak ing  the  payments  bu t  i f  you  can th ink ,  Cha i rpe rson,  in  

a  company where  you have a  bookkeeper .   A  bookkeeper  

m ight  pu t  a  d i f fe ren t  descr ip t ion  to  where  the  money 

ac tua l l y  went  and  in  a  c r im ina l  invest iga t ion  wou ld  have to  
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go  and prove tha t  tha t  was a  concea lment  and who ac tua l l y  

rece ived the  money in  th is  case,  a t  ta l l  t imes,  w i th  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  ava i lab le  to  me ,  these descr ip t i ons ,  as  

we w i l l  ta lk  to ,  were  ac tua l l y  the  rec ip ien ts ,  so  –  I  mean,   

jus t  there  where  i t  says  AM Consu l t ing  Eng ineers ,  w i thout  

look ing  a t  the  documents ,  AMC Consu l t ing  Eng ineers  wh ich  

is  a  company cont ro l led  by  Mashaba,  AM Consu l t ing  

Eng ineers  d id  rece ive  the  money .   When i t  says  M S R 

Mabunda,  M S  R  Mabunda bank account  d id  rece ive  the  

money but  w i th  tha t  knowledge in  m ind,  we ta lk  to  now 10 

what  the  f low o f  funds ac tua l l y  shows.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   A l r igh t ,  le t  us  look a t  the  –  as  you 

sa id ,  the  p ic to r i a l  representa t ion  is  h igh l igh t s  o f  what  i s  

conta ined in  tab le  4 ,  wou ld  tha t  be  co r rec t?  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   R igh t ,  le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  the  f i rs t  one.   

Wel l ,  le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  the  in f lows,  tha t  i s  R2,65 b i l l i on  f rom 

PRASA to  Swi fambo,  tha t  i s  Swi fambo Leas ing  and 

Ho ld ings.  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   And then you say there  a re  the  o the r  

in f lows o f  about  R60,45 mi l l ion .  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   A re  any o f  them o f  any s ign i f i cance,  

those in f lows?  
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MR SACKS:    The in f lows,  Cha i rpe rson,  o f  R60  mi l l ion 

there ,  R38 mi l l ion  a lone has  the  descr ip t ion  SARS 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Sacks and Mr  Son i ,  you 

are  ahead o f  me ,  I  was check ing  someth ing  a t  page 901 

wh i le  you were  mov ing  on.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Yes,  I  thought  you were  and we are  

go ing  to  come to  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:  So I  am sor ry  t o  take  you back.   I f  you 

want  to  go  back and –  ja .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   We were  look ing  a t  the  p ic to r i a l  

rep resenta t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   I  th ink  i t  i s  your  second page.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   The one tha t  says Swi fambo f low o f  

funds.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Now I  was ask ing  Mr  Sacks about  the  

f i rs t  amount  re f lec ted  on the  le f t  hand s ide  tha t  went  in to  20 

the  Swi fambo bank accounts .  

CHAIRPERSON:  And tha t  i s  the  2 .6  around about  –  I  mean 

the  round f igu re .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   That  i s  r igh t ,  yes .    

CHAIRPERSON:  Yes.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC :   So tha t  i s  the  amount  f rom SARS – I  

am sor ry,  f rom PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:  PRASA,  yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Cha i rperson ,  I  jus t  want  to  make one  

po in t  i f  you  have  not  m issed i t ,  i t  i s  okay.   These amounts  

are  to  bo th  Ho ld ings and Leas ing  and then I  was ask ing  Mr  

Sacks about  the  R60,4  m i l l ion  re f lec ted  under  tha t  as  

fu r ther  in f lows in to  Swi fambo and ask ing  Mr  Sacks is  there  

any s ign i f i cance in  any o f  the  in f lows.   That  i s  the  quest ion  

he  was answer ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:  Okay,  okay.  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  there  i s  no  s ign i f i cance in  these 

in f lows.   The la rgest  in f low is  an  amount  o f  R38 mi l l ion  

wh ich  had a  descr ip t ion  SARS VAT.   So I  wou ld  assume 

sub jec t  to  conf i rmat ion  tha t  i t  was a  VAT re fund o f  sor ts ,  

bu t  no ,  there  is  no  o ther  s ign i f i can t  in f lows.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   A l r igh t .   Then we can go to  the  r igh t  

hand s ide  and when you  -  i f  you  want  to  po in t  ou t  wh ich  

number  where  prec i se l y  i t  i s  you can do tha t .   But  I  mean,  

some o f  i t  i s  obv ious.   When you say the  f i rs t  b ig  rec ip ien t ,  20 

I  am not  say ing  amount ,  was Voss loh .   How many  – are  

there  many ent r ies  he re  on  Voss loh?  I  see two.  

MR SACKS:   Cha i rperson,  I  am sor ry  to  –  we need to  look  

a t  the  p ic to r ia l  d iagram and then …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:  I  have i t  in  f ron t  o f  me.  



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 189 of 269 
 

MR SACKS:   Yes  and then there  is  tha t  tab le  on  page 901 

wh ich  is  the  source  in fo rmat ion  and I  th ink  counse l  i s  

re fe r r i ng  to  tha t  bu t  i t  says  Voss loh rece ived R1.8  b i l l i on 

and tha t  i s  shown on tha t  tab le .   There  were  s i x  

t ransact ions to ta l l ing  R1.8  b i l l i on  and tha t  i s  how i t  f lows  

bu t  w i thout  los ing  s igh t  o r  los ing  be tween the  de ta i l ,  

Voss loh  rece ived R1.8  b i l l i on .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Okay.   I t  was the  major  rec ip ien t .  

MR SACKS:   Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Now th is  i s  ou t  o f  the  R2,6  b i l l i on .  10 

MR SACKS:   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   So  we are  look ing  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:  I  am sor ry,  on  the  two pages,  page 2 ,  I  

am look ing  fo r  any money tha t  went  f rom Swi fambo to  

Voss loh .   I  do  no t  see anyth ing  is  tha t  because there  is  

no th ing  or  I  jus t  have not  looked c lose ly  enough? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   No,  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  you have got  

the  pages inve r ted ,  i t  i s  the  document  Swi fambo F low o f  

Funds.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  tha t  i s  page 2 ,  fo r  me.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Yes,  yes .   And you w i l l  see  i t  i s  the 

f i rs t  one r igh t  on  the  top .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Oh,  oh ,  I  th ink  the  prob lem is  tha t  the  

res t  o f  the  rec ip ien ts  a re  wr i t ten  in  b lack ,  i t  i s  wr i t ten  in  

…[ in tervenes]  
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MR SACKS:   Yes,  in  red .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Ja,  i t  i s  no t  easy to  see i t .   Okay,  now I  

see,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Now jus t  on  tha t  –  tha t  i s  t he  to ta l  

amount  they rece ived.   Le t  us  pu t  i t  a t  R1,9  b i l l i on ,  1 ,87 .   

Swi fambo rece ived R2,65 b i l l i on .  Remember  I  sa id  to  you 

we must  make a  no te  tha t  Mr  Massero  says the i r  p ro f i t  i s  

119 mi l l ion .  

MR SACKS:   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Bu t  I  mean th i s  wou ld  suggest  10 

someth ing  qu i te  d i f fe ren t .  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  i s  –  Cha i rperson,  tha t  i s  po in t  I  sa id  why 

i t  i s  so  impor tan t ,  tha t  R118 mi l l ion  p ro f i t  tha t  Sw i fambo 

ought  to  have made f rom th is  cont rac t ,  the  d i f fe rence 

between the  Euro  PRASA they had  pa id  fo r  the  – procured 

the  locomot ives  and PRASA pa id .   They charged  PRASA 

for  the  locomot ive  and w i thout  ge t t ing  ahead o f  ourse l ves,  

when we –  as  counse l  i s  po in t ing  to ,  PRASA has pa id  2 .6  

b i l l i on ,  they have pa id  1 .9  b i l l i on  to  Voss loh,  you are  

leav ing  R700 mi l l ion  and tha t  –  we  look a t  tha t  700 mi l l ion ,  20 

i t  s ta r ts  to  revea l ,  revea ls  a l l  as  to  we l l ,  where  d id  the 

money go?  I t  never  went  to  Voss loh,  so  where  was th is  

money –  where  was –  jus t  in  the  f i rs t  ba tch  o f  2 .6  b i l l i on ,  

where  was i t  go ing?  And tha t  i s  what  I  have  drawn 

conc lus ions on ,  on  th is  one  page d iagram which  
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summar ises,  my  repor t  de ta i l s  the  ac tua l  -  [ ind is t inc t ]  

26 .16  as  you see  the  t ransact ions ,  th is  one pager  i s  good  

fo r  in fo rmat ion  purposes but  they want  to  know,  okay,  

where  d id  they  –  my repor t  shows a l l  the  d i f fe ren t  

payments ,  the  da tes ,  the  descr ip t ions ,  the  amounts  and 

tha t  i s  on  the  remain ing  pages as  we l l  as  say ing  who those 

banks –  the  compan ies  tha t  rece ived,  who the  s ignator ies  

are  on  those bank accounts .   I f  i t  i s  a  company,  who the  

d i rec tors  a re  o f  those compan ies ,  wh ich  counse l  I  guess  

wou ld  ge t  to  bu t  the  over r i d ing  po in t ,  we are  dea l i ng  now 10 

w i th  R700 mi l l ion  d i f fe rence between what  PRASA pa id  and  

what  Voss loh  rece ived.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC :   Cha i rperson,  you might  remember  I  

sa id  tha t  the  amount  o f  119,  in  fac t  i f  I  cou ld  j us t  po in t  ou t  

to  you a t  page 879,  Mr  Sacks emphas ises th is .   When he  

was dea l ing  pa ragraph 11.55 he made the  po in t  tha t  pure ly  

look ing  a t  the  cont rac ts  the  a l legat ion  is  tha t  Swi fambo 

wou ld  be  mak ing  a  pro f i t  o f  R118 mi l l ion  bu t  as  Mr  Sacks is  

now po in t ing  ou t  tha t  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  R700 mi l l ion  and not  the  

pro f i t  bu t  cer ta in ly  i t  pa id  R700 mi l l ion  less  than i t  rece ived  20 

f rom PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Does tha t  mean tha t  there  shou ld  be  any 

amendment  o f  tha t  R118 mi l l ion  there  or  no t  rea l l y  a t  page  

879?  

MR SACKS:   Excuse me,  879.  
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CHAIRPERSON:  Ja,  Mr  Son i  jus t  d rew my a t ten t ion  to  the  

fac t  tha t  a t  879 you sa id  tha t  Swi fambo wou ld  cont rac tua l l y  

earn  a  pro f i t  o f  118 mi l l ion .  

MR SACKS:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:  Right?   But  as  i t  tu rned out ,  i t  seems i t  

was about  700 mi l l ion?  

MR SACKS:   I  th ink  i s  a  good po in t  to  r igh t  now,  

Cha i rperson,  i s  to  jus t  to  e labora te  on  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Ja.  

MR SACKS:   Th i s  i s  rea l l y  an  impor tan t  po in t .   We wi l l  go 10 

in to  the  f low o f  funds.   The ana lys is  shows tha t  Swi fambo  

spent  more  than  i t  ought  to  have ea rned as  a  p ro f i t ,  so 

the i r  p ro f i t ,  as  we have as  da ta ,  shou ld  have been on or  

a round R118 mi l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Ja,  tha t  i s  what  I  shou ld  have been.  

MR SACKS:   That  i s  what  –  fo r  the  two or  th ree  year  

cont rac t .  

CHAIRPERSON:  Ja.  

MR SACKS:   Tha t  they had s igned  a t  PRASA and tha t  i s  i t ,  

fo r  whatever  work  they were  go ing  to  do  wh ich  has been  20 

es tab l i shed by  the  SCA was not  much,  they on ly  ge t  R118  

mi l l ion  and the  bu lk  o f  i t  be ing  the  res t  o f  the  Euro  cont rac t  

w i l l  go  to  Voss loh .    

The ana lys i s  shows tha t  –  now we are  look ing  a t  

R700 mi l l ion  and le t  us  jus t  ta lk  w i thout  ge t t ing  in to  
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numbers .   Swi fambo pa id  SARS R230-odd mi l l ion .    

We assume tha t  those payments  had some so r t  o f  

leg i t imacy,  maybe fo r  VAT purposes.   I  have no t  seen  

documenta t ion ,  I  do  no t  know what  i t  i s ,  I  th ink  the  

l iqu ida to r  m ight  be  ab le  to  ta lk  more  because they have the  

records.    

Then we a re  s i t t ing  w i th  R460-odd  mi l l ion  and tha t  i s  rea l l y  

the  number  tha t  we a re  look ing  a t ,  R460 mi l l ion .   We know 

S ibenza,  fo r  example ,  rece ived  R99 mi l l ion .   We have 

spoken about  –  there  cou ld  have  been some commerc ia l  10 

ra t iona le ,  so  even i f  we take  o f f  S ibenza R99mi l l ion  you ’ re  

dea l ing  w i th  R330mi l l ion .   That  R330mi l l ion  i s  g rea t ly  

h igher  than the  p ro f i t s  tha t  they shou ld  have made ,  and as  

the  ana lys i s  w i l l  show a  lo t  o f  tha t  money was ac tua l l y  pa id  

ou t  even before  Swi fambo was pa id  the i r  f i rs t  payments .    

 So in  o ther  words in  summary Sw i fambo was tak ing  

a l l  i t s  p ro f i t s ,  and more  than i t  was ent i t led  to ,  up  f ron t ,  by  

tak ing  means i t  was pay ing  o ther  rec ip ien ts  and those  

rec ip ien ts  a re  de ta i led  in  the  repor t ,  and i f  Counse l  w i l l  

a l low me to ,  Mashaba,  Mabunda,  Mashebe,  Accountant  20 

Landgrebe,  var ious f i rms o f  a t to rneys wh ich  I  unders tand  

were  condu i ts ,  whether  they knew or  d idn ’ t  know what  the  

money was f rom and I  what  I  am jus t  say ing  is  tha t  

regard less  o f  who rece ived the  money i t  i s  a  g la r ing  

e f f i c iency in  th i s  who le  cont rac t  o f  R180mi l l ion  pro f i t  bu t  so  
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much over  and above tha t  was pa id  and then a t  a  po in t  in  

t ime PRASA go back to  the  Board  and say we l l  we ’ re  shor t  

o f  money  because we don ’ t  have  enough to  pay bu t  tha t  

money shou ld  have been pa id  a t  the  very  least  to  Voss loh ,  

whethe r  Voss loh  was making  the  r igh t  t ra ins  or  no t ,  

AFRO3000,  AFRO4000,  the  money shou ld  have gone to 

them as Massara  c la ims tha t  we don ’ t  have enough  money  

to  pay Swi fambo,  we a re  shor t   pay ing  them but  we need 

R400mi l l ion ,  tha t  i s  essent ia l l y  tha t  was in  the  a f f idav i t s ,  

they  cou ld  have  pa id  i t ,  bu t  they pre fe r red  themse lves,  10 

they pre fer red  to  pay a l l  these o ther  peop le ,  d i rec t  l inked 

peop le ,  no t  jus t  the  d i rec tors ,  Mashabas,  Mabundas  and so 

fo r th ,  and tha t  is  what  the  ana lys i s  showed and  tha t  i s  

what  I  was say ing  to  the  po l i ce .    

 The invest iga t ion  once i t  had been comple ted  we  

have conf i rmed a l l  these a l legat ions,  remember  these are  

jus t  a l legat ions and susp ic ions,  we are  look ing  a t  the  

money,  bu t  the  one conc lus ion  you can most  ce r ta in ly  d raw 

is  tha t  Swi fambo spent  more  money than they were  en t i t led  

to ,  they pro f i ted  s ign i f i can t ly  more  than they were  en t i t led  20 

to ,  so  no t  on ly  R118mi l l ion .   By  the  t ime the  cont rac t  was 

suspended i t  was a l ready s i t t ing  a t  R330mi l l ion  over  and  

above the  f ru i t less  and waste fu l  expend i tu re  and I  am not  

an  exper t  on  the  PFMA,  o f  spend ing  money on locomot ives  

tha t  a re  no t  su i tab le ,  tha t  i s  a  separa te  po in t  comple te ly.    
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Now we are  look ing  a t  fo r  lack  o f  a  be t te r  word  the f t  o f  

money,  o f  PRASA’s  money,  bu t  I  don ’ t  want  to  – I  am not  

the  judge or  ju ry,  bu t  tha t ’s  what  I  was t ry ing  to  ge t  across  

in  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  does i t  look  l i ke  in  a  sense 

Swi fambo may have taken money tha t  cont rac tua l l y  

be tween i t se l f  and Voss loh  shou ld  have gone to  Voss loh  or  

does i t  look  l i ke  Swi fambo took the  add i t iona l  money f rom 

PRASA tha t  PRASA shou ld  no t  have pa id  in  te rms o f  the 

cont rac t?    I  mean we can see what  was happen ing  here ,  10 

bu t  you wonder  i f  they  were  supposed to  make R118mi l l ion  

and sudden ly  they make R300mi l l ion  o r  whatever  who has 

been robbed,  you  want  to  ask  tha t  quest ion .  

MR SACKS:    I  th ink  we can conc lus i ve l y  say  i t  was 

PRASA.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SACKS:   Because Voss loh  wou ld  have no t  have 

produced those  locomot ives  i f  they  d idn ’ t  ge t  pa id  

every th ing  i t  was ent i t led  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  20 

MR SACKS:  And I  guess we never  reached tha t  po in t  

because we were  s topped.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja ,  okay.    Mr  Son i?  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    As  you p lease Cha i rperson.    The  

f i rs t  person,  I  mean the  f i rs t  en t i t y  on  the  l i s t  i s  Voss loh  
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and i f  one looks a t  the  tab le  a t  page 901 we w i l l  jus t  –  i t  i s  

there ,  r igh t .   Then the  next  person  and ent i t ies  i s  Mashaba 

w i th  102 or  near l y  R103mi l l ion ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now you l i s t  in  tab le  4  a l l  the  spec i f i c  

t ransact ions tha t  were  made to  Mashaba or  i t s  en t i t ies?  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  then the  nex t  ma in  

benef ic ia ry  was Mabunda.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And sor ry  ja ,  and  he benef i t ted  to  the  

tune o f  R54,6mi l l ion .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    We wi l l  come back to  any o ther  

benef i t s  Mr  Mabunda  has rece ived because I  th ink  la te r  in  

your  repor t  you say he  a lso  rece ived R75mi l l ion  d i rec t l y  

f rom Voss loh .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then there  is  the  –  i t  i s  Ms  

Mashebe?  20 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  assume you p ronounce 

Mashebe.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes but  I  say  i t  i s  Ms,  i t  i s  Miss?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  don ’ t ,  I  am not  sure ,  I  have 

met  th is  person,  i t  Makhos in i  Dan ie l  Mashebe.  
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Oh so  i t  looks  l i ke  i t  i s  Mis te r.  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson I  am no t  sure .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A l r igh t ,  then S ibenzo Forward ing  tha t  

i s  fo r  the  sh ipp ing  costs  and so  on .    They were  the  

rec ip ien ts  o f  N ine ty  N ine  odd mi l l ion  Rand.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then there  is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  you have got  the  spe l l ing  fo r  S i f i so  

wrong there ,  Buthe lez i ,  i t  shou ld  be  S- i - f - i - s -o ,  you have  

got  S iph iso .  10 

MR SACKS:  Chai rperson you a re  100% cor rec t ,  in  the  

body o f  the  repor t  i t  i s  spe l t  cor rec t l y,  on  f ina l i sa t ion  th is  

wou ld  have been p icked up.     

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  okay.  

MR SACKS:   Thank you.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then the  next  b ig  rec ip ien t  i s  Mr  

Landgrebe.  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    What  serv i ces ,  o r  what  i s  h is  l ink  to  

Mashaba,  Mabunda and so  on?   H is  name appears  qu i te  20 

o f ten ,  you know jus t  so  tha t  we have,  keep the  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  in  p lace .  

MR SACKS:    I f  I  may Cha i rperson  re fer  to  my repor t ,  jus t  

to  answer  th is  quest ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Obv ious ly  you do dea l  w i th  i t .  
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MR SACKS:    Yes,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  summar i se  Cha i rpe rson  

th is  –  W K H Landgrebe i t  appears  to  be  an  aud i t ing  f i rm 

and W K H Landgrebe were  the  reg is te red aud i to rs  o f  

Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  and so  a t  th is  s tage  o f  the 

invest iga t ion  I  wasn ’ t  100% sure  who W K H Landgrebe but  

fo r  them be ing  aud i to rs ,  no t  on ly  o f  Swi fambo Ra i l  Leas ing  

but  o ther  en t i t ies  who rece ived money as  we l l ,  wh ich  my  

repor t  dea ls  w i th ,  so  w i thout  convo lu t ing  I  am not  sure  

wh ich  aud i t ing  f i rm rece ives R27mi l l ion  and tha t  was 

def in i te ly  an  area  o f  fu r ther  invest iga t ion .  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes ,  and some o f  them were  

qu i te  la rge  sums,  and i f  I  remember  –  and you dea l  w i th  i t  

in  you r  repor t ,  I  th ink  one was fo r  about  R10mi l l ion  in  one 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:    One ind iv idua l  payment ,  tha t  i s  cor rec t  

Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then the re ’s  Cynth ia  Par i sh  who 

rece ives twenty  odd mi l l ion  Rand.   

MR SACKS:    Yes  in  Musa Cap i ta l  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    R igh t  and then there ’s  Inkhos i  S ibe lo  20 

he is  an  a t to rney  whose name fea tures  aga in  la te r,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR SACKS:    That ’s  co r rec t  Cha i rperson.    

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Then o f  course  SARS is  a  benef ic ia ry  

as  we l l  o r  SARS rece ived Two hundred and th i r t y  seven 
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odd mi l l ion .  

MR SACKS:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now those a re  the  main  rec ip ien ts  o f  

money as  se t  ou t  in  tab le  4  bu t  be fore  we leave tha t  and I  

ask  you and any o ther  pe rsons may I  re fe r  you to  jus t  a f te r  

the  SARS VAT re fund o f  R38mi l l ion  there  is  a  foundat ion  

wh ich  rece ives money.   What  foundat ion  was tha t?  

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson the  desc r ip t ion  in  t he  bank  

s ta tement  sa id  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion  one payment  fo r  

R150 000.  10 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And then la te r  on  towards the  end,  

about  four  o r  f i ve  en t i t ies  f rom the  end an ent i t y  ca l led  

SANCO and what  i s  the  amount  tha t  they rece ived? 

MR SACKS:    Cha i rperson the re  was a  desc r ip t ion  in  the  

bank s ta tement  ca l led  SANCO one  payment  fo r  R500 000.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    A re  you ab le  to  conf i rm tha t  i t  was 

rece ived by  –  tha t  tha t  amount  was  rece ived by  SANCO? 

MR SACKS:    Not  a t  the  s tage I  d id  my repor t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Now the re  is  jus t  one o the r  mat te r  

tha t  you may not  have in fo rmat ion  on ,  bu t  there ’s  an  20 

amount  o f  R5mi l l ion  pa id  to  S ter l ings  L iv ing ,  do  you see 

tha t ,  i t  i s  in  fac t  the  second las t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SACKS:    I  see  tha t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  now the  l iqu ida to r,  and he w i l l  

g ive  ev idence on  i t ,  bu t  I  am jus t  te l l ing  you so  you know 
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what  the  overa l l  p ic tu re  looks l i ke ,  the  l iqu ida to r  says  

S ter l ing  L iv ings d id  renovat ions or  bu i l t  a  k i t chen in  a  

house fo r  Mr  Mabunda fo r  tha t  amount .   That  i s  what  was 

revea led  in  a  consu l ta t ion  he ld  be tween us  and  the  

l iqu ida to r,  bu t  he  w i l l  come and  ta lk  about  i t ,  and i t  i s  

in te res t ing ly  how they were  ab le  to  loca te  how i t  happened  

and so  on ,  bu t  those are  no t  smal l  sums o f  money.  

MR SACKS:    I  wou ld  l i ke  a  k i t chen fo r  R5mi l l ion  

Cha i rperson.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    I  wou ld  l i ke  a  house fo r  R5mi l l ion .   10 

But  i s  there  anyth ing  in  regard  to  tab le  4  Mr  Sacks tha t  you  

wou ld  l i ke  to  add to  –  we have dea l t  w i th  some o f  these 

mat te rs?  

MR SACKS:   Not  a t  th is  s tage Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  what ’s  

per t inent  i s  as  I  have d iscussed  the  overa l l  p ic tu re  and  

then who the  key  benef ic ia r ies  o f  rec ip ien ts  o f  money was,  

wh ich  is  dea l t  w i th  subsequent  to  Tab le  4 .   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.   We may want  to  –  we may dea l  

w i th  some o f  these persons because in  h is  no tes  to  h is  

la tes t  CM100 Mr  Mashaba cha l lenges some o f  these 20 

payments  made by  Swi fambo obv ious ly,  bu t  he  cha l lenges 

the  va l id i t y  o f  these payments .    I t  wou ld  have been an 

in te res t ing  issue Cha i rperson where  a  pe rson on oa th  says  

tha t  there  was no  va lue  fo r  money,  I  don ’ t  know wha t  i t  was  

fo r,  bu t  he  was the  CEO of  the  company tha t  made those 



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 201 of 269 
 

payments .    

 Inc identa l l y  Cha i rperson I  w i l l  j us t  po in t  th is  ou t ,  he  

cha l lenges the  payments  made to  Mr  Mabunda in  no te  to  

h is  CM100  say ing  tha t  Mabunda added no va lue ,  he  

doesn ’ t  know why  Mabunda was pa id ,  bu t  we w i l l  dea l  w i th  

those deta i l s  as  he  se ts  them out  in  h i s  no tes  to  the  

CM100.  

 A l r igh t  and then can I  jus t  ask  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  I  am jus t  th ink ing  Mr  Son i  tha t  in  

the  l igh t  o f  Mr  Mashaba ’s  fa i lu re  or  re fusa l  to  comply  w i th  10 

the  summons and  appear  be fore  the  Commiss ion  to  exp la in  

some o f  the  mat te rs  re la t ing  to  t he  Swi fambo con t rac t  i t  

may we l l  be  tha t  a t  some s tage,  maybe tomor row,  i f  the  

s i tua t ion  doesn ’ t  permi t  tomorrow maybe somet ime next  

week,  i t  m igh t  be  impor tan t  tha t  you out l ine  here  in  pub l i c  

the  issues tha t  he  was supposed to  exp la in .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  the  pub l i c  know.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Indeed Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  is  a lso  what  Mr  Pre tor ius  d id  20 

when Mr  Zuma d id  no t  appear  on  Monday las t  week,  le t  the 

pub l i c  know exac t ly  what  the  issues a re  and the  quest ions 

tha t  –  some o f  the  quest ions tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAS SONI  SC:   That  we wou ld  have asked.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  he  wou ld  have had to  answer,  and he  
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i s  runn ing  away f rom answer ing .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Abso lu te ly,  as  you p lease Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Mr Cha i rpe rson one o f  the  prob lems I  

have been hav ing ,  and I  know we have run  Mr  Sacks ’ 

ev idence fo r  a  who le  day,  bu t  i t  jus t  seemed to  me tha t  the  

de ta i l s  conta ined  in  Mr  Sacks ’ a f f idav i t  o r  h is  repor t ,  ought  

to  be  known to  the  pub l i c ,  l i ke  fo r  example  tha t  in  respect  

o f  a  cont rac t  o r  t ranspor t  R5mi l l ion  i s  spent  on  a  k i tchen,  i t  

i s  so  v i ta l  fo r  the  pub l i c  to  know and hopefu l l y  our  leaders  10 

w i l l  s ta r t  say ing  bu t  ac t ion  must  be  taken now,  ton igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no  i t  i s  very  impor tan t  because par t  

o f  the  purpose fo r  th is  Commiss ion  is  fo r  the  pub l i c  to  

know what  was happen ing ,  who d id  what ,  and i f  money was 

–  taxpayers ’ money was taken wha t  was i t  taken fo r.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Who benef i t ted  f rom i t ,  who took the  

money and what  d id  they do  w i th  i t ,  i f  we have got  tha t  

ev idence.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    And Cha i rperson,  i f  I  may add  20 

because th is  i s  what  I  am go ing  to  conc lude when  I  f in ish  

w i th  Mr  Sacks ’ ev idence,  what  law enfo rcement  o f f i c ia ls  

knew and the  inact ion  fo r  a  per iod  o f  four  yea rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Near ly  fou r  years  as  you po in ted  out  
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ear l ie r  today.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ac tua l l y  ta lk ing  about  tha t  I  do  want  the 

Hawks to  te l l  me what  i s  happen ing ,  I  have sa id  so  be fore  

in  re la t ion  to  PRASA mat te rs .   A t  a  cer ta in  s tage  I  was 

under  the  impress ion  tha t  the  Commiss ion  wou ld  ge t  an  

a f f idav i t  f rom somebody w i th in  the  Hawks who wou ld  

exp la in ,  bu t  I  am not  aware  tha t  the  Commiss ion  has  

rece ived such an a f f idav i t .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    No,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  there  be  an 10 

account  o f  what ’s  happened because the  compla in ts  has  

been made,  the  a l legat ions have been made tha t  some law 

enforcement  agenc ies  were  weakened or  some o f  the  

peop le  w i th in  those law enfo rcement  agenc ies  a ided and  

abet ted  s ta te  capture  and a ided  and abet ted  co r rup t ion ,  

and when they were  supposed to  take  ac t ion  d id  no t  take  

ac t ion .  

 Of  course  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  what  appears  to  be  

inexp l i cab le  to  us  may be they w i l l  come and exp la in  and  

we can unders tand,  maybe i t  i s  issues o f  capac i t y  I  don ’ t  20 

know but  i t  cannot  be  le f t  unexp la ined,  so  tha t  w i l l  be  ve ry  

impor tan t .  

 I  mean the  –  when Mr  Mole fe  gave  ev idence here ,  I  

don ’ t  know whether  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime whethe r  i t  was 2020 

or  2019 he ment ioned . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV VAS SONI  SC:   Ear ly  2020.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  he  ment ioned a l ready tha t  there  had 

been inact ion  fo r  qu i te  some t ime wh i le  h i s  Board  was s t i l l  

i n  o f f i ce ,  tha t  i s  why they had to  b r ing  an  app l i ca t ion  to  

Cour t  and ins tead o f  the  Hawks dea l ing  w i th  the  substance  

they took some techn ica l  po in t  to  oppose.    Now i f  so  many 

years  la te r  s t i l l  no th ing  has been done the  Hawks owe the  

count ry  an  exp lanat ion .  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    As  to  exact ly  what  i s  go ing  on  and so  i t  10 

is  very  impor tan t  so  I  wou ld  l i ke  tha t  be  looked in to  bu t  i t  

has  go t  to  be  exp la ined.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Because i f  th i s  inac t ion  i s  connected 

w i th  the  weaken ing  o f  law enforcement  agenc ies  or  the  

a id ing  and abet t ing  o f  those who were  pursu ing  the  agenda 

o f  s ta te  captu re  then the  Commiss ion  wants  to  know 

exact ly  what  happened.  

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And why i t  has  taken so  long.  20 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .    I  guess we are  a t  f i ve  

past  f i ve ,  I  th ink  we shou ld  s top  and then tomorrow we can  

s tar t  a t  ten  because i t  looks  l i ke  there  w i l l  be  enough t ime? 

ADV VAS SONI  SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    We can s tar t  a t  ten .   Thank you very  

much Mr  Sacks fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f  a lso  tomor row.    

MR SACKS:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  we can f in ish ,  thank you ve ry  

much.   So I  w i l l  ad journ  the  hear ing  o f  your  ev idence and 

then I  w i l l  take  an  ad journment  and then I  w i l l  come back 

fo r  the  even ing  sess ion  wh ich  w i l l  re la te  to  the 

Par l iamentary  Overs igh t  work  s t ream,  I  shou ld  be  hear ing  

the  ev idence o f  Ms Letsa ts i -Duba  in  re la t ion  to  tha t  work  

s t ream.  10 

 I  w i l l  ad journ  fo r  about  ten  m inutes .   We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:  Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good a f te rnoon Mr  Freund.   Good 

a f te rnoon everybody.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good a f te rnoon Ms Letsa ts i -Duba .    

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  thank you  very  much fo r  ava i l ing  

yourse l f  to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Thank you .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Mr  Freund? 

ADV FREUND SC:    Cha i r,  there  is  on ly  one w i tness  whose  
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ev idence we wou ld  ask  you to  hear  th is  a f te rnoon,  

Ms Letsa ts i -Duba .   You w i l l  reca l l  there  was a  se t  o f  

a f f idav i t s  fu rn ished by  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress in  

Vo lume 1 .  

 And f rom page 77 o f  Vo lume 1  th rough to  page 

82 o f  Vo lume 1 ,  i s  a  reasonab le  shor t  a f f idav i t  by  

Ms Letsa ts i -Duba  wh ich  has a l ready been p rov i s iona l l y  

admi t ted  and I  am go ing  to  ask  Ms Letsa ts i -Duba ,  in  due  

course ,  to  conf i rm tha t  a f f idav i t .  

 And no doubt  you  wou ld  w ish  to  have a  sworn- in  10 

f i rs t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  thank you.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Cha i r. . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The reg i s t ra r  w i l l  admin is te r  the  oa th  or  

a f f i rmat ion ,  depend ing  on wh ich  one you  pre fer  

Ms Letsa ts i -Duba .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  w i l l  take  an  oath .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

WITNESS:    My fu l l  names are  D ipuo Betha Letsa ts i -Duba.  20 

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  in  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

WITNESS:    No ob jec t ion .  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  
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WITNESS:    Yes.  

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you are  about  to  g ive ,  sha l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  

and noth ing  bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra ise  up  your  r igh t  

hand and say,  so  he lp  me God.  

WITNESS:    So  he lp  me God.  

DIPUO BETHA LETSATSI -DUBA :   (d .s .s . )  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much.   Mr  Freund .  

EXAMINATION BY ADV FREUND SC:    Thank you  Cha i r.   

Ms Letsa ts i -Duba ,  i s  i t  cor rec t ,  as  I  have jus t  desc r ibed to 10 

the  Cha i r,  tha t  you deposed to  an  a f f idav i t  a t  the  request  o f  

the  A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress?   I t  runs to  some 33  

paragraphs and  i t  was s igned by  you on the  

9 t h  o f  October  2020?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And I  take  i t  tha t  tha t  i s  your  s ignature  

tha t  we see a f te r  parag raph 33?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Cor rec t .   That  i s  my s ignature .  

ADV FREUND SC:    Cha i r,  I  ask  then to  the  ex ten t  

necessary  tha t  th is  a f f idav i t  be  admi t ted  fo rmal ly.   I  am 20 

jus t . . .  I t  i s  par t  ZZ-1 .   I  jus t  want  to  check the  fo rmal  

desc r ip t ion .   I t  i s  ZZ-1 .7 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay the  a f f idav i t  o f  Ms D ipuo Beta  

Le tsa ts i -Duba wh ich  s ta r ts  a t  page 77 is  admi t ted . . .   Does  

i t  have annexures?  I t  does not  have annexures,  hey? 
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ADV FREUND SC:    There  are  no t  annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   I s  admi t ted  then and  w i l l  be  

marked as  Exh ib i t  ZZ-1 .7 .  

AFFIDAVIT  OF DIPUO BETA LETSATSI -DUBA IS 

ADMITTED AND MARKED AS EXHIBIT  ZZ-1 .7  

ADV FREUND SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   May I  then proceed?  

CHAIRPERSON:    You may p roceed.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Ms Letsa ts i -Duba,  I  am go ing  to  be  

tak ing  you th rough your  a f f idav i t  bu t  some o f  i t  I  th ink  we 

do not  need to  spend a  lo t  o f  t ime on.   I s  i t  cor rec t ,  as  you  10 

say in  parag raph  3 ,  tha t  you le f t  South  A f r i ca  in  1983 and  

jo ined the  A f r i can  Nat iona l  Congress in  ex i le?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    And then a f te r  the  ANC was unbanned,  

you re tu rned to  South  A f r i ca  and  you became ac t ive  in  

po l i t i ca l .   In  par t icu la r,  you served  in  the  government  o f  the 

L impopo Prov ince as  you dea l  w i th  in  paragraph 5 .   I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    And then you say,  and is  th is  cor rec t ,  20 

tha t  you were  e lec ted  as  a  member  o f  the  Nat iona l  

Execut ive  Commi t tee  o f  the  ANC af te r  the  Nat iona l  

Conference in  Mangaung in  December  2012? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    And fo r  how long d id  you remain  a  
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member  o f  the  Na t iona l  Execut ive  Commi t tee?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  am s t i l l  a  member  to  da te .  

ADV FREUND SC:    You are  s t i l l  a  member  to  da te?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And you say  in  paragraph 7  tha t  you 

became a  member  o f  Par l iament  in  2014 a f te r  the  Genera l  

E lec t ions.   I  p resume tha t  i s  cor rec t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    And f rom tha t  t ime,  wh ich  is  to  say 

f rom May 2014,  wh ich  is  a f te r  the  e lec t ions and when the  10 

new Par l iament  was e lec ted ,  f rom May 2014 unt i l  

March 2017,  you served as  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  on  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    What  then happened in  2017 is  tha t  

you were  appo in ted  as  the  Deputy  Min i s te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Serv i ce  and Admin is t ra t ion  and thereaf te r  you se rved as  

Min is te r  o f  S ta te  Secur i t y.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  i s  co r rec t  s i r.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Now we are  par t i cu la r ly  focuss ing  fo r  20 

present  purposes  on the  per iod  tha t  you served as  Cha i r  o f  

the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Pub l i c  Enterp r ises .   And you 

say in  paragraph 11 o f  your  a f f idav i t  there  were  8  members  

and 4  a l te rna tes  o f  tha t  commi t tee  and tha t  the  Min is te r  

tha t  you had dea l ings w i th  a t  the  t ime was Min is te r  Lynne  
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B rown.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Qu i te  cor rec t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    Then you say i n  parag raph 12:  

“The fac t  tha t  the  a l te rna te  members  

somet imes d id  no t  a t tend because  they had to 

a t tend meet ings o f  o ther  por t fo l io  commi t tees,  

hampered the  work  o f  the  commi t tee . . . ”  

 Was tha t  a  ser ious p rob lem o f  why d id  you th ink  

you shou ld  make a  re ference to  tha t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  thought  I  shou ld  make re ference 10 

to  tha t  because in  some ins tances there  w i l l  be  ser ious 

issues wh ich  needs a l l  o f  us  to  pu t  our  heads togethe r.   So 

when o ther  members  a re  no t  in  a t tendance,  we a re  

weakened as  a  commi t tee .  

ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t .   Thank  you.   I  want  to  turn  now 

to  paragraph 13 o f  your  a f f idav i t .   You say:  

“ I  d id  no t  exper ience any pushback f rom 

Min is te r  Brown.   However,  ho ld ing  Comrade  

Lynne Brown accountab le  was a  cha l lenge.  

She d id  no t  a t tend meet ings o f  the  Por t fo l io  20 

Commi t tee  and ins tead sent  her  deputy. . . ”  

 And then you exp la in  in  the  res t  o f  tha t  

parag raph tha t  what  she sa id  was tha t  you r  meet ings  

over lapped w i th  Cab ine t  meet ings  and tha t  i s  why she d id  

no t  come.  
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 Perhaps you can  jus t  expand on tha t  and a lso  

exp la in  whether  o r  no t  i t  was not  poss ib le  to  a r range  

a f fa i rs  in  a  way tha t  you r  meet ings d id  no t  a lways over lap  

w i th  the  week ly  meet ing  o f  Cab ine t .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    The Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  meet ings  

are  se t  by  a  ru les  commi t tee  in  Par l iament  and the  da te  

and  the  weeks and so  on  are  de termined by  them.   So 

when we rea l i sed our  meet ings co inc ided w i th  the  

Par l iament ,  I  have managed to  spoke to  he r  to  say :   I f  you  

have no issues to  p resent  in  Cab ine t ,  i t  w i l l  be  proper  fo r  10 

you fo r  to  come and a t tend the  meet ing  o f  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee .  

 And I  do  no t  know i f  she took the  adv i ce 

proper ly.   Our  th ing  is  because once I  was in  the  Execut ive  

I  used to  see o ther  members  o f  the  Execut ive  excus ing  

themse lves to  a t tend Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  meet ings  bu t  w i th  

Ms Brown,  she w i l l  no t  do  tha t .    

 I  do  no t  know i f  she had issues a l l  the  t ime to 

present  in  Cab ine t  o r  she d id  no t  want  to  a t tend the 

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  meet ings.   I  do  no t  know.  20 

ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t .   When  you sa id  a  moment  ago 

tha t  once you were  i n  the  Execu t ive ,  you made cer ta in  -  

you observed ce r ta in  th ings.   A re  you re fe r r ing  to  the  

per iod  when you were  yourse l f  a  member  o f  the  Cab ine t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    When I  was a  member  o f  Cab ine t  
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and even pr io r  to  tha t ,  be fore  tha t ,  I  used to  see o ther  

Min is te rs  a t tend ing  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tees.   That  i s  the  

reason why I  was say ing  to  her  i f  there  are  no  issues 

per ta in ing  to  her  depar tment ,  i t  w i l l  be  o f  ass is tance to  us  

i f  she  comes to  the  commi t tee .  

ADV FREUND SC:    Now you say in  paragraph  14 tha t  

Min is te r  Brown not  on ly  fa i led  to  a t tend the  meet ings o f  the  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .   You say she d id  no t  a t tend ANC 

Study Group meet ings wh ich  compel led  the  p rob lem o f  

mak ing  her  accountab le .   Cou ld  you perhaps expand on 10 

tha t  why you thought  i t  i s  appropr ia te  to  make tha t  po in t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    In  the  S tudy Group,  i t  i s  where  we  

in te r rogate  i ssues per ta in ing  to  the  depar tments  by  

ex tens ion  to  s ta te-owned  enterp r ises .   We –  the  main  a im 

o f  the  Study Group is  to  hear  f rom the  leadersh ip  o f  the  

depar tments  to  wh ich  the  leadersh ip  and the  admin i s t ra t i ve  

leadersh ip ,  what  a re  the  i ssues.   So as  to  enab le  us  to  

approach the  mat te rs  in  a  proper  manner  when we go to  

the  por t fo l io  meet ings.    

 And when I  was say ing  th is  the  prob lem is ,  20 

because we w i l l  go  to  the  por t fo l io  w i th  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  

is  known by any o ther  person and  genera l  in fo rmat ion  and  

ye t  the  S tudy Group  –  we can ab le  us  to  be  ab le  to  go  

deep in to  the  spec i f i c  i ssues and p repare  ourse lves fo r  the  

meet ings o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .  
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ADV FREUND SC:    Now th is  Commiss ion  has heard  qu i te  

a  b i t  o f  ev idence to  s im i la r  e f fec t  to  what  you have jus t  

sa id  tha t  Por t fo l io  Commi t tees and S tudy Groups,  tha t  

t yp ica l l y  members  and o ther  sen io r  members  o f  the  

Execut ive  a t tend S tudy Group mee t ings and tha t  p recedes  

the  meet ings o f  Por t fo l io  Commi t tees.  

 That  was a lso  the  exper ience tha t  the  manner  in  

wh ich  your  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  was run  fo r  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises  o f  a  sys tem o f  S tudy Groups preced ing  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  meet ings.   Am I  unders tand ing  tha t  10 

cor rec t l y?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  i s  co r rec t  s i r.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Now g iven tha t  the  purpose  o f  the  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  is  to  exe rc ise  ove rs igh t  over  the  

Execut ive .   I s  there  no t  someth ing  in  your  v iew a  l i t t le  

inappropr ia te  about  as  i t  were  caucus ing  before  the  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  meet ings w i th  the  Min i s te r  o r  o ther  

rep resenta t i ves  o f  the  Execut ive  where  the  po l i t i ca l  

admin is t ra t i ve ,  shou ld  no t  tha t  type o f  overs igh t  rea l l y  

been tak ing  p lace  in  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  i t se l f?  20 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Wel l ,  a t  f i rs t ,  myse l f  I  was  a  l i t t le  

b i t  comfor tab le  w i th  the  approach.   R igh t fu l l y  so  as  you 

ind ica ted ,  i t  m igh t  appear  l i ke  we are  t ry ing  to  caucus 

before  the  por t fo l io  bu t  when we ar r i ved the re  in  2014,  i t  

has  been the  p rac t ise  a l l  a long.   So we jus t  fo l lowed su i t .  
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ADV FREUND SC:    Yes.   I  suppose what  I  am rea l l y  

ask ing  you is ;  i t  i s  c lear  tha t  the  prac t ise  i s ,  as  you 

desc r ibed,  bu t  I  am ask ing  you whether  the  prac t ise  i s  no t  

perhaps a  b i t  inappropr ia te  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I t  i s .  

ADV FREUND SC:    You th ink  i t  i s?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  th ink  i t  is .  

ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  th ink  i t  is .   I  w i l l  te l l  you why i t  i s .   

Somet imes leadersh ip  o f  SOE’s  w i l l  come to  the  S tudy  10 

Group to  p resent  whatever  i ssues  and we w i l l  be  hav ing  

advantage o f  hav ing  the  in fo rmat ion  more  than any o ther  

members  o f  the  commi t tee .  

 And I  remember  a t  some po in t ,  oppos i t ion  

par t ies  were  ra is ing  issues to  say:   Yes,  yes terday we saw 

so  and so  coming to  a  S tudy Group meet ing  and I  fe l t  so  

uncomfo r tab le  to  say,  hey,  th is  th ings i t  must  be  co r rec ted  

a t  some po in t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    Yes.   So the  po in t  you make is ,  i t  

g ives  the  S tudy  Group ce r ta in  advantages over  o ther  20 

members  o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .   I s  tha t  the  po in t  you 

are  mak ing?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  po in t  I  am t ry ing  to  

make.  

ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t .   Now I  want  to  pu t  to  you  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  Mr  Freund.   But  apar t  f rom 

tha t  a lso ,  wou ld  you not  say  tha t  i t  en t renches the  fac t  tha t  

members  o f  a  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  come f rom d i f fe ren t  

po l i t i ca l  par t ies?   I  mean,  tha t  i s  a  rea l i t y.   That  we know.   

And there  is  no th ing  wrong w i th  tha t .    

 Bu t  where  members  o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee 

who be longed to  a  pa r t i cu la r  par ty  m ight  end up hav ing  a  

cer ta in  advantage der i ved f rom a t tend ing  meet ings o f  the  

S tudy Group o f  the i r  par t y  be fore  they come to  the  meet ing  10 

o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .    

 Does i t  no t  p romote  the  i dea tha t ,  we l l ,  fo r  

example ,  us  and  the  Min i s te r  who is  be ing  he ld  –  who i s  

supposed to  be  he ld  to  account  a t  tha t  meet ing?  We come 

f rom the  same par ty.   We were  in  the  S tudy  Group 

yesterday together  d iscuss ing  the  issues tha t  a re  go ing  to  

come up here .    

 Or  do  you not  th ink  tha t  m ight  be  another  reason 

why there  is  a  cha l lenge w i th  the  p rac t ise?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No,  i f  I  unders tand you Cha i r.   The 20 

reason why I  fe l t  uncomfor tab le  i s  p rec ise ly  what  you a re  

say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Because the  –  one o f  the  reasons 

why the re  was S tudy Group is  to  make sure  we in te r rogate  
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the  key po in ts  . . .   

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    . . .o f  the  par ty  in  tha t  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    To  get  fac ts  ourse lves be fo re  we go 

to  the  S tudy Group.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    And i f  she  w ish  o ther  members  who  

be long to  o ther  par t ies  w i l l  no t  have the  advantage o f  

in te rac t ing  in  tha t  manner.     10 

 So I  th ink  maybe  a t  the  end o f  the  who le  th ing ,  

the  main  th ing  is  to  make sure  we cor rec t  what  we have  

seen happen ing  dur ing  our  t enure  in  the  Nat iona l  

Assembly.  

 To  me persona l ly,  I  do  no t  th ink  the  S tudy 

Groups are  necessary  fo r  the  reasons I  have jus t  exp la ined  

now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay thank you.   Mr  Freund.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Yes,  thank you.   Perhaps I  shou ld  jus t  

p lace  on record  and make c lea r  Ms Letsa ts i -Duba,  tha t  20 

a l though when you le f t  th is  commi t tee  you became the  

Deputy  Min i s te r  in  the  Min i s t ry,  you have s ince  res igned 

f rom Par l iament  and no longer  a  member  o f  Par l iament .   I s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  I  have res igned.  
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ADV FREUND SC:    So  an ex-MP,  now look ing  back on  

your  exper ience?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And I  th ink  you sa id  in  a  no te  tha t  I  

saw in  some cor respondence,  I  th ink  yeste rday,  tha t  you  

come here  w ish ing  to  pa r t i c ipa te  i n  a  const ruc t i ve  manner  

to  t ry  to  ass is t  in  he lp ing  to  improve prac t ises  fo r  the  

fu tu re .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  10 

ADV FREUND SC:    And I  unders tand,  i t  i s  in  tha t  contex t  

tha t  you as  a  member  o f  the  ANC,  as  a  fo rmer  Min i s te r,  as  

a  fo rmer  Cha i r  o f  a  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .   You th ink  tha t  

th is  S tudy Group  sys tem i s  p rob lemat ic  and i t  needs to  be  

re thought .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  th ink  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And can I  pu t  to  you another  p rob lem 

wi th  the  S tudy  Group issue?  You yourse l f  sa id  the  

fo l low ing a  m inu te  or  two ago.   You sa id  in  the  S tudy 20 

Group,  we in te r rogate  the  employees o f  the  ru l ing  par ty,  

wh ich  I  th ink  i s  cor rec t .    

 You were  re fer r ing ,  I  p resume,  no t  on ly  fo r  

example  the  Min is te r  o r  the  Deputy  Min is te r  bu t  a lso  to  

Sen io r  D i rec tors ,  Genera l  Deputy  D i rec to rs ,  Genera l  Sen io r  
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Representa t i ves  i n  the  SOE’s .   Would  tha t  be  cor rec t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    The reason why I  am say ing  th is  

S tudy Group how i t  i s  be ing  s t ruc tu red i s  p rob lemat ic  i s  

p rec ise ly  tha t  because there  in  the  S tudy Group,  i t  i s  

supposed to  be  members  o f  the  ru l ing  par ty  on ly  bu t  you  

more  o f ten  f ind  o f f i c ia ls  f rom the  depar tment  coming to  

p resent  in  tha t  S tudy Group.  

 We do not  know whether  they are  members  o f  

the  ANC o r  they are  no t  bu t  they w i l l  be  pa r t  o f  the  S tudy  

Group.   So we –  to  rea l l y  look  in to  –  the  who le  th ing  o f  the  10 

S tudy Groups,  you know,  in  re la t ion  to  how to  improve 

accountab i l i t y  and overs igh t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    Now each S tudy Group ,  as  I  

unders tand the  ev idence we have  a l ready heard ,  has i t s  

own Whip .   Each. . .    

 So  fo r  example ,  you were  the  Cha i r  o f  the 

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  bu t  you wou ld  a lso  have w i th in  your  

caucus,  your  ANC caucus on  the  S tudy Commi t tee  

somebody who served as  a  Whip  a t  tha t  commi t tee .   In  

fac t ,  I  th ink  i t  was Mr  Rantho,  was  i t  no t?  20 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.   In  fac t ,  the  Whip  is  the  one 

who is  the  convenor  o f  the  S tudy Group.  

ADV FREUND SC:    H ’m.   And my impress ion ,  bu t  p lease  

cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  i s  tha t  i t  wou ld  be  not  a t  a l l  

unusua l  fo r  the  S tudy Group to  make dec i s ions on  what  
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app roach w i l l  be  adopted in  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  

meet ings by  the  members  in  the  S tudy Group.  

 In  o ther  words,  by  the  ANC members  and they,  o f  

course ,  a re  the  peop le  who w i l l  u l t imate ly  de term ine the  

dec is ions o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  because they  

const i tu te  the  ma jor i t y  o f  tha t .    

 Do you agree w i th  what  I  have jus t  sa id?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  I  do  agree.  

ADV FREUND SC:    So  rea l l y,  be fore  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  meet ing  s ta r ts ,  i f  you  are  a  par t i c ipan t  in  the  10 

S tudy Group and  as  long as  you ab ide  by  the  d i rec t i ves  o f  

the  Whip  o f  you r  S tudy Group,  you have a l ready dec ided  

what  approach to  adopt  in  your  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  

meet ing .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  wou ld  be  the  case.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And wou ld  the . . .   I s  your  unders tand ing  

tha t  w i th in  the  members  o f  the  ANC in  a  par t i cu la r  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  who have been par ty  t o  a  S tudy Group meet ing  

be fore  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  wou ld  your  unders tand ing  

be tha t  the  genera l  unders tand ing  among members  o f  the  20 

ANC is  tha t  you have to  –  a t  the  meet ing  o f  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  meet ing  ac t  in  accordance w i th  the  dec i s ions  

taken in  the  S tudy Group?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  i s  expected and tha t  i s  what  
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members  o f  the  ANC unders tand to  be  the  pos i t ion?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And most  o f  the  t ime,  wou ld  they ac t  in  

acco rdance w i th  those dec i s ions o f  the  S tudy Group? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    In  your  exper ience.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Most  o f  the  t ime,  tha t  i s  what  they wou ld  

do?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  wou ld  the re  be  t imes when they 

dev ia te  f rom those dec is ions in  te rms o f  how they dea l  w i th  

i ssues a t  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee?  How o f ten  wou ld  tha t  

happen?  Obv ious ly,  I  am not  look ing  fo r  a  mathemat ica l  

number.   Jus t  an  idea.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Idea.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  jus t  an  idea .   How ra re  o r  usua l  i t  i s  

tha t  some members ,  once they a re  in  the  meet ing  o f  the  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  dec ide  to  approach issues d i f fe ren t ly?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No,  there  w i l l  no t  be  such.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    They w i l l  no t  do  tha t .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you.   Mr  Freund.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Thank you Cha i r.   Ms Letsa ts i -Duba,  I  

want  to  now take you to  parag raph 15 o f  your  a f f idav i t .   
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You say in  there :  

“The ove rs igh t  too ls  ava i lab le  to  the  commi t tee  

were  no t  su f f i c ien t .  

The commi t tee  re l ied  main l y  on  annua l  repor ts  

and overs igh t  v i s i t s  to  s ta te-owned ent i t ies  to  

execute  the i r  const i tu t iona l  ob l iga t ion  o f  

overs igh t . . . ”  

 So I  am in te res ted  in  and I  wou ld  ask  you p lease 

to  e labora te  wha t  you meant  when you sa id  the  overs igh t  

too ls  were  no t  su f f i c ien t .  10 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    The overs igh t  too l s  I  am re fer r i ng  

to ,  you w i l l  reca l l  in  par t i cu la r  in  the  s ta te-owned  

enterpr i ses ,  there  was a  P resent ia l (? )  Rev iew Commi t tee  

wh ich  was fo rmed  in  2009.    

 That  commi t tee  came up  w i th  the  

recommendat ion  wh ich  says there  shou ld  be  an ove rwr i t ing  

leg is la t ion  wh ich  must  govern  a l l  the  s ta te -owned 

enterpr i ses .   That  i s  one.  

 So when I  am say ing  the  too ls ,  I  am re fer r i ng  to  

th is  absence o f  overa l l  –  overwr i t i ng  leg is la t ion  because i t  20 

was supposed to  have been done  a  long t ime ago  and i t  

was not  there .  

 Second ly,  there  i s  what  we ca l l  a  Shareho lders  

Compact  wh ich  i s  an  ag reement  wh ich  i s  en tered between 

the  board  and the  s ta te-owned enterp r ises .   I  mean,  the  
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Board  o f  SOE’s  and the  depar tmen t  i t se l f .  

 A t  Por t fo l io  Commi t tees,  we do not  have access 

to  tha t  because they pu re l y  say they cannot  g ive  us the  

shareho lders  compact  because ins ide  tha t  there  is  what  i s  

be ing  ca l led  corpora te  p lans o f  the  d i f fe ren t  bus iness  

wh ich  they say i f  they  hand them over  to  us  in  Par l iament ,  

we a re  compromis ing  what  they ca l l  commerc ia l  sens i t i v i t y  

i ssues.   So the  too ls  a re  weak in  tha t  sense.  

ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t .   Le t  me dea l  w i th  tha t  one by  

one.   The f i rs t  you ment ioned is  the  absence o f  ove rwr i t ing  10 

leg is la t ion  to  regu la te  the  governance o f  SOE’s .   I s  tha t  –  

am I  unders tand ing  you cor rec t l y?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And you say . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  was the  recommendat ion  o f  

the  Prov inc ia l  Rev iew Commi t tee  o f  2009.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And you say a l though  i t  was  

recommended i t  was never  imp lemented and you  th ink  i t  

shou ld  have been .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I t  shou ld  have been.  20 

ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t .   Second ly,  you re fer  to  the  

prob lem o f  co rpora te  p lans.   I  want  to  take  you to  

parag raph 18 o f  your  a f f idav i t .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes?  

ADV FREUND SC:    There  you say:  
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“One o f  the  s ta te-owned ent i t ies ,  Eskom,  d id  

no t  sha re  i t s  corpora te  p lan  w i th  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  on  the  grounds tha t  acco rd ing  to  

the  board ,  Eskom was governed by  the  

Companies  Act  wh ich  prec luded such  

d isc losure  and  second,  d isc losure  to  the  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  cou ld  end up w i th  

compet i to rs . . . ”  

 Now I  assume,  because you wro te  th is  in  your  

a f f idav i t ,  th is  i s  cor rec t ,  as  fa r  as  you are  concerned? 10 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Now I  have a  number  o f  quer ies  

ar is ing  f rom tha t .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Okay?  

ADV FREUND SC:    F i rs t l y,  d id  you accept  a t  the  t ime and 

do you accept  now tha t  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  had  both  a 

const i tu t iona l  r igh t  and ob l iga t ion  and a lso  apparen t  o f  the  

ru les  o f  the  Nat iona l  Assembly,  to  summons persons to  

answer  quest ions  and to  requ i re  them to  answer  quest ions 

under  oa th?  20 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  we have those powers .  

ADV FREUND SC:    So  there  wou ld  be  noth ing  to  p revent  

you and when I  say  you,  I  mean you are  ta lk ing  about  your  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  
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ADV FREUND SC:    Noth ing  to  p revent  you f rom requ i r ing  

an  ent i t y  l i ke  Eskom to  fu rn i sh  whatever  in fo rmat ion  you  

thought  was necessary  in  o rder  to  exerc i se  proper  

overs igh t .   Would  you agree w i th  tha t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  w i l l  agree w i th  you but  remember  

when we were  request ing  the  co rpo ra te  p lan ,  a l l  o f  us ,  

members  o f  the  commi t tee  inc lud ing  oppos i t ion  par t ies ,  we  

were  there  when  we were  to ld  f la t  to  say we cannot  g ive  

th is  to  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .   And then they were  say ing  

the  Eskom is  be ing  governed by  the  Companies  Act .   Those  10 

are  the  reasons.  

ADV FREUND SC:    That  i s  wha t  they sa id .   Now I  am. . .  

w i th  you,  rea l l y,  what  to  be  the  appropr ia te  response o f  

your  commi t tee  when you are  conf ron ted w i th  them,  say ing  

th ings l i ke  tha t .   So i f  I  unders tand what  you say.   Eskom,  

th rough i t s  board ,  to ld  your  commi t tee  tha t  i t  cou ld  no t  

d isc lose  in fo rmat ion  because i t  cou ld  end up w i th  

compet i to rs .   I s  tha t  co r rec t?   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  tha t  is  co r rec t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    Perhaps you cou ld  te l l  because I  am 20 

not  aware  o f  th is .   Which  compet i to rs  does Eskom have?  I  

thought  i t  had a  s ta tu tory  monopo ly?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.   I t  i s  a  monopo ly.  

ADV FREUND SC:    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV FREUND SC:    So  the  excuse gave car r i es  no  water.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I t  car r i es  no  wate r.   The same th ing  

as  Dene l ,  they  re fuse to  say,  no ,  i t  w i l l  end up w i th  the  

compet i to r,  fo rge t t ing  tha t  Eskom is  a  pure  monopo ly  

company.  

ADV FREUND SC:    So you and I  seem to  be  in  agreement  

tha t  the  excuse ra ised by  Eskom and you say a  s im i la r  

excuse was ra i sed by  Dene l ,  was an unacceptab le  excuse? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I t  was an unacceptab le  excuse.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Unacceptab le ,  no t  acceptab le .   You 10 

agree?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Unacceptab le  excuse.  

ADV FREUND SC:    R igh t .   Now when you a re  conf ron ted  

as  a  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  w i th  an  excuse fo r  no t  p rov id ing  

in fo rmat ion  tha t  you thought  was necessary,  you have the  

power  to  compel  i t  to  be  produced.   D id  you not?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  we have the  powers  bu t  I  do  

no t  know i f  you are  fami l ia r  w i th  how the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tees are  run?  Time is  very  l im i ted .   They come and 

present  th is  and say we are  no t  ab le  to . . .    20 

 In  the  next  meet ing  when we are  supposed to  

fo l low-up on th is  i ssue,  we have  another  en t i t y.   By  the  

t ime we come back to  Eskom,  we are  a lmost  a  year  –  

towards end o f  the  year.    

 So the  –  how the  commi t tees work ,  they a lso  
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need much more  o f  cons i s tency in  dea l ing  w i th  the  mat te rs  

because we have so  many i ssues as  members  o f  

Par l iament  to  g ive  a t ten t ion  to .    

 So in  my own th ink ing ,  I  th ink  we need to  have a  

smal l  team which  w i l l  be  pa r t  o f  the  commi t tee  wh ich  w i l l  

be  ab le  to  ass i s t  w i th  the  research  and a lso  to  fo l low-up on 

issues wh ich  were  ra ised in  the  commi t tee  and  we  do not  

have such.  

ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t .   And is  the  consequence  o f  the  

fac t  tha t  you d id  no t  have tha t ,  tha t  rea l l y,  in  your  own  10 

op in ion ,  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  d id  no t  e f f ec t i ve ly  

exerc ised ove rs igh t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    I  th ink  so .   I  rea l l y  th ink  so  

because we were  e f fec t i ve  in  ou r  overs igh t  w i th  p roper ly  

t ra ined personne l ,  administrat ively and even legal ly and even 

technical ly,  would be a s i tuat ion where we are r ight now in 

re lat ion to Eskom chal lenges and al l  other SOEs including your 

SAA. 

ADV FREUND SC:   Yes,  because I take i t ,  Ms Letsa ts i -Dube 

that  you,  as a c i t izen,  l ike me as a c it izen,  had been reading in 20 

the newspapers for years f rom 2011 onwards a ser ies of  qui te 

ser ious al legat ions about the manner in which the SOEs were 

being run and the ser ies of a l legat ions that  there was improper 

inf luence being exercised over the leadership of  those SOEs.  

Am I correct?  You were aware of  those al legat ions. 
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MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    We were aware o f  those  a l lega t ions.  

ADV FREUND SC:   And would  i t  be cor rect  to  say tha t  in  your 

own op in ion  the  por t fo l io  commi t tee on  Pub l ic  Ente rp r ises 

d id  not  e f fect ive ly  exerc ise i t s  overs igh t  powers w i th  a  v iew 

to  t ry ing to  p robe those a l lega t ions and t ry ing to  ensure  that  

the appropriate necessary  remed ia l  measures  were  taken? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    Tha t  I  fu l ly  agree w i th  that  

s ta tement .   We fa i led  to  exerc ise our  overs ight .  

CHAIRPERSON :    We l l ,  le t  me ask me ask th is  ques t ion.   

We l l ,  one ,  I  apprec ia te ,  Ms Le tsa ts i -Dube,  the fac t  tha t  10 

where  you  see  that  the re was fa i lu re  you  a re  p repared to  say 

yes,  we fa i led in  tha t  respec t  because  i t  i s  go ing to  be 

d i f f i cu l t  to  f ind  a  so lu t ion i f  peop le  are  not  p repared to  look 

a t  how they have done the  work and be ab le  where they fe l l  

shor t  to  say yes,  we fa i led.   But  i f  peop le  a re  p repared to  

look  a t  i ssues  w i th  a  v iew to  accep t ing  responsib i l i ty  where 

th ings d id  no t  go the  way they should  have ,  i t  i s  ha l f  the  job 

done because they  can he lp  in  f ind a  so lu t ion but  i f  they a re  

in  den ia l  they w i l l  not  be par t  o f  t ry ing to  f ind a  so lu t ion bu t  I  

wan t  to  ask  the  quest ion  whether  when one  looks a t  the 20 

fa i lu re  whether  that  fa i lu re  cou ld  be a t t r ibuted on ly  to 

mat te rs  such  as not  hav ing  enough capac i ty  in  te rms of  

admin s ta f f ,  researchers ,  maybe lega l  peop le  and  so  on  o r 

whether  there  might  not  have  been  a su f f i c ien t  commitment  

f rom the ma jo r i ty  o f  the members o f  the commi t tee to  rea l ly  
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ho ld  the i r  own comrades who happen to  be  in  the  execu t ive  

to  account?  Maybe par t ly  because  o f  what  wou ld  have 

been sa id  in  s tudy g roups.   I  have  heard ev idence tha t  in  

some cases i t  wou ld  be  sa id  by some peop le  wi th in  the 

ANC to  members o f  commit tee ,  por t fo l io  commit tees o r  

some o f  them a t  least  tha t  they must  remember  tha t  the 

min is te r  tha t  is  appear ing  be fo re  a  por t fo l io  commit tee  o r  

tha t  wi l l  be  appear ing  is  an  ANC min is te r ,  they must  no t  

act  l i ke  they a re  members o f  the  oppos i t ion ,  bu t  th is  is  an  

ANC min is te r .   There fore ,  in  o ther  words,  they must  no t ,  10 

as I  unders tand ,  p robe  too  much.   In  o ther  words,  they  

must  be  so f t  on  the  min is te rs  because  they a re  f rom the 

same par ty .  

 So  my quest ion  i s  whether  on  your  assessment  i t  i s  

no t  the  case  tha t  par t  o f  the  p rob lem migh t  have  been an 

insu f f ic ien t  commitment  o r  wi l l ingness to  rea l ly  do  th is  job 

o f  overs igh t  p roper ly  and  e f fect ive ly  because  o therwise  

you  migh t  be  seen as i f  you  a re  behav ing  l ike  an 

oppos i t ion  par ty  member  o r  you  migh t  be  seen as 

behav ing  l ike  somebody who is  no t  a  d isc ip l ined  cadre  o f  20 

the  par ty .   What  do  you  say about  tha t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    Cha i r ,  le t  me beg in  by say ing  when 

you  jo in  the  par l iament  you  a re  be ing  b rought  by the  ANC,  

you  a re be ing  b rought  by the par ty  l i ke  a l l  o ther  po l i t ica l  

par t ies  bu t  once  you  a re  in  there ,  when you  take  an  oa th ,  
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you  ab ide  by the const i tu t ion  o f  the  coun t ry  and you  a lso 

ind ica te  tha t  you  wi l l  se rve  the  peop le  o f  the  Repub l ic .   

Now the  quest ion  you  a re  say ing ,  was i t  because  o f  lack  

o f  commitment  f rom o ther  members,  tha t  is  co r rect ,  

because  you  wi l l  remember  we a re  no t  on  the  same leve l  

as  par t  o f  the consc iousness ,  the  po l i t ica l  consc iousness 

as members.  

 Now o thers  wi l l  go  there  to  say much as I  am here  

because  I  am sen t  here  by the  par ty  bu t  I  must  a lso  do  the 

r igh t  th ing  because  I  have  taken an  oa th  as an  ind iv idua l  10 

tha t  I  am go ing  to  serve  the  Repub l ic  and  ab ide by the 

const i tu t ion .   So  in  most  cases you  wi l l  f ind  there  is  these  

imba lances in  the  commit tees,  espec ia l ly  f rom our  s ide  in  

the  ru l ing  par ty  where  peop le  have  a  d i f fe rent  

unders tand ing  and  once  you  speak to  tha t ,  there wi l l  be 

o thers  who wi l l  be  say ing  we a re  no t  –  how do  I  pu t  i t ,  we  

a re  i l l -d isc ip l ined ,  th is  i s  the  min is te r  o f  the  ru l ing par ty ,  

you  cannot  be l ieve  l ike  you  a re  in  an  oppos i t ion .   I t  i s  l i ke  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  on  your  unders tand ing those th ings 20 

indeed have  some in f luence  on  how par t icu la r ly  members 

o f  the ru l ing par ty  o r  some o f  them wou ld  approach  the ir  

job  o f  overs igh t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    And  a lso  hamper ,  they pu t  

obstac les fo r  the  work  o f  the  commit tee .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  tha t  is  qu i te  –  ja .   Thank you  fo r  

those  answers.   Mr  Freund? 

ADV FREUND SC:   Thank you, Chair .   When you say they 

would hamper and put  obstacles in the way, would you l ike to 

e laborate on that a l i t t le? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    For instance I  wi l l  g ive an example, 

that  there were issues around the issue of  the Chief Execut ive 

Off icer of  Eskom being a member of  the ANC himself  and when 

we are supposed to real ly d ig deeper into the issues,  there wi l l  

be some who wi l l  be sof t  on those issues precisely because of 10 

the pol i t ica l  a l legiance they hold. 

CHAIRPERSON :    The Chie f  Execu t ive  Of f ice r  you a re  

ta lk ing about ,  i s  i t  Mr  Br ian Mole fe  o r  is  i t  somebody e lse  o r 

you  a re  just  mak ing  an  example? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    I  am just  mak ing an  example ,  not  

necessar i l y  Br ian Mo le fe .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh ,  okay,  okay.   A l r ight .   Mr  Freund? 

ADV FREUND SC:   Thank you.  So the pr incip le that I  th ink 

you are t ry ing to expla in is that at least  some ANC members of 

study groups and port fo l io commit tees would feel  that  precisely 20 

because the members of  the execut ive being overseen 

including senior leadership of  SOEs were themselves ANC 

party deployees, that  is  a reason why the port fo l io committee 

and the study group should go soft ,  should not  be seen to be 

t ry ing to embarrass or to hold them to account.  Am I 
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understanding you correct ly? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    You are understanding me correct  and 

we of ten wi l l  argue to say you know what,  we cannot afford not 

to hold them accountable,  we need to because th is is our 

responsib i l i ty  but  as I  indicated,  other people – as I  indicated 

to say,  we are on di f ferent  levels in terms of  our understanding 

and our goal in par l iament. 

CHAIRPERSON :    Can I  ask th is?  From what  you  say and 

f rom what  o ther  witnesses connected w i th  par l iament  have 

sa id ,  i t  appears to  me that  w i th in  the ru l ing par ty  when i t  10 

comes to  the per fo rmance of  overs ight  func t ions and  ho ld ing 

the  execu t ives accoun tab le  in  par l iament  bu t  by  por t fo l io 

commit tees  and  l i ke  as  in  the  Nat iona l  Assembly  as  we l l ,  

the re wou ld  be some ANC members who wou ld  be l ieve tha t ,  

fo r  example,  expos ing  cor rupt ion in  a  m in is te r ’s  depar tment  

by a  member  o f  the ANC in  a  por t fo l io  commit tee  ask ing ,  so 

to  speak  d i f f i cu l t  ques t ions abou t  that  and  expos ing tha t  

wou ld  no t  be good fo r  the par ty  bu t  maybe there would  be 

o thers who wou ld  th ink  i t  i s  the  r ight  th ing to  do.   I s  my 

understand ing correct ,  that  that  i s  what  you  a re  say ing,  par t  20 

o f  what  you a re  say ing? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    That  is  the cor rec t  unders tand ing ,  

Cha i r ,  because i f  you a re  not  expos ing  the weaknesses o r  

the  cor rup t  p rac t ices coming f rom the  very  same par ty  you 

a re  d i rec t ly  dest roy ing the  very same par ty  you a re 
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represent ing.   Tha t  i s  my unders tand ing ,  tha t  we  need  to  

ho ld  them accountab le  so as to  enable  us to  s t reng then the 

ru l ing par ty  because you  keep on  b rush ing,  keep on 

b rush ing,  keep on b rush ing and a t  the end o f  the day there is 

no serv ice de l ivery ,  peop le  s ta r t  pro test ing,  we exper ience 

po l i t ica l  ins tab i l i ty .   So my unders tand ing was tha t  you 

peop le ,  we must  just  do the  r ight  th ing  i r respec t ive  o f  who  is  

the m in is te r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    We l l ,  I  was go ing to  come to  that  because 

I  th ink I  would  fee l  ashamed i f  I  was  a  member  o f  a  po l i t i ca l  10 

par ty  and  somebody,  a  comrade o r  co l league  in  the same 

par ty  does not  want  to  expose cor rupt ion  because he  th inks 

he p ro tec ts  my par ty  by  cover ing  up cor rup t ion .   How do you 

p ro tect  the image of  your  par ty  by cover ing up,  p ro tec t ion .   

Maybe fo r  temporar i l y  you  might  th ink  i t  he lps  but  in  the  end 

i t  w i l l  come out  and is  i t  no t  be t te r ,  do you  no t  enhance the 

image o r  your  par ty  be t te r  by be ing par ty  to  expos ing 

cor rup t ion  and showing tha t  your  par ty  i s  in to lerant  o f  

co r rup t ion ra ther  than your  par ty  be ing seen as to lerant  o f  

co r rup t ion .   So  tha t  i s  the  ques t ion  that  I  a lways  have  to  say 20 

why do peop le  want  –  why do  peop le  th ink the i r  par ty 

requ i res the  cover ing  up o f  co r rupt ion in  o rder  fo r  i t  to  be 

s t rong?   I s  the  oppos i te  not  what  they shou ld  be f ight ing  fo r  

to  say what  s t rengthens our  par ty  is  an image of  i t  be ing 

in to le rant  o f  co r rupt ion  not  an  image of  i t  be ing sof t  on 
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co r rup t ion o r  be ing even p repared to  cover  up cor rup t ion i f  

i t s  own members a re  a l leged to  be  invo lved  in  co r rupt ion?   I  

suspect  tha t  your  th ink ing is  ve ry  much in  l ine  w i th  my 

th ink ing based  on  what  you have sa id  be fo re .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    I t  i s  in  l ine  w i th  my th ink ing  because 

I  do  no t  want  to  dwe l l  much  on  the va lues and  the p r inc ip les 

o f  the  o rgan isat ion .   I  be long  to  the  Af r ican Nat iona l 

Congress wh ich now is  someth ing e lse.   We cannot  go  there 

because  everybody who can  see bu t  be ing  a  member o f  

par l iament  in  any way is  abou t  uphold ing the  cons t i tu t ion  and 10 

serv ing  the  peop le  and  i f  you have members  w i th in  your  own 

par ty  who th ink  o ther  way,  they do no t  rea l ise  they  a re  

b leed ing  the o rgan isa t ion by not  expos ing the wrongs  wh ich 

a re  done .   I  a lways say you know what ,  these a re  our  

comrades,  i f  the re is  anyth ing  wrong  happen ing ,  i t  i s  us  who 

must  te l l  them, i t  i s  us who must  ass is t  them to  do  the r igh t  

th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  No,  thank you.   Mr Freund? 

ADV FREUND SC:   Thank  you ,  Chai r .   Ms Letsa ts i -Dube,  

when I  l is ten  to  you ,  I  ge t  the  impress ion ,  but  you must  20 

cor rect  me i f  I  am wrong,  that  when you  were  in  par l iament  in 

the  per iod  that  we  a re  ta lk ing  abou t ,  the re  must  have  been 

wi th in  the  ANC caucus  two  conf l i c t ing po in ts  o f  v iew,  some 

who fe l t  that  i t  was  appropriate to  e f fec t  th is  overs igh t  in  

par l iament  to  expose  and  address  a l legat ions  o f  co r rup t ion  
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and wrongdo ing  and some who fe l t  tha t  i t  was the  wrong 

th ing  to  do s t ra teg ica l ly .   Am I  understand ing tha t  co r rec t ly ,  

the re  were  two  d i f fe ren t  po in ts  o f  v iew? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    Yes,  the re  were  two d i f fe ren t  po in ts 

in  tha t  regard,  that  there w i l l  be some to  say we cannot  hang 

the  l inen  in  f ron t  o f  the  oppos i t ion  and  our  a rgument  w i th  

o thers,  w i th  the commit tee ,  w i l l  be  say ing i t  i s  not  about  

hang ing d i r ty  l inen ,  i t  i s  abou t  co r rect ing the  wrong.  

ADV FREUND SC:   Now you would  be  aware,  I  am sure,  I  

mean,  fo r  example ,  f rom the  las t  wi tness who test i f ied ,  Mr 10 

Fro l ick ,  that  in  the  midd le  o f  2017  Mr  Fro l ick  issued a 

number  o f  le t te rs  to  cha i rs  o f  por t fo l io  commit tees  say ing  in  

your  commi t tees you  shou ld  invest igate  a l legat ions  wh ich he 

sa id  were  a l legat ions  that  had appeared  in  the so-ca l led 

Gupta  Leaks and he sa id  that  that  had  the suppor t  o f  the 

Speaker and  the Chie f  Wh ip who was then Mr  Jackson 

Mthembu.   Are you  fami l ia r  w i th  that  moment  in  our  h is to ry? 

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    I  am.   I  am very much  fami l ia r .  

ADV FREUND SC:   Now …[ in te rvenes ]  

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    And we have  been push ing th is  20 

beh ind the same – to  say Ch ie f  Wh ip is  on ly  par l iament  

wh ich  can  make an impact  in  go ing  deep  in to  what  we  a re  

see ing in  the  pub l ic  space  and a l l  o f  us ,  l i ke  them and the 

Speaker ,  we  were  in  agreement  to  say  le t  us  p roceed  wi th  

th is .  
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ADV FREUND SC:   A l r ight .   Now le t  me be  c lear  tha t  I  have 

no c r i t ic ism fo r  those who pushed fo r  that  type of  

invest igat ion o f  a l lega t ions and  remed ia l  act ion where 

necessary  bu t  what  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  exp lo re  w i th  you  is  why  i t  

took so long because that  happened in  June o f  2017 and 

even then  i t  was not  an  unmit igated success ,  i t  on ly  

happened in  par t  and  i t  con t inue  to  meet  res is tance .   Why 

d id  i t  take  so  long?   You  say  –  I  go t  the  impress ion  f rom the 

answer  you  gave a  moment  ago,  that  you  were  one  o f  a  

g roup  o f  peop le  who were encourag ing  the Ch ie f  Wh ip to 10 

encourage  that  the re shou ld  be  a  change of  s tance.   So why 

d id  i t  take  so long? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    I t  took long  because  you  w i l l  

remember  we be long  to  a  caucus where  issues a re  be ing 

deba ted and agree upon .   Now on th is  par t i cu la r  i ssue o f  

hav ing the  inqu i ry ,  the re was some res is tance ,  i f  I  put  i t  in  

that  way ,  that  i t  shou ld  not  happen and  most  o f  the  reasons 

wh ich were put  forward was tha t  a l ready the Pub l ic  Pro tecto r  

i s  dea l ing w i th  the  mat te r  but  our  a rgument  was that  we l l ,  i t  

i s  f ine ,  she is  a lso  do ing  –  i t  was Thu l i  Madonse la  then,  she 20 

is  do ing  her  job  bu t  us ,  as par l iament ,  espec ia l l y  us  f rom the 

ru l ing par ty ,  we cannot  ignore  such damning a l lega t ions.  

ADV FREUND SC:   R igh t .   Now I  want  to  go back a  l i t t le  

ear l ie r  to  a  t ime that  you were  s t i l l  the  cha i r  o f  the  por t fo l io 

commit tee  and  you  re fe r  in  paragraph 26  o f  your  a f f idav i t  to 
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two le t te rs  tha t  you rece ived  f rom  Honourab le  Mazzone of  

the  Democrat ic  A l l iance  and I  hope  that  you have a t  your  

d isposa l  those le t te rs .   So I  want  to  take you  to  her  le t te r  o f  

the  14  March  2016  wh ich,  Cha i r ,  is  in  bund le  2  a t  page 192 .  

Do you,  Ms Letsats i -Dube,  have Ms Mazzone ’s  le t ter  o f  the 

14 March  2016? 

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    I  do ,  s i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  the page,  Mr  Freund ,  in  vo lume 2,  

bund le  2? 

ADV FREUND SC:   Page 192 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay, a lr ight,  page  192.  

ADV FREUND SC:   Now –  a re  you  wi th  me,  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  am,  thank you .  

ADV FREUND SC:   Ms Letsats i -Dube,  that  le t te r  can  speak 

fo r  i t se l f  but  bas ica l ly  i t  i s  a  reques t  f rom Ms Mazzone tha t  

the por t fo l io  commit tee on Pub l ic  Ente rp r ises shou ld  conduct  

a  fu l l  pa r l iamentary  inqu i ry  in to  the captu re  o f  SOEs by the 

Guptas  and  then she  p roposes  that  the commi t tee 

immed ia te ly  summon the  Guptas to  appear  before  i t  to  

answer  these  a l legat ions  as  per  her  p rev ious  le t te r  to  you .   20 

Her ev idence is  tha t  th is  is  no t  the f i rs t  le t te r ,  the re was one 

shor t ly  befo re  th is .   You  shou ld  ca l l  fo rmer  Min is te r  o f  Pub l ic  

Ente rp r ises ,  Barbara Hogan and Ma lus i  G igaba to  p rov ide 

fu l l  deta i ls  o f  the i r  re la t ionsh ip  wi th  the Gupta  fami ly ,  Mr 

G igaba  in  par t icu la r ,  shou ld  summons the CEOs and 
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Cha i rpersons  o f  the la rgest  SOEs to  appear befo re  i t  and she 

asked  fo r  a  response .  Now you conf i rm and  reca l l  rece iv ing 

that  le t te r ,  I  p resume? 

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    Pardon? 

ADV FREUND SC:   You can con f i rm that  you rece ived that  

le t te r  and you  were  aware  that  that  was request .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    No ,  on  th is  one  I  am no t  aware  o f  

rece iv ing  the  le t te r .   The le t te r  I  can  conf i rm is  the  one 

where she was a  request ing a  fu l l  pa r l iamenta ry inqu i ry  in to 

the Guptas a l lega t ions .  10 

ADV FREUND SC:   Wel l ,  i f  you look a t  the  f i rs t  paragraph o f  

the  le t te r  o f  the  14 March 2016  – do  you  have  the  le t te r  

dated the  14  March  2016? 

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    Yes,  I  do  have.  

ADV FREUND SC:   And you  w i l l  see in  the f i rs t  paragraph , 

she  requests  the por t fo l io  commi t tee on Pub l ic  Ente rp r ise 

conducts  a  fu l l  par l iamenta ry inqu i ry .  

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    Oh ,  yes,  yes …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV FREUND SC:   In to  the cap tu re  o f  SOEs by the Guptas .   

You rece ived th is  le t te r ,  you  were  aware  o f  th is  le t te r .  20 

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV FREUND SC:   And then i f  I  can re fe r  you to  a  la te r  le t te r 

f rom her  dated the 22 March and Cha i r ,  that  i s  a t  page 200 

in  vo lume 2.   Do you  have tha t  le t te r ,  the le t te r  o f  the  22 

March? 
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MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    Yes,  I  do  have.  

ADV FREUND SC:   And  rea l ly  i t  i s  la rge ly  repea t ing  what  has 

p rev ious ly  been sa id  but  w i th  some more  ex tens ive 

mot ivat ion .  

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:   You agree.   And then  what  happens is  

that  that  request  was re fused and we f ind the re fusa l  in  a  

le t te r  by  yourse l f  a t  page 219 o f  the bundle ,  i t  is  a  le t te r  by 

yourse l f  dated the 6  Apr i l  2016 .   Do you  have  that  le t te r?  

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    Yes,  I  do  have the  le t te r .  10 

ADV FREUND SC:   And  what  you  say,  i f  I  can  paraphrase  i t ,  

in  tha t  le t te r ,  you say that  you have rece ived lega l  adv ice 

that  that  inqu i ry  tha t  she  is  reques t ing  that  the Guptas 

should  be summonsed and  min is ter  shou ld  be  summonsed 

requ i res a  house reso lu t ion and wi thou t  a  house reso lu t ion 

no such  inqu i ry  can  take  p lace.   Now Mr Fro l ick  tes t i f ied  

befo re  you and he says bu t  that  i s  just  wrong ,  he  sa id  you 

d id  not  need a house reso lu t ion ,  you  had the  powers to  do  

th is ,  you cou ld  have done th is  i f  you had wanted to  and in  

h is  op in ion  you  shou ld  have  done  so.   Now what  do you  say 20 

now wi th  the benef i t  of  h indsight? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    Wel l ,  you would see towards the last 

paragraph of  my let ter of  the 6 Apri l ,  I  was saying I  was 

seeking a legal  services on how to process the request,  how to 

process the request  because she ment ioned the Guptas,  the 
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former ministers and so on.  Unfortunately,  the par l iamentary 

legal  services,  they brought a l l  these other issues to say we 

need a house resolut ion,  the Publ ic  En te rp r ise  has no 

author i t y  and  so  on  and  so  on and  remember  –  remember,  my 

in i t ia l  thought  was to  say  th is  i s  no t  a  sma l l  mat te r  to  dea l 

w i th  in  a  hur ry,  we  need to  get  lega l  p rocesses ,  not  on the 

mer i t  o f  the  case o r  no t  bu t  p rocesses  to  say  i f  we say  we 

ca l l  the  Guptas ,  what  a re  the processes to  be fo l lowed,  

p lease adv ise  the  commi t tee as  the lega l  adv ise r.   

Un fo r tuna te ly,  l i ke  I  sa id  in  my ear l ie r  inputs  to  say  we have 10 

–  we do not  have capaci ty  in  te rms of  lega l  and a l l  o ther  

requ i rements to  dea l  w i th  the issues  in  a  p roper  manner.   So 

th is  answer was no t  [ indist inct ]  27 .19 to  me bu t  unfo r tunate ly  

I  was  no t  ab le  to  do so  because  th is  was towards  the end of  

the –  what  do  we ca l l  i t ,  what  we ca l l  …[ in te rvenes ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    F inanc ia l  year? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    Recess  in  par l iament  f rom t ime to  

t ime.   By the  t ime you come back f rom recess and the 

const i tuency work,  o ther  issues  have  come in  p lace a l ready.   

So I  was in  agreement  w i th  the le t te r  but  here I  jus t  wan ted 20 

the  lega l  p rocess  to  fo l low.   Unfo r tunate ly,  I  was 

m isunders tood by the adv isers o r  maybe they d id  understand 

and then dec ided  to  answer us in  th is  manner.  

ADV FREUND SC:   We l l  …[ in te rvenes ]  

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    That  is  what  –  and  excuse  me,  s i r… 
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ADV FREUND SC:   Yes.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    That  is  why  a t  the  end  o f  i t  I  was 

say ing  I  t rust  that  you  w i l l  f ind  the  above  o f  ass is tance  and 

t rus t  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  –  i t  w i l l  ass is t  par l iament  in  dea l ing  w i th  

the a l leged phenomenon o f  s ta te  captu re .   So I  was 

admi t t ing to  say yes,  we need to  do th is .  So  my last  

sen tences  p rove to  say  we needed th is  bu t  we needed 

p rocesses to  adv ise us .  

ADV FREUND SC:   A l r igh t ,  bu t  do I  understand  you cor rec t ly  

that  whatever  the  lega l i t ies  o r  the  lega l  adv ice you  rece ived ,  10 

your  persona l  v iew at  the t ime was i t  was  necessary to  ho ld  

p rec ise ly  an  inqu i ry  o f  the type tha t  Ms Mazzone was 

request ing? 

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    Cor rect .  

ADV FREUND SC:   And  the  adv ice  that  you  had  rece ived  tha t  

i t  needed a house reso lu t ion ,  d id  you assume that  tha t  

adv ice  was cor rect?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBE:    We l l ,  I  assume i t  was cor rect .   Where 

I  d id  not  agree,  i t  i s  on po in t  two where i t  says  the  commit tee 

on Pub l ic  Ente rp r ise  has  no  au thor i t y  by law to  in i t ia te  such 20 

but  on  one ,  I  d id  no t  have a  p rob lem.  

ADV FREUND SC:   Wel l ,  I  am sorry,  but  I  do not c lear ly 

understand what you are saying because i t  seems to me, i f  one 

just  reads Rule 138 that  you had the author i ty to conduct  an 

invest igat ion and to summons people and that  you did not 
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need anybody else’s approval  to do that .  

MS LETSATSI-DUBE:    Yes. 

ADV FREUND SC:   Now did you know that  at  the t ime and 

accept that  at  the t ime, o r  were  you under  impress ion  tha t  

you d id  no t  have tha t  au thor i t y?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Wel l  I  was aware  we have the  

au thor i t y,  tha t  i s  why I  am say ing  on  two I  agree but  

remember  I  sa id  on  the  f i rs t  pa rag raph to  say I  was  look ing  

fo r  lega l  p rocesses,  bu t  no t  to  say you cannot  do  the 

inqu i ry.    I  was ask ing  fo r  them to  ass i s t  us  to  in i t ia te  tha t  10 

process.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Bu t  I  am say ing  tha t  you unders tood 

tha t  un less  there  was a  House  Reso lu t ion ,  i t  was not  

permiss ib le  fo r  your  inqu i ry,  fo r  your  commi t tee  to  

commence such an inqu i ry.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  i s  the  impress ion  I  had a t  tha t  

t ime.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And tha t  i s  the  impress ion  you had,  

because tha t  was  the  lega l  adv ice  you rece ived.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am so r ry,  Mr  Freund le t  us  ta l k  about  

your  unders tand ing  before  you rece ived the  lega l  adv ice .  

What  was your  unders tand ing  before  you rece ived the  lega l  

adv ice  on  whether  o r  no t  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  cou ld  

in i t ia te  such an inqu i ry  o r  cou ld  there  summon Min is te rs  
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and members  o f  the  pub l i c  to  answer  cer ta in  i ssues in  the  

pr iva te  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee?  

D id  you be l ieve  tha t  i t  had the  power  to  do  so  o r  d id  

you be l ieve  tha t  i t  d id  no t  have such a  power  un less  there  

was a  reso lu t ion  o f  the  Nat iona l  Assembly  tha t  i t  cou ld  go 

ahead and do tha t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Persona l ly,  I  be l ieved we had the  

powers .   I  am t ry ing  to  look  in to  the  sect ion  where  in  

empower  us ,  now i t  i s  Sect ion  201 o f  the  ru les  o f  

Par l iament ,  I  do  no t  know i f  you w i l l  be  ab le  to  -  bu t  now,  10 

we are  no t  lega l  peop le ,  you go and in te rac t  w i th  the  lega l  

peop le ,  they w i l l  te l l  you  d i f fe ren t  in te rpre ta t ions  o f  the 

ru les  and the  laws,  and you take  adv i ce  f rom them.   

But  persona l ly,  I  knew f rom Sect ion  201,  tha t  the  

commi t tee  have the  powers  to  summon whoever  even the  

members  o f  pub l i c ,  who happened to  commi t  whatever  

ou ts ide  then to  come and account  in to  the  Par l iament .   So 

th is  was my unders tand ing  but  when the  Adv isory  

Commi t tee  o f  Par l iament  w i l l  say,  no  we cannot  -  and  

remember,  our  work  was not  on l y  on  th is ,  we had o the r  20 

issues to  dea l  w i th  a lso  and we re l ied  on  them because  

they a re  lega l  peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  a f te r  the  lega l  adv ice  had ar r i ved,  

d id  i t  no t  occur  t o  you to  jus t  go  and check th is  Ru le  138 

they were  ta lk ing  about  to  see whether  i t  says  what  they 
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say  i t  says?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You d id ,  and when you looked a t  i t ,  d id  

you agree w i th  the i r  adv i ce  or  unders tand ing  o f  i t  o r  d id  

you not?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No,  no  I  d id  no t  agree w i th  the  

lega l  adv i ce .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    And remember  th i s  i s  someth ing  

e lse .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Ru le  138,  ja  I  have not  looked a t  i t  

now but  I  have looked a t  i t ,  I  th ink  in  the  past  a t  some 

s tage,  bu t  what  I  am th ink ing  is  tha t  i f  you  looked a t  i t ,  and 

you d id  no t  agree  w i th  them,  one wou ld  have expected tha t  

you wou ld  go  back to  them and say,  you peop le ,  th is  ru le  

tha t  you have c i ted ,  does not  say  what  you a re  say ing  and 

then hear  what  they have to  say.   D id  you do tha t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No,  no  the i r  Cha i r  I  need to  admi t  I  

d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you accept  tha t  tha t  i s  what  you  20 

shou ld  have done .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Here  we cou ld  have  ac ted  

d i f fe ren t ly  bu t  I  admi t  I  d id  no t .   I  d id  no t  go  back to  them 

to  say th i s  i s  how I  th ink ,  quot ing  201 o f  the  sect ion .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  you accept  tha t  tha t  i s  what  you  
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shou ld  have done? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  i s  what  I  shou ld  have done.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  Okay,  a l r igh t  Mr  Freund.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Yes,  thank  you Cha i r.   Now.  Ms  

Letsa ts i -Duba when Ms Mazzone rece ived your  le t te r,  

se t t ing  ou t  your  reasons fo r  re fusa l ,  wh ich  were  based on 

the  lega l  adv i ce  tha t  you to ld  her  you had rece ived,  she 

responded and she responded in  a  le t te r  o f  the  12 t h  o f  Apr i l  

2016 and Cha i r  tha t  i s  a t  page  221 o f  bund le  2 .   Ms  

Letsa ts i -Duba do  you have tha t  le t te r  o f  the  12 t h  o f  Apr i l  10 

2016?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    The 12 t h  o f  Apr i l?  

ADV FREUND SC:    Yes.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No,  I  do  no t  have,  I  have the  14 t h  

o f  March 2015.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Th is  i s  th is  i s  the  annexure  NM38.   I t  

i s  one o f  the  documents  tha t  was sent  to  you today.  What  I  

-  i f  you  s t rugg le  to  f ind  i t ,  I  w i l l  read i t  to  you,  and you may  

reca l l  i t .   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Okay.  20 

ADV FREUND SC:    Bu t  i f  you  can f ind  i t ,  i t  wou ld  be  

eas ie r.  I t  i s  the  le t te r  o f  the  12 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016,  Annexure  

MN38 and the  top  le f t ,  i t  w i l l  have POO2221,  i t  means a t  

page 221 o f  bund le  2 .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  do  no t  f ind  i t .  
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ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t ,  I  see  you have a  lo t  o f  paper  

there  and le t  me  see i f  we can dea l  w i th  i t  by  me read ing  

par t s  o f  i t  and see i f  you remember  i t .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Okay.  

ADV FREUND SC:    What  Ms Mazzone says in  the  le t te r  i s  

she says:  

“Your  le t te r  da ted  the  6 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 re fers . ”  

She says:  

“ I  have read the  contents  the reof ,  and wou ld  l i ke  to  

respect ive ly  d i sagree w i th  you  regard ing  your  10 

in te rpre ta t ion  o f  Ru le  138. ”  

And then she says and I  am paraphras ing  tha t  Ru le  138  

g ives the  commi t tee  the  power  to  summon any pe rson to  

appear,  and then she c i tes  Ru le  201 tha t  says:  

“A Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  in  201.1C may moni to r  

invest iga te  i nqu i ry  in to  and make recommendat ions  

concern ing  any execut ive  organ  o f  S ta te  and so  

fo r th . ”  

And so  she says:  

“Wi th  regard  to  my request  fo r  the  inqu i ry,  i t  i s  my  20 

unders tand ing  tha t  the  members  o f  the  Gupta  fami ly  

wou ld  const i tu te  any person and can thus be  ca l led  

to  the  commi t tee  to  g ive  gu idance and to  p roduce 

documents .   The power  der i ves  d i rec t l y  f rom 

Sect ion  056 o f  the  Const i tu t ion . ”  
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Now,  f rom what  you have a l ready to ld  the  Cha i r  my 

unders tand ing  is  tha t  you accept  a l l  o f  tha t  you agree w i th  

a l l  o f  tha t ,  am I  r igh t?   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And then she cont inues:  

“Fur the r,  g iven the  spec i f i c  na ture  o f  the i r  bus iness  

re la t ionsh ip  -  the re  o f  course ,  i s  a  re ference to  the  

Gupta  fami ly  -  the i r  bus iness re la t ionsh ips  to  a  

S ta te  owned ent i ty  Eskom,  i t  i s  par t  o f  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tees funct ions to  invest iga te  and inqu i re  in to  10 

th is  i ssue. ”  

And I  th ink  you a l so  agree w i th  tha t ,  am I  r igh t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  agree.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Now,  she says  tha t  she sent  th i s  le t te r  

to  you on the  12 t h  o f  Apr i l  and the re  was ve ry  shor t l y  a f te r  

tha t ,  a  meet ing  o f  your  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .   I t  happened,  

le t  me f ind  the  re ference to  i t  in  he r  a f f idav i t .   So she dea ls  

in  her  a f f idav i t  Cha i r  fo r  your  re fe rences in  vo lume 2  a t  

page 25 pa ragraph 13.20 she dea ls  w i th  the  le t te r  I  have  

jus t  read to  you.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  what  page?  

ADV FREUND SC:    I t  i s  a t  page 25 o f  bung le  2 ,  pa rag raph  

13.20 tha t  i s  in  Ms Mazzone ’s  a f f idav i t  where  she re fers  to  

the  le t te r  tha t  I  have jus t  read to  Ms Letsa ts i -Duba .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  I  have got  i t .  
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ADV FREUND SC:    And then she goes on to  re fer  in  

parag raph 13.22 tha t  i s  a t  the  next  page,  page 26 ,  to  the 

fac t  tha t  there  was a  meet ing  o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  of  

Pub l ic  Enterpr i ses .   She says tha t  meet ing  concerned 

A lexkor  2014/2015 annua l  repor t ,  bu t  she says tha t  in  tha t  

meet ing ,  you repor ted  to  the  commi t tee  on  your  exchange 

o f  cor respondence w i th  her.   And then she a t taches to  he r  

a f f idav i t ,  a  repor t  p repared by  the  Par l iamentary  Mon i to r ing  

Group o f  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  meet ing  o f  the  20 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  and 

then she cont inues,  th is  i s  what  Ms Mazzone says in  her  10 

a f f idav i t :  

“As  appears  f rom tha t  repor t  o f  the  PMG,  there  was 

some d iscuss ion  about  inv i t ing  Dene l  to  b r ie f  the  

commi t tee  about  the  a l legat ions concern ing  i t se l f .  

But  no  dec i s ion  was taken to  suppor t  my request  to  

summon the  Gup ta ’s  and o thers  or  to  inqu i re  in to  

S ta te  Captu re . ”  

And she says:  

“That  as  the  repor t  shows,  she sa id  a t  tha t  meet ing ,  

i t  was the  PCPE’s  job  to  exerc ise  overs igh t  by  20 

summoning any person before  i t . ”  

And then she says:  

“Some members ,  th is  i s  in  the  in  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  meet ing  o f  the  20 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  took  the  

v iew tha t  the  issue was not  on  the  commi t tee 's  



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 248 of 269 
 

agenda,  and i t  was premature  to  make a  dec is ion  

and they though t  i t  was su f f i c ien t  to  inv i te  the 

Board  o f  Dene l  to  dea l  w i th  a l legat ions invo lv ing  

Dene l . ”  

And she says:  

“She was not  surpr i sed by  tha t ,  because the  

members  o f  the  major i t y  par ty  ac t  in  accordance  

w i th  par t y  dec is ions and ins t ruc t i ons,  and they had 

no appet i te  a t  the  t ime to  pursue  the  inqu i ry  she  

had proposed. ”  10 

Now,  my f i rs t  quest ion  to  you is  th is ,  do  you reca l l  tha t  

there  was such  a  meet ing ,  and  do you agree tha t  Ms 

Mazzone is  te l l ing  the  t ru th  when she descr ibes what  

happened a t  tha t  meet ing?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Wel l ,  I  m igh t  no t  remember  s i r  bu t  

what  I  can te l l  you  about  Ms Mazzone i s  tha t  she has been 

very  pass ionate  about  dea l ing  w i th  i ssues o f  cor rup t ion  in  

S ta te  owned ente rpr ises .   Each and every  meet ing ,  she w i l l  

pass ionate ly  ra i se  the  issues very,  very  s t rong ly.  And 

remember  Cha i r,  i f  you  are  a  Cha i r  o f  a  commi t tee ,  you do  20 

not  take  dec is ions on  beha l f  o f  the  commi t tee .   You Cha i r,  

you make su re  you a l low members  to  debate  and come to  

an  agreement .   

So you do not  take  s ides,  un l i ke  i f  she  wr i tes  to  me 

s t ra igh t  as  a  Cha i rpe rson to  say,  I  am wr i t ing  to  you ,  th is  i s  
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what  I  requ i red .   But  in  the  commi t tee  meet ing  where  

peop le  debate  you d i rec t  the  meet ing ,  accord ing ly,  no t  

tak ing  any s ides.   So the  meet ing  she is  ta l k ing  about ,  I  

m igh t  no t  remember  ve ry  we l l ,  bu t  I  know,  fo r  one  and  a  

ha l f  years ,  I  have been there  as  the  Cha i rperson,  she has  

been very  s t rong on i ssues o f  the  Gupta ’s  and the  

cor rup t ion  and so  on .   

ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t ,  bu t  I  want  to  pu t  to  you th is  

par t  o f  what  she says fo r  your  comment .   Rea l ly  what  she  

says is ,  she has rece ived your  le t te r  about  the  lega l  adv ice  10 

you have rece ived.   She had responded to  your  le t te r  

say ing  I  th ink  tha t  adv ice  is  wrong,  and I  th ink  we  shou ld  

cont inue w i th  th is ,  and then she says you tab led  tha t  

cor respondence a t  the  meet ing .   And I  th ink  so  fa r,  I  th ink  

you wou ld  probab ly  ag ree tha t  tha t  i s  must  be ,  what  

happened.   Do you ag ree tha t  you wou ld  have to ld  the  

members  o f  the  commi t tee  about  th is  exchange o f  

cor respondence?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    That  i s  wha t  the  PMG repor t ,  and I  20 

th ink  you have accepted tha t ,  am I  cor rec t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Now the  rea l  po in t  i s  th is .  She says 

tha t  the  commi t tee  members ,  and she is  ta lk ing  about  a  

major i t y  because  she,  o f  course ,  had the  suppor t  o f  her  
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s ide .   The  major i t y  s imp ly  d id  no t  suppor t  tha t  there  shou ld  

be  th is  inqu i ry,  and tha t  i s  why the  inqu i ry  d id  no t  happen.   

Do you agree tha t  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  fac tua l l y?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  I  agree.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  Mr  Freund .  

ADV FREUND SC:   Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  she -  the  way she puts  i t  tha t  i s  

Ms Mazzone has a  cer ta in  connota t ion .   She says in  e f fec t  

the  major i t y  members  o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  the  

major i t y  par ty  members  had no appet i te  fo r  i t .   Tha t  seems 10 

to  me to  even ind ica te  tha t  they  had no in te res t  in  the  

proposa l .   Ms Le tsa ts i -Duba wou ld  you a l so  go  a long w i th  

tha t ,  o r  you a re  no t  sure  about  tha t  par t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No,  no  what  I  want  to  cor rec t  i s  

tha t ,  remember  in  the  commi t tee ,  we had o ther  members  

f rom o ther  po l i t i ca l  par t ies ,  o the r  than the  DA,  we  had a  

Freedom Front  who were  cons is ten t  in  a t tend ing  meet ings.   

We have EFF,  who w i l l  come f rom t ime to  t ime.   We have 

IFP who have been cons is ten t .   

So they a l l  fo rm  par t  o f  the  commi t tee  members .   20 

Now,  i f  you  say,  a  major i t y,  i t  means major i t y,  inc lud ing  

those o ther  par t ies ,  no t  necessar i l y  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  

Congress  members .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  th ink  you  may be r igh t ,  because I  

have not  checked whether  she  spec i f i ca l l y  says the  
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ma jor i t y  pa r ty  members  or  she is  jus t  say ing  the  ma jor i t y  o f  

the  members  o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  wh ich  wou ld  

obv ious ly  inc lude  or  wh ich  may inc lude,  I  am say ing  may 

because maybe the  ru l ing  par t y  had so  many members  tha t  

the  major i t y  cou ld  on ly  be  them.   

But  bas i ca l l y,  I  th ink  what  she does say is  because 

the  dec i s ions o f  t he  commi t tee  have got  to  go  by  major i t y,  

whethe r  you say  major i t y  i s  the  ru l ing  par ty  o r  ma jor i t y  

inc ludes o the r  oppos i t ion  par t ies ,  bu t  she says tha t  the  

major i t y  seemed to  have no appet i te .   And I  th ink  you want  10 

to  -  you might  be  say ing  you do not  have a  p rob lem tha t  

tha t  may have been the  pos i t ion .   A l l  you  are  say ing  i s ,  

maybe tha t  m ight  have gone beyond jus t  the  members  o f  

the  ru l ing  par ty.   I t  m igh t  no t  have been jus t  the  ru l ing  

par ty.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay a l r igh t .   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I t  went  on  when the  major i t y  par ty  

the  ANC member,  because we had o the r  po l i t i ca l  t ypes in  

tha t  meet ing  whom they d id  no t  vo ice ,  whether  they  20 

suppor t  o r  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  o f  course ,  you can on ly  say 

tha t ,  i f  you  remember  the  meet ing ,  and you know tha t  

members  o f  o ther  oppos i t ion  par t ies  d id  no t  suppor t  her  

because i t  i s  poss ib le  tha t  even w i th  the  suppor t  o f  o ther  
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members ,  members  o f  o ther  oppos i t ion  par t ies ,  she might  

s t i l l  no t  have been ab le  to  ge t  the  commi t tee  to  accept  her  

p roposa l  because  they wou ld  s t i l l  no t  fo rm the  major i t y.   

But  i f  you  do reca l l  tha t  no ,  I  reca l l  tha t  meet ing  

she d id  no t  even get  suppor t  f rom o ther  oppos i t ion  par t ies ,  

then o f  cou rse ,  then tha t  wou ld  be  tha t .   Do you reca l l  the 

meet ing  as  such  or  do  you do not  reca l l  i t  bu t  you th ink  

th is  i s  what  happened?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    On th is  par t i cu la r  meet ing  l i ke  I  

sa id ,  I  do  no t  reca l l .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .   Okay,  a l r igh t  Mr  Freund.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Yes,  thank you,  and I  can unders tand  

tha t  you a t tended a  lo t  o f  meet ings,  bu t  I  th ink  you wou ld 

accept  th is ,  tha t  tha t  par t i cu la r  meet ing  o f  tha t  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  had as  a  majo r i t y  o f  i t s  members ,  the  members  

o f  the  A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress,  do  you ag ree?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    On tha t  par t i cu la r  meet ing  wh ich  I  

do  no t  remember.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Wel l ,  every  s ing le  meet ing  o f  

por t fo l io…[ in te rvene]  20 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Every  s ing le  meet ing  no ,  in  most  

cases w i l l  be  the  very  same because major i t y  o f  our  

members  were  a l so  serv ing  in  o ther  Por t fo l io  Commi t tees,  

and even the  Ch ie f  Whip ,  no t  the  Ch ie f  Whip  the  Whip  o f  

the  commi t tee  she a lso  had o the r  por t fo l io  meet ings.   So in  
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most  cases,  the  ANC wi l l  be  the  very  same in  a t tendance,  

o ther  par t ies  w i l l  be  there  w i th  the  normal  numbers  they  

normal ly  have.  

ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t ,  Cha i r  s ince  Ms Letsa ts i -Duba  

you do not  remember  the  meet ing ,  I  do  no t  b lame you fo r  

no t  remember ing  the  meet ing .  I  jus t  want  to  g ive  the  Cha i r  

a  re fe rence to  the  PMG repor t  on  tha t  meet ing ,  the  

re levant  par t  o f  tha t  and Cha i r,  you w i l l  f ind  tha t  in  bund le  

2  a t  pages 234 to  235,  and I  w i l l  l eave th is  i ssue a t  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  I  wanted  to  pu t  some quest ion  10 

ar is ing  ou t  o f  tha t  answer,  yes .   Ms Letsa ts i -Duba ,  wou ld  

you ag ree,  o r  wou ld  you not  tha t  i f  the  S tudy Group o f  the  

ANC had taken a  dec is ion  to  say th is  p roposa l  t ha t  was  

go ing  to  be  tab led  a t  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  meet ing  by  

Ms Mazzone shou ld  be  suppor ted  by  members  o f  the  ANC 

who are  members  o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  then i t  i s  

l i ke ly  tha t  the re  wou ld  have been suppor t  f rom members  o f  

the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  a t  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  meet ing  

when Ms Mazzone ra ised made the  proposa l .   

Would  you accept  tha t?   20 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Def in i te ly,  yes ,  I  do  accept .   

CHAIRPERSON:    And there fore  tha t  i f  they  d id  no t  suppor t  

the  proposa l ,  i t  may we l l  be  because they  d id  no t  

unders tand tha t  the  ANC was in  favour  o f  o r  the  S tudy 

Group was in  favour  o f  tha t  p roposa l .   Would  you accept  
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tha t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t  thank you,  Mr  Freund.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Thank you Cha i r  and in  fa i rness to  you 

Ms Letsa ts i -Duba when one reads the  PMG repor t ,  one  

does f ind  tha t  ce r ta in  members  sa id ,  we l l  look ,  th is  i ssue  

was not  on  the  agenda,  and they were  no t  fu l l y  p repared  

fo r  th is  i ssue.   So I  accept  tha t  tha t  must  a lso  be  

recogn ised in  fa i rness to  an  assessment  o f  th is  i ssue,  bu t  

even accept ing  tha t  what  I  want  to  pu t  to  you is  th is .    10 

And no subsequent  meet ing  o f  th is  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee ,  r igh t  up  un t i l  the  t ime in  June o f  2017 wh ich  is  

more  than a  year  la te r.   And there  were  many,  many 

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  meet ings on  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises  in  tha t  

t ime.   In  no  subsequent  meet ing ,  d id  the  major i t y  par ty  

ever  exp ressed suppor t  fo r  what  they knew Ms Mazzone 

was ask ing  the  commi t tee  to  do ,  namely  to  ho ld  th is  

inqu i ry.   Do you agree?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Le t  me put  i t  in  th is  way,  the  

agenda o f  mee t ings they d i f fe r  f rom t ime to  t ime,  20 

somet imes we w i l l  be  host ing  the  depar tment  i t se l f ,  w i thout  

the  S ta te  owned  enterpr i ses .   Somet imes we w i l l  ho ld  

meet ings w i th  one SOE which  has go t  no th ing  to  do  w i th  

what  Ms Mazzone  has ra ised,  so  i t  d i f fe r  f rom t ime to  t ime.   

So when you say a  subsequent  meet ing ,  members  
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o f  the  ANC or  the  ANC d id  no t  suppor t  i s  because i t  was  

not  on  the  agenda fo r  tha t  par t i cu la r,  fo r  those meet ings  

wh ich  fo l lowed a f te r  she proposed.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Wel l ,  I  hear  you but  le t  us  jus t  

unders tand what  we are  ta lk ing  about  here .   You yourse l f ,  

have to ld  the  Cha i r  today tha t  you were  aware  o f  ser ious 

a l legat ions,  and you were  aware  -  se r ious a l legat ions o f  

a l leged S ta te  Capture  o f  a l leged cor rup t ion .   

You tab led  be fore  your  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  the  

one hand Ms Mazzone request  tha t  your  commi t tee  pursue 10 

an inqu i ry,  and on the  o ther  hand your  le t te r  re fus ing  wh ich  

you sa id  i s  based on the  lega l  adv i ce  tha t  you had 

rece ived.  And I  have sa id  to  you,  in  fa i rness to  you ,  tha t  I  

recogn ised tha t  some members  o f  tha t  commi t tee  on  that  

occas ion  sa id ,  we l l ,  th is  was not  on  the  agenda we were  

no t  ready to  dea l  w i th  th is  i ssue.   

The imp l ica t ion  be ing  we need to  dea l  w i th  th is ,  

perhaps on some la te r  occas ion ,  a re  you fo l low ing me and  

are  you unders tand ing  and ag ree ing  w i th  me so  fa r.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  20 

ADV FREUND SC:    Now,  what  I  want  to  pu t  to  you is  th is ,  

i f  you  were  concerned and th is  i s  no t  d i rec ted  on ly  a t  you  

persona l ly,  i t  i s  rea l l y  d i rec ted  a t  the  ANC caucus on th is  

commi t tee .   I f  you  were  concerned  tha t  one needed  t ime to  

s tudy the  cor respondence and to  take  a  v iew,  i t  wou ld  have  
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been the  eas ies t  th ing  in  the  wor ld  to  pu t  i t  on  the  agenda 

to  have i t  d i scussed and to  suppor t  i t ,  bu t  tha t  never  

happened,  d id  i t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  i t  d id  no t  happen.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  jus t  so  tha t ,  your  answer  i s  

recorded.   P lease jus t  repeat  your  answer  so  tha t  i t  i s  

recorded,  I  th ink  you may have spoken too  so f t ly  when you  

were  answer ing .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Be fore  answer ing  the  quest ion  I  

wanted to  deny when the  Ev idence Leader  says tha t  my  10 

le t te r  re fused Ms  Mazzone ’s  requests  towards an  inqu i ry.   

There  is  no  re fe rence where  we say we deny th is ,  and in  

fac t ,  I  was even  say ing  we are  l ook ing  fo rward  because  

th is  invest iga t ion  w i l l  he lp  Par l iament  to  dea l  w i th  them a t  

the  end o f  the  pa rag raph.   But  because we have d i scussed 

the  issue la te r  o f  the  lega l  op in ion  f rom the  Par l iamenta ry  

Lega l  Serv ices ,  I  w i l l  l eave i t  a t  tha t .   Now h is  quest ion ,  I  

d id  no t  ge t  i t  p roper ly.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Wel l ,  i f  I  can  jus t  Cha i r  p lease p lace  

on the  record  tha t  I  heard  the  answer  to  the  quest i on  and 20 

the  words tha t  the  answer  was yes,  tha t  d id  no t  happen,  

and when you sa id  yes,  tha t  d id  no t  happen i t  was in  

response to  a  quest ion  tha t  I  had  put  a long the  fo l low ing  

l ines .  

That  you cou ld  have,  you the  caucus cou ld  have i f  



24 FEBRUARY 2021 – DAY 349 
 

Page 257 of 269 
 

you  wanted to  pu t  tha t  on  the  agenda fo r  a  subsequent  

meet ing  and vo ted  in  suppor t  o f  i t  bu t  tha t  d id  no t  happen,  

and I  th ink  you sa id  you agreed w i th  me and you sa id  yes,  

tha t  d id  no t  happen.   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Okay,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Now as you saw i t ,  there  was  

someth ing  o f  a  s ta lemate .  You  were  no t  aga ins t  the  

pr inc ip le  o f  par l iamentary  overs igh t  on  th is  i ssue,  some 10 

sor t  o f  inqu i ry.  But  the  adv ice  tha t  you had rece ived was 

tha t  i t  cou ld  no t  be  pe rmi t ted  un less  the re  was a  reso lu t ion 

in  the  Nat iona l  Assembly  suppor t ing  i t .   Do I  unders tand  

tha t  cor rec t l y?   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.   

ADV FREUND SC:    And tha t  i s  what  Ms Mazzone tes t i f ied  

about  and she sa id ,  we l l  bear ing  tha t  in  m ind,  the  DA in  

September  o f  2016,  p roposed a  mot ion  in  the  Nat iona l  

Assembly  and the  mot ion  was tha t  the  Nat iona l  Assembly  

i t se l f  shou ld  appo in t  an  ad hoc  Commi t tee ,  Cha i r,  th is  i s  in  20 

bund le  2  a t  page  357.   So I  am go ing  to  read to  you what  

Mr  Many i  read accord ing  to  Hansard  in to  the  record  a t  

page 357.   He says:  

“ I  move tha t  the  House. ”  

He says I  move w i thout  no t ice  bu t  th is  i s  a f te r  the  debate  
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has  taken p lace.   

“That  the  House one,  no tes  the  a l legat ions o f  S ta te  

Capture  by  cer ta in  ind iv idua ls  and the i r  a l leged 

undue in f luence  over  the  government .  Two,  

es tab l i shes an  ad hoc  Commi t tee  in  te rms o f  Ru le  

2531A,  the  commi t tee  2A invest iga te  the  a l leged  

capture  o f  S ta te  resources and  undue in f luence 

over  the  government . ”  

And then o ther  th ings,  make recommendat ions  and he 

exp la ins ,  you know,  how th is  commi t tee  shou ld  be  10 

composed,  and tha t  was the  mot ion  tha t  was put  to  debate .  

And then i f  I  look  a t  page 361 o f  bund le  2 ,  I  see the  peop le  

who vo ted  no and amongst  them is  Le tsa ts i -Duba DB,  I  

take  i t  tha t  i s  you rse l f?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Who vo ted where  in  the  Nat iona l  

Assembly?  

ADV FREUND SC:    Vo ted in  the  Nat iona l  Assembly  to  

oppose a  reso lu t ion  tha t  the  Na t iona l  Assembly  shou ld  

appo in t  an  ad  hoc  Commi t tee  to  invest iga te  these 

a l legat ions.   Not  on ly  you o f  course ,  a l l  the  res t  o f  the  ANC 20 

caucus d id  the  same.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Wel l  you  know,  the  p rocesses are  

so  complex  and d i f f i cu l t ,  because  i f  you are  no t  ready to  

can enter  in to  tha t  space o f  inqu i ry  -  then I  do  no t  

remember  what  was the  agreement ,  bu t  i f  you  say  I  vo ted  
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yes ,  i t  was not  because I  d id  no t  want  the  inqu i ry  to  

happen.   I t  m igh t  be  because the  processes and o ther  

i ssues.   But  I  want…[ in tervene]  

ADV FREUND SC:    Sor ry,  sor ry  to  in te r rup t  you.   But  in  

fa i rness to  you,  I  jus t  want  to  te l l  you  what  Mr  Fro l i ck  sa id 

because i t  may be o f  some ass is tance to  you.   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Mr  Fro l i ck  d rew a t ten t ion  to  the  fac t  

tha t  Mr  Jackson Mthembu then the  Ch ie f  Whip  moved an 

amendment  to  the  mot ion  and the  th rus t  o f  i t  was  to  say 10 

th is  shou ld  no t  be  the  sub jec t  o f  an  ad hoc  Commi t tee  

par l iamentary  inqu i ry,  i f  anybody  has a l legat ions  o f  th is  

t ype,  they shou ld  take  i t  e i ther  to  the  Po l ice ,  o r  the  

Chapte r  N ine  Ins t i tu t ions  and accord ing  to  Mr  Fro l i ck  tha t  

was the  reason why the  ANC members  vo ted  aga ins t  th is  

reso lu t ion .  Now,  I  do  no t  know i f  you have any reco l lec t ion  

o f  th is ,  o f  th is  pa r t i cu la r  p roposed reso lu t ion .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  do  no t  reca l l .  

ADV FREUND SC:    You do not  reca l l  because i t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No.  20 

ADV FREUND SC:   Because wha t  i s  in te res t ing  to  me,  i s  

tha t  you gave ev idence a  l i t t le  ear l ie r,  in  wh ich  you sa id  

tha t  you and o the rs  contended to  Mr  Jackson Mthembu and 

o thers ,  tha t  i t  was not  adequate  to  leave these mat te rs  

w i th  the  Chapter  N ine  Ins t i tu t ions  or  the  Po l i ce ,  i t  was 
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necessary  tha t  Par l iament  i t se l f  shou ld  p lay  a  ro le  in  

invest iga t ing  the  cred ib i l i t y  o f  these a l legat ions,  and i f  they  

were  found to  have mer i t  to  see to  i t  tha t  appropr ia te  

cor rec t i ve  measures were  taken ,  d id  I  unders tand tha t  

cor rec t l y?   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And tha t  remains  your  v iew,  tha t  i s  

what  shou ld  have  happened?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And as  you  know,  i t  d id  no t  happen 10 

unt i l  a t  the  very  f i rs t ,  the  le t te r  sent  by  Mr Fro l i ck  in  June  

o f  2017.  There  was no such  inqu i ry  anywhere  in  

Par l iament ,  do  you agree w i th  tha t?   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  I  agree.  

ADV FREUND SC:    A l r igh t ,  and  then what  happened is  

tha t  Mr  Fro l i ck  on  the  ins t ruc t ion  o f  the  Speaker,  and th is  

i s  accord ing  to  h im,  on  the  ins t ruc t ion  o f  the  Speaker  and  

the  Ch ie f  Whip ,  addressed th ree  Por t fo l io  Commi t tees,  ag  

four  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  Cha i rs ,  to  p lease in  the i r  

respect ive  commi t tees invest iga te  these a l legat ions ,  in  so  20 

fa r  as  i t  per ta ined to  the i r  own por t fo l ios .   

And we know tha t  what  came out  o f  tha t ,  amongst  

o ther  th ings,  was  the  commi t tee  o f  the  invest iga t ion  o f  your  

own commi t tee ,  then under  the  ac t ing  Cha i rperson o f  Ms 

Rantho and I  p resume you were  aware  o f  tha t  a t  the  t ime 
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tha t  they pu rsued  tha t  inqu i ry.   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And I  p resume tha t  she took  ove r  as  

ac t ing  Cha i r,  p rec ise ly  because your  -  what  you to ld  me,  

bu t  I  am assuming tha t  you were  promoted to  a  pos i t ion  

tha t  took you out  o f  th is  par t i cu la r  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .  Do 

I  unders tand tha t  cor rec t l y?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  tha t  is  co r rec t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    Bu t  you wou ld  have been fami l ia r,  you  

s t i l l  remained a  member  o f  Par l iament ,  and you wou ld  have  10 

been aware  o f  what  was go ing  on,  pa r t i cu la r ly  in  the  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  and tha t  they were  hav ing  th is  so  

ca l led  Eskom inqu i ry.   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

ADV FREUND SC:    And you wou ld  have been aware ,  I  

assume,  tha t  the re  was a  very  l im i ted  and be la ted  inqu i ry  

by  the  Home Affa i rs  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  in to  the  issue o f  

whethe r  there  was anyth ing  improper  in  the  manner  in  

wh ich  the  fo rmer  Min is te r  o f  Home Affa i rs  had dea l t  w i th  

the  quest ion  o f  na tura l i sa t ion  o f  members  o f  the  Gupta  20 

fami ly.   Do you agree?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  I  aware .  

ADV FREUND SC:    And were  a lso  aware  tha t  the  

Transpor t  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  fa i led  to  invest iga te  the 

a l legat ions o f  S ta te  Capture ,  as  had been requested  by Mr  
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Fro l i ck  and tha t  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Minera l  and 

Energy,  l i ke  was rea l l y  never  go t  to  g r ips  and never  

invest iga ted .   Were  you aware  o f  tha t  as  we l l?   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I  was aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV FREUND SC:    Now what  I  am in te res ted  in  i s  what  

l igh t  you can cas t ,  i f  any,  on  why  those o the r  commi t tees 

d id  no t  p roceed,  and I  want  to  pu t  to  you a  hypothes is  and  

see whethe r  my guess is  cor rec t .   

I  want  to  pu t  to  you tha t  there  cont inue to  be  very  

cons iderab le  res i s tance by  impor tan t  members  o f  the  ANC 10 

caucus,  who cont inued to  oppose th is  t ype o f  invest iga t ion .  

Would  tha t  be  a  reasonab le  guess? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    That  wou ld  be  a  reasonab le  guess,  

yes .  

ADV FREUND SC:    Wel l ,  perhaps you cou ld  jus t  te l l  us  

about  tha t  a  l i t t le  more ,  because  we were  no t  there ,  and 

you were ,  so  wha t  can you te l l  us  about  th is  p rob lem? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No,  no ,  I  wou ld  no t  have much 

in fo rmat ion  bu t  I  know tha t  one,  eve ry  Thursday  we w i l l  

have a  broader  caucus meet ing  where  these issues are  20 

debated,  and some o f  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tees Cha i r  wou ld  

no t  agree w i th  what  was d iscussed in  a  broader  caucus.   

So i t  re la tes  to  the  po in t  I  ra ised  ear l ie r  on  to  say  

We are  a t  a  d i f fe ren t  leve l .   Othe r  peop le  w i l l  th ink  by  so  

do ing ,  we are  t ry ing  to  p ro tec t  the  ru l ing  par ty  and  ye t  on 
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the  o ther  hand,  they do  not  know they are  in f l i c t ing  the 

pa in  on  the  ru l ing  par t y  i t se l f .   So i t  i s  a l l  about  tha t ,  bu t  I  

was aware  two commi t tees,  d id  no t  want  to  do  the  inqu i ry.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Thank you,  Ms Letsa ts i -Duba I  no te  

tha t  i t  i s  7  o ’c lock  I  sa id  to  the  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  t ry  t o  f in ish  

in  two hours .   I  have no fu r ther  quest ions;  I  imag ine  the  

Cha i r  may have some fu r ther  quest ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no t  many.   As  a  mat te r  o f  i n te res t ,  

Ms Letsa ts i -Duba  I  see tha t  when the  vo te  was taken in  the 

Nat iona l  Assembly  on  th is  p roposa l  o r  th is  mot ion ,  10 

somebody re fer red  to  as  i t  i s  LM,  absta ined.   Would  you  

know whether  tha t  was he o r  she was a  member  o f  the  

ru l ing  par ty  on  no t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    LM? 

CHAIRPERSON:    LM Mchaaesa[? ] ,  ja  Jaeesa[? ]  o r  

Jaeesa[? ]  I  am jus t  wonder ing  whe ther  th is  was a  s i tua t ion  

where  a l l  the  members o f  the  ru l ing  pa r ty  vo ted  in  one way,  

o r  whethe r  there  was one who absta ined o r  whether  the  

one who absta ined be long to  another  pa r ty?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No,  I  am not  aware  o f  tha t  name 20 

be long to…[ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   I  th ink  the  quest ion ,  the 

o ther  quest ion  I  have fo r  you re la tes  to  the  cha l lenges you  

sa id  you encountered when,  as  a  commi t tee ,  you wanted to  

ho ld  Min is te r  Brown accountab le .   You wanted to  quest ion  
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her  on  cer ta in  i ssues re la t ing  to  her  depar tment ,  and she 

was not  respond ing  pos i t i ve ly  to  your  request  fo r  her  to  

come to  the  meet ing .   

I  unders tand tha t  one o f  the  th ings you cou ld  have  

done,  wou ld  have been to  approach the  Ch ie f  Whip  o f  the  

ru l ing  pa r ty  to  in  e f fec t  repor t  her  to  say,  Ch ie f  Whip  th is  

comrades,  Min i s te r  i s  no t  behav ing  proper ly,  can you take  

necessary  s teps to  make su re  she comes to  meet ings o f  

the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  am I  r igh t  to  say tha t  i s  one o f  the  

th ings you cou ld  have done and i f  so ,  d id  you do i t?  10 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  you are  so  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    You are  so  cor rec t ,  Cha i r  bu t  I  jus t  

want  to  b r ing  you th is  o ther  e lement ,  wh ich  a lways  

happens a l l  the  t ime,  because o f  the  pe rsona l i t ies ,  no t  a l l  

the  Min i s te rs  d i s respect ,  the  Ch ie f  Whip ,  no t  a l l  M in is te rs  

d is respect  the  Cha i r  o f  the i r  commi t tees.   And as  a  resu l t  I  

was a lways in  the i r  shoes to  say,  you know,  they  had a  

very  d i f f i cu l t  job ,  because th is  person is  a  Min is te r  you a re  

on ly  the  Whip ,  and you must  a lways ta lk  to  her  to  say 20 

a t tend the  meet ings and the re  is  norm.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  i s  your  answer  tha t ,  you d id  no t  do  i t  

tha t  i s  one you d id  no t  so  to  speak ,  repor t  her  to  the  Ch ie f  

Whip  and the  reason why you d id  no t  do  tha t  i s  because 

you d id  no t  want  to  add to  the  cha l lenges tha t  the  Ch ie f  
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Whip  has because some o f  the  Min is te rs  ignore .  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:     No,  I  d id  repor t  severa l  t imes 

th rough the  Ch ie f  Whip  to  say we have a  cha l lenge here  

and he w i l l  be  say ing  you know what  i t  i s  so  d i f f i cu l t  to  ta lk  

to  these peop le  because they th ink  be ing  a  Min is te r  i s  

above everybody e lse ,  so  I  i t  was rea l l y  d i f f i cu l t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you do remember…[ in tervene]  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Not  a l l  Min is te rs  l i ke  I  sa id  o thers  

tow the  l ine  they know Chie f  wh ip  i s  the  Whip  o f  the  ru l ing  

par ty,  they must  ab ide  by  the  ins t ruc t ions o f  the  ru l ing  10 

par t y  to  a t tend meet ings,  a lso  to  account  to  the  caucus,  

o thers  they do  unders tand.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  do  you remember  whethe r  –  who 

the  Ch ie f  Whip  o f  the  ru l ing  pa r ty  was a t  tha t  t ime or  wou ld  

you not  remember?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I t  was the  la te  Mthembu.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay and wou ld  i t  a lso  be  co r rec t  to  

say,  one o f  the  op t ions a lso  wou ld  have been to  approach  

the  leader  o f  government  bus iness ,  who wou ld  have been  

the  Deputy  Pres ident  a t  the  t ime,  th rough  whatever  20 

channe ls  whether  you wou ld  go  d i rec t l y  yourse l f  o r  you 

wou ld  go  v ia  the  Speaker  o r  somebody e lse .  But  wou ld  you 

agree tha t  tha t  i s  one o f  the  op t ions you wou ld  have  used -  

tha t  were  open to  you o r  i s  i t  no t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    No,  i t  was one o f  the  op t ions bu t  I  
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d id  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  was the re  a  reason why you  d id  no t  

do  tha t  o r  there  was no pa r t i cu la r  reason? 

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    There  was no par t i cu la r  reason 

somet imes you get  d iscouraged  by  the  ar rogance,  you  

know,  d isp lays .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  on  the  par t  o f  the  par t i cu la r  

Min is te r,  o r  on  the  par t  o f  the  person.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay a l r igh t .   Now,  fo r  how long were  10 

you Cha i rperson o f  tha t  commi t tee  was i t  about  one and a  

ha l f  years  or  how long was i t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    I t  was one  and a  ha l f  years .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And dur ing  tha t  t ime when you were  

Cha i rperson o f  tha t  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee ,  i s  the  pos i t ion  

tha t  Min i s te r  Brown never  came to  meet ings o f  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  when you had asked or  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  she 

d id  come to  some but  no t  to  o thers?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    She d id  come to  some,  i f  I  shou ld  

th ink  I  can coun t  on ly  two or  th ree  a t tendances  in  the  20 

ent i re  t ime I  was there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  and what  wou ld  be  your  reco l lec t ion  

o f  how many more  or  less  how many t imes she wou ld  have 

been requ i red  or  i f  she  had been  commi t ted  to  appear ing  

be fore  the  commi t tee  each t ime she was requ i red .    
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How many t imes,  I  am jus t  want ing  to  have an idea 

what  percentage o f  a t tendance i t  wou ld  have been.   Would  

i t  have been two or  th ree  t imes ou t  o f  20  t imes or  ou t  o f  15 

t imes or  10  t imes .   I s  tha t  someth ing  you are  ab le  to  he lp  

me wi th  o r  no t?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Ja ,  I  can he lp  you Cha i r  le t  me say 

in  my own were  to  say ou t  o f  100,  she w i l l  a t tend 36 or  25  

o f  the  meet ings.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Out  o f  how many meet ings?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Out  o f  maybe 100 o f  them.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    So  less  than ha l f ,  fa r  less  than ha l f  

ac tua l l y.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Less than  ha l f .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:   Far  less  than ha l f  and tha t  the  

Deputy  Cha i r  w i l l  a lways come in ,  and as  members  w i l l  be  

request ing  answers  f rom the  execut ive  au tho r i t y,  and she  

w i l l  no t  be  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .   Thank you ve ry  

much Ms Letsa ts i -Duba.  20 

ADV FREUND SC:    Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  Mr  Freund.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Thank you Cha i r,  I  jus t  wan t  on  one  

po in t  o f  de ta i l .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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ADV FREUND SC:    Ms Letsa ts i -Duba i t  i s  cor rec t  i s  i t  no t  

tha t  you Cha i red  th is  commi t tee  f rom May 2014 to  March 

2017.   In  o ther  words,  a lmost  th ree  years?  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    A lmost  th ree  years?  

ADV FREUND SC:    That  i s  what  you say in  pa ragraph  

seven o f  your  a f f idav i t ,  f rom May 2014 to  March 2017.  

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Yes,  to  March,  i t  i s  a lmost  th ree  

years .  

ADV FREUND SC:    Yes,  thank you ,  tha t  i s  jus t  a l l  I  wanted  

to  c lear  up .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay wh ich  is  qu i te  a  long t ime .   Okay,  

a l r igh t .  Thank you ve ry  much,  Ms Letsa ts i -Duba fo r  

ava i l ing  yourse l f  to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion  we apprec ia te  i t .   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Thank you ,  I  hope my inputs  w i l l  be  

ab le  to  shape our  count ry  and the  ro le  o f  overs igh t  in  

Par l iament  pa r t i cu la r ly  the  ru l ing  par t y  to  become bet te r,  

thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  no  I  th ink  you have g i ven us  your  

exper iences and  your  pe rspect ives  in  te rms o f  what  

happens in  the  ru l ing  pa r ty  and I  th ink  the  po in t  you make  20 

in  the  remarks  we have jus t  made is  qu i te  impor tan t  tha t  

we have got  to  look  a t  these issues in  o rder  to  see how we  

can ass i s t  our  count ry.   That  shou ld  be  the  pr imary  

concern ,  what  shou ld  we do to  ass is t  our  count ry?   

And what  i s  i t  tha t  may have been done in  the  past  
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tha t  has no t  ass is ted  ou r  count ry,  because we must  no t  

cont inue w i th  th ings tha t  do  no t  ass is t  ou r  count ry,  we must  

a lways look fo r  ways o f  do ing  th ings tha t  wou ld  ass is t  our  

count ry.   So I  th ink  tha t  i s  in  par t ,  par t  o f  the  po in t  you  

have made,  and I  th ink  i t  i s  an  impor tan t  po in t .   

MS LETSATSI -DUBA:    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you very  much,  Mr  Freund.  

ADV FREUND SC:    Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And so  tha t  i s  a l l  fo r  th is  even ing  and  

your  work  s t ream remains  w i th  about  two or  th ree  more  10 

w i tnesses tha t  we  w i l l  dea l  w i th  on  da tes  to  be  ar ranged.   

ADV FREUND SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   No,  thank you ve ry  much 

we w i l l  ad journ .   Thank you to  eve rybody and the  s ta f f  fo r  

s tay ing  t i l l  so  la te  so  tha t  we cou ld  cont inue w i th  the  work  

o f  the  Commiss ion .   Thank you very  much,  we ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 25 FEBRUARY 2021  
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